Washoe County

MATT SMITH, Chairman
KITTY JUNG, Vice Chairman
GEORGE FURMAN, MD

GEORGE HESS, MD
DENIS HUMPHREYS, OD

JULIA RATTI
SHARON ZADRA TJOSEPH P. ISER, MD, DrPH, MSc
District Health Officer
Health District
WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT
1001 East Ninth Street / P.O. Box 11130
Reno, Nevada 89520
Telephone 775.328-2400 s Fax .775.328.2279
www.washoecounty.us/health
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA
Washoe County District Board of Health
Date and Time of Meeting: Thursday, March 28, 2013, 1:00 p.m.
Place of Meeting: Note Location: Washoe County Commission Chambers

1001 East Ninth Street, Building A
Reno, Nevada

District Board of Health Meeting Agenda
All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible action™
were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no
action will be taken. ‘

Agenda
Time Item Agenda Item Presentér
No. ,
1:00 PM *1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance Led by Invitation Mr. Smith
| *2. | Roll Call _ T T [ Ms. O'Neill
Public wEh Public Comment (limited to three (3) minutes per person) Mr. Smith
Comment ' - '
4. Approval/Deletions to Agenda for the March 28, 2013 Meeting Mr. Smith
5. Approval/Additions/Deletions to the Minutes of the February 11, | Mr. Smith
2013 Special Meeting and February 28, 2013 Regular Meeting
*6. Recognitions , - Mr. Smith and

A. Introduction of new employee(s) - Dr. Iser
B. Promotions —
Cf Years of Service — Catherine Gipe — 20 Years - CCHS

D. Recognitions — Janet Smith, Organizational Management (OM)
certification from the International Association of
Administrative Professionals:

E. Retirements —

e —— Page 1



Time

Agenda
Item
No.

Agenda Item

Presenter

Proclamations — National Public Health Week — April 1~ 7, 2013

Consent Agenda: Matters which the District Board of Health may
consider in one motion. Any exceptions to the Consent Agenda
must be stated prior to approval.

1.

A. Air Quality Management Cases:

Recommendation to Uphold Unappealed Citations to the
Air Pollution Control Hearing Board:
a. Margaret Van Dyken — Case No. 1111, NOV
5352, 124 La Rue Drive, Reno, NV 89509
b. Golden Flower Restaurant — Case 1112, NOV
5324, 205 West 5" Street, Reno, NV 89503
¢. David Walker — Case 1113, NOV 5325
205 West 5gh Street, Reno, NV 89503

Recommendation of Cases Appealed to the Air Pollution
Control Hearing Board. None.

Recommendation for Variance: None.

Sewage, Wastewater & Sanitation Cases: Recommendation

to Approve Variance Case(s) Presented to the Sewage,
Wastewater & Sanitation Hearing Board. None.

Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements:

Proposed approval of Subgrant Amendment #1 from the
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services,
Health Division, Bureau of Child, Family and Community
Wellness for the period Januvary 1, 2012 through
December 31, 2014, with funding of $460,145 per
calendar year (reduced from CY12 funding of $486,542),
approve the reduction of PC#70002278, Health Educator
IT (vacant) from 1.0FTE to 0.49 FTE, in support of the
HIV Prevention Grant Program, IO 10013; and authorize
the Chairman of the Board to sign.

Proposed approval of Subgrant Award from the Nevada
Department of Health-and Human Services, Health
Division for the period January 1, 2013 through December
31, 2013 in the amount of $80,751 in support of the
Tuberculosis Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) Grant Program, IN 10016; and authorize the
Chairman of the Board to sign.

Ratification of Interlocal Contract (continuation award)
between the State of Nevada, Department of Conservation
and Natural Resources, Division of Environmental
Protection and the Washoe County Health District for the

Ms. Albee

Ms. Cooke

Ms. Cooke

Ms. Cooke

period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015 in the total

Page 2 —




Time

Agenda |

tem
No.

Agenda Ttem

Presenter

amount of $100,000 (not exceeding $50,000 the first year)
in support of the Hazardous Materials Grant Program, IO
10022; and if approved, authorize the Chairman of the
Board to execute. '

4. Ratification of Intrastate Interlocal Contract between the
State of Nevada, Department of Conservation and Natural
Resources, Division of Environmental Protection and the
‘Washoe County Health District in the total amount of
$902,000 ($218,000 per year and a one-time additional
payment of $30,000 payable in fiscal year 2014) for the
period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2017 in support of
the Underground Storage Tank (UST) and Leaking
Underground Storage Tank (LUST) Program; and if
approved, authorize the Chairman of the Board to execute.

5. Proposed approval of Notice of Grant Award from the
‘ U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Food and

Drug Administration for the period September 12, 2012
through June 30, 2017 in the amount of $346,500
($69,300 per year) in support of the Advancing
Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food
Regulatory Grant Program (VNRFRPS), 10 TBD; and
approve amendments totaling an increase of $63,000 in
both revenue and expense to the FY 13 VNRFRPS Grant
Program, 10 TBD.

D. Proposed acceptance of the Air Quality Management
Division’s portion of the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan

Annual Report

E. Proposed acceptance of the Washoe County Health District
2013 Legislative Session Report

Ms. Buxton

Ms. Cooke

Mr. Inouye

Dr. Iser, Mr. Dick,
and Mr. Sack

Air Pollution Control Hearing Board Cases appealed to the

District Board of Health. None.

Ms. Albee

10.

Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority:

A. Review and Acceptance of the Operations and Financial
Reports for February, 2013; and

B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities Since February,
2012

11.

Mr. Gubbels

Emergency Medical Services (“EMS”), Including
Recommendations Contained in the TriData Report and Various
Other EMS Studies. '

Dr. Iser and Dr. Todd




Time

Agenda
Item
No.

Agenda Item

Presenter

*12.

Presentation by Keep Truckee Meadows Beautiful (KTMB)
regarding Recycling, Reduction, Reuse, and Illegal Dumping
Activities

Ms. Cakiroglu

13.

PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed approval and adoption of the
revisions to “The Washoe County Portion of the Nevada State
Implementation Plan to Meet the Sulfur Dioxide Infrastructure SIP
Requiremerits of the Clean Air Act, Section 110(a)(2).”

Mr. Inouye

14.

PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed approval and adoption of
Amendments to the Public Swimming Pool and Spa Operator
Certification Program regulations regarding the term of the Washoe
County Health District certificate.

Mr. Rubio

15.

PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed approval and adoption of the
Amended Well Construction regulations regarding public well
distance.

Mr. Boland

16.

Future of the Health District Committee — Appointment of
Additional Member

Mr. Smith and Dr.
Iser

*17.

Presentation of Community Health Assessment Data Set

' Mr. Kutz

*18.

Presentation of Community and Clinﬁ.Health Services’ Strategic
Plan

Mr.. Kutz

19.

Review and Accepfaxze_of?he, Monthly Public Health Fund
Revenue and Expenditure Report for February, 2013

Ms. Stickney

20.

Presentation and Possible Approval/Amendments to the Fiscal
Year 14 Washoe County Health District Budget, with Revenues
Budgeted at $8,822,703, General Fund Transfer of $8,723,891, and
Expenditures Budgeted at $18,978,101.

Ms. Stickney

*21.

Staff Reﬁorts_ and'Progr_am Updates

A. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness -
Communicable Disease; Public Health Preparedness;
Emergency Medical Services; and Vital Statistics

Dr. Todd

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services —
Clinical Programs and Non-Communicable Disease Updates

Mr. Kutz

C. Director, Environmental Health Services
Food Program; Land Development; Solid Waste/Special
Events; and Vector-Borne Disease Program

Mr. Sack

D. Director, Air Quality Management — Air Quality; Planning
and Monitoring Activity; Permitting Activity; Compliance &
- Inspection Activity; and Permitting & Enforcement Activity

| Mr. Dick

Page 4




Agenda
Time Jtem Agenda Item : Presenter

E. Administrative Health Services Officer — AHSO agenda Ms. Stickney
items are included in other agenda items.

F. District Health Officer — 2013 Legislative Session; Budget; Dr. Iser
Human Resources; Communication; Accreditation; Washoe
County and Community Activities; Health District Media
Contacts and Qutreach; Statewide (and Beyond) ’
Organizational Efforts; RWIF Shared Services Léarning
Community Grant Update; and District Board of Health
Information and Resources

Board *22. Limited to Announcements or Issues for Future Agendas Mr. Smith
Comment i R
23. Emergency Items Dr. Iser
" Public *24. Public Comment (limited to three (3) minutes per person). No Mr. Smith
Comment action may be taken.
_ 25. | Adjournment R Mr. Smith

Business Impact Statement: A Business Impact Statement is available at the Washoe County Health District for those items
denoted with a “$.”

Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the agenda, moved to the agenda of
another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block. Items with a specific time
designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later. Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are
voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent.

The District Board of Health Mestings are accessible to the disabled. Disabied members of the public who require special
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe:
County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting.

Time Limits: Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters whether listed on the agenda or
not. All comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person. Additionally, public comment of three (3) minutes per person
may be heard during individual action items on the agenda. Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting. Persons may not allocate unused time to other
speakers.

Response to Public Comments: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda
properly posted prior to the meeting. During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the
published agenda. The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses: to public comments by the Board of Health.
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without
notice to the public. On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda. The Board of Health may do this either during the public
comment item or during the following item: “Board Comments - Limited to Announcemeént or Issues for future Agendas.”

Page 5 . e S e



Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations:

Washee-County Health-Distriet; 10061 E-9th St Rene; NV~ Unavailable due to construction.
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV

Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV
- Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV
Washoe County Health District Website www. washoecountv.us/health -

= = - Page 6



‘Alenieladooo ylom 0}
Ajunwwos no Joj seniunpoddo pue suojsioap Alajes olqnd axew o} sjeiolo

pajo3|e 4o Ajljigisuodsal 8y} UO PajUSWIOD UOSqoder sluuaq Joybyall4 ousy uaWwIos oljand G
"Apusiinouod
*AlUnoD soyusep pue ‘syeds jo A0 ‘ousy | - Buneaw ag Aew jey) seipoq

jJo AID ‘UyyesH jo pieog sy paziubooal ||pyse) qog JoAep ouay Jo A1 a11qnd 13y30 jo uoubooay R

"Aljus yoes 1o}

pajou sem wnionb e pue ‘Ajjus yoes Joj usye) SBM |0l BY | "pejou wnionb

B pue yjjesH jo pJeod 1ou)siq Sy} Joj uaye} sem ||eo |joy ‘BunyeH uybnep ,
Jauoissiwwo) fjuno) aoysep Aq pa| aouelba)|y jo abpald ayy Aq pamo)|o} ileo oy pue ‘Ge|4 €Tl
‘1aplo 0} pa||ed sem YjlesH Jo pieod Joulsiq |y} jo Bunsaul [eoads sy 8y} o} 9Jnjesg 4spipQ 0} jjlen | wWe gg:g

Kejaiosg Bulpiooay I8N0 "4 ABBad

faulopy 11181 AindaQ ‘puelilipy sijseT
ssaupaledald yijeeH
dllgnd-pue ABojoiwapidy ‘Jojoauiq uoising ‘Hdid ‘PPOL llepuey 122140 YlleaH joussiq Jes| ydesor

EEELARY

SUON :LN3S8Vv

sfelydwnHy sius( "i1q pue
uewLn w@omo 1IQ ‘sseH 861099 Q ‘elpeZ UBWOM|IOUNOD ‘IJBY UBLIOM|ISUNOD ‘BUnf JOUOISSIWWOY ‘UBLLIIBYD ‘UHWS HeW JN  :INISTud

PISIA YHesH

€10Z ‘L1 Meniqag

[1ouno) A11H oudy pue ‘[1ounos Ao sytedg
‘uoissiwiwion AJunog soyseph ‘HOgd
sajnuly Bunesyy Jualinouo9 jervadg . fyumod oysem

yjleaH jo pieog jou3siq A3unos aoysepp |




Z abeyd

2 8¢ p|nom a3y} §i pauofsanb a4 "ueqingns pue |einl AjjeonsLsioereyo
si uoibal ino jo |eap jeaib e jey) pejels BunpeH Jauoissiwwos AJunon

‘uoisioap Asljod 8y} s jeu) Ji sjeIyd Bnosal asou}

ncm SJSIYD ali} 9S0U}] 0} plalf 0} 9ABY oM UBY} ‘BI0W Op 0} Juem Aay} J Ing
‘spjepuejs Wwnwiuiw sy} op o} sey ApogAlang "aAnebolald 119y} si 1Y) uau)
‘leo AJeA® U S}OSSE [|0J O JUBM SBRI0 JI ‘1I9ABMOH "papasu Ajjeal sI asuodssal
1S4 81l uaym Ajjoexa Uo ul-auoy ues am ‘yojedsip Ajuoud YIaA WelsAs ay) Jo
Hed Jayjo A1ans spesu wa)shs au} jo Wed Llans saasljeq ejeqll] "SSO|yLIOM
Jou s )1 Jo ssejypom s )i Aes pue s|doad Jo dnoub sauo pue Aousbiawa adA} auo
Je %00} ued nok sAsIeq Jou S0P 8y pale)s usyod Ig esuodsal Joinb joadxe
suUaZ|)ID "SUSZIIO JIsy) JO a1ed 8y} Joj S|gisuodsal ale salouabe lepuodsal
1sii4 "syuspioul Areuow|nd-oipied pazAjeue Ajuo jeyj oluoIo] wolj Apnis

e uodn paijal poday yoy4 8y} Jeyy pajels uayo) “ig pue ‘uoienba sy} Jo Jno
SIAT 811} 00} 8m JI SSWODINO0 U] 2oUBISYIP B 98S pjnom am JI pauonsanb o
"S3W0NC [e2lUI[D Ul 90UBISYIP S|l Seyew pue A}soo s siapuodsal 1sily se
allj Jey) sajejs yoday yoli4 auyj jey) pajels Bunyuey Jauolssiwwos A3unog

‘s|lea SINT 00¢ 2 Aleyewixoldde o) pspuodsal

sy edg ples 300} >uc< Je1yD a4 syledg ‘suonelsado s yYSINTY Jo 1809 8y}
o} Ajjueoyjubis ppe spodsuel) 000'g 8S0y) Jey} pajels uewsnd "aq “spodsuen
asoy} ppe jou pip £ey) ey} pepuodsai uayo? “ig pue ‘siasuel) Asusblawe
-uou pspnjoul SSWN|OA asuodsal 8sayj) ji USyoD) "I pPa)se uewng “ig

"sajnuIwW g Jepun isnf

JO awi) asuodsal e yym ‘s|jeo ST aJom Usiym Jo %08 Alstewixoidde ‘Jeak
1SE| S][BO 000'0€ 1910 0} papuodsal all4 ouay ples zepueulaH a)I JoIuD
3ll] ousy -ousy pue syieds Jo saRID ey} Aq o} pepuodsal s|[ed Jo Jaguinu Joy
PaXSE YJIwg UeWIoUNOD Syedg ISl SUSOS UO SALIE SIapuodsal Jsiij ol
‘BWI} 8} JO %G/ — 09 Jey) pspodal uayoD "Ig 1SJlj SUSOS UO PAALLIE OYM Jou
'S||e0 8ouUBINGLUE O} SIJ8J JagINU By} ples uayos) "I pue ‘s|jes Japuodsal
Js11} 000'GS 8y} buipieBal uonesyLed Jo) payse YHWS uew|iounos syiedsg

"Hodal ejeqli] 8y} ul passaippe ejep
pue s}daduoo sy} pajussaid usyod iq "Hodoy SisAleuy SWelsAs [eaipsy
Aousbiswiz eleqQu] 9y} JO Joyine ‘uayos pioseH "I pasnposjul Aaes I

"Hoday |Bul4 8y} UlyIM Paulejuod suolepuawiwiogal syy Buipjebal
4je}s 0} Alessaoau paujwislep se uoloalip apiroid pue podsy jeuld siskjeuy
swaysAg |eoipsy Aousbiawg ay) uo uonejuasald e sAle8l [19UNOY Syleds

8y} buipuswiwoosl Aaseg uneys Jebeuepy AjD syiedg woly wsy epusbe uy

Isjuswwon 1axe Asljod

"Moday [eul] ayj ulyim
paulejuod suoljepusawioaal
ayj} pue Joday

[eul] sisAjeuy swaysAs
|eaipa|y Aouabiawig ejeqhl|
Z10zZ 1snbny ayj Buipiebau
Hels o) uonoalip jenuajod
pue ‘uoissnasip ‘uonejuasaid




¢ abey

sey ousy o AlD ayj 1ey) papodal AsjeH WIISYS Blep 108]|00 PUE aleys o)
yoeoidde QD o1 (QvD) yoledsip papie JaIndwoos ay; passnosip AsieH yusus

"uoneoo;.

-02 0} Uohepllosuoo wol) swiy Jaao pabueyo snooy s, a:o‘_m 9y} moy passnosip
pue dnouig) Buppopp yoedsiq sy} ul vmcm__anoom usaq sey jey} ylom ay
pamalnal AojeH JIIaYS "eajIWiWoY) S92IAISS paleys ay; o} sBuipuly Jodes pue

sabusjleyo Ajjuapl 0} dnoig BunIopn Yyojedsiq syy 9|qeus o) anURUOO O} USAIB

8q uonoallp pajsanbal AsjeH oI Husys uewwieyD dnois) Bunlop yojedsiq

‘Joday jeuld sisAjeuy swa)sAg [eaipajy Aousblawg ejequ |

2102 8y} Wolj suoijepusiwodal 0} pajelal uonoalip snoinald uo ssaiboid
Buipnioul ‘dnoisy BuBlIopA SINT Ul woly Jodal snjejs e aAI8081 SaIpoq

8y} Buipuswiwooas Aaled uneys Jabeuepy A1 syieds woly wayl epusbe uy

"Hoday jeuld

sisAjeuy swaysAg [esipapy
Aouabisw3z ejequl zL0z
8y} wouy suojepuawiwiosal
0} paje|as uonodalIp
shoiaald uo ssaiboad
Buipnjoul ‘dnoigy Bunjiopn
SIN3 8y} Jo Jodaa shyeys
pue ajepdn ue Buipiebal
Jjels o} uonjoalip enpuajod
pue ‘uoissnasip ‘uonejuasaid

‘selpusbliows

urepso o} asuodss. sjeldoidde pue asuodsal ¥omnb e Jo anjeA sy} mouy
12A1,uop epn ¢1oeul Ajfesibojoinau pue Jybudn Asy) ale Inqg ‘aAInns Asy) op
isnljou s )i Juepodwi A1 ase sswodnQ 'sapisqns Asusbiaws sy) Joxoinb
93U} ‘BUSDS UO SBALLIR SUOBWOS Ja)dInb ay ‘uonebijqo Jey) 0} paRILIWoD
Sey 92IAISS 8ll} 8} ‘S8iIUNWIWOD Jsow U] “Jepuodsal 1Sil B SI ‘80IAISS all}
1o ‘Juswpedap ao)jod ‘|suuosiad sjeiodiod ‘asinu [0oyds e ale Asy} Jayjeym
‘fousBiews ue o) puodsal 0) s8SO0UD oYM BUOAUE Jey} psaiides usyo)

1Q ,1epuodsal Jsii, B paISpISUOD S| JUSWISDIONS ME] JOLJOUM S)B)S 0] pue
Jopuodsai jsuy,, sulap 0} usyoy "I PeXSE Jagqap JaUoISSIWWOo) AJunon

"1eak ay) Joj sesuodsal 000‘9 Ajerewixoidde sjsesalo) ay
0s ‘uondaouoo 8duls SyuoW XIs ay) ul sesuodsal 000'e Ajelewixoidde useq
aAeY aJay) Jey} papuodsal 8100 JoIyD pue ‘o} papuodsal sey dd4INL SIieD

Jo.Jaquinu a8y} Inoge I00J\ J8iYD ali4 PaYSe Jaqap Jauoissiwwod A3unod

'ssonb e aq 1snl pjnom 1 mou

Jybu Inq ‘sjeldoidde aq pjnom mwcoawm‘_ }sdl) olpaweled asaym sjexood swos
aq Aew a1y |ons| uoleOyIeD JIay) o} Bulwiopad si Apoghians ains axew
sJo7 "olpsweled e s| Apoghians aisym SBUO SU) S Sjel UOIE}OSNSaI }SOMO|
3y} aAey Jey) swalshs ay "9o1AIes Jey) Bulpiao.d Je si [enpiAlpul ue Jojeq
3y} ‘peopoeld si anbiuyosy e Ajjusnbayy aiow ay) Jey) s paules| usaqg sey
1eum Inqg ‘Juspnud aq pjnom |aAs| Jaybiy e o} suokiana Buiuiely Jybnoyy Ajjenul
S\ Blep 8y} 8AeY JOuU Op SAA ‘uolssnb Jey) 0} JOMSUB PaSEq 9oUBPIAS

ue noA aAIb ues em syjuow g| o} Jeak e ul Ajnyedoy Jey) paje)s sH Mous| Jou
So0p 8y pajels usyo) IQ 'slepuodsai sy a1l sU) 4o} STV Bulaey o} Jijsusg




y obed

3U} 10} B|qISUCdSal 8q P|NOM }SaIB)Ul Ul 10SS89NS S,YSINTY UsY} ‘8SIyouBld

8} JOA0 Y00} HOFGA U} 198} Ul Ji Jey) paje)s pueliwpy aijsa Asulopy
ousig Ainds@ pue ‘Buipuglsiepun Jey; Wijuod o} [asunoo [ebs| payse Bunp

JOUOISSIWWOY "YSINTY JOAC 300} Aay) JI sem YSINTY Ag paninour 1qep’

Aue 1oy o|qisuodsau aq pihom suonaipsunl ayy Aem Ajuo ayj 1ey) pepuodsal
sjeqgno “JI\ pue ‘Juswasiby asiyouel4 ay} 0} juensind }gsp S, YSINTY

Joj a|qIsucdsal si HOgQ ay} Jayiaym pauonseonb Bunp Jouoissiuwion
"VSINTH Aq psumo aie Asy} 1By} pajels s|aqgno) i\ pue ‘Isjusd

yoledsip sy pue slemyos sy jo diysiaumo ayj Jnoge sjaqqno “J|\ pauoysanb
Bunp Jauoissiwwog ‘suopesado sy Buiuunt ul soe(d Ul ainjonJselul
SAISUd)Xe Ue Sey YSIWIY uoieao| [edisAyd swes ayj ul a1om Asy] JI UBAS
uoinqiL 0} paxul| 89 0} p88uU piNom pue dySd Paseq [edlpaswl e s| YSINTY

Aq pasn we)sAs sy} Jey} pajels s|aqqno N "UoRe0j-00 [esisAyd Joj psau ay)
S8]BUIWI|3 UoJEI0|-09 [ENHIA B MOY PasShasIp S[2qqno wip Juspisald YSINIY

‘Aionb Jay o0} puodsal
0} VSINTY jo aAljejussaldal e Joj payse Bunp Jauoissiwwon ‘swiy jussaid

8y} Je 9)e00|-00 0} PajUEBM JBY) 9SOV} JO SBOIAISS BU} 8)E00|-00 0} pazuoyne:

Apusnbasgns a1am app “suoseal Jo AlalieA e 1o} S|geAsIyoe Jou sem [eob jey ]
"19jus0 Jofew suo oju; s19juad yojedsip s,uocibal 3y} J[e JO UOIIePI|OSUOD IO}
Bupjoo| A|[eniul sem dnols) BuiiopA yoledsig 8yl UOEI0|-02 0} 82UB)sIsal
Ou sem iU paje)s AsjeH JBYS pue ‘UoIIeOOI-0 0} SBM 3oUE]SISal

ay] Jeym pauonsenb Bunp Jauolssiwwon ‘ssaupaiedald AousbBiawg

1o UoIsIAIg epeAs jo 8)elS au) ybnoiy) ALiNoeg puelsWoH Jo uswuedsq
8y} woly si jueib sy} Jeyy paiess |esiyd N Alessaosu ag Jou pinom

J 1By} pies [asIyD I\ pue ‘pajesol-00 alam SI8)jusd yojedsip ay} ji Alessaosu
aq p[nom abexull gyD 0} gvyD au} Jayieym pauonsanb Bunp Jauoissiwiwo)

'ssao0.4d painseaw pue |npybnoyl e aq o}

aAeY |[IM )] “Jesh e Ajojewixoidde axe) pinom uolejuswsdiu; pue uonesBajul
8yl ‘uonejusws|dwl JO }JSO aljus aY} JOACD jIm Juelb ay ] “wuopeld sy) ojuo
syleds Jo Ao ayy Buibuuigq sepnjoul yoiym ‘000'96.$ St walshs Qv uoingit
ay) epeibdn o) Juelb pasodoid sy} ples |asiyD Uagoy Jojoallg aoueui

ousy ‘uoljeluswa|dwll Joj Bul| SWI} B PUE JSO9 [|IM Ul YD 0} VD 8ul Jeym
1o} 9)eWIISS UE S| 818U) Joylaym As|eH JuUaUS podSE UopIe UBWOM]IoUN0Y)

UIL.AVD 01 v onJy e 10} yoddns pue ‘sioyiewl Sauolss|i

pue uonoalip ‘dnolb Bupjiom ay) jo Jusuwiemodla panuiuoD 1oy UoHI3IIP
IexewAoljod pajsenbai dnois) Buppiopp yotedsiq sy walshs qyo parelbajul
ayj 0} speibdn o} [ercidde pajsanbal AsjeH Juays ‘ejep esuodsal (e

10 uoneiBsiul pue sbexull gy 01 QvD enJ} B 10} MO||E PINOM UDIUm ‘Walshs
uoingl] ey} speibdn o) pieme Juelb e 1o} jercidde paaiaoal pue Joy psldde

sjuswiwio?) Jayep Aaljod




G abed

yojedsig sy pue Juaus ayj jeym spoddns ay palels yuws ueunieyn
HOg9Q -oAey am uonsenb AUe Aj|ENLIA JOMSUE |jIM UOIUM BJep o) 1oelixa

0} uspuUMm 8q ueo spodal [ejsAiD jey) pue ‘Buipuejsiapun jeyl pauluoo As|eH
HUBYS “ejep jo Buueys Aem-om) B 8q UaY) PINOM ey} JSylaym pue abeul)
dvD 0} VO 8y} Inoge AsjeH Jueys pauonsanb yjws uewreys Hodd

"pieoq 9A0adsal yoes 0} yoeq ob pinoys Japew yoeg ws) Siy] Uo Usye}

84 ||IM UOIjOE OU Jey} pajels [joyses JoAejNl "BIep paleys aney am aiaym
2oe|d B 0] Jom s}i enuuoo 0} dnoib Buijiom ayj JoalIp 0} UOKEPUSWILWLOIS)
Jay aq p|jnom j1 ‘uonoallp Joj payse AsjeH HuByS Souls Jey; pajels ey
uewom|1ounog sydeds “uoioallp jey; ui Buirow ale am pue ‘s|qesiyoe

Sl}| "Jey) op o} paau app “Bupjew uoisioap [euolbal aieyljioe} 0) Alesssaau
ejep ay) diysispes| pue sisxew Aojjod sjgeus 0} ainydes ejep pajeibajul

Ajiny pue Ayiqedes g3 [euoifal sapnjoul Jey) WaisAs QyD end) e Jo uoloalIp
BUj} Ul SA0W [|IM 11 “JOM S} 8nujuod 0} pazuoyine si dnoic) Buplopp yoledsiq
8y} Ji Jey) pies AsjeH yuays ‘ejep jo Aousiedsuels) pajiwij Jo 8SneOaq UOIIOUN)
aoueuianob ay) ur esou) Joj Ajunpuoddo paywi st alay) ‘Apuaiingy ‘elep

Jo Buipodal payun pue jusledsuel) Joj pasu. 8U) pue aoueuUISA0b S| anssi

BY} Ul JsaIs)ul UleW Jay pIes 1jjey UeOM|IdUNO) syieds "UMOP Juam Jajusd
yojedsip ulew auj ji Aouepunpal jey} aq pue wioyeld uoingi| ayj o) uo ob

0} syzedg o} sapinoid pieme Juelb au) Jey) pawLyuod 133y UBWOM[IdUNO)
sysedg ‘swioyeld ST pue 4ySd dwes ay} 0} awoo sy JI pjnom

syledg Jo AiD ay) ‘Aouepunpau Jey} epiaoid Jou pjnom YSINTY pies AojeH
#leys Aouepunpal spiacid 0} OO} PUODSS B SARY O} AjIge 8Ly pue Ajjioe)
8y} a[qesIp pjnom jey) Aousbiews Jofew e Japisuod piNoyYs UOED0|-02 Jey)
pies 1j3ey uewoMm|I1ouno) sydedsg Juswebeuew gNT je ale am juaioyold
moy je ssenb Ajuo ued am ‘ejep |e a3s 0) Aljua yoes smojje abexoed
2JeMOS pPaliun B [iun Ing ‘wnijoads peolq ay} ssoloe Ayjeuoiouny yojedsip
alpuey o} Ajiqe s NODT UM S|qBHOjWOD S| 8y pies AsjeH Juays “Hodal
Bleqli] 9y} U)IM PaJeIdSOSSE JoU S18m pUB UOIJED0}-00 810j8q auop sisAjeue ue
uo paseq alom Jodal au) Ul senss| oy} Jey) ples AojeH LlIays 'S[jed [esipaw
8jpuey 0} (IWOD3) suonesiunwwo) Asuabiawg ouay jo salijige ay} 4O [eolD
SEM Uolym podal ay) Jnoge As|eH JUSYS PaSe 133y UBWOM]IdUNO) syJeds

"9JEIUNWWOD 0} Pa)ul| 8q 0} BABY PINOM pue SWalSAS Jusiayip Jjis
ale Aay) Jeu) paje)s sjaqano "IN "UMOP Juam Ul 0 J AlleaisAyd pajeso)
-02 9q 0} [BIoljoU] 9] PINOM }I Ji PAYSE 3ASIYIS AIB[IH UBLUOM|IZUNOY) OUdY

199p S, YSINTYH
Buioines aq pinom HOGQ Y} ‘uolenyis wislul Aue uy -Aus sjqisuodsal

8y} oq pinom Asyy usy} ‘HOGQ dU} SI }SIBJUI Ul JOSS29NS 1BY) JI PUB ‘18P




g abed

uewlieyn ‘sfjed juepodull 3sow asoy) 1no syOId DY OXd @4l APoIinb aiow

sjjeo asou ubisse |IM QvD 0} AV dUl "dvSd Ajejes aignd sy ybnouyy aq
isnw Anus 40 uiod sy} jey; AsjeH Juays yum seaibe sy papodal usyod “id

‘Apog o1/and e se apew aq 0} SPaaU UOISIOBp By}
pue anss| 901nosal B S} S8A9)|9q 9 2w} 8y} Jo Ajuolew oy jsi1) 8USIS Uo
SaAuLe all4 Aym SI Jey) pue usjsued) Jeyy ul Aejap sjnuill om} e Ajejeluixoidde
sl @i8yl 'YSINTY O} pausjsuel; Ajgjelpaww; j,uale s||ed jesipas Aym
pase Youo( Jaquiswijiouno) oudy ||eod auy Joy Anua o wiod ay) aq 1ou
PINOYs YSINEY ‘aloja1ay} :usziio s 0} papiacid aolaies [esipaw Asuablews
3y} o} s|qIsuodsai ale seunood pue saiio 1ey) dnob Bujiom aajus

a3 Jo uoluido ay} sI )i pue ‘uoisSsnIsIp Jey) Uusag sey sy 1ey) papodal AsjeH
Husyg pue Jsjuag yojedsig SINT Arewid sy ySINTY Bunjew jo uoissnasip
Aue usaq sey aiay} Ji AS[eH YLBYS PaYSE YoHOog UBLI[IOUNOY) OUdY

"uoljji 0G$ Sl J9)Us0 Isey, B JO }SOO aU} pieay YHwg uew|isuno) syledg
Jsenbal 8y} JO sIeME S| JOUISAOS) 8U) pue ‘uojepodsuel] Jo juswuedsq ay)
Aq paJepisuoo Buieq si )l ples AsjeH #1oYS '} punj pjNOM OUM PUEB JSOD pjnom
1eul yonw moy payse yyuwig uewjiosunos syiedg -piemio) saow o) Asnpul
Ino Jo apis Bjep sy} 10} MOJ|e pjnom jeu) Jajuso isey, e buesls Jo asodind sy
1o} DO INOD3 suND 8y} jo Apedoud ayy uo Buipjing e aoejd uoielodsuel |
Jo juswpedsq ayj Bunsanbai si ay pies AojeH Lilays "ays a|geidesse

ue pA|g Jied si Jo Jsjuad suonesado Aousbiawa mau e Jojy Bujoo| aq

M Asy) ji paxse yjlws uew(iounog sydedsg iom siy ysijdwoosoe o) sjdoad
s80In0sal uewny pue ‘yyeay ‘[ebs| ‘{eaiuyos) Jybu sy} sey dnoio BuiLopm
Yojedsiq 8y} sensleq ay pies AsjeH Juayg "dnolb Buiyiom ayy pauuloy
930D S22IAISS palteys ay) aouls dnoib Bupiom sy} JoalIp 0} S|IouUnoD
ayj Joj sjendoidde Ajjeuinpaooud i} ji payse PIWYDS URWIOUNOY) Syleds

"pIp syJeds jo Ayo
8y} pue Ajunc) sy} Inq ‘swisy uoloe Se swisll asay) azipuabe jou pip ousy
30 Q31D ay1 Jeyy payueo Jabuljg sebeue Ao sytedsg “uonoe Bupe) o) se

Aepoy peaoo.d o} Buiob ale em moy pexse Bunyey Jauoissiwwog AJuno)

‘Bupyew uoisioap Jno ssalppe Ajjeosyoads o) spodal
wojsno Jo Bunum sy mojje oy Ajfeuonouny Sey uoingij ‘s|eAs| asuewopsd |
0} SB SIN220 JeyMm puejsiapun 0} pue adiyQ SJaus AJunoD soyseps
By} unl 0} sasn ay jeym s j| sieah Auew ‘Auew Joj wuoge|d uoingr ey}
uo usaq aAey ouay Jo AlID sy} pue Aluno) soysep ey} pajels AsjeH Jusys

"Way} ssalppe 0} S|qe a9 0} ale swajgoid
8y} 8JayMm ||3] Jouued am ‘Blep 3y} JNOYNIAA "op o} Buikiy are dnous) Buisliopa




] obed

Jauolssiwwoy ‘sapeibdn no uo Juauno desy ||e am se buo| se o|qnedwod
8Je yos ] pue uoIngi] "Juauno I deoy o} Ajjenuuelq 1o Ajjenuue papeibdn
SI wasAs yos 1] S, YSINTY 1ey) papodal sjaqgne) i\ pue ‘siemyos
S.YSITY Inoge sjaqqno I peyse Bunp Jauoissiwwon ‘GLOZ SI 8] 4O pua
UOISISA XINN JUSLIND 8Y} pUe ‘L 00Z Ul 9Al] Jusm Jl Jey) papuodsal uosuyop
[21ueq pue ‘s| wioyeld uoingl] Sy} pjo Moy payse Bungp Jauoissiwwo)

"VYSIWIN 03 Ajjoauap ob oy

}i Juem Jou pjnom pue apew si ||eo Aousblowse ue uaym Mmouy 0} sjuem syiedg
0 A0 8y) pies ypwg uew(1ouno sydeds sy spuodsal SINT ysiym aleo
Jou op Aay} ‘ssalisIp Ul S USZNID B USUM pIesS YIS Uewauno) sypedg

‘pales|o ussq sey Jey) auaos e je BuiaLle ale Asy) ‘spuodsal
9duenNqWe Ue UsYM Jey} ains axew o} )siij S||ed aAIeoal 0} Aousbe Ajojes
allqnd e Joj Alessaoau si )l 1ey) psjeooApe Bunyey lauoissiwwo? Ajunog

"sowl} asuodsal pue

awl Jejsuel) Jey} asealosp Ajulepsd pinom jull dyo 03 gy & jey) papodsl
zopueuleH Jaiyy “AiBuipioooe pesdoid pue isuly SaALLIe oym uo Buipusdep
apelbumop o [soued ued Ajijus Jaylig 'sinooo jey) Ajanoe eoysusq Ajeninw
B S1]| 'SINT aJe %08 Pue ail4 ale %07 Jey} pauodal zepueusaH JaIyD
‘Papa8U Jou S| a1l JI S|9OUED OUYM pue ‘sasuodsal ‘s|jes AousBiswe jnoge
OrY ©yj Ui SYOiE JUBDBI B UO S|IBJap J0) PO)SE UOpJE[ UBWOM[IOUNOY OUdY

‘apeW aJe suolsiosp Aue aiojaq yoyedsip
uo Buuesy 3snf uey} Jsyjes SUOHEPUSWIWIODA] §¢ || Uo siebeuew sy) wosj
uonejussald sy} Jeay o} SjUem ays Jey) PaJels ey UBWOM[IOUNOY syiedg

HIOM
pooB sy 8nunuoo 0} dnoig) BupiopA yoledsiq ayy Buimojje syesoape pjnom
8H ‘fewluiw sI awy Jaysuel) Jeyy os siquedwos aq o} Juswdinba sy} sjuem

8y pue paulel s! Jejs s,ySINIY Jeu) [9A8] B} 0} paulel) 8q 0} JJels SIy Sjuem
zapueulaH Jo1yo “Atejuswijdwod ale swalsAs INO “(‘sulw g Jepun ui) Ayoinb
0s 8AlLE am Aym st jey pue ‘Auedwog suibu3g ue yojedsip Ajsjeipawil opn
'VSINTY 03 |[ed ST ue Buuisysueny ul Gl 1 — | abelane apn INODT ousy
1e dvSd @y} 0} ob s|jeo swos pue ySNIY 03 Ajoauip of s|jed swog wa)sAs
pajeainyiq e si aiayy Ajjuaind Jey) papodal zepueulaH joIyD ali4 ousy

~ 'lou Jo |jeo AieAs Uo auy |jol

0} Jayjaym siapjoyayess ayy Aq apew aq o0} uoisioap Aoljod |2o0| & St )| "S|[ed
Aiond asouy seulwIslep Apealje VO O¥d Jeu} pelels usyos) “ig pue ‘ol
Aauj alojeq .1y uo sjooojoid aoejd 0) sjendoidde 8q. pjnom i JI pedsSE YIWS




Q abed

. ‘woyshs
poob e s| asuodsay [edIpajN YSINTY Pue asuodsey isiid a4 “apis Aq apls
Bupjiom ‘washs psian-om; e sey uoibal sily} "pJEMIO) BAOW PUE UoeIsdood

pue joadsal [emnu Jo Jids e pjing 0} 8| pinom ay pue ‘dnois Buop

SINT sJabeuew ayy u; sjedioiued o) ajqe aq 0} 8¥i| piNoM YSIWIY pies
s[eqano "I\ ‘panosdwll pue pamairal 8q UeD Jey] seale [elonss pajsabbns
sjoqqno “J|A “uonessdo pue uoneulpJood [euoiBal (g pue ‘uoiPalIp [esipaw
(Z ‘yojedsip pue uopedIUNWWOD (] S3WBY} UOWIWOD 381y} 8B 919U} PoE]s
pue ‘salpnis SINJ snoiraid sy} || pamaiAal Sey ay Jey) pale)s sjeqans I\

"WB1sAs |[BJan0 ayy anosdul

o} Joyyaboy yiom 0} Ayjunpoddo ay) sawodem YSINTY uinjas ul uoljesadood
pue Asusiedsuel) swes ay) Joj sadoy pue siouned Sji YlIm SUonoesuel)

ur Jussedsues) aq [im YSINTY ‘9.e0 [Edipaw jeyidsoy-ald Ul 8ous||aoxe
ajowouid 0} jeob pus ue yym uonelsadoos pue ‘Aousiedsuel; ‘ssauuado

JO Juids pemausi B 0} pajiuWod St YSIWIY pPue ‘YSINTY Je sebueys
diysiepes| usaq aney aJay} pIES S|9QYND "I "UOIILLIOLUI [BUOKIPPE 0} Way)
PE3J SISUOISSIWIWOY PUE S[ISUNOY Y} pabelnosus pue jexoed epusbe auy

Ut pspn|oul Jays| JaA0O B pue wajsAs ST JuaLInd sy} uo suodal JuUe)nsuod
[BUCHIPPE OM] By} PaduUdIs)al s[Bqqne wir juspisald Jybij4eied pue ySNIY

‘Hoday |euly sisAjeuy swalsAg
leaipaiy AouaBiawig eyequil Z10Z
oY} 0) asuodsai s jjeis YSINTH
‘0} pajiwi| Jou 3nq ‘Buipnjoul
‘(VSINTY) Auoyiny sedinies
feaipay Asuabiawg jeuocibay

8y} jo jje)s wod) ajepdn

d31x¥VI NOLLOW

‘ajelidoidde

Se suoljepuswwooal

8¢ ay} jo uonejuswaldu
UO YJOM 8NURUOD

0} siabeuely sy} 10011p
0} ‘Bunp JauoISSIUWIOD
Aq papuooss ‘panowi
eipEeZ UBWOM|IOUNO)

‘pallIED uojoul

pies -gjeudoidde se suojepuswiwosal g¢ ay) Bujuawaidwi ui pJemio) saow
‘0} ®NUNUOD sisbeuew 8y} Jey} SIBUOISSILUWOD JO pleog Aunod soysepn

8y} Jo Jleyaq uo Bunp sauolssiwiwon AJunon Ag spew sem uoow vy

‘pales uonow preg “sjeudoldde se suoljepuswiwosal
8¢ 9y} Bunusws|dwi ul piemio} sAow 0} enunuoo sisbeuew ay) jey) syieds
0 AiID 8yl jo Jleyaq uo ey uewom|iouno) syleds Aq spew Sem uonow v

"Hoday ejegu] 9y} ul uoijepuaLilooal g¢ Bululewsas ay} uo siebeuew
8y} woJj Jodal e Joj 7 "ON Wa}| 0} uinjau [im Asy) Jey} g "ON way| Jeay
0} / "ON Wa}| JJO SSAOW UOISSNOSIP 8} JI JeU} PaljLIEID 133eY UBLIOM|I2UNO)

"S|9A8| Bue)s JusLIno yym auop
8q UeDd }| pauLiojul sem pue spelbdn ucingi| 8y} op 0} $80IN0Sai | | [RUOIPPE
pasU am |Im ouay Jo AlD sy} Ji pauonsanb snyyaig ueWOM|I2UNOY ousy

‘0s op 0} peaibe sjaqqno I Bupssw Jxau s)i Je yjesH 1o pJeog 10L1si(
3y} 0} suonebiqo jgep Alyjuow s, YSINIY apirold o) sfeagno ‘I payse Bunp




6 abey

"HO8 18Uy} Ul 844 Ylim a1eloge|oo o} Buijm si pue semod Buikng
sey Ajulelad YSINTY Jeys paolosuial ‘AJIAioe 1eys jo Aloisiy sy paureidxs
s|aqqne) "IN pue ‘iemod Buiseyaind s yYSINTY pue abueyoxs Ajddns

|esIpawl Jnoge s|aqgno) I\ PaXSE UopIef URWOM|IDUNOY) oudy ‘AIols -
Aians 0] sopis ajdnjnw sAemie ale a1ay) aouls saAoadsiad jeuolippe sy Ypm
spodal aidijinw ayj psielosidde ays pajels uoplef UBIOM]IOUNOD OUdYy

‘Buipuelsiapun

Jey} pawuiuod Aaled Jabeuepy Al0 syleds pue ‘Bunasw Alaae ul jge) sy Je
aq ||IM YSINTY 1eul pauued ulebe eipez UBWOM|IOUNOYD OUDY JOPISUOD 0}
SOAljeUIB)E YIM SUOD pue soid UY)im SUCIIBPUSWLILLIOD3] SNSUSSU0D Yoeq Bullq
[a Jeyy dnoub Bunom ayp jo Led e aq |jm pue iapjoyaxels pue Jauped jenba
Ue aq [jIMm YSINTY 'SuolsIoap a)ew 0] uoljewlojul Alessaosu sy} aAeyY s|elolyo
pajosle ayj jeul os ‘saljied (e Buipniour ‘dnob Bupjiom ayy ul senssi g¢

[|e ssaippe 0] pasu am ABS 0} S| JOMSUE S| ‘M3IA3J SIU) 1o} (00} B Buipirold
pue uonewiloul Buipiaocid ul [ejuswiniisul usaq sey Jas) Iq ‘suolisenb

8¢ 8y} 0] SWOI ||IM SUOIINOS 'SBNSSs| 8SOYj JO M3IARS Wl 1ybisieno

pue Ajuoyine Aousabe gINT pue ‘asiyouel) YSINTY ‘Yoledsip :seale sa.y) oul
paziewwns a9 Ued yolym senssi oyioads ge payijuap yoday elequ] ayj

"suo2 pue soud pue suondo Buipnioui ‘sanssi

x3|dwWwos 8say} 10} SUOEPUSWIWLIOdaI PaaU S[BIOIO Pa1od|g 'sloys auyy Buljjes
fouabe auo jou si siy] ‘yoeosdde snsussuos e yum Bunjiom ‘suoienobau
asn [Im dnoub sy pue ‘uonnjos ayj sl YSINTY "sbunesw ay; || ay)

Ul Way} apnjoul Mou ||Im pue YSINTY wouy pieay Apuaoal isnf dnoib Bupjiom
9Y] "S8Ipoq Pajosle WOl SUOOW PUB SUCHOE Ujim JUSISISUOD UONoa.Ip

ay} u) Buinow ale sisbeuetwu ay} pies Aased uneyg Jebeuepy Ao syiedg

‘Buiwooloys e S| Jey} pue ‘usaq jou aAey Asy)] ‘polad AIBA0oSIp

pue uoijen|eAs [edIjlo Jey] Ul 9|gel Jey) Je YSINTY Buipnjoul sisuned

83U} ||e @ABY 0} paau apA Iho Buiwods suodal ajdninut usag aAey alay)
‘UOIEDIUNWILIOD JO X9k JO 8snedsqg "S|ge)} 8y} 18 aq 0} pasu siakeld ay jo

v "sBunesw dnois) Buops SINT 943 1B YSINTY BulAey jou ul ploA e si a1sy)
pajejs eipez UeWOM[I9UNO) "anssi ay} 0} Bulig 0y Buiyl Juepoduul jJsow

ay)} sI uolneioge|joo as]a buylou Jf Jey} polels elpezZ UBWOM[IOUNOY) OUdY

‘Ajuado uonew.oyur Buueys

aJem Aay} pue ‘poday ejeqLli] 8y} 0} Joud PaUOISSILLLLIOD alam suodal ay)
1ey) pies s|aqqno) I eAnesadoo? jou s| ssaooud siyy ojul suodal jeuonippe
ul Buibuliq YSINTY WoJy soualsjul sy ples BunueH Jauolssiwuwo)




0} abed

‘Buneswt SN xau ayj 1e uibaq jjim ssado.d jeyy pue ‘ge jle ybnoayy

BAOW pue juepoduwil Jsow S| jeym wol Bupjiom uibagq pue SUCEPUSLLLIODS)

8¢ 9y} Jo uoiezpuioud s1edwo e aledaud o) yiom |im dnolib ey ples Asie)

1sbeuep A1 ‘Buesu xau sy} je way ysiduwioooe 0} moy uc uejd e pue
SWwI9) UooE J0adxa PINOJ |IDUNOY 8U) Jl PSYSE UOSMET UBWIIOUNO, S)ledg

‘plemdoy Buiob sBujeaw

juiofl Aspenb auy jo ped se ‘YSINTY sepnjoul mou yoiym ‘dnolb Buijiom
SINT 8y} wouj spodas apnjoul 0} S| UCEPUSWIWOI3) BY | [[oM AJUNWILIOD JNo
aMIas |IM Jey; sabueyo pejennobau ajgeidasoe Ajjeninl pulj o} pIemio) aAowl
pue Hoday eleqL L 3y} oxej o} uolisod e ul sle YSINTY pue ‘yjesH jousiq
yiresH sy ‘siebeuely ay) sansijaq ay ples kaie) Jabeuely AD syleds

‘pajenbiue ate Alunod ayy Ul SWalsAs

SINT ISON "uoljeu a8yl ul sarouabe JSow pjnom se ¢ B Jnoge pies usyo)
"] pUe ‘uojjeu ay} 0} pasedwod Se (|- WOoJj 3}l PINOM WS)SAS UOI99||00
Blep SN JNO MOy Usyo) "I PEYSE 9A3IYOS UBLWUOMIOUNOD 0UdY

‘9|qe} ayy 0} Buiwoo Algesiwe o) YSINTY pue
YIom Ji1ay} Joj sdnoub Bupiom ay) paxueys JaBigyieg Jsuoissiwiuog AJunon

‘os|e sbuneaw aimny ul papnjout aq Juswyedap aJi yodie ayj ey}
pajsenbal Bunp Jauolssiwwon AJUNog 98RO, S99IAI9S paleys ay)
0} YoEq WO p|NOD Uoewwns sy "pabueyoxa aq p[nom Jey} Swa) asoy}
Ayyuapl 0} sjeIyo alij BY) YIIM Josw 0} Spasu ay Jey) papuodsal sfaagno “JAl

pue ‘piemio} ssasold abueyoxs pue BulAng jey; 9AOW 0} S8)ILUWOY) SSOIAISS
paJeys ay} 0} W09 YSINTY ey} payse Bunp Jauoissiwwon Ajunon

‘pPaABIYOE Bq

ueo asuodsal siij ST [euoibay seAsljag sy pies sjaqans) I 9|qeledwod
Ajlenjoe si ejep ay) 1ey) os sabeloae a|dwis uey} Jayjel SUCIIBIND|ED 3|Ijoe.)

Aq suop aq Buipodai sy jey) pue ali4 Ag Alooldioss peisenbal ay ‘lanemoy
‘s|ejoueul Buipnjoul ‘Blep yum jualedsuel) 8q [IM YSINIY PIesS sjaqgns W
"ulanob Ajaniosy)e o) Alessaoau s| ejep jeu} pue ‘s|qe[leAB Jou Si SSWOJIN0
Jusned Jo wajsAs ay) SSOIOE Blep ‘aull} SIUl 1y "PIAJOAUI Saiued He yum ‘eq
ues Aay} Jey) ejep |[e yum jusiedsuel) aq 0} YSINTY JO Ssaubuljim ay) wuuo9
0] pajuem 1jjey uewomjiounod sytedsg -ejep jo Aousiedsues salinbas yoiym
ulanoh o) Ajljige ay) s UI9oUOD Ulewl Jay eyl pajelsliel pue uonedioiued

J1ay} 1o} sjeqqno N Pue YSINTY pasuey) ey uewomjiounoy sysedg

‘aAlleladoos Buisq
pue a|ge} ay} 0} Bulwod 10} YSINTY payuey} JagqaA Jauoissiwwos AJunos




11 ebed

A"V13dD3dS ONIQHOO3d 4301440 H11v3H 101d1SId
. T13ANQ, 4 ADD3d OSIN ‘Hd!A ‘an "¥3SI 'd Hd3sor

\mw\ﬁr\«ﬁ\ 2Ty

Sos g raqm T8/

, ‘wre Qo1 e _ ‘pauinolpe
pauinofpe sem Bunesw ay | sem Bueaw ay) ‘pJeog ay) sioyaq SW0D 0} sSaUISNg Jayuny ou Buieq aiay | uinolpy 03 uonow 0oL .
‘pojuasald sem Juswwiod a1gnd oN juswiwo9 aljqnd 6

‘pleauoy Buiaow
0} JUSLIJILLLLIOD SIY 1O} S[8qQnD) “JA] PEXUEBY] UOSMET UBWI[IOUNOY) Syiedg




DBOH Agenda Item No. 7.

Proclamation

WHEREAS, The week of April 1-7 is National Public Health Week, and the theme is “Public
Health is Return On Investment (“ROI”): Saves Lives, Save Money;” and

WHEREAS, Since 1995, th;: American Public Health Association, through its sponsorship of
National Public Health Week, has educated the public, policy-makers, and public health
professionals about issues important to improving the public’s health; and

WHEREAS, Preventing diseases before they start is critical to helping people live longer,
healthier lives, while managing health-related costs; and

WHEREAS, Chronic diseases, such as heart disease, cancer, and diabetes, are responsible for
millions of premature deaths each year; and

WHEREAS, Chronic diseases cause Americans to miss 2.5 billion days of work each year,
resulting in lost productivity totaling more than $1 trillion; and
_ WHEREAS, Investing just $10 per person each year in proven, community-based public health
efforts could save the nation more than $16 billion within five years;

WHEREAS, Strong public health systems are critical for sustaining and improving community
health; now, therefore, be it

PROCLAIMED, By the Washoe County District Board of Health that April 1-7, 2013, is
designated as National Public Health Week 2013 in Washoe County, and the Board calls upon all
residents of Washoe County to observe this week by helping our families, friends, neighbors, co-
workers, and leaders better understand the importance of public health and adopt preventive

lifestyle habits in light of this year’s theme, “Public Health is ROI: Save Lives, Save Money.”

ADOPTED this day of , 2013.

A.M. Smith, III, Chairman
Washoe County District Board of Health



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. a.

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

PublicHealth
e 26,2013 Prevent. Promote. Protect.
TO: District Board of Health
FROM: Kevin Dick, Director, Air Quality Management
SUBJECT: Margaret Van Dyken — Case No. 1111

Unappealed Citation No. 5352
Agenda ltem: 8.A.1.a.

Recommendation

Air Quality Management Staff recommends that Citation No. 5352 be upheld and a fine of $2,500 be levied against
Margret Van Dyken for failure to conduct a proper asbestos survey and provide nofification to Air Quality
Management prior to renovation activities conducted in a five unit apartment building located at 124 La Rue Avenue
in Reno. Failure to comply with the asbestos testing and notification standards constitutes a major violation of the
District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 030.105(B)(10) National
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP), Subpart M - Asbestos, which is implemented through
Section 030.107 (A) Asbestos Sampling and Notification. This is a negotiated settiement.

Recommended Fine: $5,450.00 Negotiated Fine: $2,500.00

Background

~ On January 22, 2013, Air Quality Specialist Suzanne Dugger was dispatched to 124 La Rue Avenue to investigate a
complaint regarding the disturbance of possible asbestos containing materials associated with renovation activities.
A records review conducted by the Air Quality Office Staff confirmed no asbestos testing or notification had been
submitted for this address. Specialist Dugger met with Ms. Margret Van Dyken, owner of the property located at 124
La Rue Avenue, to obtain access to the unit being renovated.

Upon inspection of the unit, Specialist Dugger observed wall and flooring materials, which are both considered
suspect asbestos containing materials, had been disturbed. Specialist Dugger inquired if any of the suspect
materials had been tested for asbestos prior to being disturbed. Ms. Van Dyken stated that she was unaware of any
such requirement and that she had hired her son to do the renovation work.

Specialist Dugger requested that all renovation work be haited immediately and that a certified asbestos consultant
be hired to properly sample all building materials that had been or were going to be disturbed as part of the
renovation. Ms. Van Dyken hired Mr. Gene Johnson, G & C Environmental, to conduct the asbestos survey. Mr.
Johnson performed the sampling on January 24, 2013, and the subsequent results indicated that no ashestos was
detected in any of the suspect building materials.

Based on the results of the inspection and asbestos sampling, Specialist Dugger issued Notice of Violation No. 5352
for a major violation of Section 030.107 (A) Asbestos Sampling and Notification.

P.0. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 » (775) 784-7200 « FAX (775) 784-7225

www.washoecounty.us/health
Printed on Recycied Paper

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. a.



March 28, 2013
DBOH / Margaret Van Dyken / Case 1111
Page 2

Settlement

On January 31, Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settiement meeting attended
by Specialist Dugger and Ms. Margaret Van Dyken. After careful consideration of all the facts in the case, Specialist
Cerfoglio recommended that Citation No. 5352 be upheld with a fine of $2,500, consisting of a $2,300 monetary fine
and attendance by either herself or her son to a 16 hour asbestos awareness class. Specialist Cerfoglio made the
recommendation to attend the asbestos training in response to Ms. Van Dyken indicating that she intended to have
her son renovate the other four units in the apartment building. Ms. Van Dyken stated that she did not have time to
attend the asbestos class and that the fine was too high. Specialist Cerfoglio then recommended Ms. Van Dyken
appeal the case to the Air Pollution Control Hearing Board and provided her with an appeal form and instructions on
how to submit the appeal.

On February 4, 2013, the Air Quality Management office received a completed appeal form from Ms. Van Dyken
requesting the matter be heard by the Air Pollution Control Hearing Board. On February 8, 2013, the Air Quality
office received notice that, after consulting with her contractor, Ms. Van Dyken had changed her mind and decided to
accept the $2,500 fine without appeal. A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties.

Alternatives

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the Regulations has taken place and
dismiss Citation No. 5352.

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5352 and levy a fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 per
day.

In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued so that
Margaret Van Dyken may be properly noticed.

Kevin Dick, Division Dlrector
Air Quality Management

KD/DC: ma



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION
1001 EAST NINTH ST. « SUITE B171 - RENO NV 89512

(775) 784-7200
NOTICE OF VIOLATION
NOV 5359 -  DATEISSUED: _|-31-20i3
iSSUED TO: __[NARGALET VANDYKEN __PHONE# __741-1 45
MAILING ADDRESS: _2Y70 FAaems N CITYST._RENe  ZIP:_%isit

NAME/OPERATOR: /N ARGALET yANDY kEN  PHONE# _ 141-1954

PERMIT NO. v o COMPLAINT NO.

YOUARE HEREBY OFFICIALLY NOTIFIED THATON _{-22-2013  (DATE)AT_3'30/.M. _ (TIME),
YOU ARE IN VIOLATION OF THE FOLLOWING SECTION(S) OF THE WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD
OF HEALTH REGULATIONS GOVERNING AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT:

[J MINOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: [] MAJOR VIOLATION OF SECTION:

[] 040.030__DUST CONTROL [ 030.000 OPERATING W/O PERMIT

[] 040.055 _ ODOR/NUISANCE [0 030.2175 VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITION
] 040.200 __ DIESEL IDLING [ 030.105 ASBESTOS/NESHAP

[] OTHER | 5 OTHER 0730.167 (A)

VIOLATION DESCRIPTION: FAILMLE TD Pc-?szm 820, 162(A) AsBesns

SAMPLIN & ‘F— NeT | FICATION

LOCATIONOF VIOLATION: ___ 124 (A Rug DA. Reno NV, % ic09

POINT OF OBSERVATION: __SAMPLES 0brminEd BY C > (s ENVIRONMENT AL
CONVARMED NO ASBESTLS [N DiSTULBED RilitDiNG MATELIAL.,

Weather: Ciean ‘ Wind Direction From: N E S W

Emissions Observed: NA
(If Visual Emlssmns Performed See attached Plume Evaluatlon Record)

[] WARNING ONLY Effective a.m./p.m. | (date) y0u are hereby ordered to abate the above
violation within ) hours/days. | hereby acknowledge receipt of this warning on the date indicated.

Signature

E’CITATION You are hereby notlf ed that effectlve on ("22-2613 (date) youarein V|olat10n ofthe sectlon(s) cited above. You are
hereby ordered to abate the above violation within i MED gz Wours/days. You may contact the Air Quality Management Division
to request a negotiated settiement meeting by calling (775) 784-7200. You are further advised that within 10 working days of the date
of this Notice of Violation, you may submit a written petition for appeal to the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management
Division, P.O. Box 11130 Reno, Nevada 89520-0027. Failure to submit a petition within the specified time will result in the submis-

sion of this Notice of Violation to the District Board of Health with a recommendation for the assessment of an administrative fine.
SIGNING THIS FORM IS NOT AN ADMISSION OF GUILT

Signature: __ 7’@5\\9 @JL&‘A& V/ \\U\f\:\\)wx \\Q tQ v 7 Date: u.)(‘ A T M)O @ 5’&3

Issued by: %{,ﬂ/{vkﬂ /J—u—w‘/-\— = Title: A & S ._LL i ‘

[C1PETITION FOR &PPEAL FORM PROVIDED
H-AIR-09 (Rev. 04/12)




WES b S LA T L e lulnlnlsF e Il

Kelb bR RKESLTY PAGE B2/62

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT
"~ AJR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

PublicHealth

Prevont. Pramoto, Protect,

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT
AR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

Date: &ﬁwm/ﬁ% 2013
o ' ‘:Z a . ) }. .
~ Company Name: WWAW/{. \/c/:z»?z/ ,Q:),(/ggm,

Address: AT U F O A
Notice of Violation # __ 5.3 5L Case# (11{

“The staff of the Air Quality Management Division of the Washoe County District

Health Department issuad th abave yeferenced citation for he violation of , 27, - g

' s 20,107 R amc&c,#ﬂzqﬂm/(zéﬁ?wfw
v A

Regulation :

{ LVl ol
v 7 4 _ .

A settlement of this matter has been negotiated hetween the undersigned pariies

resulting in a penalty amount of $ <=, SO0 This,setttement will be

submitted to the })istg‘%/laoag? of Health for review af the regularly scheduled

meuting on 7742t &, HOIS . :

u

The undersigned agrees to walve an appeal to the Air Pollution Control Hearing
Board so this matter may be submitted directly to the District Board of Health for
conglderation,

R N O .l

Signature of,@_&;)xpahy Reptesatitative Signature of District Representative”

Tazaasl Yasduker  Detis A Cerpeslio

Print Neme

S nlsr iy Spees
y

Title
_/gm A el

Witne§y/

Print Name

P.0. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 » (775) 784-7200 * FAX (775) 7847225

. wiyw.washoecounty.ugfhealth
WASHIOR COUNTVIS AN FQllal, OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYRER BIRING BMPLOYMENT BLIGIALE APPLICANTS
Printed on Tteeycled Paper

FEB 11,2013 10:21A KELLER REALTY 7753330157

page 2



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT - ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY TABLE &
RECOMMENDED FINE CALCULATION WORKSHEET
DATED FEBRUARY 8, 2013



Administrative Pehalty Table

Air Quality. Management Division
Washoe County Health District

I. Minor Violations - Section 020.040(C)

Requlation . / 1%t Violation 2"d yiiolation
040.005 Visible Emissions $ 1,000 $ 2,500
040.030 Dust Controf (fugitive) 250. 750
/040.035 Open Fires : 500 1,000
040.040 Fire Training 500 : 1,000
040.050 Incinerator 1,000 : . 2,000
040.061 Woodstoves 500 1,000
040.055 Odors = | ' - 1,000 2,000
040.080 Gasoline Transfer (maintenance) 1,000 2,000
040.200 Diesel ldling ' ‘ 500 1,000
050.001 Emergency Episode 1,000 2,000

Il. Major Violations - Section 020.040

. Source Category
Regulation Violation. Minor Major
030.000 Construction/Operating without Permit " $5,000 $ 10,000
(per major process system or unit/day)
030.1402 Failure to Combly with Stop Work Order 10,000/day ~10,000/day
030.2175 Operation Contrary to Permit Conditions 5,000 10,000 -
(per day or event)
030.235 Failure to: Conduct Source Test or Report. 2,500 5,000
~ (per Reporting Period for Each Unif)
All other Major Violations . $10,000 .$ 10,000
(per day or event)
030.000  Construction Without a Dust Control Permit
Project Size — Less than 10 acres - $ 500 + $50 per acre
Project Size — 10 acres or more _ $1,000 + $50 per acre
lIl. Major Violations - Section 030.107 Asbestos
A. Asbestos Sampling & Notification $ 5,000 - $10,000
B. Asbestos Control Work Practices ’ $ 5,000 - $10,000
(per day or event) o -
C. Asbestos Containment & Abatement . $5,000-$10,000

(per day or event)



Washoe County Air Quality Management
Permitting & Enforcement Branch
Recommended Fine Calculation Worksheet

Y : - ) [
Company Name 7 / / [ Z/(/‘Z&wf Yﬁ 4 5?’" «fﬂ[é@ 1~
Contact Name ¥ & _

Case _[ I} ~ Nov 535‘;2 Complaint E.MP |3~000 /
Violation of Section 030 107 ( A)
i. Base Penalty as specified in the Penalty Table = $ .’:Dj C‘OO |

Il Severity of Violation
A. Public Health Impact

1. Degree of Violation
(The degree of which the person/company has deviated from the regulatory requirements)
Minor — 0.5 Moderate — 0.75 Major—1.0°  Adjustment Factor , O

2. Toxicity of Release
Criteria Pollutant — 1x
Hazardous Air Pollutant — 2x Adjustment Factor

3. Environmental/Public Health Risk (Proximity to sensitive envirohment or group) l D
4

Negligible — 1x Moderate — 1.5x  Significant — 2x Adjustment Factor s
Total Adjustment Factors (1 x2x3) = , 4 & 7
B. Adjusted Basg Penalty <o A
Base Penalty 5,000 . x Adjustment Factor ' O = $ _':)i 000
C. Multiple Days or Units in Violation
Adjusted Penalty x Number of Days or Units = $ _

D. Economic Benefit

Avoided Costs $_41o0) _ + Delayed Costs $ = % l_—}; O

Recommended Penalty Subtotal i L[/ [a O
Adjusted Base Penalty $ 5,000  + Economic Benefit $__4F (L O =$ D




lll. Penalty Adjustment Consideration

A. Degree of Cooperation (0-25%) +/- "QD

B. Mitigating Factors (0-25%) +-_" 5!5

1. Negotiated Settlement
2. Ability to Pay
3. Other (explain)

C. Compliance History
No Previous Violations (0 —10%).

Similar Viotation in Past 12 months (25 - 50%)
Similar Violation within past 3 year (10 - 25%)

Previous Unrelated Violation (5 —25%)

%

%

+

+

Total Penalty Adjustment Factors - sum of A B &C

IV. Recommended/Negotiated Fine

Penalty Adjustment

%0 X = 55 %

Penalty Subtotal Total Adjustment' Factors

(From Section Il) (From Section l1l)
Additional Credit for Environmental Investment/Training

Adjusted Penalty:

$ 540" o §- 3003
Penalty Subtotal Total Adjustment Value
(From Section 1I) {From Section Ill + Credit)

[ Deis Ces
Air Quality Specialist 7

1O %

%
%

%
-55 4

4 oo
2003

Total Adjustment Value

OO
s 2500 |
Recommended/Negotiated
-Fine

V- gaalic

Date




COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION REPORT
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division

Complaint Number: CMP13-0007

Complaint Status: NOV Source of Complaint: CITIZEN
Complaint Type: ASBESTOS Date Received: 01/22/2013 Time: 10:11:00 AM
Inspector: SDUGGER Inspector Area: 3

Complaint Description: NOV CITATION 5352, CASE 1111 - POSSIBLE ASBESTOS VIOLATION - SON OF
LANDLORD TEARING OUT TILE, FLOORS & WALLS

Address:

Location: 124 LA RUE AVENUE, RENO

Parcel Number:

Related Permit Number:

Complainant: Responsible Party:

ANONYMOUS MARGARET VANDYKEN
LL LA RUE APARTMENTS
118-124 LA RUE AVENUE
RENO NV 89509
775-741-1954

Investigation:

1-22-2013 I arrived on site at 3:30 and met with the, owner, Margaret VanDyken, and gained access
to unit #124. Inside unit #124 the flooring, vinyl sheet flooring, and walls, have been removed and
disturbed. I informed Margaret that she needed to stop all work immediately and that she needed to
have all suspect materials sampled for asbestos by a certified asbestos consultant. Any material

that has been disturbed that comes back posititve for asbestos will have to be further removed by

an asbestos abatement contractor. Currently all removal work has been performed by Ms. VanDyken's
son Fredrick VanDyken.

1-23-2013 According to Ms. VanDyken she has hired Gene Johnson of C & G Enviornmental to sample any
suspect materials, Currently I am waiting for the results.

1-24-2013 Lab resuits indicate that all samples came back negative for asbestos. Issued NOV
Citation # 5253 for violation of 030.107 (A).

2-6-2013 1 spoke with Ms. VanDyken today and informed her that due to equipment failure I was
unable to take photographs of the interior of unit #124 during our original meeting on January 22,
2013. So I asked Ms. VanDyken today if she would be willing to meet me on site so that I .could take
pictures of the interior of unit #124. Based on my request Ms.VanDyken stated that she would need
to consult with someone before she decided if she would let me photograph the interior of unit



#124. T asked Ms. VanDyken to please let me know one way or another if I can gain access to the
property again to take photographs. I never heard back from Ms.VanDyken.

Enforcement Activities

Warning Citation..:

Initialized By........ MAMES
Date Assigned.....: 01/22/2013

Citation Number: 5352
NOV Number..... 0
Case Number...... 1111

Amount...............  $0.00
Amount...............  $0.00
Completed Date...:
Completed By......:



ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES INC - ASBESTOS ANALYTICAL REPORT
DATED FEBRUARY 5, 2013 FOR SAMPLES TAKEN JANUARY 24, 2013
BY C & 6 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING INC. AT THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT
118 LA RUE AVENUE, UNIT 124, RENO NV 89509



C&G Environm_ental Consulting, Inc.

February 5, 2013
C&G Environmental Project No. 01012413

Margaret VanDyken
2470 Faretto Lane
Reno, Nevada 89511

RE: LIMITED ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIAL INSPECTION AND
ASSESSMENT: 118 LA RUE AVENUE, UNIT #124, RENO, NEVADA

Dear Ms. VanDyken:

&G Environmental Consulting is pleased to submit this report that summarizes the results of a
limited asbestos containing material (ACM) inspection and assessment in a five-plex apartment
building which is located at 118 La Rue Ave., Unit #124, in Reno, Nevada. ‘

1.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES

On January 24, 2013, an EPA accredited, and State of Nevada licensed asbestos inspector from
C&G Environmental Consulting conducted a limited asbestos inspection and assessment at the
above referenced location for the purpose of determining if asbestos was present in suspect .
building materials that visually appeared to have been disturbed during a renovation project.
Four (4) representative bulk samples were collected and analyzed of materials identified to have
the potential to contain asbestos. '

Suspect materials that were sampled during this inspection included; wall mastic, skim coat, wall
plaster, drywall backer board and floor tile with mastic. The wall material samples were
collected from areas that showed signs of disturbance in the bathroom, living room and kitchen
areas, and the flooring sample was collected from the edge of a cut-out area of flooring in the
living room.

This inspection was conducted in accordance with accepted EPA and OSHA regulations. All
samples collected were submitted under approved chain-of-custody protocol, and analyzed at
Asbestos TEM Laboratories, in Sparks, Nevada. The suspect ACM samples were analyzed for
asbestos fibers utilizing Polarized Light Microscopy (PLM). The laboratory analytical reports are
attached in Appendix A, and the chain of custody record is provided in Appendix B. Approximate
sample locations of bulk samples are depicted in Figure 1 (attached).

P.0.Box 19476 Reno, NV 89511
(775) 7463838 Fax: (775) 787-6846



01012413 — 118 La Rue Ave., Reno : o Page 2

2.0 ASBESTOS ANALYTICAL RESULTS

In accordance with OSHA 29 CFR 1926.1101 and NESHAPS 40 CFR 61.141 the
definition of an asbestos containing material is “any material which contains more than
one percent asbestos by weight”. '

Analytical results of the bulk samples collected during this inspection were all “None
Detected” for containing asbestos. As a result, C&G Environmental Consulting
summarizes that no further asbestos related activities are required for the materials that
were sampled and analyzed during this inspection.

These sample results are limited to the materials that were identified and sampled during
this inspection. If additional materials are discovered that have not been sampled, they
would require additional sampling and analysis. '

3.0 LIMITATIONS

C&G Environmental Consulting is not responsible for any claims or damages associated
with the interpretation of information provided during this inspection. This report should
not be regarded as a guarantee that no further asbestos exists beyond that which was
suspected and sampled during this inspection. In addition, asbestos is usually not
distributed evenly throughout a particular material and C&G Environmental Consulting
cannot guarantee that all materials sampled are exactly as represented throughout the
entire building. In the event renovation or demolition activities uncover materials that
were previously hidden or inaccessible during the time of this inspection, then additional
sample collection and analysis would be required. In the event asbestos containing
materials that were previously hidden or inaccessible during the time of this inspection
are disturbed and an asbestos exposure occuts, C&G Environmental Consulting shall be
held harmless and will not be responsible for any claims made, financial or otherwise.

C&G Bavironmental Consulting makes no warranties or guarantees as to the accuracy or
completeness of information obtained from, provided by, or compiled by others. It is
possible that information exists beyond the scope of this investigation. This report is not
a legal opinion. The services performed by C&G Environmental Consulting have been
conducted in a manner consistent with the level of care ordinarily exercised by members
of our profession currently licensed by the State of Nevada to perform this work, and -
practicing under similar conditions. No other warranty, expressed or implied, is made..

!

02/05/13 ' ' - C & G Environmental Consulting



01012413 — 118 La Rue Ave., Reno Page 3

40 CLOSURE

We appreciated the opportunity to provide this service for you. Should you have any
questions regarding the contents of this report, or need additional information, please
contact us at your convenience.

Respectfully Submitted,
ENVIRONMENFAL CONSULTING, INC.

Project Director A
Asbestos Consultant License No. IJTPM0604

02/05/13 . C & G Environmental Consulting



B S

WPL‘-4

Kittkien

Bedrbom

Living Room

VPLZ

ra””

Cloget

WEL-3.

Batheaom

Front Door

P
N

{Not Fo Scale)

(4G Environmantal
fionsuliing, Ing.

. Fgured .
Approximate Location of Bulk Samples
" {18.La Rue Avenue, Reno

l-'cﬁem: oate BE
B, VaniDyibr 2813 G Johneca




ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC.

EPA Method 600/R-93/116
Polarized Light Microscopy
Analytical Report

Report No. 121432

1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104
Sparks, NV 89431
(775) 359-3377
FAX (775) 359-2798

With Main Office Located At:
630 Bancroft Way, Berkeley, CA 94710
Ph.(510) 704-8930 Fax (510) 704-8929




AR A, Accredited by

.  /Amm 4 U.S. Dept. of fl‘om_n;erce
— pviAg

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC | NVLAPFaf Codi 01080

Jan-24-13

Mr. Gene Johnson

C & G Environmental Consulting, LLC
P.O. Box 5298

Reno, NV 89513

RE: LABORATORY JOB # 867-###
Polarized light microscopy analytical results for 4 bulk sample(s) with 8  sample split(s)
Job Site: 118 La Rue Avenue, Unit #124 '
Job No.: 01012413
Report No.: 121432

Enclosed please find the bulk material analytical results for one or more samples submitted for asbestos analysis.

The analyses were performed in accordance with EPA Method 600/R-93/116 or 600/M4-82-020 for the determination
of asbestos in bulk building materials by polarized light microscopy (PLM). Please note that while PLM analysis is
commonly performed on non-friable and fine grained materials such as floor tiles and dust, the EPA method
recognizes that PLM is subject to limitations. In these situations, accurate results may onlty be obtainable through
the use of more sophisticated and accurate techniques such as transmission electron microscopy (TEM) or X-ray

diffraction (XRD).

Prior to analysis, samples are logged-in and all data pertinent to the sample recorded. The samples are checked for
damage or disruption of any chain-of-custody seals. A unique laboratory ID number is assigned to each sample. A
hard copy log-in sheet containing all pertinent information concerning the sample is generated. This and all other
relevant paper work are kept with the sample throughout the analytical procedures to assure proper analysis.

Each sample is opened in a class 100 HEPA negative air hood. A representative sampling of the material is selected
and placed onto a glass microscope slide containing a drop of refractive index oil. The glass slide is placed under a
polarizing light microscope where standard mineralogical techniques are used to analyze and quantify the various
materials present, including asbestos. The data is then compiled into standard report format and subjected to a
thorough quality assurance check before the information is released to the client.

For possible future reference, samples are normally kept on file for one year.

Sincerely Yours,

Laboratory Analyst
ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC.

--- These results relate only to the samples tested and must not be reproduced, except in full, with the approval of
the laboratory. This report must not be used to claim product endorsement by NVLAP or any other agency of the
U.S. Government. -—

1350 Freeport Blvd. Unit 104 &  Sparks, NV 89431 o (775) 359-3377 o FAX (775) 359-2798

T7ith Moin Mffinn 1 Rowlalan 74 (810) 704 2020



APPENDIX A
Laboratory Analytical Results



Aceredited by

U.S. Dept. of Commerce POLARIZED LIGHT MICROSC OPY '

&
NV ANALYTICAL REPORT
NVLAP Lab Code 200104-0 EPA Method 600/R-93/116 or 600/M4-82-020 ~ Page: lof2
icated: 4 A
Contact: Mr. Gene Johnson ;ampsfes Ir;dwzte:l- . ReportNo. 121432
e‘(’f' el e Date Submitted: Jan-24-13
Address: C & G Environmental Consulting,  Split Layers Analyzed: 8 Date Reported:  Jan-24-13
P.O. Box 5298 , :
Job Site / No. 118 La Rue Avenue, Unit #124 :
Reno, NV 89513 01012413
OTHER DATA ...
1) Non-Asbestos Fibers DESCRIPTION
r G 2) Matrix Materials
SAMPLE 1D . ASBESTOS 3) Date/Time Collected FIELD
%  TYPE 4) Date Analyzed LAB
FT-1 1)40-50% Cellulose [Floor Tile / Mastic, See Site Plan
o None Detected [2)50-60% Plast, Calc, Other m.p.
Lab ID # 867-01663-001A 3 :  4)Jan-24-13 Sheet Floor/Backing-Brown/Grey
FI-1 1)5-10% Cellulose Floor Tile / Mastic, See Site Plan
o None Detected |2)90-95% Tar, Buds, Calc, Otherm.p.
Lab ID # 867-01663-001B 3) 4) Jan-24-13 Mastic-Brown
WPL-2 1) 1-5% Cellulose Skim Coat / Plaster / Drywall, See Site Plan
o None Detected [2)95-99% Cale, Gyp, Qtz, Other m.p.
] Lab ID # 867-01663'002A 3) . 4) Jan-24-13 Skll’l’l Coat_GTeen )
WPL-2 1)1-5% Cellulose Skim Coat / Plaster / Drywall, See Site Plan
e None Detected [2)95-99% Gyp, Qtz, Mica, Other m.p.
YLab 1 # 867-01663-0028 »  a)anoe1s |PlasterGrey
WPL-2 1)5-10% Cellulose Skim Coat / Plaster / Drywall, See Site Plan
- ' None Detected |2)90-95% Gyp, Other m.p.
Lab ID # 867-01663-002C B) . 4)an-24-13 Dlijallehite/Tan
' WPL-3 1) 1-5% Cellulose Skim Coat / Plaster / Drywall, See Site Plan
e None Detected [2)95-99% Gyp, Cale, Other m.p.
Lab ID # 867-01663-003A : 3) 4)Jan-24-13  |Mastic-White/Brown
P 3 1)<1% Cellulose Skim Coat / Plaster / Drywall, See Site Plan
LB None Detected [2)100-100% Gyp, Cale, Other m.p.
Lab ID # 867-01663-003B 3)  A)Jan-24-13 Skim Coat-White
. ' A ‘ ' ' 1)1-5% Cellulose "~ |Skim Coat / Plaster / Drywall, See Site Plan
WPL—3. None Detected 2) 95-99% Gyp, QtZ, Mica, Other m.p.
Lab ID # 867-01663-003C | 3 , Ayan-24-13 Plaster-Grey v
PL3 ' ‘ 1)5-10% Cellulose Skim Coat / Plaster / Drywall, See Site Plan
WEL3. None Detected [2)90-95% Gyp, Othermp.
Lab ID # 867'0166370030 | 3) . 4)an-24-13 DrywallfWhite/Tan
) ‘ 1)<1% Cellulose Skim Coat / Plaster / Drywall, See Site Plan
WPL-4. None Detected }2)100-100% Gyp, Calc, Other m.p.
Lab ID # 867-01663-004A 3) ' 4)Jin24-13 | Skim Coat-White

Detection Limit of Method is Estimated to be 1% Asbestos Using a Visual Area Estiyechniqm

Laboratory Analyst /%,7/ 4 % 7

Greg‘.f-lanes

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC. 1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104, Sparks, NV 89431 (775) 359-3377
With Main Office in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-8930




Accredited by
U.S. Dept. of Commerce

POLARIZED LIGHT MICROSCOPY

@
NYYD) ANALYTICAL REPORT
NVLAP Lab Code 200104-0 EPA Mecthod 600/R-93/116 or 600/M4-82-020 Page: 2 of 2
Contact: Mr. Gene Johnson IS{ampSles Ir;dlczt_e:l: B 4 Report No. 121432
Al . ) eg., amples Anz yzed: ; Date Submitted: Jan-24-13
ress: C& G Environmental Consulting,  Split Layers Analyzed: Date Reported:  Jan-24-13
P.0. Box 5298 . _ -
Reno. NV 89513 Job Site / No. 118 La Rue Avenue, Unit #124
’ 01012413
OTHER DATA
1) Non-Asbestos Fibers DESCRIPTION
2) Matrix Materials
SAMPLE ID . ASBESTOS D ma Boilactod FIELD
Yo TYPE 4) Date Analyzed LAB
WPL-4 1) 1-5% Cellulose Skim Coat / Plaster / Drywall, See Site Plan
o None Detected [2)95-99% Gyp, Qtz, Mica, Other m.p.
Lab ID # 867-01663-004B 3) B a)Jan24-13_|Plaster-Grey
WPL-4 1)5-10% Cellulose ISkim Coat / Plaster / Drywall, See Site Plan
) None Detected [2)%0-95% Gyp, Othermp.
Lab ID # 867-01663-004C 3) 4)Jan-24-13  {Prywall-White/Tan
1) ‘
2)
Lab ID # 3) 4)
1)
2)
LabID # 3) 4)
1)
2)
Lab ID # p | )
1)
2)
Lab ID # 3) 4)
1)
2)
Lab ID # 3) 4)
1)
2)
Lab ID # 3) 4)
. .
2)
Lab ID # 3) 4
. o
2)
frabm# 3) 4) '

Detection Limit of Method is Estimated to be 1% Asbestos Using a Visual Area Est'iyechnique
Laboratory Analyst /%7/
- L*=

' ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC.

1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104, Sparks, NV 89431

%

(775) 359-3377

Greg Hanes

With Main Office in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-8930




C&G ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC.
ik Bey 1947 Phiy {775} T45-3838 Faxe (7750 TR7-nR45
sk BULK SAMPLE 8 { CHAIN-OF-CUSTODY REPORT #%:

Aralysis |"'t e I; il 1»'[?‘ Poin: Conny . TFM T,

g

Prrmaronml e Holer Mot Dhwes F Pk,

s,

el
il fu'g g"‘ DR - AT

Torke Kirg
€

pooay o oondact persen

rl Jaweation L o  Besvription

{ AR SN L B

{ I ¥
ot v i 2 S S S S NI, PRSI " _— N
st b e o s AR e AT R % e SIS S ———— S—
H

et i SR O S A S — TR D e L PRGNS SRR s i i

— T S S, = =Y S SR S
|
i
1
1
! “ Wi

S A — - - - - it B i
-
1. b e S s
- - =
;
1 -
— + &

e ke L A AR T e Tt

= i " - & =
A — st s o
. s i s s
.

[hake S Time




DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. b.

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

March 28, 2013 FublicHcalth
TO: District Board Health
FROM: Kevin Dick, Director, Air Quality Management
SUBJECT: Golden Flower Restaurant - Case No. 1112

Unappealed Citation No. 5324
Agenda ltem:- 8. A. 1. b.

Recommendation

Air Quality Management Staff recommends that Citation No. 3524 be upheld and a fine of $5,000 be levied against
Golden Flower Restaurant for failure to notify Air Quality Management prior to the removal of an asbestos containing
material from a commercial building. Failure to provide proper notification constitutes a major violation of the District
Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 030.105(B)(10) National
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP), Subpart M - Asbestos, which is implemented through
Section 030.107 (A) Asbestos Sampling and Notification. This is a negotiated settlement.

Recommended Fine: $13,200.00 Negotiated Fine: $5,000.00

Background

On February 22, 2013, Air Quality Permitting & Enforcement Branch Chief Charlene Albee received an anonymous
complaint regarding the improper removal of an asbestos containing material at the Golden Flower Restaurant
located at 205 West Fifth Street in Reno. The complainant identified EICS as the company that performed the
asbestos survey. Chief Albee contacted Larry Thir of EICS to confirm they had performed a survey at the Golden
Flower and requested a copy of the report. :A faxed copy of the survey, which was performed on May 4, 2012,
confirmed the spray acoustic ceiling material contained 5% to 10% chrysofile asbestos. A staff review of the Air
Quality records determined no notification had been submitted for the removal of the asbestos containing materials.

Specialist || Michael Osborn was dispatched to 205 West Fifth Street to conduct an inspection of the facility to
determine if any asbestos removal had occurred. Upon entering the restaurant, Specialist Osborn observed the
spray acoustic ceiling material had been removed. Specialist Osborn immediately introduced himself to Mr. Cam
Thai, owner of the restaurant, and explained the purpose of his inspection. Based on the potential for an asbestos
contamination, Specialist Osborn informed Mr. Thai that he would have to immediately close down the restaurant and
ask his customers to leave. After the customers were evacuated, the kitchen was also shut down and the employeés
were insfructed to leave the building. A STOP WORK order was posted at the front and rear doors identifying
improper removal of asbestos as the justification for the closure.

After clearing the building, Specialist Osborn interviewed Mr. Long Thai, the owner's son, to get a detailed summary
of how the ceiling materials were-removed and by whom. Specialist Osborn was informed that Van Thai, the owner's
daughter, had hired Mr. David Walker from a Craig’s List advertisement to remove the spray acoustic ceiling material.

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 » (775) 784-7200 » FAX (775) 784-7225

www.washoecounty.us/health
Printed on Recycled Paper

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. b.



March 28, 2013
DBOH / Golden Flower Restaurant/ Case 1112
Page 2

Specialist Osborn instructed Mr. Long Thai to hire an asbestos consultant to perform aggressive air sampling to
make sure the facility was safe for both his customers and employees to reoccupy before the Stop Work Order would
be removed.

On February 23, 2013, Gene Johnson of C&G Environmental Consulting Inc. conducted aggressive air sampling in
the restaurant. Working through Mr. Johnson, Mr. Thai agreed to pay to have the analytical laboratory open on
Saturday to analyze the air samples. The results of the laboratory analysis indicated the concentration of ashestos
fibers was well below the regulatory clearance level for reoccupation. Upon receiving the air clearance results from
Mr. Johnson, Specialist Osborn met with Mr. Cam Thai and family at the restaurant to remove the STOP WORK
Order and reopen the facility.

Based on the results of the asbestos sampling and air clearance testing, Specialist Osborn issued Citation No. 5324
for a major violation of Section 030.107(A) Asbestos Sampling and Notification.

Settlement

On February 26, 2013, Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settiement meeting
attended by AQ Specialist Osborn, Mr. Cam Thali, his daughter Van Thai, and her fiancé. After careful consideration
of all of the facts in the case, Specialist Cerfoglio recommended that Citation #5324 be upheld with a fine of $5,000.
A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties.

Alternatives

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the Regulations has taken place and
dismiss Citation No. 5324,

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5324 and levy a fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 per
day.

In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued so that
Golden Flower Restaurant may be properly noticed.

=4

/;” g/ /
/f///)/fwv/d(/;

Kevm Dick, Division Director
Air Quality Management

KD/DC: ma



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION
1001 EAST NINTH ST. » SUITE B171 » RENO NV 89512
(775) 784-7200
NOTICE OF VIOLATION

NV 5304 DATE ISSUED: #2423, £2
ISSUED TO: At S F Nevasn. Wiod

Y PHONE# 223 -/6Z%

MAILING ADDRESS: Z0Z (et £ bk <f | CITY/ST: Rame, Oy ZIP: _%%@%
NAME/OPERATOR: Vo san i ___PHONE# _Roums
PERMIT NO.__ Vs ¥ase COMPLAINT No. &V P o bad &C 5”!‘

YOUARE HEREBY OFFICIALLY NOTIFIED THATON )2 -722-/3 (DATE)AT _££30 . jin . (TIME),
YOU ARE IN VIOLATION OF THE FOLLOWING SECTION(S) OF THE WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD
OF HEALTH REGULATIONS GOVERNING AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT:

[ MINOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: [ MAJOR VIOLATION OF SECTION:

[ 040.030 _DUST CONTROL [J 030.000 OPERATING W/O PERMIT

[ 040.055__ ODOR/NUISANCE [ 030.2175 VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITION
(7 040.200 __ DIESEL IDLING [ 030.105 ASBESTOS/NESHAP

[J OTHER % OTHER 933./07A

1 a

LOCATIONOF VIOLATION: _Z.85 (ieal 5 Q,pr VO I

POINT OF OBSERVATION: __ & 1y "\ i N

Weather: YW | A | Wind Direction From: N E S W

Emissions Observed: - Wane
(If Visual Emissions Performed “See attached Plume Evaluation Record)

] WARNING ONLY: Effective a.m./p.m. _ | (date) you are hereby ordered to abate the above
violation within _ hours/days. | hereby acknowledge receipt of this warning on the date indicated.

Signature

N¢| CITATION: You are hereby notified that effective on 9 2.-22- 7/ 3 (date) you are in violation of the section(s) cited above. You are
hereby ordered to abate the above violation within % hours/days. You may contact the Air Quality Management Division
to request a negotiated settlement meeting by calling (773) 784-7200. You are further advised that within 10 working days of the date
of this Notice of Violation, you may submit a written petition for appeal to the Washoe County Health District, Air Quallty Management
Division, P.O. Box 11130 Reno, Nevada 89520-0027. Failure to submit a petition within the specified time will result in the submis-

sion of this Notice of Vol to the District Board of Health with a recommendation for the assessment of an administrative fine.
g‘ /// SIGN )JG 1;H-lS‘F RM IS NOT AN ADMISSION OF GUILT

Signature: MM/ >, Date: 2 -1.3- 13

Issued by: /ﬂm L — Title: M@ 9 _L/
¥ PETITION FOR APPEAL FORM PROVIDED ‘
H-AIR-09 (Rev. 04/12)




(ZHPOASY) €L-MIV-H

oVl >O_z.m~_ Ol TNAMVYINN

.auum%c_

ALNNOD
JOHSVM ANV 'SMYVAS ‘ONIY ¥Od SNOILVINDI3Y
TOYLINOD NOILNTIOd MV IHL OL INVNSYNd H1Tv3IH
40 Q¥v04 LOIHLSIA IHL A9 IIATT SY Ava ¥3d 000°0L$

Ol dN 40 ANIA ¥ NI L1INSIY AVIN WHOANOD OL 3dN IV

'30dN0S
SIHL 40 ZO_._.<w_mn_O dO ‘NOILVHILIY ‘NOILVTIVLSNI

‘NOILONYLSNOD ISYID OL AFYIAHO AGIHIH TV ANV
NOLLYTIOIA SIHL 4O @3I4ILON AINa N339 IAVH NOA

7T ) \N\\\
\\J\u TR o g\x{%rl ZO_._.Omw NOILVIOIA

HuLISd INOLYIA Suoheisdo 80.n0s 00208 [
| suopesadQ uolels ses 080'0f
Mwmn 2wummﬁo 4  [prowey soiseqsy g0l 0g m

—2=2-Z 3ivad |

# NOILYIOIA 40 JOI1LON

NOILdIMOSIALNININD3
. SS3yaav
#5757 T TEZ HOIVHIdOMANMO

&fw«muﬂxﬂ ANIL t/-22-Z 3lvd

00Z/-¥8/(S2Z) ANOHJ
¢L968 AN ONI¥ » 1219 F1INS LS HANIN 1SY3 L00}
NOISIAIQ INFNITOVNVIN ALITVYNO HIV
121418Id HLTVIH ALNNOD OHSYM

AJOM dO1S

(ZLPOAZY) EL-HIV-H

0L TNdAMVINN

ALNNOD
JOHSYM ANV ‘SM¥VdS ‘ON3IM ¥Od4 SNOLLVINOAY
TOHLNOD NOILNTIOd ¥V IHL OL INVNS¥Nd H11V3IH
40 ayv09g 1O141SIa IHL A9 A3IATT SY Ava ¥3d ooo_.__o_‘w

OL dn 40 3NIA V¥ NI LTNSTH AVA WHOANOD OL IuN1Iv4

'30dN0S
SIHL 40 NOILYY3dO ¥HO ‘NOLLVHALTY ‘NOILVTIVLSNI
‘NOILONYLSNOD 3SVY30 OL d3HIAAHO Ag3HIH TV ANV
NOILVTIOIA SIHL 40 Q3ld4ILON A1Na N33Ig 3AVH NOA

i Al F—
"~ NOILD3S NOILLYTOIA

e

yuLed NOYAA SuoljesedQ 80In0s 00Z'08 ]
suonesadQ uonels seo 080°0F
jeAoway sojseqsy GOL0€

2OOG LN
SHL NO J3I808

</ -22-Z 31vd # NOILYTOIA 40 301LON

NOILdIMOS3A LNINIINDS
SS3yAav
N_O._.<mm_n_0\m_m2>>0
El—22-Z. 3lvd

VA S ANIL

002.-¥8.(S2Z) ANOHd
ZLG68 AN ONIM » 1219 31INS "LS HLNIN LSY3. 100}
NOISIAIQ INTFWIOVYNVYIN ALITVNO HIV
12141810 HLTVIH ALNNOD JOHSYM

MAHOM dO1S



DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION
WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT

Date: ’f/“&%'fﬁ . 3&7 J5
U 7
~ Company Name: __¢ j[;:’m/f’ ~ feee €. g?ﬂaffééﬁai«/%
. Company Address: QOL—: \)f\/JZ'J/]L /wj,éfﬁ’ SfZCC/F

Notice of Violation No.: 5 5 54 Z/’ Case No.: [l :L
Location of Violation: _ 205 W redd ,(,/ e Stace]

The staff of the Air Quality Management Division of the. Washoe County Health District

issued the above referenced Citation for the yviolation of Regulation: 030 107 A,
Fw‘étﬁu&» fcr/ Cj{,(,é’/’,?gc;'/ nb A C»C".?c_/-«»(% (Z&/rélzgﬂ.é/ﬂf 1L C"‘L/

.(/6 f‘f"' /O C/V C%/?fj@é’" ¢ "&/ I ﬂ/ﬁﬁ(/’ f/?x(’)z’c,&‘fﬂf/ /WM&J%CE{
; A

A settlement of this matter has been nego;)lated between the undersigned parties
resulting in a penalty amountof § _=2, 5000 =" . This settlement will be
submitted tg the District Board of Health for review at the regularly scheduled meeting on

T el A8 3013

. o
/:,« "f ' . i" ' / 7 S ,':) -
AN Db A Lteg e
Sib_ature of Company Representative Signature of District Represéﬁtafﬁe
van T : Delis A. CerroGLio
Print Name Pnnt Name [
__ hanageie- | | f/ﬁ 4 b // Sf?/w“"‘ T
Title 0 ﬁ |tle \ \g
Witness W1rrésm/
Witness : Witness

- P.O.BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 e e (775) 784-7200 @ FAX (775) 784-7225



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT - ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY TABLE &
RECOMMENDED FINE CALCULATION WORKSHEET
' DATED FEBRUARY 26, 2013



Administrative Pehalty Table

Air Quality Management Division
Washoe County Health District

I. Minor Violations - Section 020.040(C)

Regulation " 1% Violation 2" Violation
040.005 Visible Emissions ' $ 1,000 $ 2,500
040.030 Dust Control (fugitive) 250. , 750
040.035 Open Fires : ~ 500 1,000
' 040.040 Fire Training 500 1,000
-040.050 Incinerator 1,000 2,000
040.051 Woodstoves 500 1,000
040.055 Odors = 1,000 2,000
040.080 Gasoline Transfer (maintenance) 1,000 2,000
040.200 Diesel Idling 500 1,000
050.001 Emergency Episode ‘ 1,000 2,000

Il. Major Violations - Section 020.040

. Source Category
Requlation Violation Minor Major
030.000 Construction/Operating without Permit ' $5,000 $ 10,000
(per major process system or unit/day)
030.1402 Failure to Comply with Stop Work Order 10,000/day 10,000/day
030.2175 Operation Contrary to Permit Conditions 5,000 10,000
(per day or event) )
030.235 Failure to Conduct Source Test or Report 2,500 5,000
(per Reporting Period for Each Unit)
All other Major Violations $10,000 $ 10,000
(per day or event)
030.000  Construction Without a Dust Control Permit
Project Size — Less than 10 acres $ 500 + $50 per acre
Project Size — 10 acres or more $1,000 + $50 per acre
lil. Major Violations - Section 030.107 Asbestos
A. Asbestos Sampling & Notification $ 5,000 ~$10,000
B. Asbestos Control Work Practices ' $ 5,000 - $10,000
(per day or event) ’
C. Asbestos Containment & Abatement $ 5,000 - $10,000

(per day or event)



Washoe County Air Quality Management
Permitting & Enforcement Branch
Recommended Fme Calculation Worksheet

Company Name /(%0{&/{/ f’ p f{? €é/£ ,eAZchme"

Contact Name Yerr Jﬁ&’x/
Case _|lls) nov 55 - Complaint epFE 1300‘:‘2&{'
Violation of Section “ 030 /O 7 A |

I. Base Penalty as specified in the Penalty Table

i
O

1Q
O

ll. Severity of Violation
A. Public Health Impact

1. Degree of Violation
(The degree of which the person/company has deviated from the regulatory requirements)

Minor - 0.5 Moderate — 0.75 Major—-1.0 Adjustment Factor ‘ ( 2

2. Toxicity of Release
Criteria Pollutant — 1x _ A
Hazardous Air Pollutant — 2x Adjustment Factor 3)(

3. Environ‘mentéll_ Public Health Risk (Proximity to sen.s-itive‘ environment or group)
Negligible — 1x Moderate— 1.5x  Significant - 2x Adjustment Factor ’

——c——

Total Adjustment Factors (1 x2x3) = S0
B. Adjusted Base Penalty 0@ _ .. eled
Base Penalty 52: OOX) x Adjustment Factor Q O = $ l 0, OOO
C. Multiple Days or Units in Violation'
o«
Adjusted Penalty /0,«000 x Number of Days or Units f = $ IQOOO .
D. Economic Benefit : ; <.
Avonded Costs $ 3, 00 4 Delayed Costs $_. I = $ 3, SO
Penalty Subtotal — \ e

Adjusted Base Penalty 3 10 QCJO + Eéonom_ic Benefit $ 53’, QGO =$ / :-ng co



Penalty Adjustment Consideration o

A. Degree of Cooperation (0-25%) +/- 35 %

B. Mitigating Factors (0-25%) +/- Qb %
1. Negotiated Settlement '
2. Ability to Pay
3. Other (explain)

C. Compliance History
No Previous Violations (0— 10%) -

Similar Violation in Past 12 months (25 - 50%) +
Similar Violation within past 3 year (10 ?-25%) +
Previous Unrelated Violation (5 —25%) +

Total Penalty Adjustment Factors —sumof A, B, & C

. Recommended Fine
Penalty Adjustment: _
lev. =] . .
$ 13,500 X O ¢ -
Penalty Subtotal Total Adjustment Factors
{From Section 1) : {From Section IH)

Additional Credit for Environmenital Investment/Training

" Adjusted Penalty:

(@9
e L =
g /3,800 o g SH00 -
Penallty Subtotal Total Adjustment Value
(From Section If) (From Section 1l + Credit)

Air Quality Specialisﬁ./ 4

O«

%
%

%

60

4 o
* g0~

Total Adjustment”\/alue
4 o0 g f = |
280Z ol [oca

Reco?nmended Fine

2-3-203

Date



COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION REPORT
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division

Complaint Number: CMP13-0024

Complaint Status: NOV " Source of Complaint: CITIZEN
Complaint Type: ASBESTOS Date Received: 02/25/2013 Time: 4:30 P.M.
Inspector: MOSBORN Inspector Area: 3

GOWDEN ELOWER RESTAVRANT |
Complaint Description: NOV CITATION 5325 CASE 1113 - RENOVATIONS WITHOUT PROPER
ASBESTOS PRACTICES IN PLACE
Address: 205 W STH ST RENO
ISSUED NOV 5325/Case 1113 to David Walker 2/25 [i3

Parcel Number: 00725604

Related Permit Numbef:
‘Complainant: Responsible Party:
ANONYMOUS GOLDEN FLOWER RESTAURANT

CAM THAI
205 WEST 5TH STREET
RENO NV 89503
323-1628

Investigation:

BACKGROUND

On February 22 at approximately 3:45 p.m. Chief Albee of the Washoe County Air Quality Management
Division received anonymous phone call reference possible improprieties during the renovation of

the Golden Flower restaurant located at 205 West 5th Street, Reno, Nevada. Chief Albee located a

May 4th 2012 asbestos sampling survey of at the above location which revealed an asbestos content

of 5% to 10% Chrysotile in the acoustic ceiling material. A further check revealed that no

notifications had been submitted to this office for removal of this material during the alleged

remodel.

INVESTIGATION

Specialist Osborn was briefed on the situation at approximately 4:25 p.m. and dispatched to the
west 5th street address. On entering the restaurant Specialist Osborn observed that the popcorn
ceiling material had been removed. Fearing an asbestos contaminated environment in the restaurant
Specialist Osborn immediately spoke to the owner identified as Cam Thai and explained to him that
he needed to close his doors and ask his customers (22 personnel) to leave immediately. Mr. Thai -
was further explained that he needed to shut down the kitchen and have his employees depart the
premises immediately.



Stop work orders were placed on the front and rear doors (see attached photos) indicating improper
removal of asbestos from the restaurant. Specialist Osborn then attempted to communicate with Cam

" Thai who's English is limited to conversational only. Mr. Thai's son an American born citizen then
spoke with this specialist and Mr. Thai acting as a translator.

Tt was learned that the restaurant had recently been totally remodeled between the date of February
3rd and February 10th. The remodel consisted of old carpet being removed and replaced with ceramic
floor tiles. Wood paneling around dining area, new counter tops and cabinets in the front cashier

area and removal of the popcorn ceiling material located in the dining room area. The walls and
ceiling areas were freshly painted.

Long Thai was then asked who had removed the popcorn ceiling material. He stated that it was
someone his sister Van Thai had hired. Van Thai was not available since her job requires her to

travel. Contact was made with Van Thai who stated that the removal contractor was hired from

Craig's list and she supplied a first name of Dave and a phone number of 224-1141. Van Thai agreed

to meet with Specialist Osborn at 8:00 a.m. on the 23rd of February.

Specialist Osborn then continued to converse with Mr. Thai and His son "Long". Conversation was had
on steps needed to abate the stop work signage to get the restaurant up and running again. Long was
given a list Asbestos consultants to call. Osborn explained that air sampling was needed in the
restaurant to ascertdin whether it was safe to expose his customers, employees and to prepare food

in the establishment. It was agreed to meet with the consultant the following morning at 8:00 a.m.

On February 23rd at 0730 a.m. Specialist Osborn met with Van Thai and her fiancé at the restaurants

back parking lot. It was learned that Van Thai had indeed secured the contact with DAVID WALKER ON
Craig's List. Van Thai states that she paid Mr. Walker $1400.00 to remove the popcorn material from

the dining area. Van and her fiancé Aaron stated that Mr. Walker taped plastic around the complete
interior of the dining area and then put plastic on the floors. Van and Aaron further stated that

he sprayed water on the popcorn material prior to removing it. Note: According to witnesses all

furniture to include table and chairs and liquor coolers were removed from the dining area and

placed in the kitchen. The kitchen was then sealed from the dining area with plastic. The room was

now empty and all personnel were asked to leave the area and removal of the asbestos containing

material began.

At approximately 9:00 a.m. on February 23rd, Gene Johnson of C&G Environmental Consulting Inc.
arrived at the restaurant. Mr. Johnson was advised that an aggravated air sampling was required of
the restaurant to include kitchen areas. An aggravated air sample was undertaken by using leaf
blower device to stir any air or dust in the establishment. A total of five samples were taken to
include three in the dining area, one in the kitchen and one by the entry way. The pumps were set

at 10 liters per minute for 2 hours and 14 minutes. The cassettes were then taken to the Asbestos
TEM Laboratories in Sparks, Nevada, using phase contrast microscopy (PCM). All results were well
below the final clearance criteria for re-occupancy.

On receiving these results of testing at 12:45 p.m., Specialist Osborn again met with Cam Thai and

family at the restaurant to reopen the doors and lift the stop work orders posted on the doors.

Specialist Osborn then sat down at a table with Cam Thai and explained to him the results and

sampling with the assistance ofhis daughter. Mr. Thai was then issued NOTICE OF VIOLATION CITATION
#5324 for a violation of 030.107; failure to notify of an asbestos removal from his restaurant

Jlocated at 205 West 5th Street. Cam Thai was then issued a petition for appeal as is required.



On February 25th, Monday afternoon, Specialist Osborn met with David Walker in the parking lot of
4860 Vista Blvd. The purpose of the meeting was to discuss the events leading up to Golden Flower
Restaurant. Mr. Walker states that he was contacted by Van Thai reference the popcorn removal at
the store. Mr. Walker further stated that he went to the restaurant and made an estimate of

$1200.00 to remove the material. He was told by Van Thai that a thousand dollars was what is belng
offered for removal of the asbestos material. Mr. Walker and his son were then told they had to do
the remtoval at 10 p.m. on the evening of February 3rd. He was further instructed to place the
popcorn material in poly bags and place the material outside behind the rear door of the

restaurant. Mr. Walker states that there were approximately 10 bags of materials. Mr. Walker hires.
his son and himself out on an hourly basis for work. He claims there was no mention of asbestos. He
is not a certified contractor and has no state of Nevada License for removal of asbestos. Mr.

Walker initially stated that Van Thai supplied all the plastic and bags for the removal of the
popcorn material. Later during the interview he remembered that the plastic and bags were theirs
and he just happened to have them in the back of his truck. When queried on the final outcome of
the asbestos material he states that he has no idea on where the debris was disposed. Mr. Walker
further related that years ago he had worked in asbestos removal for another company. Mr. Walker
was issued Notice of Violation #5325 for violation of 030.107 (A),(B),(C).

CONCLUSION:

It is this investigators opinion that the Cam Thai family had been presented with a bid from an

asbestos contractor and didn't like the price. Van Thai then went on the internet (Craig's List)

and found an advertisement by Walker referencing removal of popcorn material. It is believed that

Van Thai may not have mentioned the material as containing asbestos. It is further believed that

Mr. Walker and his son (Justin) weren't concerned whether it contained asbestos or not. Van Thai

was allegedly not questioned on whether or not it had been sampled. Mr. Walker had enough knowledge
and experience with popcorn material on how to set up a containment around the perimeter and cover
the floors of the dining area. As of the date of this report it is unknown as to where the material.

has landed.

Michael R. Osborn. AQSII
Air Quality Management Division
Washoe County District Health Dept.

Enforcement Activities

Warning Citation..: 02/25/2013 Citation Number: 5324

NOWVL.iverereeninnd NOV Number..... 0

Case Number...... 1112
Settlement.............. 03/06/2013 Amount.......... ol $6,000.00
Appealed............... : '
Upheld............... Amount................  $0.00

Status Infprmation




Initialized By........ TBURTON Completed Date...:
Date Assigned.....: 02/25/2013 Completed By......:



PHOTOS TAKEN BY AQ SPECIALIST II, MICHAEL OSBORN
OF THE GOLDEN FLOWER RESTAURANT LOCATED AT
205 WEST 5™ STREET, RENO NV 89503
DATED FEBRUARY 22 & 23, 2013



[ 022212013 6:01:09PM |




Wis
% I

UGTE

RATION: O ORERA]

T TE
FOR:

UNLAWFUL TO REM@!\!@M?’%\G

~02/22/2013 6:08:57 PM

Stop work order placed on front
and back doors of restaurant at
4:35 p.m. on 02-22-13

Y G ST DMISION
T001, EASTENINTH ST SUITE 3121, ~RENOHV 046512
FHONE (F15)784:7200

DATE oo o holaro.
GWNERIGPERATOR __
ADDRESS ot ;
EOUIPMENTDESCRIPTION

GIGTATION S

171 a6 105 Ashiastos Removal
10,080 Gas Sfation Opstations
T 20.000 SoutcaOpsratians Witiout Femmil

EOTION iz o
il

VOU HAVE BEEN DULY NOTIFIED OF THIS ANGLATION:
¥ ARE HEREBY ORDERED TO CEASE CONSTRUGTION,
ASTALLATION, ALTERATION, OR OPERATION OF THIZ

SOURCE.

FALURETO CONFORN MAY RESULT N AFINE OF UR-TO
$10 ER DAY ASLEVIED 8Y THE DISTRICT BOARDOF
HEALTH PURSUANT 1o THE AR ROLLUTION CONTROL
REGULATIONS: FOR ‘RENO,..- SPARKS, AND WASHOE
COUNTY. %

e%

AR EEIL

02/22/2013 6:01:22 PM




0212212013 5:58:57 PM |

Ceiling areas abated of asbestos

material.




[ 02/22/2013 5:58:48 PM_

Shows ceiling areas of restaurant

after removal of popcorn ceiling

material tested at 5-10%
asbestos.

| 0202212013 5:58:39 PM |

0012212013 6:00:31 PM |




02/23/201 3 9 28 29 AM

02/22/2013 6 04 21 PM

Daplcts the |nter|or of the
restaurant and kltchen areas.

02/23/2013 9 28 43 AM

02/23/2013 9 29 18 AM




This renovation of the restaurant
involved acoustic removal, new
ceramic floors, wood paneling
on walls, new counter tops and
cabmetry and new tables. The
only old furniture are the chairs.




02/23/2013 1

0:00-:09 AM

e R

_02‘/23/2013

9

Depict air sampling pumps set
up in eating and kitchen areas.
Air flow set at 10 liters per

hours. These areas passed
final air clearances after
aggravated sampling using a
leaf blower device.

‘minute for approx. two and one-hal-F 1

R M T

R B S—

B e

)13 10:01:04 AM

02/23/2

31

[ 027231201

0:00:32 AM |



(EICS) ENVIRONMENTAL INSPECTIONS & CONTROL SERVICES REPORT FOR THE
INSPECTION AND SAMPLING
AND
THE TEST RESULTS FROM ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES

BOTH DATED MAY 4, 2012 AND FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT
205 WEST 5™ STREET, RENO NV 89503



! IC Environmental Inspection & Control Services

May 4, 2012
CLIENT

T 00

PROJECT LOCATION

205 W. 6" Street

Reno, NV

PURPOSE OF INSPECTION

Planned remadeling

REFEFENCE

Asbestos TEM Laboratories report #119332
Exhibit A

Background
On May 4, 2012 EICS was engaged by the client to perform a limited asbestos inspection at the
above noted location, a restaurant in Reno, NV. Theage of the building is approximately 40
years. l.auren A. Speelman, Business Manager and Consultant for EICS performed the
Inepection. The client discussed with me plans to remove the sprayed-on acoustic ceiling
throughout the building.

~ Inspection and 8ampling
1 visually inspected the ceiling for disturbance. Using a clean, sharp instrument, | carefully wetted
and extracted 3 bulk samples of suspect acm, The samples were placed in individual sealed and
labeled containers, and logged onto a chain-of-custody. The samples were hand carried to
Asbestos TEM Laboratories in Sparks, NV for lab analysis by Polarized Light Microscopy (PLM),
using method 600/R-93/116. :

Laboratory Results

Sampfe no. Location Deseription SACH . Eri/non-frizble
1 Nerth entrance spray acoustic ceiling B-10% Chrysotile  frisble

2 South entrance spray scoustic ceiling 5-10% Chryzotils  friabls

3 Hall by restrooms epray acoustic celling none detected n/a

Discussion and Recommendatlons
EPA and OSHA regulations require removal of all friable and potentiaily friable building materials
which may be affected with asbestos content greater than 1% prior to renovation or demolition. A
State licensed asbestos abatement confractor must remove the following materials. A final visual
inspection with clearance air monitoring will be required prior to reoccupancy.

\ Materials to be rermoved
) L.ocation ) Description H%ACM ' Fri/non-friable
All locatlong. spray acoustic ceiling 5-10% Chrysétile Frieble
Limitatlons

The survey provided is applicable only to the materials and areas, herein discussed. No
representation is made as to the presence or absence of asbestos content in any other building
material including but not limited to subterranean building components, or other concealed
materials.

2900 Vassar Street #503 ' ‘ PH, (775) 786-2800
Reno, NV 89502 FAX (775) 786-0589



Thank you for the opportumty fo be of service. If you have any questions, please call me at (775)
786-~2800 or (775) 741-4748. :

Respectfully submitted

kauren A. Speelman
EICSIM 1193



SR RIsod

~N QNW@ m Y ualnEy
>28mm

eI & M 50T

singeao] Gugtlives s .

N

SRS




ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC.

EPA Method 600/R-93/116
Polarized Light Microscopy
Analytical Repoxt

ReportNo. 119332

1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104
Sparks, NV 89431
(775)359-3377 .
FAX (775) 359-2798

With Main Office Located At:
630 Bancroft Way, Berkeley, CA 94710
Ph. (310) 704-8930 Fa:; (510) 704-8929




>

 ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC

F— N - . Accredited by
- N N 1.8, Dept, of Commerce
—w7 . | S
S RvILAD

NVLAR Lsb Cods 200104:0

mu T mesmasea’ e qmmioms S R

May-04-12,

Ms, Lauren Speelman
EILCS.

2900 Vassar Street, #503
Reno, NV 89502

RE: LABORATORY JOB# _875-# _
Polatized Jight microscopy anafytical results for 3 bulk sample(s).
Job Site: 205 W, Fifth Street, Reno
JobNo.:  TT$312-1
ReportNo.: 119332

Enclosed please find the bulk material analjtical results for one or more samples submitted for asbestos analysis.

The anelyses were performed in accordance with EPA Method 600/R-93/116 or 600/M4-82-020 for the defermination
of ashestos in bull bullding matorials by polarized ight wioroscopy (PLM). Please note that whilo PLM analysis Is
commonly performed on non-frisble and fine grained muterials such as floox tiles and dust, the EPA method
recognizes that PLM is subject fo imdrations. In these situations, accurate results may only be obtainable through

the use of more sophisticated and accurate techniques such as trensmission elecwon microscopy (TEM) or X-ray
diffraction (XRD). ' '

Prior to analysis, samples ara logged-in and all data pertinent 1o the sample recorded. The samples are checked for
damage or disraption of any chain-of-custody seals. A unique Iabovatory JD number is assigned to each sample.

Ahard copy log-in sheet containing all pertivent information.concerning the sample is generated. Thisand all
other relevant paper worl are kept with the sample throughout the amslytical procedures 1o assuro proper analysis.

Each sample is opened in a class 100 HEPA negative air hood. A.rcpresentative satupling of the raterial {s selected
and placed onto & glass microscope slide contaiming a drop of reffactive index oil. The glass slide is placed imder a
polarizing light microscope where standard mineralogical techmiques are used to analyzo and quantify the various
materials present, including asbestos. The data is then compiled into standard report format and subjected to a
thorough quality assurance check before the information is released to the client. . :

For possible future reference, samples are normally kept o file for one yea.

Sincerely Yours,

Laboratory Analyst
ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC,

- These results relats onily to the sanples tested and must not be reproduced, except in full, with the approval of
the faboratory. This report must not be used to claim product endorsement by NVLAP or any other agency of the
U.S, Government. — : -

) ] Hoinet

1350 Freeport Bivd. Unit 104 T Spatks, NV B3l e (775) 3593377 e PAK(TI5)359-2798
With Main Qffice in Berksley, CA (510) 704-8930



17

- . -

. Accredited by
/.8, Dept. of Comxilercz

__ POLARIZED LIGHT MICROSCOPY
N\xﬁ@@% ANALYTICAL REPORT

NVLAP Lab Codo 200104-0 EPA Method 600/R-93/116 or 600/VI4-82-020 Pages L1of 1
ndicated; 3 A 19332
Contact: s, Layren Speclman Samples Tndicated . ReportNo. 1193
; : : Reg-. Samples Apalyze - Date Submytted; May.—O3-12
Sl BICS: SplitLayors Analyzed: ’ Dato Reported:  May-04-12

2900 Vassar Strect, #3503
Reno, NV 59502

Job Site / No. 205 W, Fifth Street, Reno

TT5312-1 _
OTHER DATA, '
) 1) Non-Aghestos Flbars DESCRIPTION
SAMPLE ID ASBESTOS 3 euchemax FIELD
K . % TYPE 4) Data Ann;lyzgde ® LAB
1 1)Nona Detectad Spray Acougtic Ceiling, North Entrance
‘ 5.10% Chrys otile  JR)90-95% Mica, Calo, Other m.p.
Lab ID# 875-01847-001 l 3 ' 4)' May-0412  JAcoustic Ceilin g—Whitc/Browh '
2 ' 1)None Detecred Spray Acoustic Ceiling, South Entrance
) 5-106% Chrysotile {2 90-95% Mice, Calc, Other m.p.
Lab ID# 875-01947-002 3) 4) May-04-12 Acolmic Ceiling-White/Brown
3 1)1-5% Celluloge Spray Acouatit Ceiling, Hall by Restrooms
’ None Detected [2)95-99% Calc, PlagtFoam, Otherm.p. '
ALab D # 875-01847-003 3) 4)May-04-{2 JAcoustic Ceiling-White
2)
fLsb ID # 3) 9
1)
2)
JLabID # ) 4
1)
2)
LabID# 13) 'y
1
2)
LabID # ol 4
o 1)
2)
Lab ID# 3) ' ny
. . 1)
2) -
LabID# 3) 4
1)
2)
LabID # 3) 4)

Detectlon Litnit of Method is Estimated to be

1% Asbestos Using a Visual Area Estimation Technique

Laboratory Analyst A%;?f .

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC.

1350 Freeport Blvd., Unft 104, Sparks, NV 89431

Greg Haves
(775) 350-3377

With Main Office in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-8930




« 3 [

©G=  ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, ING

1350 Froeport Bivdl., Unit #104 ° Spesks, NV 88431 * Ph: (776) 3633377 * Fax: (775) 3502768
Home officeat: 630 Bancroft Way ° Berkeloy, CA 94710 * Ph: (510) 704-8930 * Fax: (510) 704-8428

b BULK SAMPLE SUBMISSION FORM / CHAIN-OF-CUSTODY = o
Company t: ‘C% ' Aty . 8N X 24hc___ 2Day 3Dx

Addrmw 3—5 E—)D?D Jobete 20!3 0. FH-W % 6?!70
ciyseziz 20, NV 95072 s TTER7~ PO.#:

CoMadenLMDMQL Phoag: 193{_9 Qgco 7%(1 cﬁ%
Email 'W\\ﬁ—@.(f) @hﬂfﬂm CDm

Sample Nymber .. Sanple Description - - Sam Locatlon _
; | ’ MJ ~fenishe. O Jm ﬂ_%—i :
Z Sproy-Aenstr Ceolum Gmm/l e

= M’iﬁmﬂ&ﬂ%‘ . Vodtpmims,

Special instructions: & !}A{j‘! L !2 13%Y8 Dﬁ‘é‘ﬁ

Relinquished by . | Date/Time  Received by Date / Tims
1y M 8’3’ . Name/Company ~ Su Ehvich, | ATEM Sla//;.?
Ll PN IR P
Neme/Campany .
k8 na(ura

Yo, 11COC BBl 0 Bk Sputa it ador Sl onginal to lab - keep yelkm copy Page of



C & 6 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING INC - ASBESTOS AIR SAMPLING ASSESSMENT
DATED FEBRUARY 23 & 24, 2013
AND '
ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES INC - FINAL CLEARANCE LAB ANALYTICAL RESULTS
DATED FEBRUARY 23, 2013

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 205 WEST 5™ STREET, RENO 89509



C & G Environmental Consulting, Inc.

February 24, 2013
C&G Environmental Project No. 01022313

Golden Flower Vietnamese Restaurant
205 W. 5% Street
Reno, NV 89503

ATTN: Long Thai
RE: ASBESTOS AIR SAMPLING ASSESSMENT: 205 WEST FIFTH STREET,
RENO, NEVADA

C&G Environmental Consulting is pleased to submit this report that presents the results of an
asbestos air sampling assessment in a commercial restaurant building that is located at 205 W. Fifth
Street, in Reno, Nevada.

1.0 ASBESTOS AIR SAMPLING ASSESSMENT

On February 23, 2013, an OSHA certified air monitoring technician from C&G Environmental
Consulting conducted an asbestos air sampling in the above referenced restaurant building. The air
sampling assessment was conducted at the direction of Mr. Michael Osborn with the Washoe County
Health District — Air Quality Management Division (WCHD-AQMD), due to the unauthorized
removal of asbestos containing spray acoustic ceiling texture materials in the restaurant dining area.
Five air samples were collected during this air sampling assessment. Three air samples were
collected in the restaurant dining area, one sample was collected in the kitchen area, and one sample
was collected in the north entry area.

The asbestos air samples were collected in accordance with accepted OSHA standards. All samplés
collected were delivered by approved chain-of-custody protocol, and analyzed at Asbestos TEM
Laboratories, Inc., in Sparks, Nevada, utilizing Phase Contrast Microscopy (PCM) per NIOSH 7400
Method.

20 AIR SAMPLING AND VISUAL CLEARANCE RESULTS
Analytical results from the asbestos air sampling event indicated that the average concentration of

fibers per cubic centimeter (f/cc) in the five asbestos air samples were well below final clearance and
re-occupancy criteria of 0.01 f/ce. ‘

P.O. Box 19476 Reno, NV 89511
(775) 746-3838  Fax: (775) 787-6846



01022313 — 205 W. Fifth Street, Reno Page 2

Upon receipt of these results, Mr. Michael Osborn with the WCHD-AQMD and ‘Golden Flower
Vietnamese Restaurant personnel were notified that the interior areas of the restaurant met post-
remediation standards, and that the interior areas could be reoccupied.

3.0 LIMITATIONS

C&G Environmental Consulting makes no warranties or guarantees as to the accuracy or
completeness of information obtained from, provided by, or compiled by others (i.e. laboratories). It
is possible that information exists beyond the scope of this investigation. This report is not a legal
opinion. The services performed by C&G Environmental Consulting have been conducted in a
manner consistent with the level of care ordinarily exercised by members of our profession curtently
licensed by the State of Nevada to perform this work, and practicing under similar conditions. No
other warranty, expressed or implied, is made.

40 CLOSURE

We appreciated the opportunity to be of service to the Golden Flower Vietnamese Restaurant during
this project. Should you have any questions regarding the contents of this report, or need additional
information, please contact us at your convenience.

Respectfully Submitted,
C&G ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC.

Gene E. Johfison
Project Director
Asbestos Consultant License No. IJIPM0604

02/24/13 ' C&G Environmental Consulting



APPENDIX A

FINAL CLEARANCE LABORATORY ANALYTICAL
RESULTS



PHASE CONTRAST MICROSCOPY

Reno, NV 89313

Address: ¢ & G Bnvironmental Consulting, LLC Semplos Processed: 3
PO. Box 5298

ANALYTICAL REPORT
 NTOSLI 7400 Method Page:  lof
Contact; Mr. Gene Tohnson Sangples Submigted: 5 Report No.: 121762

Date Submilted: Feb-23-13
Date Reported:  Feb-23-13

Job Site /No. 205 West Fifth Street, Reno

Lab D #

86701721005

v 01022313
SAMPLE ID VIBERS  asor 1y FIBERS  FIBERS LOCATION /
LR Tperce 3 5% UCL) per FIELDS) per FILTER DESCRIPTION
) h Area/Final. Senting Arca-Nonhwest Comer
1 ;
< 00020 [< 0.0038 |< ’1’65‘5 <1962 N pump Ty Fios RayeEAD
LabIDa  867-01721-001 13333 134 9,93
ArewFinal, Seating Arca-Southiest Cormer
L3 < 00020 1< GOO36 f< 35 < M2 | -
»_ 100 \=ﬂhuncﬂ.1 Pugzp, Timeghling  Flow I_{iud!.!’m
LabID e 867-01721:002 i 1340 134 10
Arca/Final, Seating Avea-Noithesst Comer
3 < 00020 < 00037 |< _35 |< 2422 | -
) 100 g Vo) Pang TLmungn) Flow Ratefl.PM}
LibID&  867-01721-003 1333.3 134 9.95
Area/Final, Kitclien
4 < ‘ < _55 |« ’
0.0020 |< 0.0038 To0 e volume(L) Pamp Time(Miny Elow Rafe(l.PM)
LablD#  867-01721-004 ' 1340 134 16
AreaFinal, North Enlry
5 { ;
0.0022 0.6038 Mlgb(} 2943 Volmedt) Pamp TimetMim Flaw Rale(LPM)

1340 134 10

LabID#

Volume(L) Pungp TimeMin) Elow Ralf1.PMY

) . Volnmer) Pomp TimeMin Elow Rytd.0A
LabID ¥
‘ VolumeiL) Puimp Thnehin} Flow RatoLPA]
LabID ¥
Volnmile(L) Pump TimeeMing Flow RaigLPM)
 LabiD &
VolumetLy Pamip TimetMin) Flow RatstLPM)
Lab I #

Detection Limit =7 Fibers/MM2

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC. :
With Main Office in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-8630

Labol*aterymmlysf/‘f‘%W % ’ '

Grag Hanes
1350 Freeport Blvd,, Sparks, NV 80431 (7’75)_ 350.3377




APPENDIX B
CHAIN OF CUSTODY RECORD



)7 T 39vd

2JmeublS | i ; TIEUDIS
RuedwogpwenN FieduopeuweN
i \\\\k \\ &\! ‘aimeubis \.N Q.N\ . Z ; al . |
-7 % &N\%\ .eJ\\ﬂEO WALY / YIPY3 ens - >cmnEoo\uEmz “ )50 TRUSLoIAUT 570 / UOSUNOl T'9UaD KGEdwo/aueN
sunj jayeq kg peAaoey . . awi] ] 8jeq %q paysmbujjey
. . :SUORINASUL jenadg
o7 | 07 | a7/ T EEH] ¢ 5
A R R
, 75 (26 1 AR I
- &7y LTS , o/ | @/ | o/ PG " z
779 - ezs A@ £b 1 </ _\y.\\ W BN ‘
uojaLasaE J UOYB00TY {Jewnop | obelry 440 NO | wjewrl | 440 NO S0A}- TRqUINK SlWeS
: {urd)) sjey Mojd @oL | ew
~:xeq - - 1auoyd
‘#0d CISCT/y ouvaer NOSNHO! JNIO Uosiad 1PBjuoD
N P S ‘Rm\x\ T Pvsaor (1868 VaVAIN ONTE diZ-eeis-fio
feq € Req @ v g Ny HzTY ~5I¥51 XOd O d :SSeIppY
. m—— e - s e s P
aval " pEL Wod X B BN ONILTNSNOD VINIWNOJIANS £33 ‘AuedwoD

e LMOATY AQOLSND-HO-NIVHD / WO NOISSINENS FTdINVS -1\

BN ONILINSNOD TVLNINNOYIANS 980




DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. c.

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

Public Health
Varch 28, 2013 Prevent. Promote. Protect.
TO: District Board of Health
FROM: Kevin Dick, Director, Air Quality Management
SUBJECT: David Walker — Case No. 1113

Unappealed Citation No. 5325
Agenda ltem: 8. A.1.c.

Recommendation

Air Quality Management Staff recommends that Citation No. 5325 be upheld and a fine of $6,000 be levied against Mr.
David Walker for using improper work practices during the removal of ashestos containing materials involved in the
renovation of a commercial facility. Failure to comply with the asbestos control work practices and containment and
abatement standards constitutes a major violation of the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality
Management, specifically Section 030.105(B)(10) National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP),
Subpart M - Asbestos, which is implemented through Section 030.107(A) Asbestos Sampling and Notification, (B) Asbestos
Control Work Practice, and (C) Asbestos Containment and Abatement. This is a hegotiated settlement.

Recommended Fine: $15,000.00 Negotiated Fine: $6,000.00

Background

On February 22, 2013, Air Quality Permitting & Enforcement Branch Chief Charlene Albee received an anonymous
complaint regarding the improper removal of an asbestos containing material at the Golden Flower Restaurant located at
205 West Fifth Street in Reno. The complainant identified EICS as the company that performed the asbestos survey. Chief
Albee contacted Larry Thir of EICS to confirm they had performed a survey at the Golden Flower and requested a copy of
the report. A faxed copy of the survey, which was performed on May 4, 2012, confirmed the spray acoustic ceiling material
contained 5% to 10% chrysotile asbestos. A staff review of the Air Quality records determined no nofification had been
submitted for the removal of the asbestos containing materials.

Specialist | Michael Osborn was dispatched to 205 West Fifth Street to conduct an inspection of the facility to determine if
any asbestos removal had occurred. Upon entering the restaurant, Specialist Osborn observed the spray acoustic ceiling
material had been removed. Specialist Osborn immediately introduced himself to Mr. Cam Thai, owner of the restaurant,
and explained the purpose of his inspection. Based on the potential for an asbestos contamination, Specialist Osborn
informed Mr. Thai that he would have to immediately close down the restaurant and ask his customers to leave. After the
customers were evacuated, the kitchen was also shut down and the employees were instructed to leave the building. A
STOP WORK order was posted at the front and rear doors identifying improper removal of asbestos as the justification for
the closure.

After clearing the building, Specialist Osborn interviewed Mr. Long Thai, the owner’s son, to get a detailed summary of how
the ceiling materials were removed and by whom. Specialist Osborn was informed that Van Thai, the owner's daughter,
had hired Mr. David Walker from a Craig’s List advertisement to remove the spray acoustic ceiling material.

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 « (775) 784-7200 « FAX (775) 784-7225

www.,washoecounty.us/health
Printed on Recycled Paper

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. c.



March 28, 2013
DBOH / Mr. David Walker / Case 1113
Page 2

On February 25, 2013, Specialist Osborn met with Mr. Walker to discuss the removal of the spray acoustic material at the
restaurant. Mr. Walker stated that he was contacted by Ms. Van Thai in reference to the removal of the acoustic ceiling
material. Mr. Walker also stated that Ms. Thai wanted the work done at night after 10p.m. on February 3, 2013, and at no
time was he ever told that the material to be removed contained asbestos. Mr. Walker told Specialist Osborn that he wet
the ceiling material before scraping and that he lined the entire restaurant with plastic to catch the failing debris. Mr. Walker
stated that there were ten bags of material removed and that he put the bags at the back door as instructed by Ms. Thai.
Specialist Osborn inquired about the disposal of the ten bags after he set them by the back door but Mr. Walker had no idea
as to how they were disposed of.

Based on the results of the asbestos sampling and information collected regarding the removal of the spray acoustic ceiling
material, Specialist Osborn issued Citation No. 5325 for a major violation of Section 030.107 (A), (B), and (C) for improper
removal and disposal of asbestos containing materials.

Settlement

On March 6, 2013, Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting attended by
AQ Specialist Osborn and Mr. David Walker. After careful consideration of all of the facts in the case, Specialist Cerfoglio
recommended that Citation #5325 be upheld with a fine of $6,000 and a requirement that Mr. Walker attend an 8-Hour
Asbestos Awareness Course as soon as possible. A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties.

Alternatives

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the Regulations has taken place and dismiss
Citation No. 5325.

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5325 and levy a fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 per day.

In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued so that David Walker
may be properly noticed.
jf / // : :,:
,":—/7';::/ 7z / A /.g‘*/é
Kevin Dick, Division Director
Air Quality Management

KD/DC: ma



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION
1001 EAST NINTH ST. « SUITE B171 » RENO NV 89512

(775) 7847200

NOTICE OF VIOLATION |
nov 5325 DATE ISSUED: _02-25~291%
ISSUED TO: D oo o Wdhedik ua PHONE # g5 £24- W4/ »
MAILING ADDRESS: M1 3G Ediyo s Drive  oImvisT:_S, Dol 2P 1G4 37
NAME/OPERATOR: _ DN e, AN el PHONE # 745~ 221/ ¥/ |
PERMIT NO.___ W gms. COMPLAINT NO. |
YOU ARE HEREBY OFFICIALLY NOTIFIED THATON T & 3, 2072 _(DATE)AT Agaasy [0 Vv,

YOU ARE IN VIOLATION OF THE FOLLOWING SECTION(S) OF THE WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD
OF HEALTH REGULATIONS GOVERNING AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT:

[] MINOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: X MAJOR VIOLATION OF SECTION:

[ 040.030 __DUST CONTROL [] 030.000 OPERATING W/O PERMIT

[ ] 040.055 __ ODOR/NUISANCE [] 030.2175 VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITION
[ 1 040.200 __DIESEL IDLING (] 030.105 ASBESTOS/NESHAP

[ OTHER ' OTHER 030 /OTABC

VIOLATION DESCRIPTION: “FesoLerec. Fe /. | _ A
T o S NI ./ palos Ty Conlerl ook prsliia, @Gnd O abeTdan
¢ m{/fez,»u.—a,“tti) eY i f1. &0 c!:-‘,é-c'n:&./%’?-ﬂ-/i/b?i 2

LOCATION OF VIOLATION: ZB5 Llesst & b ST, [dsno, v

”~

POINT OF OBSERVATION: __ 1 &

Weather: oA [ Wind Direction From: N E S W

Emissions Observed: H oo
(If Visual Emissions Performed - See attached Plume Evaluation Record)

L] WAR‘NING ON-LY: Effective | a.m./p.m. _ (date) you are hereby ord»eredv to éb_ate the above
violation within \ hours/days. | hereby acknowledge receipt of this-warning on the date indicated.

Signature

X CITATION: You are hereby notified that effectiveon_(9Z-2 S- 3 (date)you arein violation of the sectlon(s) cited above. Youare
hereby ordered to abate the above violation within hours/days. You may contact the Air Quality Management Division
to request a negotiated settlement meeting by calling (7 ;% 784-7200. You are further advised that within 10 working days of the date
of this Notice of Violation, you may submit a written petition for appeal to the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management
Division, P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada 89520-0027. Failure to submit a petition within the specified time will result in the submis-

sion of this Notice of Violation to the District Board of Health with a recommendation for the assessment of an administrative fine.
SIGNING TI}IS FORM IS NOT AN ADMISSION OF GUILT

Signature: _ ’ iv"‘fw‘wfb (1 / Lo e e o __ Date: 2055
Issued by \ QR Q ,QA : Title: 14(9 3 Q

& PETITION FOR APPEAL FORM PROVIDED
H-AIR-09 {Rev. 04/12)



, WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

PublicHealth

Prevent. Promote. Protect.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

Date: 7/7@/&(35/ lo ; QOI 3

' ]
Company Name: / ;gé‘b
Address: 40‘] O‘Mic C?Mc‘“a__}@wv
Notice of Violation # 5345 Case# (13

The staff of the Air Quality Management Division of the Washoe County District

Health Department issued the above refere ced citation for the yiolation of
Regulation _Q50: 107 A-B-Lo Foilevte To mcolef, ced” '
P . ' oL c;d;q»g@c‘dﬁl chrzmiovﬂcb&m

A settlement of this matter has been nego’ug&gd between the undersigned partles [,{72—,@ a4
resulting in a penaity amount of § _ 5,000 = This settlement will be,

submitted to the District Board of Health for review at the regularly schedu ed

meeting on 7//«:%(5% JE) [ o = N e | fﬂ-;zmcm L)) QOO “”Etvafb

The undersigned agrees to waive an appeal to the Air Pollution Control Hearing
Board so this matter may be submitted dlrectly to the District Board of Health for
consideration.

[ ‘ " e ofig
} Nz, it L )ﬁ) / ;é:i' ‘ d 2 i VZQZ// &/t%
Slgn'amfé of Cdi“ﬁ“p"ény Representatﬁlé ) Slgnature of District Representatxvé’
SN ao S U Ker Deniis A. CerroGLi0
" Print Name i Print Name

’i, S /{éa ZC p(ﬂ@g/ﬁzdfﬂléf/

P ORLN N
Title ¥ . - ——

Witness 7 WitnessL___ Y e

P.0. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 < (775) 784-7200 « FAX (775) 784-7225

www.washoecounty.us/health
WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER HIRING EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS
Printed on Reeyeled Paper



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT - ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY TABLE &
RECOMMENDED FINE CALCULATION WORKSHEET
DATED MARCH 6, 2013



Administrative Penalty Table

Air Quality Management Division
Washoe County Health District

I. Minor Violations - Section 020.040(C)

Regulation ' 1%t Violation 2" Violation
040.005 Visible Emissions $1,000 $ 2,500
040.030 Dust Control (fugitive) 250. 750
040.035 OpenFires - : 500 1,000
'040.040 Fire Training 500 1,000
040.050 Incinerator 1,000 2,000
040.051 Woodstoves - 500 1,000
040.055 Odors : ‘ 1,000 2,000
040.080 Gasoline Transfer (maintenance) - 1,000 2,000
040.200 . Diesel Idling ' 500 1,000
050.001 Emergency Episode ' 1,000 2,000

Il. Major Violations - Section 020.040

. Source Category
Regulation Violation. . Minor Major
030.000 Construction/Operating without Permit " $5,000 $ 10,000
(per major process system or unit/day) )
030.1402 Failure to Comply with Stop Work Order 10,000/day 10,000/day
030.2175 Operation Contrary to Permit Conditions 5,000 10,000
(per day or event)
030.235 Failure to Conduct Source Test or Report 2,500 5,000
(per Reporting Period for Each Unit)
All other Major Violations $10,000 $ 10,600
(per day or event)
030.000  Construction Without a Dust Control Permit ,
Project Size — Less than 10 acres $ 500 + $50 per acre
Project Size — 10 acres or more _ ~ $1,000 + $50 per acre
lIl. Major Violations - Section 030.107 Asbestos
A. Asbestos Sampling & Notification $ 5,000~ $10,000
B. Asbestos Control Work Practices ' $ 5,000 - $10,000
(per day or event) ) :
C. Asbestos Containment & Abatement , $ 5,000 - $10,000

(per day or event)



" Washoe County Air Quality Management
. Permitting & Enforcement Branch
Recommended Fine Calculation Worksheet

Company Neme DAV iD \/\/A'LK ER

Contact Name SAME

Case

3 nov 3395 complant  (MPI3-0034

- Violation of Section O30. 107 B o (/ .

I. Base Penalty as specified in the Penalty Table = $ [ O,; COC

Il. Severity of Violation

A. Public Health Impact

1. Degree of Violation
(The degree of which the person/company has dewated from the regulatory reqwrements) C)
Minor - 0.5 Moderate — 0.75 Major — 1.0 Adjustment Factor [ !

2. Toxicity of Release
Criteria Pollutant — 1x
Hazardous Air Pollutant — 2x ' ~~ Adjustment Factor

3. Environmental/Public Health Risk (Proximity to sensitive environment or group)
Negligible — 1x Moderate — 1.5% Significant = 2x Adjustment Factor | : D

Total Adjustment Factors (1x2x3) = . 1.O

. Adjusted Base Penalty

0,600  x Adjustment Factor [.O = s 0,000

Base Penalty [ )

Multiple Days or Units in Violation

Adjusted Penalty x Number of Days or Units = $
Economic Benefit ' _ ) .
Avoided Costs $_5,000 + Delayed Costs §_____ = $ 5i D00

Penalty Subtotal — 7 , o :
Adjusted Base Penalty $ + Economic Benefit $ ' =$ 15/ OO0




lil. Penalty Adjustmenf Consideration

A. Degree of Cooperation (0-25%) /- -5 %

- B, Mitigating Factors (0-25%) +-__ 625 %
1. ‘Negotiated Settlement

2. Ability to Pay A 7 4 X, 4 ,,*“7’/ Py .4: 3 /?ﬂ' ~
3 Otrer (expla;in) /‘/‘?W(C 12 gt/ﬂ./%ﬁg&%% Aecveenad Cba

C. Compliance History

No Previous Violations (00— 10%) - [O %

Similar Violation in Past 12 moriths (25 - 50%) + %
Similar Violation within past 3 year (10-25%) +_ %
Previous Unrelated Violation (56— 25%) + %
Total Penalty Adjustment Factors —sum of A, B, &C - é)O %

IV. Recommended Fine

Penalty Adjustment: ,

s |5 000 x b0 4 = 94000
Penalty Subtotal Total Adjustment'Factor‘s Total Adjustment Value
(From Section Il (From Section lIf)

Additional Credit for Environmental Investment/Training

Adjusted Penalty:

s 15 000 v 5-9000 . ¢ bLOOO
Penalﬂl Subtotal Total Adjustment Value * Recommended Fine
(From Section 1) (From Section {ll + Credit)

»/\/Zemw// [// / 29/ Dol - RO

‘Air Quality Specialist : Date




COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION REPORT
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division.

Complaint Number: CMP13-0024

Complaint Status: NOV Source of Complaint: CITIZEN
Complaint Type: ASBESTOS Date Received: 02/25/2013 Time: 4:30 P.M.
Inspector: MOSBORN Inspector Area: 3

Complaint Description: NOV CITATION 5325 CASE 1113 - RENOVATIONS WITHOUT PROPER
ASBESTOS PRACTICES IN PLACE

Address: 205 W 5TH ST RENO

Y9SUED NOV 5325/Case 1113 to David Walker 2 (25 /13

Parcel Number: 00725604

Related Permit Number:
Complainant: : . Responsible Party:
ANONYMOUS GOLDEN FLOWER RESTAURANT
CAM THAI
205 WEST 5TH STREET
RENO NV 89503
323-1628
Investigation:
BACKGROUND

On February 22 at approximately 3:45 p.m. Chief Albee of the Washoe County Air Quality Management
Division received anonymous phone call reference possible improprieties during the renovation of

the Golden Flower restaurant located at 205 West 5th Street, Reno, Nevada. Chief Albee located a

May 4th 2012 asbestos sampling survey of at the above location which revealed an asbestos content

of 5% to 10% Chrysotile in the acoustic ceiling material. A further check revealed that no

notifications had been submitted to this office for removal of this material during the alleged

remodel.

INVESTIGATION

Specialist Osborn was briefed on the situation at.approximately 4:25 p.m. and dispatched to the

west 5th street address. On entering the restaurant Specialist Osborn observed that the popcorn
ceiling material had been removed. Fearing an asbestos contaminated environment in the restaurant
Specialist Osborn immediately spoke to the owner identified as Cam Thai and explained to him that
he needed to close his doors and ask his customers (22 personnel) to leave immediately. Mr. Thai
was further explained that he needed to shut down the kitchen and have his employees depart the
premises immediately.



. Stop work orders were placed on the front and rear doors (see attached photos) indicating improper
removal of asbestos from the restaurant. Specialist Osborn then attempted to communicate with Cam
Thai who's English is limited to conversational only. Mr. Thai's son an American born citizen then
spoke with this specialist and Mr. Thai acting as a translator.

It was learned that the restaurant had recently been totally remodeled between the date of February
3rd and February 10th. The remodel consisted of old carpet being removed and replaced with ceramic
floor tiles. Wood paneling around dining area, new counter tops and cabinets in the front cashier

area and removal of the popcorn ceiling material located in the dining room area. The walls and
ceiling areas were freshly painted.

Long Thai was then asked who had removed the popcorn ceiling material. He stated that it was
someone his sister Van Thai had hired. Van Thai was not available since her job requires her to

travel. Contact was made with Van Thai who stated that the removal contractor was hired from

Craig's list and she supplied a first name of Dave and a phone number of 224-1141. Van Thai agreed

to meet with Specialist Osborn at 8:00 a.m. on the 23rd of February. _

Specialist Osborn then continued to converse with Mr. Thai and His son "Long". Conversationi was had
on steps needed to abate the stop work signage to get the restaurant up and running again. Long was
given a list Asbestos consultants to call. Osborn explained that air sampling was needed in the
restaurant to ascertain whether it was safe to expose his customers, employees and to prepare food

in the establishment. It was agreed to meet with the consultant the following morning at 8:00 a.m.

On February 23rd at 0730 a.m. Specialist Osborn met with Van Thai and her fiancé at the restaurants
back parking lot. It was learned that Van Thai had indeed secured the contact with DAVID WALKER ON
Craig's List. Van Thai states that she paid Mr. Walker $1400.00 to remove the popcorn material from

the dining area. Van and her fiancé Aaron stated that Mr. Walker taped plastic around the complete
interior of the dining area and then put plastic on the floors. Van and Aaron further stated that

he sprayed water on the popcorn material prior to removing it. Note: According to witnesses all

furniture to include table and chairs and liquor coolers were removed from the dining area and

placed in the kitchen. The kitchen was then sealed from the dining area with plastic. The room was

now empty and all personnel were asked to leave the area and removal of the asbestos containing

material began.

At approximately 9:00 a.m. on February 23rd, Gene Johnson of C&G Environmental Consulting Inc.
arrived at the restaurant. Mr. Johnson was advised that an aggravated air sampling was required of
the restaurant to include kitchen areas. An aggravated air sample was undertaken by using leaf
blower device to stir any air or dust in the establishment. A total of five samples were taken to
include three in the dining area, one in the kitchen and one by the entry way. The pumps were set

at 10 liters per minute for 2 hours and 14 minutes. The cassettes were then taken to the Asbestos
TEM Laboratories in Sparks, Nevada, using phase contrast microscopy (PCM). All results were well
below the final clearance criteria for re-occupancy.

On receiving these results of testing at 12:45 p.m., Specialist Osborn again met with Cam Thai and

family at the restaurant to reopen thé doors and lift the stop work orders posted on the doors.

Specialist Osborn then sat down at a table with Cam Thai and explained to him the results and

sampling with the assistance of his daughter. Mr. Thai was then issued NOTICE OF VIOLATION CITATION
#5324 for a violation of 030.107; failure to notify of an asbestos removal from his restaurant

located at 205 West 5th Street. Cam Thai was then issued a petition for appeal as is required.



On February 25th, Monday afternoon, Specialist Osborn met with David Walker in the parking lot of
4860 Vista Blvd. The purpose of the meeting was to discuss the events leading up to Golden Flower
Restaurant. Mr. Walker states that he was contacted by Van Thai reference the popcorn removal at
the store. Mr. Walker further stated that he went to the restaurant and made an estimate of
$1200.00 to remove the material. He was told by Van Thai that a thousand dollars was what is being
offered for removal of the asbestos material. Mr. Walker and his son were then told they had to do
the removal at 10 p.m. on the evening of February 3rd. He was further instructed to place the
popcorn material in poly bags and place the material outside behind the rear door of the

restaurant. Mr. Walker states that there were approximately 10 bags of materials. Mr. Walker hires
his son and himself out on an hourly basis for work. He claims there was no mention of asbestos. He
is not a certified contractor and has no state of Nevada License for removal of asbestos. Mr.

Walker initially stated that Van Thai supplied all the plastic and bags for the removal of the

popcorn material. Later during the interview he remembered that the plastic and bags were theirs

and he just happened to have them in the back of his truck. When queried on the final outcome of
the asbestos material he states that he has no idea on where the debris was disposed. Mr. Walker
further related that years ago he had worked in asbestos removal for another company. Mr. Walker
was issued Notice of Violation #5325 for violation of 030.107 (A),(B).(C).

CONCLUSION:

It is this investigators opinion that the Cam Thai family had been presented with a bid from an

asbestos contractor and didn't like the price. Van Thai then went on the internet (Craig's List)

and found an advertisement by Walker referencing removal of popcorn material. It is believed that

Van Thai may not have mentioned the material as containing asbestos. It is further believed that

Mr. Walker and his son (Justin) weren't concerned whether it contained asbestos or not. Van Thai
was allegedly not questioned on whether or not it had been sampled. Mr. Walker had enough knowledge
and experience with popcorn material on how to set up a containment around the perimeter and cover
the floors of the dining area. As of the date of this report it is unknown as to where the material

has landed.

Michael R. Osborn. AQSII
Air Quality Management Division
Washoe County District Health Dept.

Enforcement Activities

Warning Citation..: 02/25/2013 Citation Number: 5324
NOV.oererrrenenee 3 ' NOV Number.... 0

Case Number...... 1112
Settlement.............: 03/06/2013 Amount.......... ..... $6,000.00
Appealed...............:
Upheld.........ccvennat Amount...............  $0.00

Status Information



Initialized By........ TBURTON Completed Date...:
Date Assigned.....: 02/25/2013 Completed By......:



PHOTOS TAKEN BY AQ SPECIALIST IT, MICHAEL OSBORN
OF THE GOLDEN FLOWER RESTAURANT LOCATED AT
205 WEST 5™ STREET, RENO NV 89503
DATED FEBRUARY 22, 2013



I R T R o i

s s

02/22/2013 6:01:09 PM |




Ceiling areas abated of asbestos |
material. |




0212212013 5:59:39 PM | [ 02/22/2013 5:58:48 PM |

Shows ceiling areas of restaurant
after removal of popcorn ceiling
material tested at 5-10%
asbestos.

0212212013 6:00:31 PM |

" 02/22/2013 5:58:39 PM




(EICS) ENVIRONMENTAL INSPECTIONS & CONTROL SERVICES REPORT FOR THE
INSPECTION AND SAMPLING
AND
THE TEST RESULTS FROM ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES

BOTH DATED MAY 4, 2012 AND FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT
205 WEST 5™ STREET, RENO NV 89503



E E,
_ Ic - Environmental Inspection & Control Services

May 4, 2012
CLIENT
MG
PROJECT LOCATION
205 W. 5" Street
Reno, NV
PURPOSE OF INSPECTION
Planned remodeling
REFEFENCE

Asbestos TEM Laboratories report #119332
Exhibit A

Background
On May 4, 2012 EICS was engaged by the client to perform a limited asbestos inspection at the
above noted location, a restaurant in Reno, NV. The'age of the building is approximatsly 40
years. Lauren A. Speelman, Business Manager and Consultant for EICS performed the
Inspection, The client discussed with me plans to remove the sprayed-on acoustic ceiling
throughout the building.

Inspection and Sampling
I visually inspected the ceiling for disturbance. Using a clean, sharp instrument, | carefully wetted
and extracted 3 bulk samples of suspect acm, The samples were placed in individual sealed and
labeled containers, and logged onto a chain-of-custody. The samples were hand carried to
Asbestos TEM Laborstories in Sparks, NV for lab analysis by Polarized Light Microscopy (PLM),
using method 600/R-93/116.

: Laboratory Results

Sample no. Location Description %ACM Fri/non-friahle
1 North entrance spray acougtic ceiling 5-10% Chrysotile friable

2 South entrance spray scoustie calling 5-10% Chryzotile  friabls

3 Hall by restrooms spray acoustic ceiling none detected n/a

Discussion and Recommendatlons
EPA and OSHA regulations require removal of all friable and potentlally friable building materials
which may be affected with asbestos content greater than 1% prior to renovation or demolition. A
State licensed asbestos abatement contractor must remove the following materials. A final visual
inspection with clearance air monitoring will be required prior to reoccupancy.

; Materials to be removed
Location : Deseription FHACM Frilnon-friable
All locations: spray acoustic ceiling 5-10% Chrysotile Frable
Limitations

The survey provided is applicable only to the materials and areas, herein discussed. No
representation is made as to the presence or absenca of ashestos content in any other building
material including but not limited to subterranean building components, or other concealed
materials.

2900 Vassar Streat #503 ' PH, (775) 786-2800
Reno, NV 89502 FAX (775) 786-9599



o

Respectfully submitted

Thapk you for the opportunity o be of service. If you have any questions, please call me at
786-2800 or (775) 741-4748.

uren A. Speelmaii
EICS IM 1193

(775)



- SBLLRISIE

AN 'eusiy

7005 @ W 0z
sungeas] Bugties g




ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC,

EPA Method 600/R-93/116
Polarized Light Microscopy
Analytical Report

ReporeNo. 119332 .

1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104
Sparks, NV 89431
(775) 359-3377
FAX (775) 3592798

With Main Office Located At:
630 Bancroft Way, Berkeley, CA 94710
Ph. (510) 704-8930 Fax (510) 704-8929




£

F— N g Aceredited by

mw ' 1.5, Dept, of Conm:?rce
b vlAg

ASBESTOS L LABORATORIES, INC ' , ‘ NVLAR Lab Code 200104:0

May-04-12

Ms. Tauren Speelman

EICS.

2900 Vagsar Street, #503

Reno, NV 85502

RE: .LABORATORY JOR# 875t
Polatized Jight microscopy analytical results for 3 bulk sample(s).
Tob Site: 205 W, Fifth Street, Reno
Job No.: TT5312-1
ReportNo.: 119332

$ncloscd plesse find the bulk material analytical results for one or more samples submitted for asbestos analysis.

The analyses were performed in accordance with EPA Method 600/R-93/116 or 600/M4-82-020 for the determination
of asbestos in bulk building materials by polarized light microscopy (PLM). Please note that whiloc PLM analysis is
commmonly performed on non-fiiable and fine grained matorials such as floox tiles and dust, the EPA method
recognizes that PLM is subject to litations. Tn these situations, accurate results may only be obtainable through

the use of more sophisticated and accurate techniques such as transmission electron microscopy (TEM) or X-ray
diffraction (XRD). )

Priorto analysis, samples ara logged-in and all data pertinent to the sample recorded. The samplcs are checked for
damage or disruption of any chain-oficustody seals, A unique laboratory ID number is assigned to each sample.
Ahard copy log-in shest containing all pertinent information concerning the sample is generated. This and all
other relevant papor work are kept with the sample throughout the snalytical procedures to asstro proper analysis.

Each sample is opened in 4 class 100 HEPA negative ajr hood, A rcpresentative satupling of the material {s selected
and placed onto a glass microscope slide containing a drop of reftactive fndex oil. The glass slide is placed imder a
polarizing light microscope where standard mineralogical techniques are used to anatyze and quantify the various
materials present, including ssbestos. The data is then compiled into standard report format and subjected to a
thorough quality assurance check before the information is released to the client. -

For possible foture reference, samples are normally kept on file for one yeax.

Sincerely Yours,

Laboratory Analyst
ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC,

—- These results relate only to the samples tested and must ot be reproduced, except in fuull, with the approval of
the Taboratory. This report must not be used to claim product endorsement by NVLAP or any other agency of the
U.S. Government. - .

1350 FresportBivd. Unic 104 & Spaks,NVBSA3Y o (779) 3593377 e BAX(775)359-2198
With Main Qffice in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-8930



i

-

A'ccxeditec_l by
U.S. Dept. of C,omg}emz

NVLAP Lab Code 200104-0

POLARIZED LIGHT MICROSCOPY
ANALYTICAL REPORT

EPA Method 600/R-93/116 ok 600/M4-82-020

Page: 1of 1

| Address: EICS.

Contact: Ms, Lauren Speclman

Samples Iﬁdicated: 3
Reg. Samples Apalyzed: 3

Report No.

119332

2900 Vassar Strect, #3503

- $plit Layers Analyzed: 0

Date Submitted: May-03-12
Dato Reported:  May-04-12

Job Site / No. 205 W, Fifih Street, Reno

Reno, NV 39502 TT5312-1
| OTHER DATA '
X 1) Non-Ashéstos Flbers DESCRH?TION
SAMPLE ID ASBESTOS e FIELD
S % TYPE 4) Data Ann;?y::d b _ LARB
1 1)None Detected [Spray Aconstic Ceiling, North Entrance
5 5.10% Chrysotile  }2)90-95% Mice, Cale, Other m.p.
Lab D # 876-01947-001 ‘ 3) ' 4)May-04-12 |Acoustic Ceiling-White/Brown
2 ' 1)None Detected Spray Acoustio Ceiling, South Evtrance
. 5-10% Chrysotile  }2)90-95% Mics, Cale, Otherm.p, )
Lzb D # 875-01947-002 3) , 4)May-04-12 JAcoustic Ceiling-White/Brown
3 1)1-5% Celluloge: * {Spray Acousti Ceiling, Hall by Restroomms
' None Detacted 12)95-99% Calc, PlastFoam, Other m.p.
JLabID # 875-01947-003 3) 8)May-04-12 JAcoustio Ceiling-White
2)
Lab ID # 13) )
1)
2)
JLabID # ) .|
. o
2)
LabID# 3) 4)
1)
2)
LabID # 3) : 4)
1)
2)
LabID # 3 _ 4)
. B0
2)
Lab ID # 3) , 4
1) ’
2)
LabID # 3) 4)

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC.

Detectlon Limit of Method is Estimated to be 1% Asbestos Using a Visual Area Esdyeehﬂique

Laboratory Analyst /%"7/

1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104, Sparks, NV 89431

el

(775) 359-3377

P ol
M~y

Greg Haves

With Main Office in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-3930




ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC
_w

1350 Froeport Bivd., Unit #104* Sparks, NV £8431° Phy: (776) 369-3377 * Fax: (778) 3592798
Home office at: 630 Bancrott Way * Berkeloy, CA 34710 * Ph: (510) 7048930 * Fax: (510) 704-8420

| *’f*‘ BULK SAMPLE SUBMISSION FORM / CHAIN-OF-CUSTODY ***
Company; E_': ICS i ' hr ghr_X_2anr 2 bay 303

p ta ____Z.hr_ 4
Addrmzwﬁu DA Jobsite: 2055\ O. FTH‘W 'Qﬂ:' QQQ____

crrsmezim K20 NV 9507 woonaTTERIZ~  poa
Contact PWHZLMQQEM__ Phone: 1 0™ D Fax: R0~ EF9

»S‘ample Number | . S'ample Desctiption il Sam L tion
Z I Sprou-Aoncte CEliud on i EAOE
Special instructions: £ !}A{).‘ll 1 IQ)A-JLD:?&)
Relinqi:is'he_d by . Da:emme | Received by Date / Time
: 'ﬁ._. AN oo YALTIN glalrz Name/Company - S Ehlich, i ATEM sl'g//{.?

| Z:olpm

_ : - g1 fn
NameICom@ny Neme/Company -
| Signature _ , .| Signaturs

AR N00C s Bulk semplenCOC Bulk e 20112450 S original to fab - keep yellow copy Page__ of




C & G ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING INC - ASBESTOS AIR SAMPLING ASSESSMENT
DATED FEBRUARY 23 & 24, 2013
AND
ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES INC - FINAL CLEARANCE LAB ANALYTICAL RESULTS
DATED FEBRUARY 23, 2013

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 205 WEST 5™ STREET, RENO 89509



C & G Environmental Consulting, Inc.

February 24,2013
C&G Environmental Project No. 01022313

Golden Flower Vietnamese Restaurant
205 W. 5% Street
Reno, NV 89503

ATTN: Long Thai
RE: ASBESTOS AIR SAMPLING ASSESSMENT: 205 WEST FIFTH STREET,
RENO, NEVADA :

C&G Environmental Consulting is pleased to submit this report that presents the results of an
asbestos air sampling assessment in a commercial restaurant building that is located at 205 W. Fifth
Street, in Reno, Nevada.

1.0 ASBESTOS AIR SAMPLING ASSESSMENT

On February 23, 2013, an OSHA certified air monitoring technician from C&G Environmental
Consulting conducted an asbestos air sampling in the above referenced restaurant building. The air
sampling assessment was conducted at the direction of Mr. Michael Osborn with the Washoe County
Health District — Air Quality Management Division (WCHD-AQMD), due to the unauthorized
removal of asbestos containing spray acoustic ceiling texture materials in the restaurant dining area.
Five air samples were collected during this air sampling assessment. Three air samples were
collected in the restaurant dining area, one sample was collected in the kitchen area, and one sample
was collected in the north entry area. S

The asbestos air samples were collected in accordance with accepted OSHA standards. All samples
collected were delivered by approved chain-of-custody protocol, and analyzed at Asbestos TEM
Laboratories, Inc., in Sparks, Nevada, utilizing Phase Contrast Microscopy (PCM) per NIOSH 7400
Method. :

20 AR SAMPLING AND VISUAL CLEARANCE RESULTS

Analytical results from the asbestos air sampling event indicated that the average concentration of
fibers per cubic centimeter (f/cc) in the five asbestos air samples were well below final clearance and
re-occupancy criteria of 0.01 f/cc. '

P.O. Box 19476 Reno, NV 89511
(775) 746-3838  Fax: (775) 787-6846



01022313 - 205 W. Fifih Sireet, Reno ' Page 2

Upon receipt of these results, Mr. Michael Osborn with the WCHD-AQMD and Golden Flower
Vietnamese Restaurant personnel were notified that the interior areas of the restaurant met post-
remediation standards, and that the interior areas could be reoccupied.

3.0 LIMITATIONS

C&G Environmental Consulting makes no warranties or guarantees as to the accuracy or
completeness of information obtained from, provided by, or compiled by others (i-e. laboratories). It
is possible that information exists beyond the scope of this investigation. This report is not a legal
opinion. The services performed by C&G Environmental Consulting have been conducted in a
manner consistent with the level of care ordinarily exercised by members of our profession currently
licensed by the State of Nevada to perform this work, and practicing under similar conditions. No
other warranty, expressed or implied, is made. '

40 CLOSURE

We appreciated the opportunity to be of service to the Golden Flower Vietnamese Restaurant during
this project. Should you have any questions regarding the contents of this report, or need additional
information, please contact us at your convenience. ‘

Respectfully Submitted, _
C&G ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC.

) Gehé E.J ohhson -
Project Director
~Asbestos Consultant License No. [JPM0604

02/24/13 ' - C&G Environmental Consulting



APPENDIX A

FINAL CLEARANCE LABORATORY ANALYTICAL
RESULTS



PHASE CONTRAST MICROSCOPY

ANALYTICALREPORT | o
MOSI}IT«%OQMcthAnd _ Pages 1of §
Contact: Mr. Gene Jokinson Semples Submitted: 5 Report No. 121762
, v ) Tigte. Submilted: FPeb-23-13
Address: ‘,iggﬁ";‘if;;“‘ﬁ"““ Conalting, LLC. Semples Prosessed: 3 Dt Reported:  Feb-23-13
R'er;o, ;:IAV asgs] 3 ols Site/ No. 205 West Tifth Street, Reno
_ o Di022313
SAMPLE 1D TIBERS  gxon 1t FIGERS  TIBERS LOCATION /.
. L el | 95% UCLy o itns) per MLIER]  DESCRIPTION
' . o Arca/Final, Seating Area-Nortinwest Comner
A 5 <
F 0'0020 & 0.0038 a "1—3‘05" . < 1962 Volums(L} lln_mpTimn(ﬁ-ﬁn[ Flow Rafe(LPM)
LabID#  857-01721-001 ] , 13333 13 995
Area/Finl, Seating Arca-Southwiest Comer
. < 00020 |< 00036 |< _33 |< 245 .
100 Velume(T.} Epmgil"gnc@-hn) Fluy\{galcﬂ‘l’&l)

LabID g 86701721008 | 1340

o ) ) Area/Finel, Seatlng Area-Northeast Ccn'uer;‘

5 < 0.0020 |< 00037 |< 38 |< M | . ,
o 160 AVolume(t) Pump Threviny Flow Rale(LON)

LabID# 867-01721-003 13333 134 9,95

Area/Final, Kitchen

4 < 00020 |< 00038 |< _85 |< 1962 R
100 Volume(L) Punip.Timeting Flow RajetLEA)
LabID#  S6%01721-004 i 1340 : 10
) Ares/Final, North Enfry
=8 q _
0,0022 06038 __l_gi_)ﬁ 2943 \oluie). Pump Toedin) Flow Rute(LEM)
LabID# 86701721003 g 1340 134 16

Volume(} Pumg ThreMin} Flow RalefLBM}

] LabID #
Volme(l) Pumn Timegui) Flow RuefLPM)
TahTD #
olimely Bump Thisind Elow RatetLeM)
 LabID# _
Votmel) Brimp Timedin) Flow Rufu(1LM)
LabD#
Volumet) Bamp TinsMing How Rals(LpM)
Lah_ID_# : ) ‘ .
Detection Limit =7 Fibers(MM2 .
Laboratory Aﬂalyst«./"‘-'QWt// 4 _
) o Greg Hanes
ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC. 1350 Ficeport Bivd,, Spurks, NV 83431 (775) 3393377

With Main Office in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-8930




APPENDIX B
CHAIN OF CUSTODY RECORD



40 J0vd

SIMBUDIS - BIMEUBIS
RueduionjaueN RieduwoDawenN
. LA : b P2f ameuns
-yl A Ay s L 077 . Z 2 ™
P WN\.“ B 724 \i\ﬁﬁo L e TE] m:m;cmnEonEmz. “ \ .M.N... N\a (UETILTATE § 580 { Uosuyof "I duADH uedwop/swenN
sun] rajed . - Aq peAasdy swit] § 93ed 7o paysmbuliey
. . :suoRonysyl [eads
i o7 o7 | a7 IS EES i 5
TI7 A o7 | o7 | a7 | N e | &
Z -y 74 |46 | 9 AR £
> s ; . Q\ 0\. Q\ - P u\\n %ﬂ. " q
ot/ LM o AN YANIE Y XA R /
BoNdUsSa( / UCHESO [Youmop | ebeway 440 NO fujewnl | 440 NO ERIAY Taquiny sjdies
: {iedy) 8y oI oL | swn _
e sauoyd —
“#0d C ST over NOSNROTr 3N39 -uosied Reilod
gy RS AP 7 SQF R - 1558 VavASN O diz-eieisAi0
fea€ fea? Rl 3% mgTTTy T METY : ——GL¥Bl X08 0 d ‘SSaPpY
y " i 7 Aueduor

ava1— wELT Kod IXI

s 1HMOJTH AQOLSND-H0-NIVHO / MO NOISSINENS TIAINVYS UV wxe

NI ONILINSNOD 1VLNINNOHIANT 980




DBOH Agerida Item No. 8.C.L.

Washoe County Health District

rablicHeali
STAFF REPORT
BOARD MEETING DATE: March 28, 2013
DATE: March 15,2013
TO District Board of Health
FROM: Lori Cooke, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District \8@)

775-325-8068, Icooke@washoecounty.us .
THROUGH: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Ofﬁce‘rb’/

SUBJECT: Proposed approval of Subgrant Amendment #1 from the Nevada
Department of Health and Human Services, Health Division, Bureau of Child,
Family and Community Wellness for the period January 1, 2012 through December
31, 2014, with funding of $460,145 per calendar year (reduced from CY12 funding
of $486,542), approve the reduction of PC#70002278, Health Educator II (vacant)
from 1.0FTE to 0.49 FTE, in support of the HIV Prevention Grant Program, 10
10013; and authorize the Chairman of the Board to sign.

SUMMARY

The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the
Health Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and
amendments to the adopted budget.

The Washoe County Health District (District) received Amendment #1 from the Nevada
Department of Health and Human Services, Health Division in the amount of $460,145,
for the period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014 in support of the HIV
Prevention program, IO 10013. A copy of Amendment #1 is attached.

District Board of Health strategic priority: Protect population from health problems
and health hazards.

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item: Sustainability, including financial
sustainability, sustaining our services and infrastructure, and sustainability of our natural
resources.

Approval of Amendment #1 also supports the District’s Community & Clinical Health
Services Division Sexual Health program’s mission to provide comprehensive prevention
education, treatment, and surveillance activities in Washoe County that reduce the
incidence of STD infection including HIV. The Sexual Health Program emphasizes
strategies that empower individuals to decrease risk-related behaviors, thereby decreasing
the incidence of new STD and HIV infections in the community.

AGENDA ITEM #

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279

www.washoecounty.us/health
WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER



District Board of Health
Page 2 of 2

PREVIOUS ACTION

The Washoe County District Board of Health approved a Notice of Subgrant Award in
the amount of $486,542 (per calendar year) in support of the HIV Prevention Program on
February 23, 2012 for the period January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013.

BACKGROUND

This Subgrant provides funding for personnel, travel and training, operating supplies,
professional services, educational supplies, advertising , lab/outpatient, non-capital
equipment, and other expenses, including funding specifically for community outreach,
planning meetings and program participation via the use of incentives/enablers (including
but not limited to, gift cards/gift certificates, transportation and food vouchers,
educational outreach items, nutritious food and beverage, behavioral reinforcers, etc.).

The subgrant has been adjusted to reduce funding from $486,542 per calendar year to
$460,145 per calendar year and to extend the contract one additional year.

FISCAL IMPACT

Based on available funding, the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services,
Health Division reduced the CY13 award from $486,542 to $460,145. The funding
reduction has been addressed by the reduction of a 1.0 FTE Health Educator IT (vacant) to
a 0.49 FTE Health Educator II (intermittent). In addition, indirect in the amount of 8.8%
of personnel has been included.

This is a calendar year grant and sufficient budget authority exists through June 30, 2013.
As such, no budget amendment is necessary.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve Subgrant Amendment #1
from the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Health Division, Bureau of
Child, Family and Community Wellness for the period January 1, 2012 through
December 31, 2014, with funding of $460,145 per calendar year (reduced from CY12
funding of $486,542), approve the reduction of PC#70002278, Health Educator IT
(vacant) from 1.0FTE to 0.49 FTE, in support of the HIV Prevention Grant Program, IO
10013; and authorize the Chairman of the Board to sign.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Subgrant Amendment #1 from the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services,
Health Division, Bureau of Child, Family and Community Wellness for the period
January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2014, with funding of $460,145 per calendar year
(reduced from CY12 funding of $486,542), approve the reduction of PC#70002278,
Health Educator II (vacant) from 1.0FTE to 0.49 FTE, in support of the HIV Prevention
Grant Program, IO 10013; and authorize the Chairman of the Board to sign.




HD Amendment#:  12132-1
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services
HEALTH DIVISION HD Contract #: 12132
(hereinafter referred to as the DIVISION) Budget Account #: 3215
: Category #: 15
GL# 8516
_ , SUBGRANT AMENDMENT #1 :
Program Name: ' Subgrantee Name:
HIV Prevention Program Washoe County Health District
Bureau of Child; Family & Community Wellness Attn: Eileen Stickney
Nevada State Health Division
Address: Address:
4150 Technology Way, Suite #106, =~ » P. 0. Box 11130 _ _
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 | J/W "~ Reno, NV 89520-0027

Januarr-t-2042— December 31 2013
Amended Subgrant Period: Sl ‘%@W« cag

January1;-2042 — December 31 201 4

Original Subgrant Period: #$&tS  Jo. 1 e Subgrantee EIN#: 88-60000138
Subgrantee Vendor#: T40283400Q

Dun & Bradstreet #. 73786998

Source of Funds: % of Funds: CFDA#:
1. Centers for Disease Control and 100% 93.940
Prevention (CDC)

Federal Grant #:

5U62PS003654-02

Amendment #1: The purpose of this amendment is to redistribute funding within existing budget
categories and add an “Indirect” line item, at an Indirect Cost Rate of 8.8 percent of total Personnel
costs, for a total overall budget reduction of $26,397. The existing scope of work will remain the same.

The subgrant period has also been reVIsed to add an additional year. Total reimbursement will not

exceed $460,145 per year.

Budget From To
Categories L

Personnel $365,509 | $324,074
Travel $4549 | $4,549
Operating $5410 |  <0> $5,410
Supplies $24,605| $24,605
Contractual <0> | - <0>
Other $86,469 ‘ $72,988
Indirect <0>| = $2851 $28,519
Total Cost $486,542 |  ($26,397) $460,145

By signing this Amendment, the Authorized Subgrantee Official or their designee, Program Manager, Bureau
Chief, and Health Division Administrator acknowledge the above as the new standard of practice for the above
referenced Subgrant. Further, the undersigned understand this amendment does not alter, in any substantial
way, the non-referenced contents of the Original Subgrant Award and all of its Attachments.

Signature

Authorized Sub-grantee Official
Title

Date

Lyell S. Collins, MBA |
Program Manager '@ A \«NVL S ( }Ux/% .

S>O[L)

r""%
Qjﬁg,%

Richard Whitley, MS o
Administrator, Health Divisio®?)

e (VA dn 0=

%\"‘ % \\\\ ’&Q
N 5

) Q} HAWINWORD\SUBGRANT AMENDMENTS\2013\WCHD Subgrant Amendment #1 01.28.13.docm
NSHD Template: Updated 4-13-10



DBOH Agenda Item No

Washoe County Health District '

PublicHealth
STAFF REPORT
BOARD MEETING DATE: March 28,2013
DATE: March 15, 2013
TO: District Board of Health
FROM: Lori Cooke, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District %

775-325-8068, Icooke@washoecounty.us
A%
THROUGH: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer A —

SUBJECT: Proposed approval of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department
of Health and Human Services, Health Division for the period January 1, 2013
through December 31, 2013 in the amount of $80,751 in support of the Tuberculosis
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Grant Program, IN 10016; and
authorize the Chairman of the Board to sign.

SUMMARY

The Washoe County Health District (District) received a Notice of Subgrant Award from
the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Health Division in the amount of
$80,751, for the period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 in support of the
Tuberculosis CDC Grant Program. A copy of the Notice of Subgrant Award is attached.

District Board of Health strategic priority: Protect population from health problems
and health hazards.

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item: Sustainability, including financial
sustainability, sustaining our services and infrastructure, and sustainability of our natural
resources.

Approval of the Subgrant Award also supports the District’s Community & Clinical
Health Services Division Tuberculosis Prevention Program’s mission to prevent and
control Tuberculosis in order to reduce morbidity, disability and premature death due to
Tuberculosis by reducing the number of Tuberculosis cases per 100,000 in Washoe
County.

PREVIOUS ACTION

The Washoe County District Board of Health approved a Notice of Subgrant Award in
the amount of $71,064 for period January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013 on January
26, 2012.

AGENDA ITEM #

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279

www.washoecounty.us/health
WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER



District Board of Health
Page 2 of 2

BACKGROUND

This Subgrant provides funding for personnel (.47 of a 1.0 FTE - PHN II), required CDC
travel, isolation housing, and incentives/enablers. Incentives/enablers are intended to
increase compliance for completion of Tuberculosis treatment and include, but are not
limited to, transportation and food vouchers, telephone calling cards, personal items,
behavioral reinforcers, etc. Indirect in the amount of 10% of personnel has been
included.

FISCAL IMPACT

This is a calendar year grant and sufficient budget authority exists through June 30, 2013.
As such, no budget amendment is necessary.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve the Subgrant Award from the
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Health Division for the period
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 in the amount of $80,751 in support of the
Tuberculosis Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Grant Program, IN
10016; and authorize the Chairman of the Board to sign.

POSSIBLE MOTION'

Move to approve the Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of Health and Human
Services, Health Division for the period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 in
the amount of $80,751 in support of the Tuberculosis Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC) Grant Program, IN 10016; and authorize the Chairman of the Board to
sign.




Department of Health and Human Services

HEALTH DIVISION
(hereinafter referred to as the DIVISION) Budget Account #: 3219
' Category #: 14
GL #: 8516
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD '
Program Name: Subgrantee Name:
TB Control and Elimination Program,
Office of Epidemiology Washoe County Health District (WCHD)
Bureau of Health Statistics, Planning, Epidemiology,
and Response (HSPER)
Nevada State Health Division
Address: Address:
4150 Technology Way, Suite 311 P. 0. Box 11130
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 Reno, NV_89520
- Subgrant Period: Subgrantee’s
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 EIN#: 88-6000138

Vendor#; T40283400Q
Dun & Bradstreet#: 073786998

Reason for Award: To fund activities for the prevention and control of M. tuberculosis in Washoe County.
County(ies) to be served: () Statewide (v) Specmc county or counties: Washoe County

Egroved Budget Cateqgories:

| 1. Personnel $ 65,477
2. Travel $ 6,080
3. Operating , $ 0
4. Equipment $ o
5. Contractual/Consultant $ 0
6. Training $ 0
7. Other $ 2,646
8. Indirect $ 6,548

Total Cost $ 80,751

Disbursement of funds will be as follows:

Payment will be made upon receipt and acceptance of an invoice and supporting documentation specifically
requesting reimbursement for actual expenditures specific to this subgrant. Total reimbursement will not
exceed $ 80,751 .00 during the subgrant period.

Source of Funds: % of Funds: CFDA#: Federal Grant i#:
1. Centers for Disease Control& ~  ~ 100% 93.116 5U52PS907855-22

Prevention (CDC)
Terms and Conditions
In accepting these grant funds, it is understood that:

1. Expenditures must comply with appropriate state and/or federal regulations.

2. This award is subject to the availability of appropriate funds.

3. Recipient of these funds agrees to stlpulatlons listed in Sections A, B, and C of this subgrant award.
Chairman, Washoe County Signature Date
District Board of Health, WCHD
Patricia (Townsend) Martin,

TB Controller

Chad Westom
Bureau Chief

Richard Whitley, MS
Administrator, Health Division

D e
{\( A \\\\ ‘/iﬁ, o 15 Page 10f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11

7///5,@3
A




HEALTH DIVISION
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD
SECTION A
Assurances

As a condition of receiving subgranted funds from the Nevada State Health Division, the Subgrantee agrees to
the following conditions:

1.

Subgrantee agrees grant funds may not be used for other than the awarded purpose. In the event
Subgrantee expenditures do not comply with this condition, that portion not in compliance must be
refunded to the Health Division.

Subgrantee agrees to submit reimbursement requests for only expenditures approved in the spending
plan. Any additional expenditures beyond what is allowable based on approved categorical budget
amounts, without prior written approval by the Health Division, may result in denial of reimbursement.

Approval of subgrant budget by the Health Division constitutes. prior approval for the expenditure of funds
for specified purposes included in this budget. Unless otherwise stated in the Scope of Work the transfer
of funds between budgeted categories without written prior approval from the Health Division is not allowed
under the terms of this subgrant. Requests to revise approved budgeted amounts must be made in writing
and provide sufficient narrative detail to determine justification.

Recipients of subgrants are required to maintain subgrant accounting records, identifiable by subgrant
number. Such records shall be maintained in accordance with the following:

a. Records may be destroyed not less than three years (unless otherwise stipulated) after the final
report has been submitted if written approval has been requested and received from the
Administrative Services Officer of the Health Division. Records may be destroyed by the
Subgrantee five (5) calendar years after the final financial and narrative reports have been
submitted to the Health Division.

b. In all cases an overriding requirement exists to retain records until resolution of any audit
questions relating to individual subgrants.

Subgrant accounting records are considered to be all records relating to the expenditure and
reimbursement of funds awarded under this Subgrant Award. Records required for retention include all
accounting records and related original and supporting documents that substantiate costs charged to the

subgrant activity.

Subgrantee agrees to disclose any existing or potential conflicts of interest relative to the performance of
services resulting from this subgrant award. The Health Division reserves the right to disqualify any
grantee on the grounds of actual or apparent conflict of interest. Any attempt to intentionally or
unintentionally conceal or obfuscate a conflict of interest will automatically result in the disqualification of

funding.

Subgrantee agrees to comply with the requirements of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, P.L. 93-112, as amended, and any relevant program-specific regulations, and
shall not discriminate against any employee or offeror for employment because of race, national origin,
creed, color, sex, religion, age, disability or handicap condition (including AIDS and AIDS-related

conditions).

Subgrantee agrees to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-136), 42 U.S.C.
12101, as amended, and regulations adopted thereunder contained in 28 CFR 26.101-36.999 inclusive,

and any relevant program-specific regulations.

Subgrantee agrees to comply with the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act of 1996, 45 C.F.R. 160, 162 and 164, as amended. If the subgrant award includes functions or

Page 20f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



10.

11.

12.

activities that involve the use or disclosure of Protected Health Information, the Subgrantee agrees to enter
into a Business Associate Agreement with the Health Division, as required by 45 C.F.R 164.504 (e).

Subgrantee certifies, by signing this subgrant, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction by any federal department or agency. This certification is made pursuant to regulations
implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 28 C.F.R. pt. 67 § 67.510, as
published as pt. VIl of May 26, 1988, Federal Register (pp.19150-19211). This provision shall be required
of every Subgrantee receiving any payment in whole or in part from federal funds.

Subgrantee agrees, whether expressly prohibited by federal, state, or local law, or otherwise, that no
funding associated with this subgrant will be used for any purpose associated with or related to lobbying or
influencing or attempting to lobby or influence for any purpose the following:
a. any federal, state, county or local agency, legislature, commission, council, or board;
b. any federal, state, county or local legislator, commission member, council member, board
member, or other elected official; or
c. any officer or employee of any federal, state, county or local agency, legislature, commission,

council, or board.

Health Division subgrants are subject to inspection and audit by representatives of the Health Division,
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, the State Department of Administration, the Audit
Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau or other appropriate state or federal agencies to

a. verify financial transactions and determine whether funds were used in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and procedures;

b. ascertain whether policies, plans and procedures are being followed;

c. provide management with objective and systematic appraisals of financial and administrative
controls, including information as to whether operations are carried out effectively, efficiently
and economically; and

d. determine reliability of financial aspects of the conduct of the prolect

Any audit of Subgrantee's expenditures will be performed in accordance with Generally Accepted
Government Auditing Standards to determine there is proper accounting for and use of subgrant funds. It
is the policy of the Health Division (as well as a federal requirement as specified in the Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 [Revised June 27", 2003]) that each grantee annually
expending $500,000 or more in federal funds have an annual audit prepared by an independent auditor in
accordance with the terms and requirements of the appropriate circular. A COPY OF THE FINAL AUDIT
REPORT MUST BE SENT TO THE NEVADA STATE HEALTH DIVISION, ATTN: ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES OFFICER IV, 4150 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 300, CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706-
2009, within nine (9) months of the close of the Subgrantee’s fiscal year. To ensure this requirement is
met Section D of this subgrant must be filled out and signed.

Page 30f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



HEALTH DIVISION
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD
SECTION B
Description of services, scope of work, deliverables and reimbursement

These funds will be utilized in accordance with the mission of the Nevada State Health Division Tuberculosis
Prevention and' Elimination Program which is to promote and protect the well-being of Nevadans and visitors
to our state by preventing, controlling, tracking and ultimately eliminating tuberculosis (TB) in the citizens of
Nevada by providing services toward the control and elimination of tuberculosis, including rapid identification
and diagnosis of the disease, timely contact investigation and completion of treatment.

Washoe County Health District (WCHD) hereinafter referred to as Subgrantee, agrees to
provide the following services and reports according to the identified timeframes:

e The subgrantee will: coordinate case management for active TB cases, suspected cases of
tuberculosis and high-risk contacts including: reporting; investigating; assurance of patient adherence
to medication regimen; legal referral for non-adherence; and home visits for assessment, provision of
direct observed therapy (DOT) and monitoring of treatment regimes.

e The subgrantee will: conduct evaluation and treatment if applicable of suspect cases of tuberculosis
and Class B Immigrants, and will initiate timely response to Electronic Disease Notification (EDN) alerts
regarding immigrants and refugees.

e The subgrantee will: provide incentives and/or enablers as defined as, but not limited to: transportation,
gasoline or food vouchers, personal items, telephone calling cards, housing and utility assistance as
well as patient centered behavioral reinforcement items. The incentives and/or enablers are provided
with the intent that they help patients (for both TB disease and latent tuberculosis infection) and
contacts more readily complete appropriate testing, therapy and/or adhere to treatment.

e The subgrantee will: conduct TB surveillance for epidemiological trends.

e The subgrantee will: participate in the TB Program Evaluation and Human Resource Development
activities as outlined by the Health Division.

o The subgrantee will: provide TB outreach and education to the community and health care providers

~ when requested; assist detention centers, clinics, hospitals, homeless shelters and group home staff to

increase screening and recognition of symptoms of TB; and assist with TB evaluation in treatment and
residential care centers to ensure compliance with licensure regulations upon request.

e The subgrantee will: maintain case files, contact investigation and other records that are necessary for
the planning, implementation and evaluation of the program; upon request to allow the Health Division
personnel to observe clinics, to communicate directly with the staff, to have access to all information
and records pertinent to the Tuberculosis Control and Elimination Program and to conduct an annual

program review.

e Policies and protocols for TB care and investigation, infection control and OSHA requirements will
follow CDC guidelines and be revised as needed. A Report of Verified Case of Tuberculosis (RVCT)
will be submitted for all Mycobactetium Tuberculosis Complex (MTBC) confirmed cases identified in
Clark County. An Aggregate Report for Tuberculosis Program Evaluation (ARPE) will be submitted no
later than August 1% A Quarterly Report will be submitted 45 days after the end of each quarter.
Deadlines are as follows: May 15, August 15, November 15 and February 15.

e The RVCT form must be submitted via the National Epidemiology Data Surveillance System (NEDSS)
Base System (NBS) or by hard copy within 45 days of diagnosis to NSHD TB Program, Attn: TB
Controller, 3811 W. Charleston Blvd. Suite 205, Las Vegas, NV 89102. The ARPE and Quarterly
Reports are to be submitted electronically to ptownsend@health.nv.dov or other desighated email. In

Page 40f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



the event the Subgrantee is unable to provide an electronic version a hardcopy version may be
accepted with prior verbal authorization. Written copies of the request for reimbursement are required.

(Note: brief reports should be requested / submitted with each request for relmbursement).

The subgrantee will: identify the source of funding on all printed documents purchased or produced
within the scope of this subgrant, using a statement similar to: “This publication (journal, article, etc.)
was supported by the Nevada State Health Division through Grant Number 5U52PS907855-22 from
the Genters for Disease Control and Prevention. Its contents are solely the responsibility of the authors
and do not necessarlly represent the official views of the Nevada State Health Division or the Centers

for Disease Control and Prevention.”

Any activities performed under this subgrant shall acknowledge the funding was provided through the
State Health Division by Grant Number 5U52PS907855-22 from the Centers for Disease Control and

Preventlon

(continued on next page)

Page 50f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



Subgrantee agrees to adhere to the following budget:

1. Personnel $ 65477
$ 65,477 TB Coordinator 58% of 1.0 FTE. This amount reflects
percent annual salary including fringe benefits;
Hourly intermittent PHN and RN with no fringe
2. Travel $ 6,080

$ 6,080 Travel will be used for subgrantee staff to attend
Tuberculosis related meetings; seminars, workshops
and trainings. These funds may also be used to
provide transportation for medical staff to access
patients or contacts to patients. Travel reimbursement
will be made in accordance with State Administrative
Manual (SAM) section. 0200 and 0320 available at:
hitp://nevadabudget.ora/index.php/publications/sam

3. Operating $0
4. Equipment $0

5. Contractual $0

Consultant
6. Training $0
7. Other $ 2,646
$ 2,646 To include but not limited to:

1) Laboratory and Radiograph testing

2) TB screening .and health assessments

3) Incentives and Enablers (e.g. transportation and
food vouchers, telephone calling cards,
personal items, behavioral reinforcers) funds
are to be used with contacts and/or TB
patients to bring them in for treatment and/or
testing.

4) Patient Housing funds will be used to provide
housing support for homeless or at-risk for
being homeless B patients and
active/suspect TB clients during initial
treatment and/or evaluation phase or until they
are no longer contagious.

5) Promotional and educational materials.

6) MD Consultants and other professional
services (e.g. Pharmacy, transcribing, etc.).

7) Operating supplies: office rent/space, postage,
telephone, misc. office supplies, licenses

8. Indirect $ 6,548
$ 6,548 10% of total personnel costs
* Total Cost $ 80,751

e Subgrantee may make categorical funding adjustments up to ten percent (10%) of the total subgrant
amount without amending the agreement, so long as the adjustment is reasonable to support the
activities described within the Scope of Work and the adjustment does not alter the Scope of Work.

Page 60f17 HD Tempilate: Updated 03-4-11



| Subgrantee must notify or obtain prior authorization (email notification is acceptable) for any funding
adjustment(s).

o Equipment purchased with these funds belongs to the federal program from which this funding was
appropriated and shall be returned to the program upon termination of this agreement.

e Travel expenses, per diem, and other related expenses must conform to the procedures and rates
allowed for State officers and employees. It is the Policy of the Board of Examiners to restrict
contractors/Subgrantees to the same rates and procedures allowed State Employees. The State of
Nevada reimburses at rates comparable to the rates established by the US General Services
Administration, with some exceptions (State Administrative Manual 0200.0 and 0320.0).

Subgrantee agrees to request reimbursement according to the schedule specified below for the actual
expenses incurred related to the Scope of Work during the subgrant period.

e Reimbursement may be requested monthly or quarterly for expenses incurred in the lmplementatlon
- of the Scope of Work;

e Reimbursement will not exceed $80,751.00 for the period of the subgrant. Full reimbursement is
contingent on funding the CDC provides to Nevada which may not be fully realized until the final
quarter_of 2013

» Requests for Reimbursement will be accompanied by supporting documentation, including a line item
description of expenses incurred; and

e Additional expenditure detail will be provided upon request from the Division.

Additionally, the Subgrantee agrees to provide:

o A complete financial accounting of all expenditures to the Health Division within 30 days of the CLOSE
OF THE SUBGRANT PERIOD. Any un-obligated funds shall be returned to the Health Division at that
time, or if not already requested, shall be deducted from the final award.

The Nevada State Health Division agrees to:

0 00O00O

(Ol

Provide technical assistance, upon request from the subgrantee;

Provide assistance for the implementation of program activities;

Coordinate with other state agencies as needed; <

Tabulate and interpret required data and program evaluation;

Seek Epidemiology Aide and other assistance from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC) if needed to prevent or control a TB outbreak in Washoe County;

Forward any opportunities for education related to TB disease;

Forward any changes in the recommendations for the care of TB cases or latent TB infection
from the CDC;

Serve as the authority responsible for ensuring necessary reports and documents are submitted
to the CDC, per reporting deadlines;

Forward reports to appropriate facility, i.e. CDC, interstate agencies, Dept. of Quarantine, etc.

e The Health Division reserves the right to hold reimbursement under this subgrant until any delinquent
forms, reports, and expenditure documentation are submitted to and accepted by the Health Division.

Page 70f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



Both parties agree:

Site-visit monitoring and/or audits may be conducted by the Nevada State Health Division or the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention or related staff of the Subgrantee’s TB program to evaluate progress and
compliance with the activities outlined in the Scope of Work. Program and fiscal audits shall occur as needed.

The Subgrantee will, in the performance of the Scope of Work specified in this subgrant, perform functions
and/or activities that involve the use and/or disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI); therefore, the
Subgrantee is considered a Business Associate of the Health Division.
e Both parties agree that no work related to this subgrant may begin until a Business Associate
Agreement has been signed and placed on file with the Nevada State Health Division’s Administration
Office. To satisfy this requirement, for this agreement, fill out and sign Section E.

¢ This subgrant may be extended up to a maximum term of four years upon agreement of both parties
. and if funding is available.

All reports of expenditures and requests for reimbursement processed by the Health Division are SUBJECT
TO AUDIT.

This subgrant agreement may be TERMINATED by either party prior to the date set forth on the Notice of
Subgrant Award, provided the termination shall not be effective until 30 days after a party has served written
notice upon the other party. This agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or unilaterally
by either party without cause. The parties expressly agree that this Agreement shall be terminated immediately if
for any reason the Health Division, state, and/or federal funding ability to satisfy this Agreement is withdrawn,

limited, or impaired.

Page 8of17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



HEALTH DIVISION
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD
SECTION C
Financial Reporting Requirements

A Request for Reimbursement is due on a monthly or quarterly basis, based on the terms of the
subgrant agreement, no later than the 15" of the month.

Reimbursement is based on actual expenditures incurred during the period being reported.

Payment will not be processed without all reporting being current.

Reimbursement may only be claimed for expenditures approved within the Notice of Subgrant Award.
PLEASE REPORT IN WHOLE DOLLARS

¢e9¢ ¢

Provide the following information on the top portion of the form: Subgrantee name and address where the
check is to be sent, Health Division (subgrant) number, Bureau program number, draw number, employer 1.D.
number (EIN) and Vendor number.

An explanation of the form is provided below.

A. Approved Budget: List the approved budget amounts in this column by category.

B. Total Prior Requests: List the total expenditures for all previous reimbursement periods in this column,
for each category, by entering the numbers found on Lines 1-8, Column D on the previous Request for
Reimbursement/Advance Form. If this is the first request for the subgrant period, the amount in this column
equals zero.

C. Current Request: List the current expenditures requested at this time for reimbursement in this column, for
each category.

D. Year to Date Total: Add Column B and Column C for each category.
E. Budget Balance: Subtract Column D from Column A for each category.

F. Percent Expended: Divide Column D by Column A for each category and total. Monitor this column; it will
help to determine iffwhen an amendment is necessary. Amendments MUST be compieted (including all
approving signatures) 30 days prior to the end of the subgrant period.

* An Expenditure Report/Backup that summarizes, by expenditure GL, the amounts being claimed in
column ‘C’ is required.

Page 90f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



Page 100f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



HEALTH DIVISION

NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD
SECTION D

NEVADA STATE HEALTH DIVISION
AUDIT INFORMATION REQUEST

1. Non-Federal entities that expend $500,000.00 or more in total Federal Awards are required to
have a single or program-specific audit conducted for that year, in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133. A COPY OF THE FINAL AUDIT REPORT MUST BE SENT TO THE NEVADA
STATE HEALTH DIVISION, ATTN: ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES OFFICER IV, 4150
TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 300, CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706-2009, within nine (9)

months of the close of your fiscal year.

2. Did your organization expend $500,000.00 or more in all Federal Awards
during your most recent fiscal year? YES NO

3. When does your fiscal year end?

4. How often is your organization audited?

5. When was your last audit performed?

6. What time period did it cover?

7. Which accounting firm conducted the audit?

SIGNATURE | TITLE DATE

Page 110f17 * HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



SECTION E

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE ADDENDUM

BETWEEN

Nevada State Health Division
Hereinafter referred to as the “Covered Entity”

and
Washoe County Health District (WCHD)
Hereinafter referred to as the “Business Associate”.

PURPOSE. In order to comply with the requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH Act, this Addendum is hereby
added and made part of the Contract between the Covered Entity and the Business Associate. This Addendum
establishes the obligations of the Business Associate and the Covered Entity as well as the permitted uses and disclosures
by the Business Associate of protected health information it may possess by reason of the Contract. The Covered Entity
and the Business Associate shall protect the privacy and provide for the security of protected health information disclosed
to the Business Associate pursuant to the Contract and in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 (“HIPAA”), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical
Health Act, Public Law 111-5 (“the HITECH Act”), and regulation promulgated there under by the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services (the “HIPAA Regulations”) and other applicable laws.

WHEREAS, the Business Associate will provide certain services to the Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such
arrangement, the Business Associate is considered a business associate of the Covered Entity as defined in HIPAA, the
HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and Security Rule; and

WHEREAS, Business Associate may have access to and/or receive from the Covered Entity certain protected
health information, in fulfilling its responsibilities under such arrangement; and

WHEREAS, the HIPAA Regulations, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule require the Covered
Entity to enter into a contract containing specific requirements of the Business Associate prior to the disclosure of
protected health information, as set forth in, but not limited to, 45 CFR Parts 160 & 164 and Public Law 111-5.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations below and the exchange of information pursuant to this
Addendum, and to protect the interests of both Parties, the Parties agree to all provisions of this Addendum.

I DEFINITIONS. The following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in this Section. Other capitalized
terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the context in which they first appear.

1. Breach means the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of protected health information which
compromises the security or privacy of the protected health information. The full definition of breach can be
found in 42 USC 17921 and 45 CFR 164.402.

2. Business Associate shall mean the name of the organization or entity listed above and shall have the
meaning given to the term under the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act. For full definition refer to
45 CFR 160.103. '

3. CFR stands for the Code of Federal Regulations.

4. Contract shall refer to this Addendum and that particular Contract to which this Addendum is made a part.

5. Covered Entity shall mean the name of the Division listed above and shall have the meaning given to such
term under the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule, including, but not limited to 45 CFR 160.103.

6. Designated Record Set means a group of records that includes protected health information and is
maintained by or for a covered entity or the Business Associate that includes, but is not limited to, medical,
billing, enrollment, payment, claims adjudication, and case or medical management records. Refer to 45 CFR
164.501 for the complete definition.

7. Disclosure means the release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging in any other manner of
information outside the entity holding the information as defined in 45 CFR 160.103.

Page 120f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



10.
11.

12.

13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

i8.

19.

20.

Electronic Protected Health Information means individually identifiable health information transmitted by
electronic media or maintained in electronic media as set forth under 45 CFR 160.103. _
Electronic Health Record means an electronic record of health-related information on an individual that is
created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized health care clinicians and staff. Refer to 42 USC
17921.

Health Care Operations shall have the meaning given to the term under the Privacy Rule at 45 CFR 164.501.
Individual means the person who is the subject of protected health information and is defined in 45 CFR
160.103. "

individually Identifiable Health Information means health information, in any form or medium, “including
demographic information collected from an individual, that is created or received by a covered entity or a
business associate of the covered entity and relates to the past, present, or future care of the individual.
Individually identifiable health information is information that identifies the individual. directly or there is a
reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual. Refer to 45 CFR 160.103.
Parties shall mean the Business Associate and the Covered Entity. '

Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A, D
and E.

Protected Health Information means individually identifiable health information transmitted by electronic
media, maintained in electronic media, or transmitted or maintained in any other form or medium. Refer to 45
CFR 160.103 for the complete definition. ’

Required by Law means a mandate contained in law that compels an entity to make a use or disclosure of
protected health information and that is enforceable in a court of law. This includes, but is not limited to: court
orders and court-ordered warrants; subpoenas, or summons issued by a court; and statues or regulations that
require the provision of information if payment is sought under a government program providing public
benefits. For the complete definition refer to 45 CFR 164.103.

Secretary shall mean the Secretary of the federal Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) or the
Secretary’s designee.

Security Rule shall mean the HIPAA regulation that is codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 Subparis A and
C.

Unsecured Protected Health Information means protected health information that is not rendered unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals through the use of a technology or methodology
specified by the Secretary in the guidance issued in Public Law 111-5. Refer to 42 USC 17932 and 45 CFR
164.402.

USC stands for the United States Code.

OBLIGATIONS OF THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE,

1.

Access to Protected Health Information. The Business Associate will provide, as directed by the Covered
Entity, an individual or the Covered Entity-access to inspect or obtain a copy of protected health information
about the Individual that is maintained in a designated record set by the Business Associate or, its agents or
subcontractors, in order to meet the requirements of the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to 45 CFR
164.524 and 164.504(e) (2) (i) (E). If the Business Associate maintains an electronic health record, the
Business Associate or, its agents or subcontractors shall provide such information in electronic format to
enable the Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under the HITECH Act, including, but not limited to 42 USC
17935.

Access to Records. The Business Associate shall make its internal practices, books and records relating to
the use and disclosure of protected health information available to the Covered Entity and to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Business Associate’s compliance with the Privacy and Security Rule in accordance -
with 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(ii}(H).

Accounting of Disclosures. Promptly, upon request by the Covered Entity or individual for an accounting of
disclosures, the Business Associate and its agents or subcontractors shall make available to the Covered
Entity or the individual information required to provide an accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 CFR
164.528, and the HITECH Act, including, but not limited to 42 USC 17935. The accounting of disclosures,
whether electronic or other media, must include the requirements as outlined under 45 CFR 164.528(b).
Agents and Subcontractors. The Business Associate must ensure all agents and subcontractors to whom it
provides protected health information agree in writing to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the
Business Associate with respect to all protected health information accessed, maintained, created, retained,
modified, recorded, stored, destroyed, or otherwise held, transmitted, used or disclosed by the agent or
subcontractor. The Business Associate must implement and maintain sanctions against agents and
subcontractors that violate such restrictions and conditions and shall mitigate the effects of any such violation
as outlined under 45 CFR 164.530(f) and 164.530(e)(1). .

Amendment of Protected Health Information. The Business Associate will make available protected health
information for amendment and incorporate any amendments in the designated record set maintained by the

Page 130f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Business Associate or, its agents or subcontractors, as directed by the Covered Entity or an individual, in order
to meet the requirements of the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 CFR 164.526.

Audits, Investigations, and Enforcement. The Business Associate must notify the Covered Entity
immediately upon learning the Business Associate has become the subject of an audit, compliance review, or
complaint investigation by the Office of Civil Rights or any other federal or state oversight agency. The
Business Associate shall provide the Covered Entity with a copy of any protected health information that the
Business Associate provides to the Secretary or other federal or state oversight agency concurrently with
providing such information to the Secretary or other federal or state oversight agency. The Business
Associate and individuals associated with the Business Associate are solely responsible for all civil and
criminal penalties assessed as a result of an audit, breach, or violation of HIPAA or HITECH laws or
regulations. Reference 42 USC 17937. - '

Breach or Other Improper Access, Use or Disclosure Reporting. The Business Associate must report to
the Covered Entity, in writing, any access, use or disclosure of protected health information not permitted by
the Contract, Addendum or the Privacy and Security Rules. The Covered Entity must be notified immediately
upon discovery or the first day such breach or suspected breach is known to the Business Associate or by
exercising reasonable diligence would have been known by the Business Associate in accordance with 45
CFR 164.410, 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(C) and 164.308(b) and 42 USC 17921. The Business Associate must report
any improper access, use or disclosure of protected health information by: the Business Associate or its
agents or subcontractors. In the event of a breach or suspected breach of protected health information, the
report to the Covered Entity must be in writing and include the following: a brief desctiption of the incident; the
date of the incident; the date the incident was discovered by the Business Associate; a thorough description of
the unsecured protected health information that was involved in the incident; the number of individuals whose
protected health information was involved in the incident; and the steps the Business Associate is taking to
investigate the incident and to protect against further incidents. The Covered Entity will determine if a breach
of unsecured protected health information has occurred and will notify the Business Associate of the
determination. If a breach of unsecured protected health information is determined, the Business Associate
must take prompt corrective action to cure any such deficiencies and mitigate any significant harm that may
have occurred to individual(s) whose information was disclosed inappropriately.

Breach Notification Requirements. If the Covered Entity determines a breach of unsecured protected
health information by the Business Associate has occurred, the Business Associate will be responsible for
notifying the individuals whose unsecured protected health information was breached in accordance with 42
USC 17932 and 45 CFR 164.404 through 164.406. The Business Associate must provide evidence to the
Covered Entity that appropriate notifications to individuals and/or media, when necessary, as specified in 45
CFR 164.404 and 45 CFR 164.406 has occurred. The Business Associate is responsible for all costs
associated with notification to individuals, the media or others as well as costs associated with mitigating
future breaches. The Business Associate must notify the Secretary of all breaches in accordance with 45
CFR 164.408 and must provide the Covered Entity with a copy of all notifications made to the Secretary.
Breach Pattern or Practice by Covered Entity. Pursuant to 42 USC 17934, if the Business Associate
knows of a pattern of activity or practice of the Covered Entity that constitutes a material breach or violation of
the Covered Entity’s obligations under the Contract or Addendum, the Business Associate must immediately
report the problem to the Secretary.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that the Business Associate or its agents or
subcontractors have no ownership rights with respect to the protected health information it accesses,
maintains, creates, retains, modifies, records, stores, destroys, or otherwise holds, transmits, uses or
discloses. :

Litigation or Administrative Proceedings. The Business Associaté shall make itself, any subcontractors,
employees, or agents assisting the Business Associate in the performance of its obligations under the
Contract or Addendum, available to the Covered Entity, at no cost to the Covered Entity, to testify as

witnesses, or otherwise, in the event litigation or administrative proceedings are commenced against the

Covered Entity, its administrators or workforce members upon a claimed violation of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, the HITECH Act, or other laws relating to security and privacy.
Minimum Necessary. The Business Associate and its agents and subcontractors shall request, use and
disclose only the minimum amount of protected health information necessary to accomplish the purpose of the
request, use or disclosure in accordance with 42 USC 17935 and 45 CFR 164.514(d)(3).
Policies and Procedures. The Business Associate must adopt written privacy and security policies and
procedures and documentation standards to meet the requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH Act as
described in 45 CFR 164.316 and 42 USC 17931. ‘
Privacy and Security Officer(s). The Business Associate must appoint Privacy and Security Officer(s)
whose responsibilities shall include: monitoring the Privacy and Security compliance of the Business
Associate; development and implementation of the Business Associate’s HIPAA Privacy and Security policies
and procedures; establishment of Privacy and Security training programs; and development and
implementation of an incident risk assessment and response plan in the event the Business Associate
sustains a breach or suspected breach of protected health information.

Page 140f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



15. Safeguards. The Business Associate must implement safeguards as necessary to.protect the confidentiality,

16.

17.

integrity, and availability of the protected health information the Business Associate accesses, maintains,
creates, retains, modifies, records, stores, destroys, or otherwise holds, transmits, uses or discloses on behalf
of the Covered Entity. Safeguards must include administrative safeguards (e.g., risk analysis and designation
of security official), physical safeguards (e.g., facility access controls and workstation security), and technical
safeguards (e.g., access controls and audit controls) to the confidentiality, integrity and availability of the
protected health information, in accordance with 45 CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312, 164.316 and
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(B). Sections 164.308, 164.310 and 164.312 of the CFR apply to the Business Associate of
the Covered Entity in the same manner that such sections apply to the Covered Entity. Technical safeguards
must meet the standards set forth by the guidelines of the National Institute of Standards and Technology
(NIST). The Business Associate agrees to only use, or disclose protected health information as provided for
by the Contract and Addendum and to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to
the Business Associate, of a use or disclosure, in violation of the requirements of this Addendum as outlined
under 45 CFR 164.530(e)(2)(f).

Training. The Business Associate must train all members of its workforce on the policies and procedures
associated with safeguarding protected health information. This includes, at a minimum, training that covers
the technical, physical and administrative safeguards needed to prevent inappropriate uses or disclosures of
protected health information; training to prevent any intentional or unintentional use or disclosure that is a
violation of HIPAA regulations -at 45 CFR 160 and 164 and Public Law 111-5; and training that emphasizes the
criminal and civil penatlties related to HIPAA breaches or inappropriate uses or disclosures of protected health
information. Workforce training of new employees must be completed within 30 days of the date of hire and
all employees must be trained at least annually. The Business Associate must maintain written records for a
period of six years. These records must document each employee that received training and the date the
training was provided or received.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information. The Business Associate must not use or further
disclose protected health information other than as permitted or required by the Contract or as required by law.
The Business Associate must not use or further disclose protected health information in a manner that would
violate the requirements of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

PERMITTED AND PROHIBITED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE. The Business
Associate agrees to these general use and disclosure provisions:

1.

2.

Permitted Uses and Disclosures:

a. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, the Business Associate may use or disclose protected
health information to perform functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of, the Covered Entity as
specified in the Contract, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the HIPAA Privacy and
Security Rule or the HITECH Act, if done by the Covered Entlty in accordance with 45 CFR 164.504(e) (2)
(i) and 42 USC 17935 and 17936.

b. Except as otherwise limited by this Addendum, the Business Associate may use or disclose protected
health information received by the Business Associate in its capacity as a Business Associate of the
Covered Entity, as necessary, for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate,
to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate, as required by law or for data aggregation
purposes in accordance with 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(A), 164.504(e)(4)(i)(A), and 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B).

c. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, if the Business Associate discloses protected health
information to a third party, the Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure,
reasonable written assurances from the third party that such protected health information will be held
confidential pursuant to this Addendum and only disclosed as required by law or for the purposes for
which it was disclosed to the third party. The written agreement from the third party must include
requirements to immediately notify the Business Associate of any breaches of confidentiality of protected
health information to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach. Refer to 45 CFR 164.502 and
164.504 and 42 USC 17934.

d. The Business Associate may use or disclose protected health information to report violations of law to
appropriate federal and state authorities, consistent with 45 CFR 164.502(j)(1).

Prohibited Uses and Disclosures:

a. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, the Business Associate shall not disclose protected health
information to a health plan for payment or health care operations purposes if the patient has required this
special restriction, and has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the
protected health information relates in accordance with 42 USC 17935.

b. The Business Associate shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for any protected
health information, as specified. by 42 USC 17935,unless the Covered Entity obtained a valid
authorization, in accordance with 45 CFR 164.508 that includes a specification that protected health
information can be exchanged for remuneration.

Page 150f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



VI.

OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY

1.

The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any limitations in the Covered Entity’s Notice of
Privacy Practices in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect the
Business Associate’s use or disclosure of protected health information.

The Govered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an
individual to use or disclose protected health information, to the extent that such changes may affect the
Business Associate’s use or disclosure of protected health information. '

The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure of protected
health information that the Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522 and 42 USC
17935, to the extent that such restriction may affect the Business Associate’s use or disclosure of protected
health information.

Except in the event of lawful data aggregation or management and administrative activities, the Covered Entity
shall not request the Business Associate to use or disclose protected health information in any manner that
would not be permissible under the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act, if done by the
Covered Entity.

TERM AND TERMINATION

1.

Effect of Termination:

a. Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, upon termination of this Addendum, for any reason,
the Business Associate will return or destroy all protected health information received from the Covered
Entity or created, maintained, or received by the Business Associate on behalf of the Covered Entity that
the Business Associate still maintains in any form and the Business Associate will retain no copies of such
information.

b. If the Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the protected health information is not
feasible, the Business Associate will provide to the Covered Entity notification of the conditions that make
return or destruction infeasible. Upon a mutual determination that return or destruction of protected health
information is infeasible, the Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Addendum to such
protected health information and limit further uses and disclosures of such protected health information to
those purposes that make return or destruction infeasible, for so long as the Business Associate
maintains such protected health information.

c. These termination provisions will apply to protected health information that is in the possession of
subcontractors, agents, or employees of the Business Associate.

Term. The Term of this Addendum shall commence as of the effective date of this Addendum herein and

shall extend beyond the termination of the contract and shall terminate when all the protected health

information provided by the Covered Entity to the Business Associate, or accessed, maintained, created,
retained, modified, recorded, stored, or otherwise held, transmitted, used or disclosed by the Business

Associate on behalf of the Covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to the Covered Entity, or, if it not feasible to

return or destroy the protected health information, protections are extended to such information, in accordance

with the termination.

Termination for Breach of Contract. The Business Associate agrees that the Covered Entity may

immediately terminate the Contract if the Covered Entity determines that the Business Associate has violated

a material part of this Addendum.

MISCELLANEOUS

1.

Amendment. The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Addendum from time to
time for the Covered Entity to comply with all the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, Public Law No. 104-191 and the Health Information Technology for
Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH) of 2009, Public Law No. 111-5.

- Clarification. This Addendum references the requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and

the Security Rule, as well as amendments and/or provisions that are currently in place and any that may be

forthcoming. .

Indemnification. Each party will indemnify and hold harmless the other party to this Addendum from and

against all claims, losses, liabilities, costs and other expenses incurred as a result of, or arising directly or

indirectly out of or in conjunction with:

a. Any misrepresentation, breach of warranty or non-fulfilment of any undertaking on the part of the party
under this Addendum; and

b. Any claims, demands, awards, judgments, actions, and proceedings made by any person or organization
arising out of or in any way connected with the party’s performance under this Addendum.

Interpretation. The provisions of the Addendum shall prevail over any provisions in the Contract that may

conflict or appear inconsistent with any provision in this Addendum. This Addendum and the Contract shall be

Page 160f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



interpreted as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule
and the Security Rule. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Addendum shall be resolved to permit the
Covered Entity and the Business Associate to comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and the

Security Rule.
5. Regulatory Reference. A reference in this Addendum to a section of the HITECH Act, HIPAA, the Privacy

Rule and Security Rule means the sections as in effect or as amended.
6. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Effect of Termlnatlon of this

Addendum shall survive the termination of this Addendum.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Business Associate and the Covered Entity have agreed to the terms of the above written
agreement as of the effective date set forth below. o

COVERED ENTITY BUSINESS ASSOCIATE
Health Division | Washoe County Health District (WCHD)
~ (Enter Division Name) (Enter Business Name)
4150 Technology Way 10 Kirman Ave
(Enter Division Address) (Enter Business Address)
Carson City, NV 89706 Reno, NV. 89502
(Enter Division City, State and Zip Code) ' (Enter Business City, State and Zip Code)
775-684-4200 775-785-4785
(Enter Division Phone Number) (Enter Business Phone Number)
775-684-4211 775-785-4790
(Enter Division Fax Number) (Enter Business Fax Number)
(Authorized Signature) (Authorized Signature)
Richard Whitley
(Print Name) (Print Name)

Administrator
(Title) (Title)

Page 170f17 HD Template: Updated 03-4-11



DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.C.3.

Washoe County Health District @

Public Health

Prevent. Promote. Protect.

STAFF REPORT
BOARD MEETING DATE: March 28,2013

DATE: March 12, 2013
TO:  District Board of Health

FROM: Lori Cooke, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health Districtd ;
775-325-8068, Icooke@washoecounty.us

) ;: o
THROUGH: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer %/
775-328-2417, estickney@washoecounty.us

SUBJECT: Ratification of Interlocal Contract (continuation award) between the
State of Nevada, Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Division of
Environmental Protection and the Washoe County Health District for the period July 1,
2013 through June 30, 2015 in the total amount of $100,000 (not exceeding $50,000 the first
year) in support of the Hazardous Materials Grant Program, IO 10022; and if approved,
authorize the Chairman of the Board to execute.

SUMMARY

The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $5 0,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the
adopted budget.

The Washoe County Health District (District) received an Interlocal Agreement from the State of
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection in the amount of $100,000 for the period July 1,
2013 through June 30, 2015 in support of the on-going Hazardous Material Grant Program, 10
10022. A copy of the Interlocal Contract is attached.

District Board of Health strategic priority: Protect population from health problems and
health hazards.

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item: Sustainability, including financial
sustainability, sustaining our services and infrastructure, and sustainability of our natural
resources.

Approval of Interlocal Contract also supports the Health District Hazardous Material/Waste
Management Program mission to protect public health and safety and the environment by

AGENDA ITEM #

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279

www.washoecounty.us/health
WASHOE COUNTY 1S AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER



District Board of Health
Page 2 of 2

ensuring that regulated or hazardous substances are properly processed, stored, handled,
transported and disposed of in Washoe County.

BACKGROUND

This Interlocal Contract supports the on-going grant program’s participation in the Targeted
Sector Inspection Project. Participation includes site visits, and the conducting of inspections of
business entities that utilize, store, or manufacture hazardous materials,

Reduced funding is reflected in the deletion of participation in the Biennial Report System
Project as well as certain enforcement actions.

PREVIOUS ACTION

The Washoe County District Board of Health approved the Interlocal Contract for the period July
1, 2011 through June 30, 2013 in the total amount of $150,000 on February 24, 2011.

FISCAL IMPACT

Should the Board approve this Interlocal Contract, there is a fiscal impact to the progtam of a
reduction of $25,000 per year, $50,000 total, over previous years’ funding, however, this impact
is planned for and will be included in the FY 14 budget.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health ratify the Interlocal Contract (continuation
award) between the State of Nevada, Department of Conservation and Natural Resources,
Division of Environmental Protection and the Washoe County Health District for the period J uly
1, 2013 through June 30, 2015 in the total amount of $100,000 (not exceeding $50,000 the first
year) in support of the Hazardous Materials Grant Program, 10 10022; and if approved, authorize
the Chairman of the Board to execute.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Move to ratify the Interlocal Contract (continuation award) between the State of Nevada,
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Division of Environmental Protection and
the Washoe County Health District for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015 in the total
amount of $100,000 (not exceeding $50,000 the first year) in support of the Hazardous Materials
Grant Program, 10 10022; and if approved, authorize the Chairman of the Board to execute.




INTRASTATE INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

A Contract between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through lIts

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
: Division of Environmental Protection

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 4001, Carson City, NV 89701-5249
| Phone: (775) 687-4670 Fax (775) 687-5856

and

Washoe County Health District
Hereinafter the “Public Agency”

1001 E. Ninth Street, Reno, NV 89520

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to contract with any one
or more other public agencies to perform ‘any governmental service, activity or undertaking which
any of the public agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services hereinafter set forth are both necessary and in the
best interests of the State of Nevada;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as
follows:

1. REQUIRED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved by
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party.

2. DEFINITIONS. “State” means the State of Nevada and any state agency identified herein, its
officers, employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307.

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2015,
unless sooner terminated by either party as set forth in this Contract.

4. TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated by either party prior to the date set forth in
paragraph (3), provided that a termination shall not be effective until 30 days after a
party has served written notice upon the other party. This Contract may be terminated by mutual
consent of both parties or unilaterally by either party without cause. The parties expressly agree
that this Contract shall be terminated immediately if for any reason State and/or federal funding
ability to satisfy this Contract is withdrawn, limited, or impaired.

5. NOTICE. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this
Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally in
hand, by telephonic facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the address
set forth above.

6. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that the services to be performed shall be
specifically described; this Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending order of
constructive precedence:

ATTACHMENT A: SCOPE OF WORK (consisting of 5 pages)
ATTACHMENT B: ADDITIONAL TERMS & CONDITIONS (consisting of 3 pages)

CETS#: 14097
Contract Control #: DEP 14-002

Page 1 of4



7. CONSIDERATION. Washoe County Health District agrees to provide the services set forth in
paragraph (6) at a cost of $250.00 per completed inspection with the total Contract or
installments payable: quarterly, not exceeding $50,000.00 the first year for a contract total of
$100,000.00. Any intervening end to an annual or biennial appropriation period shall be deemed
an automatic renewal (not changing the overall Contract term) or a termination as the results of
legislative appropriation may require.
8. ASSENT. The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments of
this Contract are also specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective
order of precedence and any limitations expressly provided. :
9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.
a. Books and Records. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under general accepted ac-
counting principles full, true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents as are
necessary to fully disclose to the other party, the State or United States Government, or their
authorized representatives, upon audits or reviews, sufficient information to determine
compliance with any applicable regulations and statutes.
b. Inspection & Audit. Each party agrees that the relevant books, records (written, electronic,
computer related or otherwise), including but not limited to relevant accounting procedures and
practices of the party, financial statements and supporting documentation, and documentation
related to the work product shall be subject, at any reasonable time, to inspection, examination,
review, audit, and copying at any office or location where such records may be found, with or
without notice by the other party, the State Auditor, Employment Security, the Department of
Administration, Budget Division, the Nevada State Attorney General's Office or its Fraud Control
Units, the State Leglslatlve Auditor, and with regard to any federal funding, the relevant federal
agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the Office of the Inspector
General, or any of their authorized representatives. A
c. Period of Retention. All books, records, reports, and statements relevant to this Contract
must be retained by each party for a minimum of three years and for five years if any federal
funds are used in this Contract. The retention period runs from the date of termination of this
Contract. Retention time shall be extended when an audit is scheduled or in progress for a
period reasonably necessary to complete an audit and/or to complete any administrative and
judicial litigation which may ensue.
10. BREACH; REMEDIES. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Contract shall
be deemed a breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and
remedies of the parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or equity, including but not limited to actual damages, and to a prevailing party
reasonable attorneys' fees and costs.
11. LIMITED LIABILITY. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter 41
liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive
damages. To the extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall be limited by
NRS 353.260 and NRS 354.626.
12. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is
prevented from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of
God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the
intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and the
excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after
the intervening cause ceases.
13. INDEMNIFICATION. Neither party waives any right or defense to indemnification that may
exist in law or equity.

CETS#: 14097
Contract Control #: DEP 14-002

Page 2of 4



14. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for the
purposes and to the extent set forth in this Contract, and in respect to performance of services
pursuant to this Contract, each party is and shall be a public agency separate and distinct from the
other party and, subject only to the terms of this Contract, shall have the sole right to supervise,
manage, operate, control, and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this
Contract. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership
or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or principal- -agent, or to otherwise
create any liability for one agency whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and -
obligations of the other agency or any other party.

15. WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular
breach of the Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not ooperate as a
waiver by such- party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach. '

16. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a
court of law or-equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the
nonenforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other pI’OVISIon or provisions of
this Contract unenforceable.

17. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or duties
under this Contract without the prior written consent of the other party.

18. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Unless otherwise provided by law or this
Contract, any reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, blue
prints, plans, maps, data, system designs, computer code (which is intended to be consideration
under this Contract), or any other documents or drawings, prepared or in the course of preparation
by either party in performance of its obligations under this Contract shall be the joint property of
both parties.

19. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to
public inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record
is made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

20. CONFIDENTIALITY. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form,
produced, prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confi-
dential by law or otherwise required by this Contract.

21. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing
this Contract on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and
that the parties are authorized by law to perform the services set forth in paragraph (6).

22. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the
parties hereto shall be governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada.
The parties consent to the jurisdiction of the Nevada district courts for enforcement of this Contract.
23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated attachment(s)
constitute the entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a complete and exclusive
statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that
may have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof. Unless an integrated
attachment to this Contract specifically displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part of this
Contract, general conflicts in language between any such attachment and this Contract shall be
construed consistent with the terms of this Contract. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the
terms of this Contract, no modification or amendment to this Contract shall be binding upon the
parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the respective parties hereto, approved by the
State of Nevada Office of the Attorney General.

CETS#: 14097
Contract Control #: DEP 14-002

Page 3 of 4



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and
intend to be legally bound thereby.

DIVISION PUBLIC AGENCY
By: = _ , : By:
~ Signature Signature
Name: _ Colleen Cripps, Ph,D. : ~Name:__A. M. Smith TTT

District Board 6f Health

Title: ___Administrator Date: Title: _Chairman Date:

DIVISION FISCAL APPROVAL

NGl Ly periing 9 Fiioer

Signature

&ame Ltéa ﬁ/m ”/[q
Titlegudlfém%ﬂ@éf Z Datefz /5/ / 2

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: APPROVED BY BOARD OF EXAMINERS

Deputy Attorney General for Attorney General Signature — Board of Examiners
Date: Date:

CETS#: 14097

Contract Controf #: DEP 14-002
Page 4 of 4



ATTACHMENT A: To the Contract (Control No. DEP14- -002) between the Nevada Department of
Conservation and Natural Resources, Division of Environmental Protectxon (Division) and the Washoe
County Health District (District).

The Division agrees to pay for the services set forth in the following Scope of Work, subject to all other
terms of the contract agreement, as follows:
e $250 for each contract inspection (to include all requxred enforcement ~case file documentation
and RCRAInfo data entry); and
e Total amount expended in SFY 14 may not exceed $SO 000.00. All unexpended SFY14 funds will
carry over to SFY15.

The District’s hazardous waste authority remains limited to the contract inspections described below in
Section 1 of the Scope of Work. No other hazardous waste authority is authorized or implied by this
contract.

SFY 14-15 Scope of Work

The District agrees to perform the following tasks, listed below, in accordance with the policies and
procedures provided by the Division.

The District agrees to appoint a contract coordinator who will assure that all District staff which
perform work on this contract are familiar with the contract Scope of Work and will assure that all the
requirements of the contract are completed in the time frames specified in the contract.

1. Target Sector Business Inspections:

a. Based on generators selected by the Division, the District shall conduct a full Compliance
Evaluation Inspection (CEI) at each business designated by the Division to determine compliance
with the applicable hazardous waste regulations. If a CEIreport checklist is utilized, the checklist
must be reviewed and approved by the Division.

b. If no businesses have been designated by the Division, the District shall identify (by NAICS
number, SIC number or by other means) the target sector businesses within Washoe County. The
District will submit a list of potential target sector businesses to the Division for review ten (10)
working days prior to initiating the inspections.

¢. The District shall refer all alleged violations to the Division by phohe and/or email within five (5)
working days of the inspection.

d. Unless directed otherwise by the Division, the District shall complete the following
documentation for each inspection and maintain the documents in a site case file:
1. The CEI report or site inspection checklist;

Photographs and/or detailed description of all alleged violations;

Copies of all correspondence relating to the inspection;

Copies of each case referral letter to the Division;

Enter Warning Letter documentation into RCRAInfo for all violations;

6. Copies of the Return to Compliance (RTC) documentation;

SAR RN

CETS#: 14097
Contract Control #: DEP 14-002
Page 1 of 5



7. A case Closure Letter (when RTC has been determined by the District),
- 8. Enter RTC documentation into RCRAInfo; and
9. Any other relevant information or documentation.

e. The District shall notify the Division after the list of generators has been inspected. The Division
will prepare and provide the next inspection list based on current EPA/DEP grant commitments within
ten (10) working days after notification by the District that the previous inspection list has been
completed. ‘

‘2. RCRAInfo Data Entry:

a. Unless directed otherwise by the Division, the District shall assign one primary and one alternate
person to enter all inspection, violation, and enforcement action information into the RCRAInfo
database according to the procedures provided by the Division;

b. The primary or the alternate person will verify that all required compliance and enforcement
information is completely and accurately entered by the District into the RCRAInfo database
within three (3) working days after the end of each quarter;

c. The District and the Division will work together to resolve any data quality questions in the
RCRAInfo database.

3. Health, Safety and Personal Protective Equipment Training:

a. The District shall assure that each contract inspector has received OSHA approved 40-hour
Health, Safety and Personal Protective Equipment (HAZWOPER) Training prior to performing
field inspections for this contract and that each contract inspector receives subsequent annual
OSHA approved 8-hour refresher training.

b. The District shall provide each contract inspector with all OSHA required personal protective
equipment.

4. Coordination and Point of Contact with Division Staff: )

a. Upon request, the District shall participate in meetings to coordinate inspections with the
Division.

b. The District shall contact the Supervisor of the Program Development Branch of the Bureau of
‘Waste Management in the Division’s Carson City office for all issues involving:
1. Quarterly reporting;
2. Number of activities to be conducted; and
3. Submitting invoices.

c. The District shall contact the Supervisor of the Waste Management Compliance and Enforcement
Branch in the Division’s Carson City office for all compliance and enforcement issues involving:
1. Inspections;
2. RCRAInfo Data Entry;
3. Health, Safety and Personal Protective Equipment (HAZWOPER) Training; and
4. All CEl inspections and/or CEI enforcement issues.

CETS#: 14097
Contract Control #: DEP 14-002
Page 2 of 5



d. Upon requést, the District shall participate in contract review meetings and oversight inspections
with the Division staff. Program review by the Division may include a meeting with District
representatives to discuss any issues, problems or cases, a case file review, and/or an oversight
inspection. :

5. Quarterly Reporting:

-a. The District shall submit a Quarterly Report to the Division®s Carson City office. The report
must: » :
1. Consist of one original and two copies; -
2. Be submitted within ten (10) calendar days after the end of each quarterly period; and
3. Include a transmittal letter and information on the activities conducted under this contract in
tabular form, as specified on Page 4 of this attachment.

6. Number of Activities to Be Conducted:

a. The District shall conduct at least forty (40) inspections each quarter;

b. The total in Section 6.a. shall not exceed fifty-five (55) events per quarter, without prior approval
of the Division contract coordinator; and

c. Total billable events shall not exceed two-hundred (200) in SFY 14.

7. Billing Invoices:

The Division may withhold payment of a quarterly invoice until all required RCRAInfo data entry for

the previous quarter(s) is completed. Final contract payment will not be approved until all required

RCRAlInfo data entry is completed for work conducted under the terms of this contract. The District

shall:

a. Submit an original billing invoice to the Division’s Carson City office for each contract quarter.
Each billing invoice will consist of a cover letter on the District’s letterhead and will follow the
format described on Page 5 of this attachment;

b. Submit a written explanation for any invoice that is not submitted by the deadline date. The
information must include a reasonable expected submittal date.

c. Work directly with the District’s accounting office staff to resolve any problems or discrepancies
with the quarterly billing documents. The Division will return problem invoices directly to the
District’s contract coordinator.

CETS#: 14097
Contract Control #: DEP 14-002
Page 3 of 5



QUARTERLY REPORT FORMAT

Compliance Monitoring List

Site Name (list all)

'EPA ID NUMBER

Date Inspected

Compliance Montitoring Activities

# Sites Contactéd

# In Compliance

NARRATIVE:

CETS#: 14097
Contract Control #: DEP 14-002

Page 4 of 5



{EXAMPLE INVOICE}

Washoe Cbi;nfy Health District
P.O. Box 11130
Reno, NV 89520

‘Hazardous Waste Contract
Contract Control # DEP14-002.

Time Period of Expenditures: _Oct — Dec 2013

Approved | Quarterly Year to Date Balance
Budget Expenditures Expenditures Remaining
Year 1, QTR 1 $ 50,000 $ 11,250 $ 11,250 $ 38,750
Year 1, QTR 2 $ 13,500 $ 24,750 $ 25,250
Year 1, QTR 3
Year 1, QTR 4
Total Number of Inspections Conducted this Quarter: 54  x $250 = §$13.500
AMOUNT REQUESTED: $13,500.00
AGENCY SIGNATURE: DATE:

*Year 2 invoices must include cumulative totals (Year 1-2)*

CETS#: 14097
Contract Controf #: DEP 14-002
Page 5 of 5



ATTACHMENT B:
ADDITIONAL AGENCY TERMS & CONDITIONS
TO CONTRACT FOR SERVICES OF PUBLIC AGENCY
CONTRACT CONTROL # DEP 14-002

1. For contracts utilizing federal funds, the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection shall pay no more
compensation that the federal Executive Service Level 4 (U.S. Code) daily rate (exclusive of fringe benefits) for
individual consultants retained by the Public Agency or by the Public Agency’s contractors or subcontractors. This
limitation applies to-consultation services of designated individuals with specialized skills who are paid at a danly or
hourly rate. The current Level 4 rate is $74.50 per hour.

2. NDEP shall only reimburse the Publlc Agency for actual cash disbursed. Ongnnal invoices. (facsimiles are not
acceptable) must be received by NDEP no later than forty (40) calendar days after the end of a month or quarter except
at the end of the fiscal year of the State of Nevada (June 30th), at the expiration date of the grant, or the effective date of
the revocation of the contract, at which times original invoices must be received by NDEP no later than thirty-five (35)

* calendar days after this date. Failure of the Public Agency to submit billings according to the prescribed timeframes
authorizes NDEP, in its sole discretion, to collect or withhold a penalty of ten percent (10%) of the amount being
requested for each week or portion of a week that the billing is late. The Public Agency shall provide with each invoice a
detailed fiscal summary that includes the approved contract budget, expenditures for the current period, cumulative
expenditures to date, and balance remaining for each budget category. If match is required pursuant to paragraph 3
below, a similar fiscal summary of match expenditures must accompany each invoice. The Public Agency shall obtain
prior approval to transfer funds between budget categories if the funds to be transferred are greater than ten percent
(10%) cumulative of the total Contract amount.

3. The Public Agency shall, as part of its approved scope of work and budget under this Contract, provide third party
match funds of not less than: $__n/a . If match funds are required, the Public Agency shall comply with additional
record-keeping requirements as specified in 40 CFR 31.24 and Attachment _n/a__ (Third Party Match Record-Keeping
Requirements) which is attached hereto and by this reference is incorporated herein and made part of this Contract.

4. Unless otherwise provided in Attachment A (Scope of Work), the Public Agency shall submit quarterly reports or other
deliverables within ten (10) calendar days after the end of each quarter.

5. All payments under this Contract are contingent upon the receipt by NDEP of sufficient funds, necessary to carry out
the purposes of this Contract, from either the Nevada Legislature or an agency of the United States. NDEP shall
determine if it has received the specific funding necessary for this Contract. If funds are not received from either source
for the specific purposes of this Contract, NDEP is under no obligation to supply funding for this Contract. The receipt of
sufficient funds as determined by NDEP is a condition precedent.to NDEP's obligation to make payments under this
Contract. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to provide the Public Agency with a right of payment over any other
entity. If any payments that are otherwise due to the Public Agency under this Contract are deferred because of the
unavailability of sufficient funds, such payments will promptly be made to the Public Agency if sufficient funds later
become available. :

6. Notwithstanding the terms of paragraph 5, at the sole discretion of NDEP, payments will not be made by NDEP
unless all required reports or deliverables have been submitted to and approved by NDEP within the schedule stated in
Attachment A.

7. Any funds obligated by NDEP under this Contract that are not expended by the Public Agency shall automatically
revert back to NDEP upon the completion, termination or cancellation of this Contract. NDEP shall not have any
obligation to re-award or to provide, in any manner, such unexpended funds to the Public Agency. The Public
Agency shall have no claim of any sort to such unexpended funds.

8. Forcontracts utilizing federal funds, the Public Agency shall ensure, to the fullest extent possible, that at least
the “fair share” percentages as stated below for prime contracts for construction, services, supplies or
equipment are made available to organizations owned or controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged
individuals

CETS#: 14097

Contract Control # DEF 14-002 Attachment B Revised 01/27/10

Page 10of 3



(Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) or Small Business Enterprise (SBE)), women (Women Business
Enterprise (WBE)) and historically black colleges and universities. '

MBE/SBE WBE

Construction 12% 10%
Services 07% 25%
Supplies 13% 28%
Equipment ' 11% 23%

The Public Agency agrees and is required to utilize the following seven affirmative steps:

a. Include in its bid documents applicable “fair share” percentages as stated above and réqUire all of its prime

contractors to include in their bid documents for subcontracts the “fair share” percentages;

b. Include qualified Small Business Enterprises (SBEs) Minority Business Enterprises (MBES), and Women
Business Enterprises (WBEs) on solicitation lists;

C. Assure that SBEs, MBEs, and WBEs are solicited whenever they are potential sources;

d. ~ Divide total requirements, when economically feasible, into small tasks or quantities to e. permit maximum
participation of SBEs, MBEs, and WBEs;

e. Establish delivery schedules, where the requirements of the work permit, which will encourage participation by
SBEs, MBEs, and WBEs;

f. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development
Agency, U.S. Department of commerce as appropriate; and

g. If-a subcontractor awards contracts/procurements, require the subcontractor to take the affirmative steps in

subparagraphs a. through e. of this condition.

9. The Public Agency shall complete and submit to NDEP a Minority Business Enterprise/Woman Business Enterprise
(MBE/WBE) Utilization Report (Standard Form 334) within fifteen (15) calendar days after the end of each federal fiscal
year (September 30th) for each year this Contract is in effect and within fifteen (15) calendar days after the termination

date of this Contract.

10. The books, records, documents and accounting procedures and practices of the Public Agency or any subcontractor
relevant to this Contract shall be subject to inspection, examination and audit by the State of Nevada, the Division of
Environmental Protection, the Attorney General of Nevada, the Nevada State Legislative Auditor, the federal or other
funding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States or any authorized representative of those entities.

11. All books, reports, studies, photographs, negatives, annual reports or other documents, data, materials or drawings
prepared by or supplied to the Public Agency in the performance of its obligations under this Contract shall be the joint
property of both parties. Such items must be retained by the Public Agency for a minimum of three years from the date
of final payment by NDEP to the Public Agency, and all other pending matters are closed. If requested by NDEP at any
time within the retention period, any such materials shall be remitted and delivered by the Public Agency, at the Public
Agency’s expense, to NDEP. NDEP does not warrant or assume any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy,
completeness, or usefulness of any information, report or product of any kind that the Public Agency may disclose or use
for purposes other than the performance of the Public Agency’s obligations under this Contract. For any work outside
the obligations of this Contract, the Public Agency must include a disclaimer that the information, report or products are
the views and opinions of the Public Agency and do not necessarily state or reflect those of NDEP nor bind NDEP.

12. Unless otherwise provided in Attachment A, when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with funds provided under
this Contract, the Public Agency shall clearly state that funding for the project or program was provided by the Nevada
Division of Environmental Protection and, if applicable, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The Public Agency

. Attachment B Revised 01/27/10
CETS#: 14097 v Page 2 of 3

Contract Control #: DEP 14-002



will insure that NDEP is given credit in all official publications relative to this specific project and that the content of such
publications will be coordinated with NDEP prior to being published.

13. Unless otherwise provided in Attachment A, all property purchased with funds provided pursuant to this Contract is
the property of NDEP and shall, if NDEP elects within four (4) years after the completion, termination or cancellation of
this Contract or after the conclusion of the use of the property for the- purposes of this Contract during its term, be
returned to NDEP at the Public Agency’s expense. :

Such property includes but is not limited to vehicles, computers, software, modems, calculators, radios, and analytical
and safety equipment. The Public Agency shall use all purchased property in accordance with local, state and federal
law, and shall use the property only for Contract purposes unless otherwise agreed to in writing by NDEP.

For any unauthorized use of such property by the Public Agency, NDEP may elect to terminate the Contract and to have
the property immediately retumed to NDEP by-the Public Agency at the Public Agency’s expense. To the extent
authorized by law, the Public Agency shall indemnify and save and hold the State of Nevada and NDEP harmless from
any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising from any use or custody of the property by the Public Agency or
the Public Agency’s agents or employees or any subcontractor or their agents or employees.

“14. The Public Agency shall use recycled paper for all reports that are prepared as part of this Contract and delivered to
NDEP. This requirement does not apply to standard forms. .

15. The Public Agency, to the extent provided by Nevada law, shall indemnify and save and hold the State of Nevada,
its agents and employees harmless from any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising from the performance of
this Contract by the Public Agency or the Public Agency’s agents or employees or any subcontractor or their agents or
employees. NDEP, to the extent provided by Nevada law, shall indemnify and save and hold the Public Agency, its
agents and employees harmless from any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising from the performance of this
Contract by NDEP or NDEP’s agents or employees. :

16. The Public Agency and its subcontractors shall obtain any necessary permission needed, before entering private or
public property, to conduct activities related to the work plan (Attachment A). The property owner will be informed of the
program, the type of data to be gathered, and the reason for the requested access to the property.

17. This Contract shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Nevada and conditions
established in OMB Circular A-102. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity by the
State of Nevada. Any action brought to enforce this contract shall be brought in the First Judicial District Court of the
State of Nevada. The Public Agency and any of its subcontractors shall comply with all applicable local, state and
federal laws in carrying out the obligations of this Contract, including all federal and state accounting procedures and
requirements established in OMB Circular A-87 and A-133. The Public Agency and any of its subcontractors shall also
comply with the following:
a. 40 CFR Part 7 - Nondiscrimination In Programs Receiving Federal Assistance From EPA
b. 40 CFR Part 29 - Intergovernmental Review of EPA Programs and Activities.
c. 40 CFR Part 31 - Uniform Administrative Requirements For Grants And Cooperative Agreements To State and
Local Governments;
d. 40 CFR Part 32 - Govemmentwide Debarment And Suspension (Nonprocurement) And Governmentwide
Requirements For Drug-Free Workplace (Grants);
e. 40 CFR Part 34 - Lobbying Activities;
f. 40 CFR Part 35, Subpart O - Cooperative Agreements And Superfund State Contracts For Superfund Response
Actions (Superfund Only); and
g. The Hotel And Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990.

18. The Public Agency shall neither assign, transfer nor delegate any rights, obhgatlons or duties under this Contract
without the prior written consent of NDEP.

CETS#. 14097 )
Contract Control #: DEP 14-002
Attachment B Rev. 01/27/10
Page 3of 3



DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.C.4.

Washoe County Health District

PublicHealth

Prevent. Promote. Protect,

STAFF REPORT
BOARD MEETING DATE: 3/28/12
DATE: March 18, 2013
TO: District Board of Health

| .
FROM: Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District (bf
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us

THROUGH: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, Was)noﬁlounty Health
District, 775-328-2417, estickney@washoecounty.us \&5/

SUBJECT: Ratification of Intrastate Interlocal Contract Between State of Nevada,
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Division of Environmental Protection
and the Washoe County Health District in the total amount of $902,000 ($218,000 per year
and a one-time additional payment of $30,000 payable in fiscal year 2014) for the period
July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2017 in support of the Underground Storage Tank (UST) and
Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST) Program; and if approved authorize the
Chairman to execute.

SUMMARY

The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the
adopted budget.

The Washoe County Health District received an Intrastate Interlocal Contract from the State of
Nevada for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2017 in the total amount of $902,000 in
support of the UST/LUSTProgram. A copy of the Intrastate Interlocal is attached.

District Board of Health strategic priority: Protect population from health problems and
health hazards.

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, Secure and Healthy Communities.
BCC Strategic Outcome supported by this item: Healthy communities.

This item supports the supports both the UST and LUST program missions:

¢ To prevent the accidental or incidental release of petroleum products stored in
underground storage tanks into the environment via active inspection and monitoring of
registered tanks.

o To mitigate and remediate the environmental impact of petroleum products, released
from failed UST systems, that have contaminated the environment, particularly
groundwater.

AGENDA ITEM #

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279

www.washoecounty.us/health
WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER



District Board of Health meeting of March 28, 2013
Page 2

PREVIOUS ACTION
The District Board of Health approved the previous Interlocal Contract #10-001 for the period
July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2013 in the total amount of $748,000 on November 20, 2008.

BACKGROUND

The State of Nevada, Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Division of
Environmental Protection has awarded the UST/LUST Program $902,000 for the period July 1,
2013 through June 30, 2017. Funds will be used to support personnel, training and travel, and
operating expenditures. This Interlocal Contract was received on March 15, 2013. The granting
agency is requesting the Interlocal Contract be returned as quickly as possible in order to be
placed on the Board of Examiners agenda.

FISCAL IMPACT

There will be no additional fiscal impact to the FY 14 budget as the budget will be adjusted to
reflect the award amount prior to final adoption. It is projected that there will be $18,700
collected in indirect revenue.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health ratify the Intrastate
Interlocal Contract Between State of Nevada, Department of Conservation and Natural
Resources, Division of Environmental Protection and the Washoe County Health District in the
total amount of $902,000 ($218,000 per year and a one-time additional payment of $30,000
payable in fiscal year 2014) for the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2017 in support of the
Underground Storage Tank (UST) and Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST) Program;
and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Move to ratify the Intrastate Interlocal Contract Between State of Nevada, Department of
Conservation and Natural Resources, Division of Environmental Protection and the Washoe
County Health District in the total amount of $902,000 ($218,000 per year and a one-time
additional payment of $30,000 payable in fiscal year 2014) for the period July 1, 2013 to June
30, 2017 in support of the Underground Storage Tank (UST) and Leaking Underground Storage
Tank (LUST) Program; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute.




INTRASTATE INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

A Contract between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through Its

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
Division of Environmental Protection, Bureau of Corrective Actions
901 S. Stewart Street, Carson City, NV 89701-5249
Phone: (775) 687-9368 Fax: (775) 687-8335

and

Washoe County District Health District
hereinafter the “Public Agency”
PO Box 11130, Reno, NV 89512
775-328-2423 Contact: Jim English

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to contract with any one or
more other public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the
public agencies entering into-the contract is authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services of Washoe County District Health Districtt hereinafter set
forth are both necessary to Division of Environmental Protection and in the best interests of the State of

Nevada;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as follows:

1. REQUIBED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved by
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party.

2. DEFINITIONS. “State” means the State of Nevada and any state agency identified herein, its
officers, employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307.

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective from _July 1, 2013 _ upon approval to_June 30,

2017 , unless sooner terminated by either party as set forth in this Contract.
4, TERMINATION This Contract may be terminated by either party prior to the date set forth in
paragraph (3), provided that a termination shall not be effective until 30 days after a party has

served written notice upon the other party. This Contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both
_parties or unilaterally by either party without cause. The parties expressly agree that this Contract shall
be terminated immediately if for any reason State and/or federal funding ability to satisfy this Contract is
withdrawn, limited, or impaired.

5. NOTICE. All notices or cther communications required or permitted to be given under this Contract
shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally in hand, by
telephonic facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return receipt requested,
postage prepaid on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the address set forth above.
6. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that the services to be performed shall be
specifically described; this Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending order of

constructive precedence:

ATTACHMENT A: SCOPE OF WORK
ATTACHMENT B: ADDITIONAL AGENCY TERMS & CONDITIONS (consisting of 3 pages)

Page 1 of 4



7. CONSIDERATION [AGENCY NAME] agrees to provide the services set forth in paragraph (6) at a
costof § 218,000 per__ vear  (state the exact cost or hourly, daily, or weekly rate exclusive of
travel or per diem expenses) and a one-time additional payment of __$30,000 _payable in fiscal year

2014, with the total Contract or installments payable; __ Quarterly _, not exceedlng $ 902,000 . Any
intervening end to an annual or biennial appropriation period shall be deemed an automatic renewal (not
changing the overall Contract term) or a termination as the results of legislative approprlatlon may
require.

8. ASSENT. The partxes agree that the terms and conditions listed on mcorporated attachments of this
Contract are also specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective order of
precedence and any limitations expressly provided.

‘9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.

a. Books and Records. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under general accepted accounting
principles full, true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents as are necessary to fully
disclose to the other party, the State or United States Government, or their authorized representatives,
upon audits or reviews, sufficient information to determine compliance with any applicable regulations-
and statutes. '
b. Inspection & Audit. Each party agrees that the relevant books, records (written, electronic, computer
related or otherwise), including but not limited to relevant accounting procedures and practices of the
party, financial statements and supporting documentation, and documentation related to the work
product shall be subject, at any reasonable time, to inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying
at any office or location where such records may be found, with or without notice by the other party, the
State Auditor, Employment Security, the Department of Administration, Budget Division, the Nevada
State Attorney General's Office or its Fraud Control Units, the State Legislative Auditor, and with regard
to any federal funding, the relevant federal agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting
Office, the Office of the Inspector General, or any of their authorized representatives.
c. Period of Retention. All books, records, reports, and statements relevant to this Contract must be
retained by each party for a minimum of three years and for five years if any federal funds are used in
this Contract. The retention period runs from the date of termination of this Contract. Retention time
shall be extended when an audit is scheduled or in progress for a period reasonably necessary to
complete an audit and/or to complete any administrative and judicial litigation which may ensue.
10. BREACH; REMEDIES. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Contract shall be
deemed a breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and remedies of
the parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or
equity, including but not limited to actual damages, and to a prevailing party reasonable attorneys fees
and costs.

11, LIMITED LIABILITY. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter 41 liability
limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages. To the
extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall be limited by NRS 353.260 and NRS
354.626.

12. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is prevented
from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or
military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without
limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be
through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and the excused party is obligated to promptly
perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after the intervening cause ceases.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Neither party waives any right or defense to indemnification that may exist in

law or equity.

Page 2 of 4



14. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for the
purposes and to the extent set forth in this Contract, and in respect to performance of services pursuant
to this Contract, each party is and shall be a public agency separate and distinct from the other party and,
subject only to the terms of this Contract, shall have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate, control,
and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this Contract. Nothing contained in this
Contract shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of
an-employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any liability for one agency whatsoever
with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other agency or any other party.

15. WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any partlcular breach of
the Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a waiver by such
party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

16. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of
law or equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the nonenforceability
of such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of this Contract unenforce-
able.

17. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or duties under
this Contract without the prior written consent of the other party.

18. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Unless otherwise provided by law or this
Contract, any reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, blue prints,
plans, maps, data, system designs, computer code (which is intended to be consideration under this
Contract), or any other documents or drawings, prepared or in the course of preparation by either party in
performance of its obligations under this Contract shall be the joint property of both parties.

19. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to public
inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a partlcular record is made
confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

20. CONFIDENTIALITY. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form, produced,
prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confidential by law or
otherwise required by this Contract.

21. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this
Contract on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the
parties are authorized by law to perform the services set forth in paragraph (6).

22. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the parties
hereto shall be governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada. The parties
consent to the jurisdiction of the Nevada district courts for enforcement of this Contract.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated attachment(s)
constitute the entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a complete and exclusive
statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may
have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this
Contract specifically displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part of this Contract, general conflicts
in language between any such attachment and this Contract shall be construed consistent with the terms
of this Contract. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this Contract, no modification or
amendment to this Contract shall be binding upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by
the respective parties hereto, approved by the State of Nevada Office of the Attorney General.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and intend to be
legally bound thereby. _

Page 3of4



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this amendment to the original contract to be signed and
intend to be legally bound thereby.

PUBLIC AGENCY ~ Washoe County Health District:

By: Signature ' ' Title - Date
DIVISION:

Administrator-NDEP
By: Colieen Cripps, Ph.D. Title Date

ZNE S S
Y Contract Manager 7 ¢5 /J
\‘Bi/ /’§and|°Gotta - Title: Date
DIVISION FISCAL APPROVAL:
Budget Analyst |1

By: Lisa Fleming _ Title: Date
Approved as to form by:

On
Deputy Attorney General for Attorney General (Date)
APPROVED BY BOARD OF EXAMINERS

On
Signature - Board of Examiners (Date)

Page 4 of 4



ATTACHMENT A

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK
' AND
LEAKING UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK
PROGRAM OBJECTIVES & WORKPLAN

State Fiscal Year 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
JULY 1, 2013 - JUNE 30, 2017
Contract Control # DEP

I PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION

As part of the State Program, Washoe County Health District (WCHD) will continue activities
relative to the time frames and definitions of the Underground Storage Tank (UST) Program
requirements as delineated in the Federal Register 40 CFR Part 280, §§ 280.10 through 280.112;
NRS 459.800 to 459.856; and NAC 459.9921 to 459.999, inclusive. WCHD will work within the
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) guidance and oversight. Any variation
from the regulations, guidance, or oversight will require written concurrence from NDEP. It is
recognized that a guidance or directive from the U.S. EPA that may modify the reporting
requirements or definitions reported herein shall be incorporated into this Work plan and made a
part.

The objectives of the Nevada UST program are:

a) Ensure consistent application and enforcement of State and Federal UST
Regulations.

b) Improve compliance with the regulations through increased in-field interaction
and education of owners, operators and managers of UST facilities.

c) Conduct consistent inspections at each facility through a prioritization system
that ensures each facility. is inspected at least every 36 months.

d) Provide accurate and timely information to the NDEP to enable timely updates to
the State UST Access database (UST FITS).

e) Compile accurate and consistent compliance data as required by the US EPA.

II. UST NOTIFICATION:

L. Inform UST owner/operators for new, upgraded, or closed UST systems of the
requirement to notify NDEP using EPA Form 7530-1. WCHD to ensure the 7530-1
forms are accurate and complete prior to forwarding originals to NDEP. Notification
forms should be forwarded to the NDEP UST program within 30 days. A contact will be
provided (and updated as needed) to allow for electronic delivery.

Report quarterly:
(O The number of new or amended 7530-1 forms processed and forwarded to
NDEP. '

Page 1 of 8 .
WCHD Contract — FY 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
DEP .



1L

Receive and respond in writing to an operator’s notice of intent to permanently close or
make a change-in-service to their underground storage tank system, as required by 40
CFR, § 280.71. Inform operators of all applicable requirements unider 40 CFR, § 280
and NAC 459.970 through 459.9729 (certification) in the response letters.

‘Report quarterly:

(1) - The number of response letters mailed in acknowledgment of an operator’s mtent ’
to close or make a change in the service.
(2) The number of site inspections conducted for USTs being permanently closed.

UST COMPLIANCE/ENFORCEMENT:

Page 2 of 8

1.

Conduct on-site facility inspections that are consistent with the State of Nevada UST-
Inspection Protocol. NDEP will provide the UST Inspection Protocol and may engage in
one or more joint inspections per calendar quarter to assist with achieving consistency of
inspections. A reference to the Significant Operational Compliance (SOC) framework
will be provided by the NDEP.

Report quarterly
(1)(a) Number of initial facility inspections / inspection reports submitted to NDEP.
(b) Release Prevention SOC: Number of facilities in Significant Operational
Compliance (SOC) with the 1998 regulations at the time of the initial inspection
conducted during the reporting period.
(c) Release Detection SOC: Number of facilities in Significant Operational
' Compliance (SOC) with the leak detection regulations at the time of the initial
inspection conducted during the reporting period.

Washoe County will conduct necessary activities to ensure UST owner/operator
compliance with financial responsibility requirements. (NDEP will provide Washoe
County with a list of UST owner/operators that have not enrolled in the State Petroleum
Fund on an annual basis).

Provide for a ‘Step Wise’ progressive compliance/enforcement program consistent with
NDEP’s Compliance Assistance and Enforcement Guidance document.

Provide documentation to the ownet/operator acknowledging correction of non-
compliance deficiencies. Submit a copy of documentation (i.e., correspondence) to
NDEP.

Report quarterly:
(2)(a) The number of facilities sent informal enforcement letters regardi ng UST non-
compliance issues.
(b) The number of facilities that have resolved all compliance issues during the
reporting period (regardless of the period in which the issues were initiated).

Conduct re-inspections as necessary to ensure compliance at those facilities for which
owner/operators were issued informal enforcement letters.

Report quarterly:
(H) The number of on site UST facility re-inspections.

WCHD Contract ~ FY 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

DEP



IvV.  LEAKING UST's

Page 3 of 8

Refer any UST non-complianice cases, which have not been resolved by telephone calls,
follow-up letters, or re-inspections to NDEP for formal enforcement action. Provide
supporting documentation, sufficient for issuance of an enforcement order. All cases

referred to NDEP will include the following:

a) A formal referral letter addressed to NDEP, referring the case. The letter should
cite the specmc UST regulation that is alleged to have been v1olated The
- owner/operator is to be courtesy copied;

b) An accurately compiled written summary of all submittals, responses, and actions
: relating to the case; and '

c) A copy of all correspondence and submittals related to the non-compliance-issue.

Report quarterly:

83 The number of UST cases referred to NDEP for formal enforcement action. .

Refer any suspected non-compliance with NAC 459.970 through 459.9729 (Certification)
to NDEP, Bureau of Corrective Actions, Certification Branch.

LUST):

Track the number of UST system closures (i.e., permanently out of service UST systems)
with reported sampling results below the State action level of 100 mg/kg Total Petroleum
Hydrocarbons (TPH), including closures with no detected contamination.

Report quarterly:

(O The number of UST closures (i.e., permanently out of service UST systems)
with sampling results below the State action level of 100 mg/kg TPH, including
closures with no detected contamination.

Track the number of releases from UST systems undergoing closure with a Verified
Release. NDEP will provide guidance for defining and determining a Verified Release

Report quarteily:

)] The number of UST closures (i.e., permanently out of service UST systems)
with a Verified Release (per NDEP guidance). (Include State Facility ID
number for identification of sites on tracking list).

Track the number of UST systems not undergoing closure that have a Verified Release
(per NDEP guidance).

Report quarterly:
) The number of UST systems not undergoing closure that have a Verified
Release (per NDEP guidance). (Include State Facility ID number for

identification of sites on tracking list).

WCHD Contract - FY 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

DEP



Page 4 of 8

Track the number of suspected releases from UST systems not undergoing closure. In
accordance with NDEP practice:

» A Statistical Inventory Reconciliation (SIR) "failure" will be considered
a suspected release. ‘ .
® An SIR "inconclusive" will not be considered a suspected UST release
unless it is the second consecutive "inconclusive" result for the same
UST system.
Report quarterly:
(D The number of suspected releases from UST systems not undergoing closure.

(Inciude State Facility ID number for identification of sites on tracking list).

Provide notification to owner/operators of regulatory requirements to investigate or
submit documentation (RELEASE-SPILL letters [r/spill letters]) for all detected and
verified UST releases. Inform owner/operators of the applicable requirements under 40
CFR, § 280, NAC 445A.345 through 445A.348, NAC 445A.226 through 445A.22755,
and NAC 459.970 through 459.9729 (Certification) in these letters. Copy NDEP on all
‘t/spill” letters. Include State Facility ID number on all correspondence.

Report quarterly:
¢)) The number of RELEASE-SPILL (1/spill) letters mailed to owner /operators.
(Include State Facility ID number on all correspondences).

Review submitted LUST site assessments for soil and groundwater contamination.
Prioritize sites that exceed State action levels based upon potential risk to human and
environmental receptors. Oversee abatement on sites with documented releases below
State action levels and Reportable Quantities (RQs).

Report quarterly:
(1) The number of site assessments received.
(2) The number of site assessments reviewed.

Review submitted Work Plans relating to characterization through remediation to closure
of LUST cases with soil and/or groundwater contamination in excess of the State action
levels and Reportable Quantities (RQs). Respond in writing to the responsible party
concurring, modifying, or denying the work plans. Copy NDEP on all response letters,

Report quarterly:

) The number of work plans received.
(2) The number of work plans reviewed.
(3) The number of work plans concurred.

WCHD Contract - FY 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

DEP



Page Sof 8

10.

11.

Refer LUST cases to NDEP where deemed necessary. All cases referred to NDEP shall
include the following:

a) A formal referral letter addressed to NDEP referring the case. The responsible
party is to be courtesy copied;

b)  Anaccurately compiled written summary of all submittals, responses, and actions
relating to the case; o

c) A copy of all correspondence relating to the case.

Report quarterly:
(1 The number of LUST cases formally referred to NDEP for remedial
oversight.

Provide oversight of open LUST cases to ensure regulatory requirements are met.
Provide "No Further Action™ (NFA) required letter to responsible parties when
remediation activities are complete and closure can be achieved using current regulatory
criteria and NDEP provided guidance. Copy NDEP on all NFA letters. Include State
Facility ID number on all correspondence. Track the total number of LUST cases for
which NFA letters were issued.

Report quarterly:
(D The number of LUST cases closed with a No Further Action (NFA) letters
issued. (Include State Facility ID number for identification of cases closed to

allow removal from tracking list).

Track the number of LUST cases with soil contamination remaining above the State
action levels, but issued ‘NFA’ letters in accordance with NAC 445A.227(2) (A-K).

Report quarterly:

(D The number of LUST cases with soil contamination remaining above State
action level issued NFAs per NAC 445A.227(2). (Include State Facility ID
number for identification of cases closed to allow removal from tracking

list).

Provide written referral to NDEP, in accordance with NDEP provided guidance, to issue
NFA letters on eligible LUST cases with groundwater contaminant levels above State
action levels or Federal Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) following NAC
445A.22725(2). Provide supporting information for each referral. NDEP will track the
number of LUST cases with groundwater contarnination above State action levels or
Federal Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) for which NDEP subsequently issues
NFA letters. NDEP will copy the County on these closure letters.

Report quarterly:

O The number of LUST groundwater cases referred to NDEP as eligible for
closure, in accordance with NDEP guidance, with groundwater
contamination remaining above State action levels or Federal MCLs citing

NAC 445A.22725(2).

WCHD Contract - FY 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

DEP



V. PROGRAM TRACKING:

UST/LUST QUARTERLY TRACKING
QUARTER FY2014

Reporting Period through _ .
* Quarterly report due within five (5) days following the end of each quarter,

__OUTPUT o | 7ask | Qw | Year(Fiscal Year)

UST:
Number of new or am_ended 7530-1 forms _ IL1(L)

processed and forwarded to NDEP.

Number of response letters mailed in 201
acknowledgment of an operator’s intent to close
or make a change in service.

Number of site inspections conducted for USTs 1.2(2)
being permanently closed.
{ Number of initial facility compliance L 1(a)
I inspections completed/ inspection reports
| submitted to NDEP.

Release Prevention SOC: Number of facilities in
| Significant Operational Compliance (SOC) with H.1(b)
the 1998 regulations (corrosion, spill, and
overfill) at the time of the initial inspection
conducted during the reporting period.

Release Detection SOC: Number of facilities in
Significant Operational Compliance (SOC) with HL1{c)
the leak detection regulations at the time of the
initial inspection conducted during the reporting
period.

Number of facilities sent informal enforcement

letters regarding UST non-compliance issues. H1.2(a)

Number of facilft‘ies that resolved all compliance
issues in the quarter (regardless of the quarter in TIL2(b)
which the issue was initiated).

Number of UST facility re-inspections. 113

Number of UST cases referred to NDEP for 14
formal enforcement action.

Page 6 of &
WCHD Contract ~ FY 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
DEP



OUTPUT _

TASK |

e O

| Year (Fiscal Year) |

LUST:

Number of UST system closures (i.e.,
permanently out of service UST systems) with

il sampling results below the State action level of
100 mg/kg TPH, including closures with no
detected contamination.

(Include State Facility ID number for
identification of sites on tracking list).

V.1

Number of UST system closures (i.e.,

Verified Release (per NDEP guidance).
| (Include State Facility ID numberfor
identification of sites on tracking list).

permanently out of service UST systems) with a

w2

Number of UST systems not undergoing closure
that have a Verified Release (per NDEP )
guidance).

(Include State Facility ID number for
identification of sites on tracking list).

Number of suspected releases from UST
systems not undergoing closure.
(Include State Facility ID number for
“identification of sites on tracking list).

w4

| Number of RELEASE-SPILL (+/spill) letters

mailed to owners/ operators. (Include State
Facility ID number for identification of sites on
tracking list).

V.5

Number of site assessments received.

IvV.6(1)

Number of site assessments reviewed.

TV.6(2)

N umBer of work plans received.

IV.7(1)

Number of work plans reviewed.

IV.7(2)

Number of work plans concurred.

IV.7(3)

Number of LUST cases formally referred to
NDEP for remediation oversight.

(Include State Facility ID number for
identification of sites on tracking list).

1v.8

Number of LUST cases closed with No Further
Action (NFA) letter. (Include State Facility ID
number for identification of cases closed to
allow removal from tracking list).

1v.9

Page 7ol 8
WCHD Contract — FY 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
DEP



_ourpur

O

Year (Fiscil Year) -

LUST:

Number of LUST cases with soil contamination
remaining above state action level issued an |

1 NFA letter citing NAC 445A.227(2) (A-K).
(Include State Facility ID number for ,
identification of cases closed to allow removal
from tracking list).

V.10

Number of groundwétter cases referred to NDEP .

1 as eligible for closure, in accordance with NDEP
guidance, with groundwater contamination

remaining above State action levels or Federal -

MCLs citing NAC 445A.22725.

IvV.11

Page 8 of 8
WCHD Contract - FY 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
DEP )




ATTACHMENT B:
ADDITIONAL AGENCY TERMS & CONDITIONS
TO CONTRACT FOR SERVICES OF PUBLIC AGENCY
CONTRACT CONTROL #

1. For contracts utilizing fedéral funds, the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection shall ‘pay no more
compensation that the federal Executive Service Level 4 (U.S. Code) daily rate (exclusive of fringe beneﬂts) for individual
consultants retained by the Public Agency or by the Public Agency’s contractors or subconfractors. This. limitation
applies to consultation services of designated individuals with specialized skills who are paid at a daily or hourly rate.
The current Level 4 rate is $74.50 per hour.

2. NDEP shail only reimburse the Pubiic Agency for actual cash disbursed. Original invoices (facsimiles are not
acceptable) must be received by NDEP no later than forty (40) calendar days after the end of a month or quarter except
at the end of the fiscal year of the State of Nevada (June 30th), at the expiration date of the grant, or the effective date of
the revocation of the contraet, at which times original invoices must be received by NDEP no later than thirty-five (35)
calendar days after this date. Failure of the Public Agency to submit billings according to the prescribed timeframes
authorizes NDEP, in its sole discretion, to collect or withhold a penalty of ten percent (10%) of the amount being
requested for each week or portion of a week that the billing is late. The Public Agency shall provide with each invoice a
detailed fiscal summary that includes the approved contract budget, expenditures for the current period, cumulative
expenditures to date, and balance remaining for each budget category. If malch is required pursuant to paragraph 3
below, a similar fiscal summary of mafch expenditures must accompany each invoice. The Public Agency shall obtain
prior approval to transfer funds between budget categories if the funds to be transferred are greater than ten percent
(10%) cumulative of the total Contract amount.

3. The Public Agency shall, as part of its approved scope of work and budget under this Contract, provide third party
match funds of not less than; $_N/A . If match funds are required, the Public Agency shalf comply with additional
record-keeping requirements as specified in 40 CFR 31.24 and Attachment _N/A _(Third Party Match Record-Keeping
Requirements) which is attached hereto and by this reference is incorporated herein and made part of this Contract.

4. Unless otherwise provided in Attachment A (Scope of Work), the Public Agency shall submit quarterly reports or other
deliverables within ten (10) calendar days affer the end of each quarter.

5. All payments under this Contract are contingent upon the receipt by NDEP of sufficient funds, necessary to carry out
the purposes of this Confract, from either the Nevada Legislature or an agency of the United States. NDEP shall
determine if it has received the specific funding necessary for this Contract. If funds are not received from either source
for the spegific purposes of this Contract, NDEP is under no obligation to supply funding for this Contract. The receipt of
sufficient funds as determined by NDEP is a condition precedent to NDEP's obligation to make payments under this
Contract. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to provide the Public Agency with a right of payment over any other
entity. If any payments that are otherwise due to the Public Agency under this Contract are deferred because of the
unavailability of sufficient funds, such payments will promptly be made to the Public Agency if sufficient funds later

become available.

6. Notwithstanding the terms of paragraph 5, at the sole discretion of NDEP, payments will not be made by NDEP
unless all required reports or deliverables have been submitted to and approved by NDEP within the schedule stated in

Attachment A.

7. Any funds obligated by NDEP under this Contract that are not expended by the Public Agency shall automatically
revert back to NDEP upon the completion, termination or cancellation of this Contract. NDEP shall not have any
obligation to re-award or to provide, in any manner, such unexpended funds to the Public Agency. The Pubhc Agency
shall have no claim of any sort to such unexpended funds.

8. For contracts utilizing federal funds, the Public Agency shall ensure, to the fullest extent possible, that at least
the "fair share” percentages as stated below for prime confracts for construction, services, supplies or
equipment are made avaitable to organizations owned or controlled by socially-and economically disadvantaged
individuals (Minority Business Enterprise (MBE} or Small Business Enterprise (SBE)), women (Women
Business Enterprise (WBE)) and historically black colleges and universities.

DEP ' Attachment B ' Rev. 01/27/10
Page 1 of 3



MBE/SBE WBE

Construction 12% 10%
Services 07% 25%
Supplies 13% 28%
Equipment 11% 23%

Thé Public Agency agrees énd is required to utilize the following seven affirmative steps: :

a. Include in its bid documents applicable “fair share” percentages as stated above and require all of its prime
contractors to include in their bid documents for subcontracts the “fair share” percentages;

b. Inciude qualified Small Business Enterprises (SBEs) Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs), and Women
Business Enterprises (WBEs) on solicitation lists; _

6. Assure that SBEs, MBEs, and WBES are solicited whenever they are potential sources;

d. Divide total requirements, when economically feasible, into small tasks or quantities to e. permit maximum

 participation of SBEs, MBEs, and WBEs;
-8 Establish delivery schedules, where the requirements of the work permit, which will-encourage participation by

SBEs, MBEs, and WBEs;

f Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development
Agency, U.S. Department of commerce as appropriate; and '

g If a subcontractor awards contracts/procurements, require the subcontractor to take the affirmative steps in

subparagraphs a. through e. of this condition.

9. The Public Agency shall complete and submit to NDEP a Minority Business Enterprise/Woman Business Enterprise
(MBE/WBE) Utilization Report (Standard Form 334) within fifteen (15) calendar days after the end of each federal fiscal
year (September 30th) for each year this Contract is in effect and within fifteen (15) calendar days after the termination
date of this Confract.

10. The books, records, documents and accounting procedures and practices of the Public Agency or any subconiractor
relevant to this Conlract shall be subject to inspection, examination and audit by the State of Nevada, the Division of
Environmental Protection, the Attorney General of Nevada, the Nevada State Legislative Auditor, the federal or other
funding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States or any authorized representative of those entities.

11. All books, reports, studies, photographs, negatives, annual reports or other documents, data, materials or drawings
prepared by or supplied to the Public Agency in the performance of its obligations under this Contract shall be the joint
property of both parties. Such items must be retained by the Public Agency for a minimum of three years from the date
of final payment by NDEP to the Public Agency, and all other pending matters are closed. If requested by NDEP at any
time within the retention period, any such materials shall be remitted and delivered by the Public Agency, at the Public
Agency’s expense, to NDEP. NDEP does not warrant or assume any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy,
completeness, or usefulness of any information, report or product of any kind that the Public Agency may disclose or use
for purposes other than the performance of the Public Agency’s obligations under this Confract. For any work outside
the obligations of this Contract, the Public Agency must include a disclaimer that the information, report or products are
the views and opinions of the Public Agency and do not necessarily state or reflect those of NDEP nor bind NDEP.

12. Unless otherwise provided in Attachment A, when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with funds provided under
this Contract, the Public Agency shall clearly state that funding for the project or program was provided by the Nevada
Division of Environmental Protection and, if applicable, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The Public Agency
will insure that NDEP s given credit in all official publications relative to this specific project and that the content of such
publications will be coordinated with NDEP prior to being published.

DEP Attachment B Rev. 01/27/10
Page 2 of 3



13. Unless otherwise provided in Attachment A, all property purchased with funds provided pursuant to this Contract is
the property of NDEP and shall, if NDEP elects within four (4) years after the completion, termination or cancellation of
this Contract or after the conclusion of the use of the property for the purposes of this Contract during its term, be
returned fo NDEP at the Public Agency's expense. '

Such property includes but is not limited to vehicles, computers, software, modems, calculators, radios, and analytical
and safety equipment. The Public Agency shall use all purchased property in accordance with local, state and federal
faw, and shall use the property only for Contract purposes unless otherwise agreed to in wriing by NDEP.

- For any unauthorized use of such property by the Public Agency, NDEP may elect to terminate the-Contract and to have
the property immediately returned to NDEP by the Public. Agency at the Public. Agency's expense. To the extent
authorized by law, the Public Agency shall indemnify and save and hold the State of Nevada and NDEP harmless from
- any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising from any use or custody of the property by the Public Agency or
the Public Agency’s agents or employees or any subcontractor or their agents or employees.

14. The Public Agency shall use recycled paper for all reports that are prepared as part of this Contract and delivered to
NDEP. This requirement does not apply to standard forms.

15. The Public Agency, to the extent provided by Nevada law, shall indemnify and save and hold the State of Nevada, its
agents and employees harmiess from any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising from the performance of this
Contract by the Public Agency or the Public Agency’s agents or employees or any subcontractor or their agents or
employees. NDEP, to the extent provided by Nevada law, shall indemnify and save and hold the Public Agency, its
agents and employees harmless from any and all-claims, causes of action or liability arising from the performance of this

Contract by NDEP or NDEP's agents or employees.

16. The Public Agency and its subcontractors shall obtain any necessary permission needed, before entering private or
public property, to conduct activities related to the work plan (Attachment A). The property owner will be informed of the
program, the type of data to be gathered, and the reason for the requested access to the property.

17. This Contract shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Nevada and conditions
established in OMB Circular A-102. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity by the
State of Nevada. Any action brought to enforce this contract shall be brought in the First Judicial District Court of the
State of Nevada. The Public Agency and any of its subcontractors shall comply with all applicable local, state and
federal laws in carrying out the obligations of this Contract, including all federal and state accounting procedures and
requirements established in OMB Circular A-87 and A-133. The Public Agency and any of its subcontractors shall also
comply with the following:
a. 40 CFR Part 7 - Nondiscrimination In Programs Receiving Federal Assistance From EPA
b. 40 CFR Part 29 - intergovemnmental Review Of EPA Programs And Activities.
¢. 40 CFR Part 31 - Uniform Administrative Requirements For Grants And Cooperative Agreements To State and
L.ocal Governments;
d. 40 CFR Part 32 - Governmentwide Debarment And Suspension (Nonprocurement) And Governmentwide
Requirements For Drug-Free Workplace (Grants);
e. 40 CFR Part 34 - Lobbying Activities;
f. 40 CFR Part 35, Subpart O - Cooperative Agreements And Superfund State Contracts For Superfund Response
Actions (Superfund Only); and
g. The Hotel And Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990.

18. The Public Agency shall neither assign, transfer nor delegate any rights, obligations or duties under this Contract
without the prior written consent of NDEP.

DEP Aftachment B ' Rev. 01/27110
Page 3of 3 '



DBOH Agenda Item No. 8.C.5.

Washoe County Health District ('{fh;

PublicHealth

Prevent, Promote. Protect.

STAFF REPORT
BOARD MEETING DATE: March 28,2013
DATE: March 15, 2013
TO: District Board of Health

FROM: Tony Macaluso, Registered Environmental Health Specialist SupervisoW
775-328-2431, tmacaluso@washoecounty.us

Lori Cooke, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District OQQJ
775-325-8068, lcooke@washoecounty.us “

THROUGH: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer 177

SUBJECT: Proposed approval of Notice of Grant Award from the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Food and Drug Administration for the
period September 12, 2012 through June 30, 2017 in the amount of $346,500
(569,300 per year) in support of the Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary
National Retail Food Regulatory Grant Program (VNRFRPS), I0 TBD; and
approve amendments totaling an increase of $63,000 in both revenue and expense to
the FY13 VNRFRPS Grant Program, 10 TBD.

SUMMARY

The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the
District Health Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements
and amendments to the adopted budget.

The Washoe County Health District (District) received a Notice of Grant Award from
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Food and Drug Administration in the
amount of $346,500 (369,300 per year), for the period September 12, 2012 through June
30, 2017 in support of the VNRFRPS Grant Program, IO TBD. A copy of the Notice of
Grant Award is attached.

District Board of Health strategic priority: Protect population from health problems
and health hazards.

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item: Sustainability, including financial
sustainability, sustaining our services and infrastructure, and sustainability of our natural
resources.

PREVIOUS ACTION

None

AGENDA ITEM # _

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279

www.washoecounty.us/health
WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER



District Board of Health
Page 2 of 3

BACKGROUND

The Washoe County Health District has been enrolled in the Voluntary National Retail
Food Regulatory Program Standards (VNRFRPS) since July of 2004. The Health
District completed the first self assessment in December of 2006 and has made progress
in each of the Standards. At this time Standard Seven - Industry and Community
Relations is complete and an audit was conducted for verification. A second self-
assessment was completed in May 2012.

The Washoe County Health District’s intended outcome of this funding opportunity is to
continue with and increase the momentum of the implementation and development of
building capacity and sustainability of the Health District’s Retail Food Program within
the standards of the FDA Program Standards. This funding opportunity will enhance the
Health District’s ability to meet the long term goal of meeting the VNRFRPS and the
Washoe County Health District Board of Health’s (DBOH) strategic plan. The DBOH’s
strategic plan includes the adoption of meeting all nine standards. Implementation of the
Voluntary National Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards is a high priority. This
has been on an “As resources are available basis.” This grant will speed up our full
implementation of the VNRFRPS by providing added development resources

The enhancement of this grant will allow for the hiring of intermitent eployees into
already existing intermittent positions. The intent is to hire individuals who were
previous employees or Registered Environmental Health Specialists . This added capacity
will help to ensure the five year strategic plan of meeting the criteria of the VNRFRPS is
met. The meeting of the criteria of the Program Standards will provide a firm foundation
for the Health Districts Retail Food Program which can be sustainable.

FISCAL IMPACT

Should the Board approve these budget amendments, the adopted F'Y13 budget will be
increased by $63,000 in the following accounts:

Amount of
Account Number Description Increase/(Decrease)
2002-10-TBD-431100 Federal Revenue $63,000
2002-10-TBD-701130 Pooled Positions 62,100
-705230 Medicare 900
Total Expenditures $63,000

The difference between the Notice of Grant Award of $69,300 per year and the budget
amendment of $63,000 is $6,300 which will be collected in indirect revenue. No budget
adjustment is needed for the indirect revenue.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve the Notice of Grant Award
from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Food and Drug Administration




District Board of Health
Page 3 of 3

for the period September 12, 2012 through June 30, 2017 in the amount of $346,500
($69,300 per year) in support of the Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary

National Retail Food Regulatory Grant Program (VNRFRPS), I0 TBD; and approve
amendments totaling an increase of $63,000 in both revenue and expense to the FY13
VNRFRPS Grant Program, I0 TBD.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Move to approve the Notice of Grant Award from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Food and Drug Administration for the period September 12, 2012
through June 30, 2017 in the amount of $346,500 ($69,300 per year) in support of the
Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food Regulatory Grant
Program (VNRFRPS), 10 TBD; and approve amendments totaling an increase of $63,000
in both revenue and expense to the FY13 VNRFRPS Grant Program, 10 TBD.




Notice of Grant Award
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS Issue Date: 09/12/2012
Department of Health and Human Services
Food and Drug Administration

Grant Number: 1U18FD004668-01

Principal Investigator(s):
Tony Macaluso

Project Title: Limited Competition: Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Fo

Mr. Macaluso, Tony

Environmental Health Specialist Supervisor
PO Box 11130

Reno, NV 895200027

Budget Period: 09/12/2012 — 06/30/2013
Project Period: 09/12/2012 — 06/30/2017

Dear Business Official:

The Food and Drug Administration hereby awards a grant in the amount of $69,300 (see “Award
Calculation” in Section | and “Terms and Conditions” in Section lIl) to COUNTY OF WASHOE in
support of the above referenced project. This award is pursuant to the authority of PHS Act,Sec
-1706,42 USC 300u-5,as amended;Sec2(d),PL 98-551 and is subject to the requirements of this

statute and regulation and of other referenced, incorporated or attached terms and conditions.

Acceptance of this award including the “Terms and Conditions” is acknowledged by the grantee
when funds are drawn down or otherwise obtained from the grant payment system.

If you have any questions about this award, please contact the Grants Management Specialist
and thle Project Officer listed in the terms and conditions.

Grants Management Officer

Office of Acquisitions & Grants Services
Division of Acquisition Support and Grants
Grants & Assistance Team

FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION

See additional information below

Page-1




"SECTION | — AWARD DATA — {

A Calculati $S. Dollars

Salaries and Wages $63,000
Personnel Costs (Subtotal) $63,000
Federal Direct Costs $63,000
Federal F&A Costs $6,300
Approved Budget $69,300
Federal Share $69,300
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARD AMOUNT $69,300
AMOUNT OF THIS ACTION (FEDERAL SHARE) $69,300

SUMMARY TOTALS FOR ALL YEARS

YR | THIS AWARD [ CUMULATIVE TOTALS

1 ' 69,300 69,300
2 69,300 69,300
3 68,300 69,300
4 69,300 ' 69,300
5 69,300 69,300

* Recommended future year total cost support, subject to the availability of funds and satisfactory
progress of the project. ‘

Fiscal Information:
CFDA Number: 93.103
EIN: 1886000138A1
Document Number: UFDO04668A
Fiscal Year: 2012
IC CAN 01 02 03 04 05
FD 6990928 69,300 $69,300 $69,300 $69,300 $69,300

* Recommended future year total cost support, subject to the availability of funds and satisfactory
progress of the project. G

FDA Administrative Data:
PCC:/0OG: 4141/ Processed: ERAAPPS 09/07/2012

SECTION H — PAYMENT/HOTLINE INFORMATION - 1U18FD004668-01

PHS policy requires that you be informed that the DHHS Inspector General maintains a toll free

telephone number (800-368-5779) for receiving information concerning fraud, waste and abuse

under the grants and cooperative agreements. Such reports will be kept confidential and callers
may decline to give their names if they choose to remain anonymous.

Payments under this award will be made available through the DHHS Payment Management
System (PMS). PMS is administered by the Division of Federal Assistance Financing (DFAF),
Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary, Finance, which will forward instructions for obtaining
payments. Inquiries regarding the payment should be directed to: .

Division of Federal Assistance Financing
DASP/DASF/OS/DHHS

Page-2

RIVNGA e B 0 RGP L ane g A e B0 aa



P.O. Box 8021
Rockville, MD 20852
Telephone Number: 877-614-5533

Grantees are asked to register in the Central Contractor Registration (CCR) database.
Information about CCR is available at http://www.grants.gov/applicants/register_ccr.jsp. This
registration will be required as electronic grant processing is implemented.

SECTION Ill - TERMS AND CONDITIONS - 1U18FD004668-01

This award is based on the application submitted to, and as approved by, FDA on the above-title
project and is subject to the terms and conditions incorporated either directly or by reference in
the following:

a. The grant program legislation and program regulation cited in this Notice of Grant Award.

b. The restrictions on the expenditure of federal funds in appropriations acts to the extent
those restrictions are pertinent to the award.

c. 45 CFR Part 74 or 45 CFR Part 92 as applicable.

d. The PHS Grants Policy Statement, including addenda in effect as of the beginning date
of the budget period.

e. An annual Financial Status Report (SF-269) is required. An original and two ¢opies of
this report must be submitted to the FDA Grants Management Officer within 90 days after
the expiration date of the budget period.

f. AFinal Program Report, Financial Status Report and Invention Statement must be
submitted within 90 days after the expiration date of the project period.

g. This award notice, including the terms and conditions cited below.

Treatment of Program Income:
Additional Costs

SECTION IV - FD Special Terms and Condition — 1U18FD004668-01
Voluntary Retail Standards Conditions of the Award - 1J18FD004668-01

This grant has been selected under the FDA- grants management plan to redistribute grant

. workloads more evenly throughout the year. Consequently, the initial budget period reflects a
06/30/2013 end date. Subsequent budget periods will begin on 07/01/2012 and will be for a12-
month duration. Although this grant will have a slightly shorter budget period this year, it is
awarded the full 12-month level of funds for the budget period. Additional time may be requested
at the end of the project period if needed.

Special conditions:

Provide a detailed response to all weaknesses identified in the Summary Statement no
later than 6-months from the date of award.

Provide funding certification of the current year?s budget for the retail foods regulatory
program to demonstrate that these funds have supplemented, and not replaced, State
allocations. If a decrease in allocations does occur during the cooperative agreement, a detailed
justification must be provided to FDA for approval.

Facilities, work, training, and other expenses reimbursed under other funding
mechanisms must remain distinct and separate from the cooperative agreement.

Agree to share strategies, documents, and other resources developed using cooperative
agreement funds with other programs to advance conformance with the Retail Standards and
reduce the occurrence of contributing risk factors associated with foodborne illness. Grantees
may be asked to provide summaries of projects that may be publicly shared. v

Page-3

FUARUA W rersin 5208 09 2036 190171 [Cencraiea v 08 07 101 118 e



Contribute to the continuous improvement and advancement of the Retail Standards.
Contributions may include participation in committee meetings, presentations, promotion of new
strategies, and sharing of resources. :

Future funding will be dependent on recommendations from the Project Officer. The
scope of the recommendation will confirm that acceptable progress has been made in advancirig
conformance with the Retail Standards, continued compliance with all FDA regulatory
requirements, and, if necessary, a corrective action plan has

been implemented.

Funding restrictions:

These awards may only be used for advancing conformance with the Retail Standards and other
projects that support the intended outcomes of the cooperative agreement program.

Allowable costs include: _

1) Audiovisual materials such as videotapes, DVDs, public service announcements, etc.

2) Consultant services

3) Employee salaries, wages and fringe benefits

4) Rental, purchasing, calibration, and maintenance of supplies and equipment

5) indirect costs

6) Recruitment costs for hiring new employees

7) Registration fees

8) Purchase or development of IT equipment, software, and support

9) Shipping and mailing of equipment and supplies

10) Travel

11) Speaker fees

12) Subcontracting to third parties (other than local/county/tribal agencies) is allowed but limited
to 10% of each year's award.

Non-allowable costs:

1) Facilities, work, and training reimbursed under other funding mechanisms must remain distinct
and separate from the cooperative agreement. The State must be able to account separately for
fund expenditures, including employee salaries, wages, and benefits, under the food safety
inspection contracts and other funding mechanisms and these cooperative agreements.

2) Vehicle purchases are not permitted.

3) Cooperative agreement funds may not be utilized for new building construction; however,
remodeling of existing facilities is allowed, provided that remodeling costs do not exceed 10% of
the grant award amount,

4) Please also refer to the HHS Grants Policy Statement for additional information regarding
costs.

Reporting requirements:

When multiple years are involved, awardees will be required to submit the Non-Competing
Continuation Grant Progress Report (PHS 2590) annually and financial statements as required in
the HHS Grants Policy Statement.

A final progress report, invention statement, and the expenditure data portion of the Federal
Financial Report are required for closeout of an award, as described in the HHS Grants Policy
Statement.

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Transparency Act), includes
a requirement for awardees of Federal grants to report information about first-tier subawards and
executive compensation under Federal assistance awards issued in FY2011 or fater. All
awardees of applicable HHS grants and cooperative agreements are required to report to the
Federal Subaward Reporting System (FSRS) available at www.fsrs.gov on all subawards over
$25,000. See the HHS Grants Policy Statement for additional information on this reporting
requirement.

Mid-year progress reports must contain the elements below as applicable to their proposal and
award, but are not limited to, the following:

Page-4



1. Detailed progress report on the grantee meeting the project milestones identified in the
proposal. '

2. Status report-on the hiring and training of food program personnel

3. Status report on the operational readiness of equipment, supplies, software, and other
purchases using cooperative agreement funds.

4. Certification of current appropriation funding levels for the retail food regulatory program.

S. A strategic plan that accurately reflects when specific objectives and tasks have been, or will
be, completed and/or implemented and when new objectives and tasks are identified to advance
conformance with the Retail Program Standards. The strategic plan should include timeframes,
responsible personnel, and other required

resources. .

*6. Description of program improvements in achieving conformance with the Retail Program
Standards and promoting more effective control of foodborne illness risk factors in.

7. Cooperative agreement project point of contact (including mailing address, telephone riumber,
and email address) and designation of key personnel working on project.

8. Estimated unobligated balance, funds expanded, and funds remaining on this project.

9. Any pending issues, concerns, or challenges encountered in accomplishing the planned work.
Provide corrective actions and proposed solutions. Identify any additional support that can be
provided by FDA., )

The final program progress report must provide full written documentation of the entire project
and summaries of accomplishments and goals, as described in'the grant application. The
documentation must be.in a form and contain sufficient detail such that other agencies could
reproduce the final project. The final program progress report should also detail the strategy to
continue advancing conformance with the Retail Program Standards (current and future
versions).

Monitoring Activities:

The ORA Project Officer and Technical Advisor will monitor award recipients periodically. The
monitoring may be in the form of face-to-face meetings, telephone conversations, e-mails, or
written correspondence between the project officer/grants management officer and the principal
investigator. Periodic site visits with officials of the recipient organization will occur, including
program assessments and audits. The results of these monitoring activities will be recorded in
the official cooperative agreement file and will be made available to the grant recipient, upon
request, consistent with applicable disclosure statutes and FDA disclosure regulations. Also, the
grantee organization must comply with all special terms and conditions of the cooperative -
agreement, including those which state that future funding of the project will depend on
recommendations from the Project Officer and Technica! Advisor.

The scope of the recommendation will confirm that:

(1) There has been acceptable progress on the project; (2) there is continued compliance with all
FDA regulatory requirements; and (3) if necessary, there is an indication that corrective action
has taken place.

All formal correspondence/reports regarding the grant should be signed by an authorized .
institutional official and the Principal Investigator and should be sent to the attention of the grants
management specialist, unless otherwise directed.

Failure to comply with the above stated Standard and Special Terms and Conditions could resutt
in the suspension or termination of this grant project.

THE EXPANDED AUTHORITIES DO NOT APPLY TO THIS GRANT.

Project Officer: Wendy Campbell for inquiries and questions regarding programmatic aspects or
concerns: Phone 615-310-0483/E-mail: Wendy.Campbell@fda.hhs.gov

Grants Management Specialist: Dan Lukash for inquiries and questions regarding administrative
matters or financial concerns: Phone: 301-827-6771/E-mail: daniel.lukash@fda.hhs.gov

Direct inquiries regarding scientific programmatic issues to the official listed below.

Page-5



Direct inquiries regarding fiscal and/or administrative matters to the grants management specialist
listed below. '

All formal correspondence/reports regarding the grant should be signed by an authorized
institutional official and the Principal Investigator and should be sent to the attention of the grants
management specialist, unless otherwise explicitly directed.

STAFF CONTACTS :
Grants Management Specialist; Daniel Lukash

SPREADSHEET SUMMARY
GRANT NUMBER: 1U18FD004668-01

INSTITUTION: COUNTY OF WASHOE

"Budget |  Year1 Year 2 Year3 Year 4 Year 5
Salaries and |$63,000 ’
Wages
Personnel 1$63,000
Costs (Subtotal) )
TOTAL $63,000 $63,000 $63,000 $63,000 $63,000
FEDERAL DC
TOTAL $6,300 $6,300 $6,300 1$6,300 $6,300
FEDERAL.-F&A
TOTAL COST 169,300 $69,300 $69,300 $69,300 $69,300

Page-6

BN NG s eomien Bt 0k O 3 15 L e Senerat g un BB 0T 00, Tt b




AGENCY: Food & Drug Administration v DATE
812712012 ‘
14. CENTER/PROGRAM
ORA
Z.LiST NUMBER 3. APPROPRIATION NUMBER
FD 004668 - 01 75120600 2B992NVRPS24668
4 CAN® 5. PMS CODE"
6990928 22390B40
8. OBJECT GLASS ‘ ‘ 7. TYPE OF ANARD
4141 New
5. GRANT NUMBER 1 9. DOCUMENT NUMBER 70, EIN NUMBER
i U18 ¥D 004668 - 01 UFD004668A 1886000138A1
1. REGIPIENT OF AWARD
Tony Macaluso
Washoe County Health District
PO Box 11130
Ranno, NV 88520
1%, PROJEGT PERIOD ‘ B 73, BUDGET PERIOD
9/10/2012 -6/30/2017 871012012 - 6/30/2013

14, APPRGVED FOR OBLIGATION
DIRECT: $ 63,000  INDIRECT: $6,300 FEE: N/A TOTAL: $69,300

15. SPECIAL CONDITIONS

6. REMARKS
PLEASE NOTE:

Please scan the signed document/approval list and emali to danlel.lukash@fda.hhs.gov .

17, PROJECT OFFICER 18, CENTER/OFFICE

Wendy Campbell
%(\ LW/@'(/KK /"Funds Avallable : ,:5 09’)‘\4\ %\Hﬂm
19. APP D BY DIRECTER, (or individua mut& ty)
Michel, er, Director, ORNORMIDMO

" 20, APPROVED BY DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF FIWAL MANAGEMENT

P et
ERTIFICATION OF Chief G TS MANAGEMENT OFFICER, OAGS andfor Grants Management Officer

Q/7 /ZJ/ L./

21.£

s
Form FDA 3349 (2/97)




DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. D.

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT @
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION :

Public Heal

Prevent. Promote. Protect.

DATE: March 28, 2013
TO: District Board of Health
FROM: Kevin Dick, Director

Air Quality Management Division
SUBJECT: Truckee Meadows Regional Plan Annual Report

Agenda ltem: 8D

Staff Recommendation

Accept the Air Quality Management Division portion of the Truckee Meadows Regional
Plan Annual Report.

Background

The requirements for regional plan annual reporting are drawn from the Nevada
Revised Statutes. The statutes require each local planning commission responsible for
the preparation of a city or county master plan and each affected entity to prepare and
submit to the regional planning commission and the governing board a complete report
on progress to implement the Regional Plan by April 1 of each year

This attached report summarizes the progress made in 2012 by the Washoe County

Health District, Air Quality Management Division to implement the Regional Plan. It aiso

includes a section on ongoing 2012 projects or policies scheduled to be completed early

2013 and projects or policies that are planned to begin early 2013 that further or assist
- in carrying out the Regional Plan.

,.;’ ol )/ <

‘Kevin Dick, Division Director
Air Quality Management Division

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 « (775) 784-7200 « FAX (775) 784-7225

www.washoecounty.us/health
Printed on Recycled Paper DBOH AGENDA ITEN NO. 8. D.



March 28, 2013
DBOH/TMRPA Annual Report
Page 2

2012 Regional Plan Annual Report
Washoe County Health District - Air Quality Management Division
(Reporting Period: January - December 2012)

B.7 NATURAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT, Air Quality

In 2012, there were two exceedances of the 8-hour ozone National Ambient Air Quality
Standards (NAAQS) and no exceedances of the 24-hour PM2.5 NAAQS. There were
no exceedances of any other criteria air pollutant. In December 2012, EPA
strengthened the health-based annual PM2.5 NAAQS by lowering the standard from 15
ug/m3 to 12 ug/m3. All areas of Washoe County currently meet the new revised
standard.

In November 2012, the Washoe County District Board of Health adopted the 2011
periodic emissions inventory. Updating the inventory every three years is a required
element of the ozone, PM10, and carbon monoxide State Implementation Plans (SIP).
Inventories are a comprehensive accounting of all sources of air pollutant emissions in
the county. They are the foundation for developing control strategies in order to
maintain attainment of the NAAQS. They are also used to measure the progress of
existing programs such as the motor vehicle inspection/maintenance and residential
wood burning programs. Inventories also used to establish Motor Vehicle Emission
Budgets that ensure long and short-range transportation plans will conform to air quality
SIPs.

Transportation-related emissions are a significant source of air pollutants in Washoe
County. The Washoe County Health District - Air Quality Management Division
(WCHD-AQMD) actively participated on the Regional Transportation Commission’s
Technical Advisory Committee and the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
Agency Working Group to support cleaner transportation options such as ride sharing,
improved bikeways and pedestrian facilities, and an expanded public transportation
network.

The WCHD-AQMD participates in the statewide Nevada Electric Vehicle Accelerator
(NEVA, formerly known as the Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Readiness Task Force) to
develop charging infrastructure to support the adoption and use of electric vehicles in
the state. WCHD-AQMD implemented a project with funding from EPA to purchase an
electric vehicle (EV) for use by Health District staff, and install two EV charging stations
at the Washoe County Complex.



March 28, 2013
DBOH/TMRPA Annual Report
Page 3

The charging station was opened. in October 2012 and as an introductory incentive, the
stations were available free to public during normal business hours. The stations are
part of the ChargePoint Network and the initial infrastructure network being developed
through NEVA. The Nissan Leaf purchased through the project replaces a gasoline
powered vehicle used in the WCHD-AQMD fleet, and is used to promote EVs to the
public. Increased adoption of electric vehicles has the potential to reduce emissions of
ozone precursors in the Truckee Meadows and increase utilization of available
geothermal power base load.

The WCHD-AQMD established a project with the University of Nevada, Business
Environmental Program to work with local fleets to assist them in efforts to improve fuel
efficiency and reduce vehicle emissions. The project is being conducted in conjunction
with the local chapter of the Rocky Mountain Fleet Managers Association. Funding for
the project was provided through June 2013 through a grant AQMD received from the
DMV Excess Reserve account.

The WCHD-AQMD was an active member of the Bike to Work Week, Walk to School,
and Safe Routes to Schools committees. Approximately 800 riders, dozens of schools,
and hundreds of students participated in the 2012 events to help reduce vehicle trips,
vehicle miles traveled, and air pollutant emissions. Additional benefits included
improved physical health, decreased traffic congestion, and lower commute costs.

Improving energy efficiency in buildings reduces energy consumption and air pollutant
emissions. The WCHD-AQMD continued to participate in green building initiatives such
as HomeFree Nevada (EPA’'s Home Performance with Energy Star sponsor for
Nevada), and the Nevada State Office of Energy, EnergyFit Nevada Campaign.
Homeowners are eligible for significant rebates and audit discounts for conducting an
energy audit and retrofit that achieves 15% or more energy savings through the
HomeFree Nevada program. An additional benefit of green building design and retrofits
is the opportunity to improve indoor air quality and reduce water consumption
associated with the buildings and landscaping. Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County
each proclaimed EnergyFit Nevada Day in October 2012 and promoted the program to
their citizens. '

In addition to serving as President of HomeFree Nevada, the WCHD-AQMD Director
also participated in the Regional Green Team to coordinate with other local government
jurisdictions on energy efficiency, renewable energy, green building and other
sustainability approaches and projects.



March 28, 2013
DBOH/TMRPA Annual Report
Page 4

The Director and staff participated on the Washoe County Green Team to coordinate in
a similar fashion at the county government level.

F. A GLIMPSE AT 2013

The EPA establishes National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for six criteria
pollutants. These NAAQS are required to be reviewed every five years. In late 2013,
EPA is expected to propose strengthening of the current 8-hour ozone NAAQS of 75

ppb.

A Transportation Conformity State Implementation Plan (SIP) is being developed to
improve interagency coordination. This will ensure that long and short-range
transportation plans include an air quality analysis demonstrating conformance with
local air quality plans. The federally enforceable SIP outlines the roles and
responsibilities of local (WCHD-AQMD, RTC, TMRPA), state (Nevada Department of
Transportation, Nevada Division of Environmental Protection), and federal (Federal
Transit Administration, Federal Highway Administration, Environmental Protection
Agency) stakeholders. The Washoe County District Board of Health is expected to
adopt the Transportation Conformity SIP in January 2013, then the SIP will be
submitted to EPA in March 2013. The WCHD-AQMD will work with the interagency
group to provide air quality



WV 866 ¢102/0T/¢
1 93eqg

61/¢ pepruqas

“TT/E °Mp “61/€

o Aoe1§ pue ‘Apue)
‘BA91g 0] pajlewd

‘bax 90N T1B0S1q P09y

1oeduy
ON :joedurf [eosLy e
Korjod e
120UBUIPI) e
;WonIsog e
Ausel, e (01L-0¥ YAd) 'sesmu
WOMOY e Koydwus je13 S9NI[IOB] 018D TI[RaY
Kuoug e FuIIoono09 s95uLyd SNOLIBA SOYEIA 01L¥ag
81/¢
Uo 90f PUE qOg 01 P[IEUId
‘g1/¢ uo Teaq 10] boyy p.ooy
oedwr] [eos,] e
Koo e Surary
120UBUIPI) e puE emnoudy
Bt (ze1-y ¥as) ‘seomosay
Amsel, e "weI301J S[00YDS S BOLISWTY U} [emieN
WOIPY e J0 syuo053e Surpokoal pue ‘sdrgsioupred U0 29PIWWO))
KoLy e ‘swrea3oxd oty 10f 11oddns sassaxdxyy Surpuag AJqQuiossy €MDV
81/¢
Uo 90f pue qog 0} PAILS
‘g1/€ uo Teaq JoJ boy p,ooy
noedwy [BOSI] e
%) 1 (oF: SIS Suramy
JUBUIpI) e pue ‘@Imnotdy
‘uonisod e (6119 4as) ‘590M0SaY
AJuse], e "BuroAoa1 wreans-o3urs 10J surerford [eInIeN
UOIDY e S[qB[IBAR o3EW O} SISUOISSTUILIOD U0 99IWUWO)) _
Ao e A1noo Jo paeoq saSemoouy Surpusg A[quassy YDV
JUIWUSISSY JJ€)S Joedui] [eosig/sisA[euy/punoidydeg L1ewiming snjels 10suodg #
29 UONEPUIMIUIOINY Arewag g 10 yag

"H'8 "ON W] epuady HOGA

Jr0day] A)ANOY SANE[SISIT €107




WV 86:6 £I10C/0T/¢
7 98eg

UIAS3] — 9¢/C uo ueq
PUE ‘UIASY] “00[ O} PopIeAIO]

— 97/7 U0 A0IISNA

ue(] wox woddns 03 3sonbey

:oedury TeosIy
:Kotjod
“90URUIPIO
uonIsod
:AmsaL,
Y}oeli], [UONOY
Y31y Aol

"SO[OTY2A
pauSIsuod ureIsd yo Surse) STOISSIUID
a1} 03 Surje[aI SUOISIAOIA SISIATY

¥96-0 4dd

(zny *Q) AoreH JLIoyS.

s SunjIom ST 19SY “I(T)

oedw] [BOSLY
:Ko1104
190UBUIPIO
j1oddng wonisod
SaX :Ayuso],
YorLL UOIOY
Y3y :Ayiorg

"uoryuaAaId
JOTISI[PASU PUB 559098 9FULIAS
o110)s JuruaoAoS suorsiaoad sasiaey

[Sy-0F 4ad

61/¢

pawImalI 10g/€ 90p ‘81/€
uo Adelg pue ‘Apue))
‘9AQ]§ 0] pafIews 9JON
[eosLq 1o boy p.ooy

peduy

[eas1y oN :1oedury [eosty
a1 (8 |

190UBUIPIO

uonIsod

:Aynss L

ULy

:Auond

(EvL-91 dQ9) dwHo J0
SWIOIA SUIUISA0F SUOISTAOID SISTASY

134 (et

MW USISSY JJels
29 UOI}EPUIW 0D

poeduy [eosiy/sisA[euy/punoisyaeg

Lrewung

SmE)S

Josuodg
Arewnag

#
g 10 Jad

"H'8 "ON W] epuedy HOAd

10doy A)ANIY IANRISISIT €107




WV 86:6 €102/0T/¢
¢ 98egd

:oeduy TeosT
:Kor104
:90UBMIPIQ)
uonIsoq
Amso,
Moel], UOTOY
Y31H :ALIoLJ

. (657-61 ¥asg)
'$991]0U [eF9] pue sp1odsel onqnd

FurueAod suorsiaoid uIeIIeo sesIAcy

Surpuag

SIejry
JUSTILISAOL)

¥ v

;oedu Teosty
:Korj0d

:90URUIPI)

AluQ

JUAWWIO)) TOIISOJ
ON :AJnsa],
JOJIUOTA [UOIOY
Mo Loy

(9z¢-1¥ 4Ag) ueuIuIEO}uD
SAI] UO Xe) 91} JO JUSUIS0IOTUD
2y} SurureAoS suorsiAod sosTAdy

Supueg

Arerorpnf

tdv

€1/€ uo pepuodsar
‘puodsar 03 Asyeg ‘11/€ UO
1sonbay] 910N [BSI] P.o9Y

:3oedwy [eosI]
:Kotfod

190TURUIPIO

A[uQ

JUAWWO)) TUONISO
ON :AJnsa,
J0JWOTA] [UOTIOY
MO :AIotig

"pun,f JiesH oY) Aq PaqIosqe e So9] yueq
[V "PIed J1qap IO 1IPaId Aq 9pell UOTJOBSURI)
asodmd Aue 03 09 90ULIUSATOD IO 9FTRYOINS

© Ajdde jou s20p 10LUSIT YIEOH YL "885°61$
- BIUUSL SININY ‘H6L°6$ - ST-VIAA ‘6L 6$
- V1-€1Ad ‘P6L°6$ - €1-T1 Ad I9edu] [edST]

(¥201-TS WAH) "suonoesuey pres
P31 01 SUTIR[aI S99] UTELIAD SHAIYOI]

veol
-6 dad

*o8enSue| oy 03 pasoddo

10U ST I0LOSIT Y3feaH 9y} Jel
L7/ uo ue(] 01 papuodsai

UMW UBISSY JJeIs

29 UONBPUIUITOINY

poeduy [edsi/sisA[euy,/punoidyoeyg

Arewiming

smye)g

1osuodg
AxewLig

#
e o Jyad

"H'8 "ON W] Bpuedy HOHJ

J10day A)ANOY ADEISISIT €107




NV 856 €107/0T/€
 98eg

poeduy [eosIq
:Katjog

120UBUIPIQ
uonIsod

:Aynsa 1,

Buppoel], uonOVY
Y3y :Ayotid

UR SppE OS[e g U009 'SaSuRYD JUIULIOJUOD
SeU [[1q SIY} JO § PUB 9 SUOHIS “MmeE]
Sumsxo ur Appuarmo me  Sunesy wed( oyl 03
suonduroxs pue suondoeoxs pue Jo Ayiqesrdde
o) 01 Sumyerer suorstaoid Jo isi] e soprduros
111q ST( JO 7 U0n99s (070" 14T SUN) aImess
ur Ajfeonroads yuog 10s suondeosxe payruur]
m ‘orignd a3 03 uado aq serpoq o1yqnd o
s3urjeout jey} saxmbar meJ Sunesy uedQ ayT,

(£09-61 Mag) ‘sSunesw uado
0] ﬁoﬁﬂou mﬂoﬁm;oa mﬂotw\w mom_>om

Surpuog

SIegy
JUSTIIIOAOL)

9 dv.

;oeduy [eost,]
:Ko1104
:90UBUIPIO
uonIsoq

AJnsaL
suppeL], ;uonoy
:Atoud

(292-01 ¥Q9g) "seour)sWNIID
UIe}199 ISPUn SISUIRIIOD
3ur[oAo21 pue ysern Jo o3eiols
J0OPINO 91} MO[e 0} SO0
pouuerd Jo suoneroosse samnbay

Surpuaq

Arerorpng

a4\

yoedury [eoSIq
:Katfog
190UBUIPIQ
uonIsog

ON :AJTISa,
J0JIUOJA] (UOHOY
Mo Auoug

(11z-61 4ag) ‘sprosaromnqnd
0} Furje[a1 SUOISIA0Id SNOLIEA SOSIASY

Surpuag

SIERY

It gv

€1/€7/1 UO PaIuQ
‘SJUoUILIOD SpeW Ppo], "I(
f0T/1 U0 19Ty SALR[SISo]
(ppoL W)

ON :1oeduwy [eost
oN :Ao1j0d

ON :99UBUIPIO
310ddng ‘uonisod
ON :AJusoL
JOJUOTA] UOTIOY
Mo KAuong

(11€-01 9ag)

"SONI[IOe] [eSTPIW UIeL00 Je sjuaned
Jo A3078S pue ey 1) 01 Sune[es
suorstaoxd 3o asodmd oy} 10 JU0Ad
JUTIUSS,, JO UOHIUIISP ) SASTASY

Jurpued

JUSUITLIDAOLD)

Pajels J0N

8z dgv

JUOWUBISSY JJvlS
29 UOHBPUIW W 0N

pedury [easif/sisd[euy/punoidydeg

Argewiming

snjels

Josuodg
ArewiLig

#
g 10 3ag

A’ "ON Wwelf epusdy HOIA

110doY A)AIY 9ANR[SISIT €107




WV 856 €10T/0T/€
G 98eq

37} JO SJSOIOIUT 1S9 93 UL 9q POM UOTINOasoxd
Bu103910] 7B} SOUITLISAP [RISUSL) ASIONY
a3 J1 UOHEOIA PaF[[® a3 JO uonmossoid
9OUSUIWIOD 0] JOU IPIOIP. ABUW [RIOUSL) ASUIONY
AU} ‘VOTIR[OTA PIFI[[e Ue IoJe SABP (€ UIIM
TOTJOR OAII91LI0D UTRLIOD saye) Apoq orqnd
© J1 78y} sapIA0Id [TIq ST JO 4 uonods (LEO T+
SUND) “meT Suneay uad( oy |Pim Adwod o1
Apoq o11qnd a3 axmbai 0) woryR[OIA PaFe[[E Uk,
Toyre sKep OTT UIgMm () 10 “PIOA Pare[dap Apoq
o1pqnd o1} £q TONOR U 9ARY O} UOHE[OIA pada[[e
ue 1oye sAep (9 urgiim (1) :Apoq o1jqnd e ans 03
o17qnd 913 JO JoqUISW © IO [eIouar) AQUIONY oY)
sezLIoyIne me SunsIXy (6£0° 17T SUN) “MET
Sunesy wadQ o1 Jo uone[oIA Ae 9noosord
pue sjednseAur o} paanbai st feiousn Lourony
oy ‘me] SunsIxe 1o0pun (9€0° 14T SUN)
“proA st meT 3unesy uedQ 9yl JO UOTIB[OIA
ur Apoq orjqnd  £q uoye) uonjoe Auy -Surjosnt
ot 18 Apoq orjqnd oy Jo sIoquuowr Ie[nJax
o1 se szomod owes oy} 9SI1010X9 0} uosiod
© [oNs So[IUQ pue JureoW oY) je wronb
& Sururunioyep jo sesodind 1oj £Apoq orpqnd
91[1 JO I9qUIOWI B 9q 0} pajeuSisap os uosiod
Aue suraop ‘FunrIm Ul apewr 9q uoneusIsop yons -
Aue yey) ssamnbai osye ¢ uonoss "Apoq s1qnd oy
Ppoiears e AJLIoyIne [e39] JOYI0 IO WONN[OSAT
‘9ouRUIPIO ‘OIMe)s ‘woIsTA0Id [eUOTINITISUuoD
o1 £q os op 03 pazuoyine Afssexdxs a1e Apog
orpqnd 91} JO SISqUISUI SSA[UN JOQUISUI ST} JO
ooe[d oy ur Apoq orjqnd o1 Jo Supesw e pusye
o1 moszod e Suneusisop woxg Apoq oijqnd & Jo
Ioqusw e suqryod q[1q siy Jo ¢ uonoes "Apoq
orqnd a1} J0y s108] J0 uonismboe oy 01 Sunerer
SSUIAIIOR UL A[o[0S PaSe3uo ST 9aNIHooqns
JO 92 IWoo I} ueym Apoq orjqnd
© JO 99)IUIOOqNS IO 901U © JO sTuneswu
WV 00:6 @ €1/¢ :Sunesy I0y meT Suneay uado oy 03 wonduwoxa

JUIWUIBISSY JJeIs 1oedmy [BOSL/SISA[BUY/pUnoIdjoeg Aleurmng snjels "~ aosuodg #

29 UON)EPUIMOINY . Arewiig g 1o yag

110day] £11AOY AANESISIT €107
"g'8 "ON Wy epualy HOAA ,




NV 856 ¢£10T/0T/¢
9 o8ed

sexmnbai os[e £ uonoag -orqnd o) 01 o[qe[IEAR
st [erxojenr Surroddns oy a10yM SUOLBOO] 9] JO
181 & () pue ‘Sunjeawi e 10§ [erojewt Suroddns
o3 3senbarx Aew o1jqnd 913 Jo Tequueta

& woym woy Apoq orqnd sy} Aq pajeuSisop
uosiod o) J0J UOHEULIOJUT JORIUOY PUR SUIRT

ot (1) :Sunesw © 10] 951)OU ST} WO SpN[OUL
Apoq o1pqnd © yey) saarnbai [j1q STY} JO £ UOTI0AS
(020°1¥T SUN) "epusSe a1 uo woy e 10y Apoq
arqnd ay3 Jo srequewr 03 papraoid ‘suondooxs
ueIad gum ‘errerewr Supoddns Jetjo

pue ‘3unesur 91y J8 pSSNoSIp aq 0) uorensax
10 9oueurpio pasodoid Aue ‘Guneswr oy

103 epusse ue Jo £dos © spraoid oy ‘eSreyo ou

je pue 3sonbox uodn ‘paambar st Apoq orqnd ©
‘me] Funesy uedQ o1 Iepuy) "UOIEOTUNTIIOD
3TUOX09[9 JO sueaw Aq Jo wostod ur yuesard

9q Aewr sIoquiow Jo winionb e 1eY) seLIE[o OS[e
9 UON90S "UOISIOap o1ewWn[n A1) 0} Areurujaid
§108] JO 93UBYIXa 9} IO UONISINDOR 2ATI0[[00
9} PUB UOISSNOSIP SANOS[[0O SOPN[OUI pue
uonoe ue Jsurede Jo 10§ SUOSeal ) uo Sunos[yar
pue SurySrom ‘FuIUIUIEXd UBSW 0} JUsIaINbal
sty Jo sasodand 10 81R19GI[SP,, SOUJOP

[11q STy JO 9 UONSS (STO'THT SUN) “Tomod
A10S1ApR X0 UonOIpsLMI ‘fonuoo ‘uoisiaradns sey
Apoq o1jqnd 91} YOI JOAO JO)IBTI B UO UONOB
9Y[1] JO UOISIOOP & PIBMO} 91BISqI[ap 03 Juesald
ST SIoquIaw s31 Jo wmionb & usym meT Sunao
uadQ o gum A1dwos o3 paxmbai st £poq arpqnd
® ‘suondooxo ureped I “A[uo Aeandsadsord
9ATIO]IS ST MeT Suneey uedQ ot Jo

UOLIB[OTA PIFI[Te UB 1921109 0} Apoq o1qnd & Aq
ussfe; wonoe Aue jey) sepiaoid 10ULmy  uonosg
"UOI10B SAIJO9.1I0O JO IXAJU0D oY) UI [RISUAL)
Kouionyy o) Aq poly aq Aetr me| Sunesn
uad( 9y} 9210JUS 01 SINSME] YOIYM Aq SUI[pesp
a1 sAep (¢ Aq SpuULIXs OS[e { uonoag orqnd

JUOWUSISSY JJe)s
2 UONBPUI W UOIIY

joeduy [eosig/sisA[euy/punoisydeyg

LAewuing

snje)s

Josuodg
Arewag

#
g 10 yad

4’8 "ON w9 epuady HOId

110day A)IANIY 2ANB[SISIT €107




WV 8S6 €£102/0T/¢
[ 9%ed

0/z uo mduy ‘0z/z
SJUSUINIO)) §,qOg P 091
‘y1/z o s0f

pue qog 01 popIemioy
P 1/T UO SJUSUIIOD)
103 3sonbayy p. ooy

;joedu] TeoSLy
ure)Iadu() (Korod
UTB)IDI() :90URUIPIO

Ao
JUAWWO)) ‘UOTISOd o “A)[IoRy OTed
ON :AJuse], e PIIYo © £q pakodwo aie Jo sjerado
JGJIUOTA] ‘UOTIOY o "KeMm IOU)I0 SONSSI OU 9ABY oA\ "UonoIpsunf oym suosiad ure11oo 10y paanbax uarzqog pIAe(
MY Aol e Ino Jo opISIno sjuewaImbal s10A09 J[1q ST, | Sururen pue suOEIIEND oY) SoSIASY Surpuag URWA[QUIOSS Y 601 4V
el/ee/1
o JSIOI] ON],, PAIoIUS
{[ennau oIe oM PIes UIAQY
‘81/1 UO LISV SAIE[SIBOT (sz-ov yag) S9OIAIOS UBWINE]
"BOJE UIBLID B UI POJROO] 9q 0} SUIBTIAL pue yI[eoy Uo
JSOI0JUY ON UONISOJ e uewny Joy AJ0JeISI0 B Saamnbay] Surpusd | eoprumuo)) SyeuUss 69 9V
[ s3213e o5 uosiad a1 JI [reT
OIUON0A]e AQ [RLI0JBUI 91} SATO00I 0] pajsonbal
sey oym uosrad e 01 a31sqom s3I o Sunsod
a1 03 ui| ® ®IA [eLew Suntoddns oy apraoid
0] Apoq o17qnd & Yons S9ZLIOYINE OS[e /, UOI03S
*Apoq orjqnd 1) JO SI9qUISW 3y 0 PIpIACId
SI [eLISJEW S} YOTUM T SUIT} oY} UBY) IoJe|
10U 931SqoMm §91 0} [errojew Funproddns oy 3sod |
01 (sypredg pue ouay] ‘seSoA SeT YMON ‘seSoA
SBT ‘UOSIOPUSH ‘AL WOSIBY) JO SONIO 97 pue
SAMUNOY) 0SB Pue AN UOAT ‘ON[H ‘Se[sno(y
Nae[D ApuaLInd) aiow 10 000y st uonemdod
9soyMm AJUnod 10 K310 © Jo Apoq SUIUIOA0S a3
JUDWUSISSY JJBlIS joedwy [eos1g/SISA[BUY/pUnoidydeg Alewiuing snyels Josuodg #
29 U0 EPUIWWO0ITY Krewitig md 10 yag

"H'8 'ON W] epuedy HOAd

J10day] A11ANOY ANEBISISIT €107




NV 866 £102/0T/€
g 93eq

g€1¢€ ury
‘WA 0¢:1 @ €102/9/€
U0 971 gV uo Juresy

ndux
SJUSUWITIOD {00( pue
qog 03 papremIog :S1/g

*01eS1ISOAUT 0 9ART] [[IM 9M Jey sjure[duroo

JO BOIE MOU B 9JBIID PUB SOWI} Toroadsul
9SBAIOUI [[IM ] 'SISeq Stwo3uo Ue U0 me|

SIY} 9010JU2 PUR JUSWIS[ATIN 0] SJSI[RIUSTIIONATI]
[RUOTIIPPE O] O} SUO ae] [[Im

J1 SUNRWIISO OTB 94\ 10K ULIOJ PIZI[RUL € UI 10T
oIe 99I0JUS 0} SARY P[NOM M JBY) SUOLR[NSaI
[RISPAJ 91 asNLI9Q ASU9Fe IO UO [[Iq ST} JO
sjoedwl [Ny o) SUIULIOP 03 J[NOLJIP AI9A ST 1]

“HOTJRULIOJUT [RUOMLINU JO 2IMSO[OsIp painbaix
([} 9B O} S[IB) OUM JUSUIYSI[qeISa POOJ [1e1al

JeIUIS JI0 JURIe)sal Aue Jo Iojeredo 10 Ioumo
oy 10] A)yeuad e sopraoxd [[Iq ST JO Z UOID9S

*9SO[ISIP 0] SWOIBOO] SIOUI IO ()7 YIIM TIRYD B

soxnba1 me[ [eIOPS] JeT) UOHRULIOFUI [BUONLNU "AJ[euoneu O] Uy} 10)eaIl sureyo asnoypoom
U0 HOTY SABE[SIZT o oWIES SY) 9SO[OSIP 01 AJBIS STY) UTYJIM SSOUISTq |  ore 181} SOMIIOB] [[e U0 sjuswennbox 20A0f I0JBULS
] Burop SUOIBOO] 910U I0 )] M UIBYD © JO [RISPS] 97} 90I0JUD 0) SHONIIpSLI| souof
Coes g). 1red ST By JUSUISI[QEISe POO] [[B)O JR[ITLIS IO JiesH seambsai 31 uonIppe unsnf I0jeuss
$9X oAU [BISLY, e JueIne)sal Aue Jo Jojeredo Io IsuMo oY) saxnbal U] ‘MO[[0] O} 9ARY P[NOAM dIO0WI KoTesy souref
S8 Korod e T1q STY3 3o T wonoss (HX(S)(B)ere§ "0's'N 10 (7 JO SUTeYo Yeyy syusuroxmbor TeWA[qUIBss Y
L2l f) et it (ORI [7) ‘JUSWISIqe]Sa IO JURINE)SAI oY) Aq A[es | [RIOPS] SWIES 9T} MO[[O] 03 SABY PNoM uosig Apuy
sptoddng I0J PISJJO SWA)I NUSWI Y} N0 UONBTLIONUT | A8y “AJN[IOR A9} Ul P[OS 10 PIAISS UBWAqUIASS Y
SHOD — AluQ [BUOTILINU UIB1IS0 SSO[OSIP 0] poxnbax POOJ 10] $198] [EUOT)LINY UTBLI30 usr1zqog pIAeq
JUDWWOT) UONIsod o ST ‘sjuewamnbaI 2.mMso[IsIp o1 09 393fqns aq 0} | 3s0d 03 A[EUONEU BIOW IO ()] JO UTRYD UBWA[qUIASSY
(osneoepy[ §399[0 () 10 ‘SWol nuUSW Swes oY) A[[eUeISqns | B oIe Jety) SONI[Ior) pooy ssxmbai [[ig Kazry [ned
“YOUINIIA “T3ST a[es 10J SULIGIJO PUB SWEH OWES oY) | TRWA[qUIOSS Y
o8g) SAX AUseL e Iopun ss9UIsT( SUTOP SUOIIBIO] OIOTH IO ()7 YIIM "SJURINEISSI UTRYD :(s)rosuodg-0D
HOBLL UOIPY o ureyd e Jo yred st (1) :187) JUOUINYSI[qER;SS pOo] UTELI30 UT WONRULIOJUT [RUOT)LINU . sa10[,1 Aon'y
YSIH A0 e | [TRJOX Je[TUIS JO JUBINEISII B ‘MEB] [RISPS] JOPU[) U[e)I99 JO 2INSO[OSIP o1 saxnbay Suipuogd | uBWOMA[qUISSSY 971 v
noedury [ROSL] e
Kotjod e
100URMIPIO e
uonisog e
Ansel, e "pooJ paiedaxd
Oy e JO SUIS)I UIBI9D JO $9SSaUIsng pIojuniy
Koy e POo0J-15e] AQ Soes U0 99] © sasoduuy Surpuag UBWA[qUISSS Y 71 9v
JUIWUSISSV JJe)S 3eduy [BS14/sIsA[eUY/punoidyoeyg L1ewung smje}s Josuodg #
2P HONEPUIIMO0IIY Arewing g 10 9¥qg

“q'8 "ON W9y epuedy HOG(

1oday A1andY 2Ane[sISoT €107




NV 85-6 ¢£107/0T/¢
6 93eq

£1/5/C U0 paIsue
SSJUSUIIIOD SPBW ULI

{G/Z U0 ATV 9AnE[sIFo]

(uoxi(y “H)

oN 1ordwy [BOSL]
oN :4Lo1104

ON :90uBUIpI
ja0ddng :uonisoq
ON :AJnsa,
AOJUOTA] UOTIOY
MO :AILIOTI]

"SI0JENSIUIpY
[000S JO UOTIEIOOSSY UBILISWY

‘11q styd

J0 oFenSue[ [eury oy} Jo Woddns ur a1om (ISDD
puB dSOM Woq [ 10T WO4 SoInUItl 990D
91} SuImarAsI uod() "UOISSSS 91} JO UOISN[OUWOD
o} Ioyfe JOUISAOD) 9} AQ PROJAA pUR [[(7 UI
21me[s139] oy) Aq passed sem [[1q ST, TAI0ISTH
“URIPID AJUno))

so1seM JO ey oy 1oedulr j0U PInosm [[1q
ST} “9I0FSIOY ], [[Tq ST} WA 9ouer]duwoo Tl osTe
SI POAISS ST 1SEJ3e21q SI9UM JO UOTR0] YT, [[Iq
sty ur pesodoad ssurotmn o) TpIM Souedurod
uI pop1aoad are spodal pue sppne s}onpuod
uoryeonpy Jo juewaede(y o1 ], oredionred
91qIS1[e Apua.Lmo oIk jey) [TV "wreidoxd
1sepRaIq of W gedronied 1ey) SJOOTOS ISOM
0 Apuarms ore a1y ], "qSOM I0J aonoeid
JUSLINS S3UeyD J0U P[NoM [[1q STyl ‘GSOM J0F
I9PIAOIJ SIOIAISS UOHLINN U1 YVINVIY
1R JOJORII(J JUBISISSY ‘Aase)) 112D 01 SuIpI0ooy
" [TesY [[eI2A0 pue ‘Ajrfenb 01p ‘oouepusye
[00Y9S ‘S21095 159} A0IdUIT UBD USIP[IYD

I0] 1sep[ealq AYIeay € JBY) SMOTS [oIBasay
"(S]00T[2s SWOOUT JOMO]) 6'SHT ' AD

[ UL YLI0J 19S 7 UOISIAOIJ [JIM 90UBPIOdIE

U SJO0YDS A1) Ul Jseyyesiq spraoid o) s)ornsip
[0042S AN [[e enmbal pinom |[iq STy, ‘SSA[EUY

(161-v€ IAd) s[ooyos
orgqnd ur wopLyNU Jo sweroxd

Surureaod suoisiaoxd sas1Acy

(pepuo uoIssas

Byge [10C
UI IOUIOAOD)

£q Pa019p)

SUBAIA]
pue skemy

pue TORRINDH
U0 SURIUIIO)
JUSLIMOUOYD)

Surpueg

uoneonpy
U0 201IUIIHO))
A[quiassy

LeT gV

"MET] [BIIPI4 1dpun pajengax

jou 31 ey sanOE) Jo dnoil v 0) me]
[erapayg Ajdde os[e pue me [RIIpa] Jopun
Pa1eN3al1 a1 Jey) SANI[IOL] ureyd ui Suraqe|
[eUOnIIINU JO JYSISIIAC SN SIAIS [[Iq SIYL, “ME]
pasodo.ad ay) 92.10Jud 0} JI3pI0 UI HOO°00TS~
JO 1500 ®© jE S)SI[EJUSWUOITAUY [BUON)IPPE

0M) PPE 0] JARBY [[IA A JBY) J)BUIIISO M

JUSUIUBISSY JJEIS
2% UONIRPUIWIO0IIY

joedury [eosiy/sisA[eny/punoidydeg

Alewroing

sE)S

Josuodg
Arewrig

y
iI'd 10 yadg

"d'8 "ON W] epusdy HOHA

310day AJANDY 9ANR[SISIT €107




NV 866 €107/0C/€
0] @3eq

‘g[ned pue ‘Q0f ‘UIAY

‘qog porrews ey1¢
WooI 1Z/Z uo ure ()0:8
I0J pe[npatos uresy

07/ U0 SjUSwuIod
mdur pue p o9y

we 05:0T @ 61/ U0
e[ned pue ‘wAsy ‘qog

0} PapIeMmIO) “€10T/61/C
uonen[eAy 10y 1senbay

"€10T/2¢/T 40 =3ep 2np
MO & J3Is pajsanbax

Sl usy) pue ¢[/¢

U0 PSY[ooued §[/7 UO
sgq 01 papIemIo] 0Z/7
UI[peap {1/ U0 910N
[eastq paisenbar Ljuno)

(urasy] pue qog)

sax oeduy [eosiq
sax :Aorjod
UMOIDU() :90URTIPIO)
papuswy

Jyroddng uonisog
(1387 a0 I

WoES) SAX AmsoL

9} [IUM SIOLASIP Hi[eay {2207 IOy PAySI[qe)ss

9Q PINOYS 9JBpUEBW OU Jng (203 © SB PIYSI[qrIso
9q YSIW SIY], "UOTBULIOJUT 9STUAOI] SSAUISN]
Te310d JO UONBZI[IIN 1O [BMIOJ 93e)S O} Iim
UOYJRIZIUI 0] SUI[PBOP POJEPUBHL B 9AOUISI

0] papuswe 9q Pnoys [[Iq SYL "PeIenSuOWap
U39q 104 10U SBY 19LISI(] Y9N oY) 03 Je[IwIs
senianoe Sumrnuied uriopied et serousSe awIg
Aq TelI0g 9181 oY) [IIM o1erSerur 03 AJIIqe oy L

‘sonIIqedes

Sumrmzed surjuo op1aoid 01 SLIOLS WOy
J910SIP YI[eaY 1) WIAIP P[nom pue peytoddns
AJeAnjoe Sureq 198U0] OU ST 0IRMIJOS ST, "(JH
o) AQ poZIIn ARULIMO aremiyos Sumpruuod
Jo vornjeoryrpowr axmbeor Aew [errod a1e1g

91} WO.J UONRULIOJUI SSSUISN] JO UOTIRZI[I()
101SI(T Yi[esH oY) Aq Sumunied sur[uo

J10J pasn aq 1ySrur gorym uoneosrjdde aremiyos
Sumruired SUWITUO WIM S[qISBa] ST uonRISarun
[Ons 197JoYm Moy 0} [eyod ST U0 UONBULIOTUY
JUSIOLIINS 9ARY JOU S0P JOLUSI(T P[BSH

oy, “pauyep si ferod oy M  ToneiSolur,,
MOV JB9[D JOU STJ] "9[qISed] 10U ST [epiod aje)s
ay) i uoneidaur pue Sumruried suruo Jof
91Bp 9A199Y° $107 ‘1 Atenuer oy1, “Sumrured
AUI[UO 10J AJokdeD o) 9ARY AJJUOLND

10U $30P 19LYSI(J [PIeSH AIUNOY) S0YSBAL ST

‘9JepuUR

Teo0] 01.10Lid syrunred oyeig oyeaSauy peLIog
.S A Yia uoneidequr pue Jurprusied suruo
Jo 9sn 21} [203 SUI SEJA "OIBPUB SAOTIY

‘1/10/10 Aq TeHod 1S
oy A o1eadarun pue ‘Surprurted surpuo spiaoxd

SIDVYL ‘uony 03 ‘Surprured U UONBULIOJUT 9SUADI[ $SIUISNg (L21-L dag) remod ssaursng Aeq doys
HOHIH :Auotg [e)10d 91e1S 9ZI[IIN 03 I9LUSI( Yiesy saambay | s1eis o1y 01 Juneras suorsiaoid sasiAcy Surpueg UBWAqUISSSY 6S1 9V
JUSWUSISSY JJBIS 1eduy [8as14/SISATeTY/punoisydeyq Adewmng smje)s Josuodg #
2 UO)BPUIWLI0IIY Krewnag g 10 yag

"g'8 "ON W] epuely HOE(

1odoy ANANOY dANE[SIZIT €10T




JAV 8616 €107/0T/S
11 98eq

‘ponsind
ST TIRJSAS 9IEMJOS Mo a1 se paytoddns AJoArior

IoSuo[ ou I yoTym 21emiyos Sumrurad 101msi( -

YIeoH SUIISIX9 9y} Ul JoqUUNU WOHEeoJIJuspl
ssoursnq oJe1s o) SureISour JOJ SJRUIIISI

1509 OU OS[e oIk 210y ], "9seqe)ep S AJunop) o
OJUI TOTJBTIIOYUT JBU} 9ASLYSI 0] PUR UOLJRULIOJUL
UOTJRNSIZDI SSIUISTI UOTITIOD JO9][0D 0}

Te110d ssoursng 9yels oy) osn 03 1o Textod ssouIsng
91e1S oy im woneordde s, A1mo) oy ejeIderur
0] WSISAS 9IEMIJOS MU 91} JOJ SOJETII}So

1500 OU oI 9191 ], "IoqUINU WOHEBOIUSPI
ssouIsnq 931§ 91 spnjour o3 suoneordde

jrunzed meu Jo Sunurid pue 0 STOLROLIIPOU

a1} 109[Ja1 51500 Sunurig Tesodoxd

p1q puo doj 913 J09[J91 SIS0 SOUBULIUTEUI

pue uonismboe oy} pue ‘aremiyos o[qedeo
Jourayur A1ddns 0} IopueA ® 10y J.1¥Y Ue pases[al
sey Aano)) soysep -suonjesrjdde asusory
SSOUISNq S JO UOISSILIQNS PUE SS9I0E SUI[-UO
spraoad o} Apiqedeo oy oAy AJULND JOU S0P
10LSI(] YITeoH AJUNo) 20YseA\ T3YON [€dSTH

00Z°0¥TS -
BlUuLg ANy 100Z°0¥T$ - ST/¥T A ‘UONITIA
IP0°1S - #I/ET A ‘000°008$ - €1/71 AA

*9JEPUBUL JOLISIP UI[BSY 0}

Jord wonjes3oyur Sumprured Aous3e 9)elS Je[IWIs
SASIYOY TelIod 978)S Ol UM ToneIour

pue Sumruzad SUITUO JO PUE UOLBULIOUL
9suQo[] ssaursnq [exod aye)s Jo UoneZIUN
JOLISIP 3[eaY pue Aouade [800] Jo [eoS ©
USI[qeIsH "OUWPEop PSIBPUEBTE SAOWRI 0) PUSTIY

*SUOTIOUN] JBTUILS
uofred jetp) serouade oY) yim Uonouny SIq)
wroyred o3 Aj1qedes oY) peyensuowop sey S1el1S

JUWUSISSY JJ¥IS
29 UOI)EPUIWUIOINY

joedur] [edsLy/sIsA[euy/punoisdyoeqg

Arewuing

snye)g

Josuodg
Adewag

#
g 10 yad

'8 "ON W9 epusdy HOIA

Ja0day £11AIY AN E[SIST €107




NV 866 ¢€107/07/¢
71 93eq

Lpue)

pue 9A91S pagnou ‘uid |

0€:1 @ ¢1/¢ 10§ 195 Surresy

12/ SAQ 01 papIemIoy
‘1T/T Uo Tead 10y bay p,0oy

oedury eosty

[9A9]

'S Yy Y :Ad10d
UIL)IddU[) 90URUIPIO
s] sy 1ioddng :uonisog
(aayunyy

Apue)) sax Ayusay,
J0JIUOTA] [UOT}OY

“B9PI POOT © — ST} MOIASI [Jeap PIIYD 0]

*Ayeyes orqnd pue

qyeay [ejusw ‘yiresy orjqnd ‘sonistyels
[B)A I0] o[qrsuodsal pue ‘sao1Ales
axeJTem prIys Surpiaoad sorouade jo

SIOJRXSTUTUIPE SB UIBd) SATRNSTUITIPE |

ot o syuedronred saweu

[11q 9Y1, "swes) Areurdiostprynur
o1 Jurodde 03 pazrroyne

QI SOTAISS QIBJ[oM PIYo sopraoid
yoIm Aous3de Ue Jo oATIBIussaxdal
- PeZLIOYINE JO I0JOSIIP oY}

PUB 20)TIIUIO.) QATINISXH S} 1M -

‘SUOIIBPUSUIIOND) pue 5110d0X SMOTASI
Wes} SAURNSIUIWPE 8], "BPEASN UI
SuIeo) [Bo0] Aq pajonpuod afe Jo sIesk
81-0 USIP[IYD JO SMBIASI [Jeap P
JO S3wpuLy oY) MOIASI [OAI] SLIS o)
Je SeoNIWIod JYSTISIOA0 0M] APULLIN)

(119-8€ IAH) "StIBa) MITASI (IBIP

ApreH

‘souof ‘As[esH
‘sa101q ‘doo
0JOpUO(J ‘o[
‘wosduroy,
-zoyueg

MO :ANIOLY o | [aAS] JYSISIOAO S1B)S oY} Je Aousronys ue Ajdung PITY? SUIUIeouos suolsIA0Id SasIAGy Surpusg ‘uosIoLI ‘TOSIY yS1 v
12/2 5ad 01 papremioy
{1¢/7 uo [eaq 103 bayy p.osy s
aoedwry [oST] e oﬁwwam St
Korod e :ago.mgio
) : KoleoH
QOURUIPIO (] “ﬂou: ) amaﬁﬁqq«
-uonisod e "AIIqeIunosor aquewrelsng.
Ansa], e PUE JYSISIOAO [RIUSWIUISA0CS ‘mosdwoy,
J0JIUOJA] ‘UOIVY o 9owo1d 03 soToUATe [RIUSUILISA0S -ZaJuag ‘usrzqoq
KoLy e JO MITADY 9ATIR]SIZA] 9} I0] SOPIAOIJ Surpusg | “yormedyary ‘ATeq 0S1 9V
JUPWUBISSY JJe)S 1eduy [eosif/sIsA[euv/punoadydegq AlBwimng -snye}s Josuodg #
2P UONEPUIW W OINY . Arewrig mg 10 yag

"H'8 "ON W] Bpuedy HOAA

10day A)1ANIY 3ANE[SIST €107




NV 856 €10T/0T/€
€1 98eg

UIBJUIBUL PUB “UONJBULIOJUL

91 JO JUSWAPO[MOO. |

USHLIM B UTBIQO
“Anp x1a1 Jo seokordurs
woyur 0} paxmbair aq

pmom syuowredap pojosje
UI soAnjejuesaIday] Se0mosey
uBWINY AJUNo)) J0Ysem U3
‘TWRIP[IYD 03 9189 Furpraoid
[euuosiad pesiopuo

IO POLJTIII “pasuad]]

uou 10J ‘A[[EUONIPPY

ELELER NN )

pue SuLeys WONBULIOUT
oY} pajonpuod JUISINN

JO pIeog a1e1§ BPRASN

pue SIoUTIIEXH [eSIPIA

Jo preog a1 jey) Surmsuo
‘Kortod s,Apoq Sursuoor] oy
yusm. Ajdwos o3 yusueanbal
A1 9q [[I4 (S9ITAISG [B100S
Ayunod s0ysemy ILUSIq
[I[eoH O} W B

18) AJunoy) oy 03 Joedwr oy,

*ATessaoou

STJnq JoLsI WeeH
Joedut [1im pres Apue))

oeduy feostq

S3x :Korod
UIB}IIIU() 190URUIPIO
yioddng :wonisod
(ao3unyg

Apue)) sax :AJuso],
Yorl], (UOIOY e

Y3y Aoy e

oy ur Suismu opraoid 01 AoueSe uy §
‘ore0 TROTPOW
KouaSIows 10J I9Ued juepuadepur uy ¢
{I01US0 OLYBISqO U g

‘syusned

A1ojeque  10] JIojued  JeoIdins Y ]
:sopnfour ANIoeY [EOIPIIAL,
"paulep (AN[OEY [BIIPOI,, [STO'6FY SUN
:psuygep

AITIORY  TeOIPaIAL,  TSTO'6YPSUN. W palst
asoyy Auo 1o ‘(mofaq oFenue] pasodoid 995)

SOIITIORY [2OTPST [B SOPNOU [Iq ST JT J23[0 10U
st ySnoyi[e Aoy [ROIPIW © JO UORIULAP o

" Iopun Te3 03 Jeadde j0u seop JOISI PESH 9L

«USABH 9JeS,, B 0} Woy) ysinburje1 Ajuejunjoa
ogm juered WOy aJ1y JO SABP ()¢ UBY) I101ea13
ou syueyur 3de08 01 sjusUnIRdsp AI1 199)UN{OA
SMO[[e pue uret) Juasaidar ogm sAsuroye

Kq 3unaodar JusAs1d 03 USIP[IYD SMO[[E JOUMIY
1 -Anqiqisuodsal ST JO TUOWSSPI[Mouor

pue SuTuren INSUS PINOM [[Iq 911 'SeTIIoe]
[eo1potw,, UI Jye)s Joy sioAo[dmo pue spieoq
Sursuaot] uo syuatmarnbai [euoryippe Suroerd
Ag JIoMm IIoY) UL SWIOIA 91 oYM TIP[IYO
Amuapt Kewr oym suosiod £q 109]8su pue asnqe
PIIYo pezoedsns Sunrodar 10§ Appiqrsuodsox
pue SSSUIEME PISEOIOUT SY03S GGT gV

*SOOIAIOS AOUDFIoWD

JO 1op1A01d se meT UsARH 9dJeS 01 syusuntedop
211 I9QJUN[OA SPPE ‘SPI029I UTBJUIEeT

pue 92401dure wox 95p[MOoW[or USPLIM
9A19991 ‘quatnannbar Sunrodar Aroepuetu

Jo suostod wroyur 03 s1ekodwe J10/pue SpIeoq
Sursuoor] sexmbeai 9o013au pue esnqe pryo

99 01 P[0 SABD.(E UL} 2IOUI J0U
syueyul SUIMO[[R MEBT USABH JJES,,
913 ‘ATTeUr, "JOUBWIDPSIW SSOIS B se
o1qeystund aq 03 suone[OIA Jusnbasqns
10 USNLIM 9Ie SUONIURS [BUOLIPPY
-podai o) 03 se0Ie PIIYD ot

$So[UN 91D 10]S0J UI ST OYM pUE WIOIA
9T} ST OTA JUSI[D € WIOIJ 199[FaU 10
asnge Jo 93psjmour| paamboe Aoy J1
sAsurone 10J Suntodar woxy uondeoxo
ue apnjout suorstaold jeuonIppy

"gzey widey) ropun

AIessooau st Jopodor pejepuet € sg
UOTSN[OUY JT QUITLIOJOP 0} 9IBD ey
Surpraoad suosiod 03 s918OI1I00

Jo syrurad ‘sosuaol] Surmnbazx

szo1deyo SN oImny AUue SMOIASX

318D [I[BOH UO 9aNIUII0)) SANR[SISo
9L, "PI0391 IO JUSUIOFPI[MOTD[OR

913 Jo Adoo & Sururejurews pue

wossed ayp Surtoyur 1oy s[qrsuodsar
9q [T (pexrnbai st epRASN UI
JUSWIOSIOPUS IO WOIBOIIILIAD ‘QINSUaDI]
ou maym) sivAordws 10 pIeoq
SUISUSDT] YV "PRAISOSI UOTJBULIOIUL oY)
JO Juewa3pamouoe usnLm apraoxd
031 paxmbai oq osfe [[Im suosIad

asoq], 'swodor pajepuewr se Anp

oy yo suosiad osotp Jo wonEsyIoUu
Surnnbar pue ‘me[ wr paygroads aIe
Ao yorym ur Jouuews ot SurSueyo
£q 199[39u 10 9snqge priyo Sunzodox
0] PaJe[al suoIsIAoId SIsIALI ¢SV

(019-8€ ¥AA)
PIIYo © JO 199[32U IO 9SNqE 91} JO

Aprery
‘SoUOf ‘UOSIRISQ |

“Soredsry

‘AoreaH ‘seIo[] |
‘aeoun(y ‘doorg |
019puO( “O[THLIED) |
‘vosdwor], |
-Zoyuog |

Zurpodai jo suorsiaoxd urpregar syngels o8uey) | swodar SuruisAoF suorsiroxd sesiasy “HOSIOLIL] “UASTH Gs1 gv
JUWUSISSY JJels 1oeduy [eas1g/SISA[eUY/punosdyoeg ArTemmng sne)s Josuodg #
‘29 UOHBPUSUIUIGIY Arewrag g 10 ag

"d'8 "ON W9 epualy HOId

110doy] AJADIY IADEBISISIT €107




WV 85-6 ¢£10C/0T/¢
y1 93ed

9A9]S
pue Apue) pagnou JAd
0¢:1 @ €1/€1/¢€ uo Sureoy

"WIN[NOLLMD
ajenbepe ue opraoxd

01 SInoY z-1 Jo W3ua|
paoredionue ue gm- ‘parnbal
2q pinos Sururer], ‘serdoo

:1019q () pue (3) I se 1310da1 pejepuew &

se me[ STy} Jo morand a1y urgim [rey seehoduwo
Ajuno)) 20ySsep\ AUBRUI  ‘AJ[IOR] [BOIpew,,

® S® G J0)dey) ur.peyroads jou a1e 010
JUQUISDIOUD MB[ “UOTJU]Op oIuaAn( ‘sorouo3e
S9OIAJOS [B100S ‘SIOLISIP UIBaY [800] YSnoyyy

“dpponf wopaw | endsoy] 4

a1} JO JJ®IS oY) JO IOqUIaTN

© AqQ PIIYo © JO 309]3ou Jo 9snqe pajoadsns €7
A Jo uoneoynou uodn

Aapton/ 1wo1pau v yous [UOHNINISUL FB]IUIS 77

Jo Teydsoy e} Jo oSreyo -

u1 nosiad J9130 J0 I93eUR “I0JRXSTUTIIPE [T
ue Jo suostad Jo juotuiesI

" 10 918D ‘UONRUIWEXS “UOISSIWPE o) UI (07
poSe3us a4n oym SYN

J0 6y ¥ 433dpYyo 03 qupnsind pasuasy Guponf 61
[wo1paw [uonnmpsuy

aepruns Jo [eydsoy] e yo jeunosied Auy (q) 81

TX91, pasodoig

“101u2d 9861 AJUNWWod ¥ "9
pue JIun oIqow y ‘g
{A1031Ms 2ANORIAI I0] AN[I0B] V¢
THOTIBOIX01ap
[eolpowl  pegipowr JoJ AR Vgl
‘food Suismuy 71
oI [eMIY T
{9SBOSIpP [BUQI 9[qISIOA.LY
Jo juounesn oy} Ioj AN V0l
‘endsoy orneodsd v g
Tendsoyy g
‘oreo oordsoy 10y AN[IOBI VL
‘Sursmu pay[Iys 10§ AN} Y 9
910 S)RIPOULIOUL JOF ANIOB] ¥V °¢
‘omoy

"BPBAAN

ur pansst Jiuiad e Surpjoy 901AI08
soue[nque Aue pue juountedsp

AI1J I93JUNJOA B 9PUIOUT O} UCTHIULJOp
a3 spuedxa s901ATeS Aoua3Iourd

Jo Jopraoid e ynm 199 A[LIRIUN[OA

JUSWUSISSY JJeIS
29 UONEPUITO0INY

1oedu] [eosiy/SIsA[euy/punoidyoeg

LIemuing

sme)§

Josuodg
Atewinig

#
g 10 yad

"H'8 'ON W] Bpusldy HOA(

110doy] 1ADOY ADRISISIT €107




NV 8S:6 €10¢/0T/€
S a8eg

oen
0] PooU OU PIeS 2AM)S
{9A9]S 0} papiemIo] —

[BAF] J0] jsonboyf p,ooy e
oedwy [BOST] e
:Kotrfod e
190UBUIDIO) o
‘uonisod e : (sSy-ov Mad)
AJusoL e "SSOU[O M PUR SSOWL] I0] WRIZ0I]
1S3.19)U] ON (UOIPY e 9]BS 91} UO [IOUN0)) AIOSIAPY
Aoty e ot} Surmoaog suorsiaoid sesIASY 8S1 av
[/€ uo jndut pue
pspuodser qog {Lz/T
uo qog 0} papiemIof —
[eAq 10 H.moswo‘m Pooyg e AouTaneg
Joedwry [eosiy e ‘aosAeISnD)
Aonod e “@a10200105)
DOUBUIPIO ° ¢ %.m.—n:uoo A
‘uopisod e JUSTIUIOD AR AR JOU OP 9M 0S ‘AJUno)) "SOUJUNOD ‘UOSIRISQ) “UILIBIA
Asay, e J0YSEA\ PUB JIB[D SOpnjoxa A[[eonroads 11 inq UTBLIS0 U ST JNSOIIOP 0] WA)SAS ‘0101 ‘UOSIIH
A[UQ J0JUOI UOOY e uonorpstm{ mo o3 parydde 1 J1 @M pauIdu0D Iorem Tediorunu € £q paysTong Soredsryy
Aol e 9q p[nom am ey} sSury) owos Sey [[1q SIYL Iotem 0} Juneral suolsiA0Id sas1Aey Swpuag REIEEL TN LST 9V
"J9W 9 UBO SPoaUl pue s1sonbai J1eY) 219YM
satousde pue suosiad
0} WIST]) SISJaI PUB PIIYD € JO 399[Fou J0 asnqe ¢
Surp1e3ar suosiod sasiape
[OTYM 91AISS 10 AUoFe Ue 10J JOQJUNJOA T
B SB SOAIOS IO
£q pakordus st ‘surejurewr ogm uosied Auy ([) |
Plydo € 01 €€
2Ied JurysTuIng
AouoBe Jo uonmnsur ‘Arroey ayeArid 1o
a1qnd 1910 ¢ 10 dwres s, UAIPIIYD “USIPIIYD I0]
a1ed sapIA0Id 181 JUSTYSI[qeISS £¢ IO AN[Ioe] B
Aq pakordus st 1o surejurewr oy uosiod Auy (1)
JUWUSISSY Jjels poeduy [edsiy/sIsA[eUy/punoidypeg Alewiwing smeys Josuodg #
2P UOIIEPUIW W 0IIY Lreweg . g 10 yad

"d'8 "ON W) epuady HOIA

J10day] A)IAOY AANR[SISIT €107




NV 866 €107/0T/¢€
9] 98eq

wd
ST:€ @ p1/¢ uo Surresy

L/guo

ndur {9/¢ wo papuodsax
WA €1/9T/C

uo s(J 01 pepIemIo —
TeAq 10y 3senbayf p,ooy

- A&uno) soysepy w sasodnd

$SOUIST] 0] PIsn 2JB Jnq AJUN0)) SOYSEA

JO SJUSPISaI 10U 2JB JRY) SIOUMO JO SO[OIYoA

Jo Funser samng o[qrssod 10 Juspesaad B
ap1a01d pinom ST, 9sn 9[9TYaA JO UOTIBIO0] UO
paseq Sunss) suorsstue urgnbor jo juapeserd
aAnIsod e 308 [[1q 91} ‘TOAOMOY] ‘[[BWS

9q 01 pajoadxa st uone[side sty £q paAsIyoe
[OTTOO SHOISSTWS JTE JO JUSWAOIdW oY, "Me]
Bunse) suotssTue AN Jaim A[dwros 03 [orgeA

pedm [eosL] e 913 saxmbaz1 9s[o 10 JOUMO S} JO SOUSPISOIJO | “ISUMO ST} JO SSIUISN] I} I0J BPRAIN
ON :fomod e 9)e3s 9Y) UT STOISSIULY JOJ PoIS) Usaq Sey S[OIYoA U1 pasn JT syuswonnbal [015U0d
- ON :30UBUIDI o ot Jooid soxmbai pue (3500 paxyy 18) BpRASN SUOISSIWIO 93U 0} SJUSPISAIUOT
s sV 31oddng uonsog e UT SOTY9A 91} 19)s1321 0} BpEASN Ul sesodind Aq paumo so[oreA Jurnnbayy
ON :AJnse], $SSUISNq IOJ PISN 1. 1Y) SIOIYIA JO SISUMO uoneodsuei],
SuDjoRLL [UOOY e | juoprsaruou sxnbel pnom Jirg oL ‘uoneneAg SOIOTYOA TUTRIOD JO UOTIRISISoL U0 99)J[UI0))
. MOT Ao e 3y JoJ syuswaxnbal sas1A9Y Smpusg A[quiassy L9T 9V
wd
ST:€ 78 p1/€ U0 SuHEoH *S3LIUNOD BPRAJN JOUI0 UI OPISAI pue Ajuno))
3 s0yseA\ ur pahordwe axe yey) o[doad jo S9[ITRA
i ‘c/e 10 Dephodsor Jo Sursa) amny s[qrssod 10§ Juspasaid e apraord
ndur .5/¢ uo p nv pInom sty “yuswAordws Jo Uoreso| uo paseq
UIARY -£1/9¢/C Bunsay suorssiure SuLanbar Jo Juapasaid sanisod
U0 Saq o1 papremio] — © )98 [[1q OY} IOASMOY] T[BWS 9q 0] pajoadxoe ‘parioddns st
TeAg 10§ 15enbay p,ooy ST TONB[SIFA] ST} Aq POASIIOE [OHUOD SUOISSTIIS | SOUSPISAI 'SA JUOWAOAW JO HONEIO]
] Ire Jo justmaAordur SYJ, “ae[ SULSa) SUOISSTID uo paseq syuowannbai jonuoos
Houdin) Teosly - AN ym A1duros 03 s[oryeA o) seqrnbor | SUOISSIWS 100w 0} SS[OIYIA Surimnbey
ON :Aofod e 9S[9 .10 9OUSPISII JO 9JBIS I UI SUOISSTUID
ON :UEUIPIO o I0J PoJS} Us0q SBY S[OIY9A oY Jooud soxmber
SIEVAE S SIS RIED S pue ("IA/0S 1$) BPRASN UI S[OIY9A U3 I9ISIS01 (LOL-Sv AAH) "ePRASN UI S}I0M
ON :AJISOL, e 03 sAemy3IY 2781§ UO 9OIYoA JOJOUI & o1eIado OUM JUSPISIIUOU B AQ BPBAAN UL uonepodsuei],
SuppeL], (UOKOY e pue 9Je)s Ay ur paAoyduwo oYM SJUSPISOIUOU | USALIP ST JBY) S[OTYIA € JO UONRNSIZal U0 991IUIOD)
MO AUOL e axmbsal pinom IIg oY1, uonenEAg o) JoJ stuowonbal sasiAoy Surpusg A[quassy 991 gV
JUWUSISSY JjBIS Joeduny [eosif/sIsA[euy/punoidyoeg Alewuing snje)s Josuodg #
2P UONBPUIWWO0INY Arewig md 1o yag

A'8 "ON Wy epualy HOAd

ja0day £)1A00Y 2ANE[SISO] €107




NV 856 €107/07/€
L1 33ed

"L/€ w0 ndut ‘9/¢ uo

perdar wiAsy ¢1/87/C
[0 S 01 PopIemIo] —
JeAd 10§ 1sanbay p.oey

wd g1:¢ 18 €£107/21/€
10y 108 SurIeoH

:Joedwy TBOSL]

‘uonensIgal
01 Jond 10Anq uo justnesnbar Surnsey

ON Ao1[0d e ‘UONBNSIZRI A[OIYSA seoed pue suonone JUSUIUIISTO

ON :90UBUIDIO e 03 Jo11d 194nq y0 poxmbar st Suriss) suoISSIUIY Ye aTes 01 JoLxd SI[OIYIA Jo Sunsay

[BnnaN "JOUI Te SUOT}IPUOD UTLLIOD USYAM d[es 0} Jorid SUOISSIUIO 0] JUSTIINDAI SOAOWITY

*pasoddQ JON 1UOTISOd  ® | sop5rqaA oYy Joy sjuSMIEIMbOI SUTSS) SUOISSIUID
ON :AJuse], e woyy ‘spiq Sundaooe pue 10y ur[jeo A[JeqioA . {96-0v dAF) "So[o1geA
Suppel], wonoy e SIOOUOTIONE YIIM SUOTIONE JAY[ IOJ ‘SISOUOTIONE | PIUFISUOO UIeIsd JO Sunsa) SUOISSIUD O[[LLR)) pleyory .
MO AILIOL e JUSWUIISUOD S[OTYSA SOASI[SI [[I :UOTBN[RAF 913 01 Sunjerox sUOISIAOId SOSIASY Surpuad UBWA[qUIOSS 9.1 9V
LT
parrder qog ‘€1/92/¢
uo s(] 03 papIemIo] —
[eAd 10 1sonbayf p.ooy
goedwy [BOSI] e
Kotjod e

QOUBUIDIO @ -o11qnd [e10usg o1 Jo

‘uonisod e S1S9U97UI 9] SJUSSaIdaI oM JoqUIST

AJnsa], e panIrenb ouo apnjour 03 oyIjprIM

JS9I9)UY ON UOHPOY e o8euewr 01 p1eoq AIOSIAPE AJUN0D

Kuong e Uoee jo diysiequuaur ot semnbayy v 891 9V
JULWUBISSY JJe)s Joedur] [BoS1/SISA[EUY/pUnoisdydeq Alewuang snjels Josuodg #
29 UOI)BPUIWIIOIY Krewig g 10 yqag

'8 "ON Wy epuady HOId

J10day ANADOY ANR[SISIT €107




WV 866 €£107/0T/¢
8] 98eq

1ordumy [ROSL
urerun (Aotod
UIE)IDU[) :90UBUIPIO
popuImIY

J1 yxoddng :uomisoq
(141, 9poes

‘43sT) SO X :AJusal
Sunydoel], ‘uonoVy

yeay] 03 A1dde jou Aew 10 Aew [[1q oYL,

: "POIOMIS e JBY]) SBAIR
UI ST} MO][® 10U pInosm am pue’ syramiad axmbai
op ey} pue asey 10§ ooe[d ur suoremSa1
9AEY ApEaI[e 9\ SN J09IJ® AT100mp AN

(¢-0t MQg) "ooueprsax Afruey

° ‘syrwiod InoyIIM pofeIsur 9 01 | -o[3uIs B J0J JojemAeid yo uoneordde [[eYoSuaIfQ Souref
YSI{ ATIOLI] e StI)SAS Jesodsip oFemes 191EMARIT I0] SMO[[Y pUe U0n99[[05 27} 10J SIPIAOI] Swpuod |  uemK[quessy S1zav
8¢1¢ wooy ‘wd gg:1 @
07/€ 10§ pa[npayos SuLesH
‘§/€ w0 qog
0] papIemIoy (€1(0T/S/€ uo
uonenfeas 1oy 3senbor p ooy
oedwi [BOST] e
:Korfogd e
1Q0URWIPIO) e
UOSOJ e
AJusel, e
LG A (621-0¥ ¥AE) "SISIYSI[qISD ApIeH jyussar)
YSIH Aol e s8uniesy Surpueny — ‘suonenodsu uj pooj 01 Sune[er suorsiaoid sesIASy Supusg UBWAIqUISSS Y 007 9V
"SGUO 1X0] A0 S2]o1Ya4
£1/8¢/C oward up Suijaan.y usym sjjaqas 1adosd asn o}
UO S(I 03 papIemIod — | sp59n8 pup SjUapISaL S, DpPAsN JO [jv Sa3DIN0oUD
[eAd 10§ 3590bay .oy pup S112q jpas Jo asn 2y} srioddns 1914517
oedwr] [eostd YID3E] AJUNOD) 20YSD A Y] ‘SUOLIUIALIJUL
ON :Aofjod e yway s1qnd 241392 ff5-1502 350Ul 4y SUoWD
ON :30UBUIDIO | posap1suoo djopian st puv ‘Saay uoljiu oo uvy;
Aluo 240Ul BUIADS YIIA PIIIPDLO UDDq DADY S12q JVIS
juswuIo’) -uonIsod e uoONDZIUDIA0) YIDIE PIOM Y} 0F SUIp 1090}
ON Ao, e (+66 uoyeiodsuei],
Sunpoea), [UOHOY e ***3( PINOY JUIWULOD -£F ¥ag) ‘sqporxvy up sy1aq A1afvs fo UO 39PIUIIOY) -
MO :AIOLI e ano pue wonisod v SuDjv) PIOAR PINOYS OA\ | 257 217 BuUIUL2A0S SU01S1404d SaS149Y Surpuag AlquIassy LL1 9V
JRWUBISSY JjeIS pedury [eosiy/sisSfeuy/punoisyoegq Arewrmung snje)s Josuodg #
79 UOI)EPUIUITIOIIY Lrewrig g 1o Jag

“d'8 'ON W] epuedy HOAA

J10day ANANOY ANL[SISAY €107




NV 856 €10T/0T/€
61 98ed

81/¢ uo sqda
Uo 20f pue ‘e[ned ‘qog
0} paplemlio] — g{/¢ U0
[eA9 10} 1sonbo1p ooy e
cl/€
U0 qog 0} PapIeMIO}
¢1/€ uo 1sonboy
QJON [BOSII PO9Y e

:yoeduy (oSt
:Lotjog
:90UBUIPIO
uonisod
:Ayuse,
UonOY
:AjrIo1Ig

;oeduuy [eosty

(ELL-0V 9QH) "oIsem prjos

Ioy says fesodsip ureuss o3 Suneral
suorye[n3ai jdope 03 UOISSTUIIIO))
[PIUSUIUONAUT 91e)S o) Somnbay]

Surpusg:

Amqpoom
BSSI[OI]
UBWOMATqUISSSY

69T v

81/¢
UO SJUQUIUIO) PAINTS G/

U0 S 03 popremlIoy — G1/¢
U0 [eA9 10§ 3senbai p, 0oy

Joedw] [BOSI]
ON :4o1104

0N :90UBUIPIO
[BIINAN] [UONISOJ
ON :AJusa],
JOJIUOTAT UOTIOY
MO :ALIoLIg

(161-syag) -wesunedsq
9} 01 SATUN0Y Aq pred sjuSWISSIsSE

TR0 JO SOOIAJOS UBUINK
pue yiresy] 3o jusunreda( a1 Aq asn
9y} SuruIeouod JIpne Ue IO SSPIAOIJ

seTcdyv

_ 61/¢
ndur {61/¢ p.o91 ‘g/¢ ened
pue qog 03 papremioy —

§/€ UO [AD J0OF 359nbai p ooy

ure).run

, "JUSUIUCIAUD URqIn
UR T USAR JeY) 10J SMO[[E [[Iq STY], "oSemas

Jo poyiewr [esodsIp aJesun ue se 95emas Jo
uoneorjdde oovans Je JOO[ 94\ "IOMOS UO 2SO}
U9AD ‘0IoUMAUR SWIR)SAS 10JemARIS 10] MOTTE 01
sieadde 31 “uonejerdieur wo spuadap ‘sjornsicy

JUOWUSISSY JJBlS
» UONEPUIWWOINY

1oeduy [BasLy/SISA[RUY/punoidydeyg

Alewruing

smjels

10suodg
Arewnag

#
g 10 yad

"H'§ "ON W] Bpusdy HOHA

110day AJADIY 2ANE[SISIT €107




WV 856 ¢107/0T/¢
0Z 938eq

J0f pue ‘ened
‘qogd 01 papIeMmIO] 6 /€
uo [eaq 10] boy p.ooy

Joedury [eastg
:Kotfod
190UBWIPIO
:uonIsod
:Amso,
uonoy
Ao

‘sjonpoId ISWMSUoo SNOLIBA Ul
S[ROTUIAND UTB}IS0 JO 9SN O SIQIYOL]

Surpuad

us1Zqog pue eI

e dv

61/€ uo

Aorig pue ‘Apue)) ‘0AdS
0} papIemIo) 161/¢

uo [eAq J0oJ bay p.ooy

:joedug [2oSI]
:Kotf04
190URUIPIO)
‘uonisod
:Ansa],
uonoy
:Auotg

"TRIP[IYO AQq S9[qe1oF9A pue siny
1saxg yo uonduwmsuos a1 210woxd

ey swreiSoxd ur oedronaed pue
[s1qeIse o3 sjootas orqnd seFemooug

uojje)) o133eN

Lee 9v

61/¢ Uo

Koels pue ‘Apue)) ‘9ANS
01 PapIeMmIo) "61/€

uo [eAq 10J bay p. ooy

:Joedwy Jeosty
:Ka1104
:00URUIPIO
UoNISog
Ausa,
[uonoy
:AIotig

(££7-0v ¥ag) "spiodax
[eorpatt SurLIaA03 SuoIsIA0Id SasIAeY

Surpued .

Surpusd

yornedyrs
pue ‘opuLdg
‘doorT o1epuo(g
Alquiessy

91¢ av

JUIWUSISSY JJe)S

29 UOI)BPUSTUUIOINY

Jeduy _wum_m\m_m%_m=<\v==o.~w&o«m

LIewung

snjels

Josuodg.
Arewiag

#
g 10 gad

"H'8 "ON W[ epuady HOAA

J10day] A)ANOY ANEISISIT €T(T




WV 8S'6 €102/0C/¢
12 98eq .

20f pue ‘e[ned
‘qog 03 papremio] ‘61/¢
uo Teaq 10y bay p.ooy

oedwy [eosty
:Koti0g
:90URUIPIO
uonIsod
:AynsaL
UONOY
:KAonig

(€65-€¥ MAE) "S9[O1YoA
[BUOTIRaI0aI PAUOpURgE JO [esodsip

Surpusg

UOST[TH uyof
UBWA[QUIOSS Y

6LE 9V

we 008 @ TT/€

— panpayos Surresy
90f pue ‘e[ned

‘qog 01 pspIemIo] [61/¢
uo [eAq 10y bayf p.ooy
oedw] [eosty

:Kotjog

190UBUIPIO

UOTISOJ

:AynsaL

TWonoy

I8 (V85

oYy SururoaoS suorsIA0Id sasTASY

(0zs-0z
MA) "SSIIALSE 10 SJUSAD ‘SOI[qUIASSE

Ure)Is9 9Je[n3al 03 SISUOISSTUIIOD
AJunoo Jo pIeoq e Jo AJLoyine

oy} 01 Surje[o1 SUOISIACIA SISIASY

Surpusg

sjred
‘worqIedeg ‘Mg
‘usnyry ‘usrzqog

vLe dV

6l/guo

Koelg pue ‘Apue)) ‘0Alg
0} POpIRMIOY {6T/€

uo [eAq JoJ bayy p,oay
noeduwy [eosIy

ko104

190UBUIPIO)

‘uonsod

:Ansa,

UONOY

:Aond

(LsL-ov aag)
"WeIs01 uoneuo( 3niq SATV/ATH
oY} JO JUSUIYSI[qeISS Y 0] SIPIAOI]

Furpued

MeMI)S UUAT
URTIAJUISSS Y

9¢ 9V

U W USBISSY JJe)S
¥ UOHEPUSMUI0dIY

Joedur] [eds1f/SISA[eUy/punoidydeyg

Aremrmung

smyelg

JIosuodg
Arewag

#
g 10 yad

"d'8 "ON W epusdy HOId

110day AJ1ANOY ANE[SISIY €107




NV 86:6 €107/0T/€
77 98egq

w\m U0 JuLIeoF]

vi/c

U0 SIUswWtIod mh%vﬁﬁm
ndur pue p.oay

-98ueyo pnoys 1etp

J1 Surreay g 03 105070 5108 11
Se MOWY SN 193] PINOM 9Y pres
9H ‘111q a3 03 uonisoddo
Aue Sunedonue Apjuormo
10U aIe A9} ‘(QHSN ‘spIooay
[enA oy 1osiaradng

YRqID) 9ALYS — §/T

‘soanpaooid

Sury peAe[op Jo uoliejueus[dul
axmbai jetp sereoryiad Suly

JIOJ SUIeJy ouIl} o1} SUSHIOYS PUe 90IJO
§,I0UO0I0Y 91} 0} AJJOSNP PaIIdfal

9q 0} SOUBPULNE [EDIPOW JNOYIIM
IN520 SYIEOP ISYM SSED SMO[E [[Iq
oy “Afeur,y -ederd ur A[eS1e[ Apeaie
st Je1 Surdesy] p1o9a1 oroNnI9[e

wd g¢:
® c10z/L/ wﬁhwwm R Jo osn o1} J0J smof[e pue agenJue]
. e , "g/c uo . Sunsrxe sezIuIopouI osye [[1q oYL,
®)- c10z/c/c Sueoy e 95ESSEJ SPUSUITIOddY 9oIII0,) SHH JeUaS | "SPI0dal [BITA JO 901TJ0 21e]s oy} joedun
ooduy [eosty e A[uo pnoys jey} saSueyo SNOLIeA
) : "a3en3uey A10)M38)S SONEUI OSTE 1] - YIBSP JO SJBp o} Ioyje
soX :oTod e AMOU ST} IIM JUD)SISUOD 9 0} SIROIJIII00 SIBOA ()G SIBOLIIO Ieap pue YLIq
ON :90UelIpIQ o JO oseaa1 o1y 10§ sampad0xd a5ueyd 03 pest | Jo 91ep oY oYL SIBAK CZ] SAIBONIIA0
1oddng amﬁom ® | M 20O SpI0ooay [ERA AUN0)) 20Yysep YL YMIq JO dSea]oI SMOT[E [[Iq SIYL,
ON :AJuse], o .
YORAL UOLOY o "papioddns oq prnoys pue aFen3ue| Surysixe (Z1£-0v 4Q9) sousneis [ena SIOIAIOS
MO Ao e sazrwapow pue dn sueepo Arurewnd [[i1q oy], | 03 Surye[a1 SUOISIACId SNOLIBA SOSIASY Supusg | wewny pue presH €6 ds
20( pue Apugy] 0} popIeMmIo] |
‘€10¢/€T/T Uo Funesw
SONIUIIOD JO IOLOU PO
oedwy [BOSI] e
%) 1 (¢F: G
:00URUIPI) (co7
-uonisod e -0 M) "oseasIp SnoSejoo © 0} SI99JUNJ0A
Ause], e 30 seakojdmwe ‘szokordumrs orjqnd ure1reo
UOY e paesodxo aARY ABUI OYM JUIPIOAP Jo TosIad S9ITAIRG
Aol e © JO Su1jso} oY) JUIUIOA0S SU0ISiA0Id Sos1ASY Suipuag | uewiny pue Qeey ¥ gas
JUdWUIISSY JeIs joeduy [BISLY/SISATRUY/puUnoidydeyg Arewuing smejs Iosuodg #
29 UOIIEPUIUIUIOINY ) Kreurig g 10 ¥ag

"d'8 "ON W) epuady HOAA

110doy ANANOY 9ANE[SIST €107




WV 8¢:6 €107/0T/€
€7 98eq

we

00:6 @ €1/¢ uo Suuesy
‘17 Wooy N 0€:€T
® €£107/L/€ —Surresy

Toyye sAep OZ1 UIYIA (T) 10 JPIOA pare[oop Apoq
o11qnd o) £q UONOE U 9ABT O} UOTIB[OIA pada[e
ue 1oye sAep 9 urgim (1) :Apoq orfqnd e ans 01
s11qnd 92U} JO IoqUISUI € 10 [BISUSL) ASUWIONY 9}
sezuioyne me| Sunsixyg (6£0° 14T SUN) "Me]
BunesA usd( sy) Jo uoneloIA Aue ojnossoxd
pue 9)e811S9AUI 01 paanbal ST [BISUSL) ASUIONY
oy ‘mey Funsrxa 10pur] (9€0°T+Z SUN)

"PIOA ST me] Sunesiy uadQ 91 JO UONE[OIA

ur Apoq orqnd & Aq ueye; nonor Auy Suneow
ot Je Apoq or[qnd Y3 JO SIOqUISW Je[n3aI

oy se s1omod sures oy SI019X0 01 uosiad

® yons SaNUS pue Sunesur oU) Je wnionb

© SupuruLeiep Jo sesodmd 10y Apoq orqid

1)) JO JOqUISW © 9q 0] pojeuIsap os uostod

Aue suroap ‘Supilim Ul 9pewl oq WONRUSISSP Yons
Aue 1B saxnbar osfe ¢ uonaeg "Apoq orqnd a1

PporeaIs Jey) AyLoyine [eSo[ JOTI0 O WoIN[osal

‘ooureUIpIO ‘OIe)s ‘uorsIA0Xd [BUOTINITISUO

a1y Aq os op 01 pazuoyine A[ssaxdxa aie Apoq
oriqnd oy} JO SISQUIOT SSOTUN JSqUIST JY[} JO
ooe[d a3 ur Apoq o1jqnd a1} Jo Sureswr e pusye
01 uosrod & Suneusrsop woxg Apoq otqnd © Jo
Joqueul e s)qrjoxd [[1q SIY) JO € U0N0aS "Apoq
a11qnd 13 10 §198] JO monIsINboe ot 0} Suryear
senIAnoR Ul Afo[0s paSedus SI aenIuuuooqus

JO 9ONIUIIOS Y} usym Apoq orgnd

B JO 981IIIIIOOqNS JO 9ONIUIWIOD B JO SSUrIeatt
1oy me] Sunsey ued( oy o3 mondurexa

e Sppe 0s[e 7 Uonos9s "sagueyd Surariojuod
e [[1q SIY) JO § PUE 9 SUOTIORS “MeE|

Eaciby e Ei 3unsixe ur Appuarmos meT Juneey usdg oy 03

honod e suoniduoxe pue suondesxs pue Jo Ayiqeorjdde

OOUBUIPIO e oy 03 Surgerai suorsiaoxd Jo 1s1] & sopdurod

uonIsod e [11q STy JO T Uondas (070" 14T SUN) oHuess

Anse, e ur Ajeayroads ypog 19s suondeoxe pajruuif (67£~0 MAg) 'seu0oIRIOqE]
SUDPEIL (UKoY e s “oriqnd a1 03 uado aq serpoq orjqnd jo UIRLI) PUR SWSISAS 19jem ‘
Aoy e s3urjeswr ety saxmbax meT Sunsey ued( oYL, orqnd o3 Sumerar suorstaoid soSIATY Surpusd | $90IN0SIY [RINIEN G9 dS
JUIWUSBISSY JJBIS Joeduiy [BosLg/SISA[eUy/punoisydeyg Arewuing smej§ Josuodg #

2p UOIJEPUIUIOINY Arewnag mg 1o yagd

"H'8 "ON Wi epuady HOHJ

J10day] A)ADOY ANE[SISIT €107




NV 856 €10T/0T/¢
$7 93ed

owﬁa o1} JO sIaquidtn 0} papraoid ‘suondaoxo
e M Terrerewn Sunzoddns 1omo

pue ‘FUIIest ) 18 PISSNOSIP 9q 03 uonengal
Jo aoueurpio pesodoid Aue ‘Suresur oy

1oy epuode ue Jo Adoo e apraoid o3 ‘e3reyo ou
12 pue 1ssnbaa wodn ‘paxmnbai st Apoq orqnd e
‘meT Funes uad( o) Jopu) TONEITUNUINIOD
STUOII99[9 JO sueow Aq Jo uosiod uy juesaid

2q Aewr s1oquuow Jo wnionb e Jey) SeILIB[O OS[e
0 UONYIS "UOISIOAP dBWIN o) 03 Axeururrard
s30eJ Jo 23ueyoXo of) J0 uonIsmboe 9A109[00
91} PUE UOISSNOSIP SAT}II[[0D SOPN[OUT puB
UOIIo® UR JSurede 10 JOJ SUOSEaI o) uo Juroofyex
pue Sumy3rom ‘Sururuexe UBSW 0) Juswermbax
st Jo sesodand 107  @1RI0qIep,, SSULJOp

[11q ST 30 9 WONAIS (S0 1T SYUN) “Jomod

KJosiape 10 nonorpsun( ‘qonuos ‘uoisiazedns sey

Apoq orqnd a3 YoTyM ISA0 Io)IBW B UO UOTIOR
o3[e) JO UOISIOOP B PIBMO) 9)RIaqIep 0) Juasaid
ST SIOqUIST SJ1 JO WnIonb & uaym meT Sunes

uadQ oy yum Ajdwos o) paxmber st Apoq orqnd |

® ‘suondooxa urened QI “ATuo AJeanoedsord
SAT}091J0 ST meT Suneoy uedQ oy3 Jo

TOTI[O1A PaSa[[e Uk 1931109 03 Apoq orjqnd & Aq
uoNe) uonoe Aue 11 SSpIAoId IoUnJ § UOTIeS
"UONO. IAT}OI1IOD JO JX9UOD I} UI [RISUL)
Asurony o) Aq po[y 9q Aewr me] SuneoA
uad( o1 90IOJUS 0 SJINSME] YOIYM Aq SUI[PLIp
o3 sAep (€ Aq SPUSIX® OS[e  uonoag "orqnd
U3 JO SISAIRNUT 159 SY) UI 9q PINOM TOTNoasoxd
Sur0go10] 1R} SOUTWLINISP [RISUAL) ASUIONY

31} J1 UOTJB[OIA PaSafe a1} Jo uonnossoid
9OUSTITOD 0} JOU 9PIJAP ABUI [RIOUOL) ASUIONY
a7 ‘UOTIR[OIA POSI[[E UB J3YJE SARD (€ UIJHM
TOIOR 9ATIO9IIOD TIRHOY se3e) Apoq orjqnd

© J1 yeq) sopraoad [1Iq STys Jo § uonoes (LE0'THT
SUN) ‘me] Funeey ued( o Yim A[dwos 0}
Apoq o1jqud o173 axnbea o3 woneoIA paFor[e ue

JUOWUSBISSY jjelS
29 UONBPUIWTI0IIY

joeduy [BOSIq/SISA[eUY/puUnoisyoeyg

Alemwuang

sme)g

Josuodg

#
g 10 3qd

"4’ "ON wa)] epuady HOIA

Arewina g

podoy AANIY 9ANRISISIT €107




NV 8S:6 €107/0T/€
¢Z 93eg

HIBLIdDU() 90UBUIPIO
popuIwy

J1 3oddng :uonrsog
(z3n)] 249§ 10 APICH
£ovyg) sax :AJusa],
suppel], (U0
Y3IH Aot

"S9OTAQD pue SSnIp snoreuep sqriosard

01 [eaordde SurAreoar a10yaq as119e1d JO SIMOY
0001 Jo uoneymawnoop opiaoid o) pammbaz

oIe SNJV 1BolIle)  'SNdV paredaid sisisew
"SA 9]JBO1ILIS0 10] 9o1oeid 03 paje[ol SusInN —
Z7€9 DVN 9q1 woy uoreuLojuy ejuswsrddng

“drgsuonejes Sursmy jo Jsuonnorij
peoueApV/ueroisAyd aATIBIOqR[0D
AI01EpURUI 1) WOL ABME 9AOUI

0] puaI) [eUONLT € S1991J21 [[Iq ST, |

(6¥S-vSs dag)

"Sursimu Jo sisuonnoexd peoueApe
SuTuI0A03 suorsIA0Id SOsTIAY

Jupuag

SOOTAISS
UeWny pue yI[esf]

69 95

Joeduy [Bost]
:Ko110d

190UBTIPIO
{WonIsoq

:Amsay,
SULIONUOTAT U0y
KoL

(Yov-7€ dAag) "0o9eqo}

03 Sunjefar suoisiAoxd saSIATY

Surpuag

juewrdoeAsg
OTHIOTUOYH

pUB onUSAY

L9 g8

[ 's9913% 0s uosIad a1 J1 [rew

9TUONO9]9 AQ [BLISJRUI 9U} 9ATA09I 0] paisonbox
sey] oym uosiad e 0} 211sqam s3I uo Surysod

9t 0} 31| & e1A Terlewr Suritoddns oyp apraoid
0} Apoq orjqnd & Yons SeZIIOYNE OS[E /, UOT}09S
"Apoq o1qnd oY1 Jo sIequIew ot} 03 popraoid

SI [BLISJRTU ST} YOIYM 18 OTUI) o1} UBY} Jo)8]

10U 9)IsqaMm sI¥ 01 Terrsyewr Funroddns oy 3sod
01 (syredg pue ousyf ‘seSoA SeT YHON ‘seSoA
se] “UOSIOPUSH ‘AJ1)) TOSIE)) JO S o) pue
SaNUNOY) J0YSBA\ PUB 9AN ‘UOAT ‘o ‘se[Sno(q
“re]) ApusLmo) sIour 10 000 ‘0f St uonemdod
3s0YM AJUNoo Jo A0 © Jo Apoq FurureaoF ot
soxmbeor os[e £, monooes -oryqnd o) 03 9[qerIEAR
s1 renoyew Surproddns oy 919GM SUOTJRIO] A1) JO
187 & () pue ‘Bupesw e J0J Tererew Juntoddns
a3 3senbar Aewr orpqnd o Jo Joquuoun

' woym woy Apoq osrjqnd oy Aq pajeusdisep
uosIod oy} 10J UONBULIOJUI }0BIUOD PUER SWeu
a1 (1) :3unesul & JOJ 901J0U ST} U0 SPN[OUT
Apoq orqnd © ey} saxmbai [[1q ST} JO / UOTIO3S
(020" 1T SYN) "epua3e oy} uo we)l ue Joj Apoq

I WUSISSY JJuls
29 HON)BPUIUIUI0DIY

1oeduy [BISL/SISA[BUY/puUnoIdpdeyg

Alewuing

smye)§

1osuodg
Arewrig

#
g 10 3ag

“H'8 "ON W] Bpuady HOHd

J10doy ANARIY ANEISISIT €10




WV 856 €10T/0T/¢
97 owmm

9/ U0 PAUIUIWOD 2AS

pue Apuey ‘€107/€T/1
Uo S [[e O) pSpIemio] e

ey "unx wd
0€: I@ET/0T/T ‘FUIey o
wd g¢: 1
®@ €1/1yT Bueyy e
sox poedw] [eosI] e
S9X Ao1[od e
UMOUYU() (90UBHIPIO e
ssoddQ wonisog e
ON :AJuse], e .
Suppea] (uonoy e (I11z-61 9ag) -spiooaxofqnd uI0[q1930g
USIE Aol e 01 Sune[aJ sUoTSIA0Id SNOLIBA SOSTASY Surpusg o1, Jojeuss v ds
SNV paredsid s1o1sejy pue 9JesJ1iIas y1oq
SpNOUL 0] PUSIY :JUdWPpUIWY pasodorg
‘dHOM oY1 je
papiaoad saoraIos giresy orpqnd 2100 19U £19yes
1edun ATTesneweIp Pinom jt Sursiy Jo preog
91 AQ UOISTOSP © AQ POYIUII] MOTOWIOS SI9M
seonoead ot J1 {seenperd oJesyI1Iad 391 Sey
“e10T/1/€ (@HOM) LISIJ YTesH AUNo)) s0ysep oY,
uo ndur pue sjuLwWIUIOd
P(991 197/ uo A3dwlg *00130p SI0)SEIA ® oxmbei 0} poSueyo
PUR ARG 01 TUSS 197/T | 2unsusdi] NJV uoym eonoerd ojul paioyiepurI3 "go1joeld
U0 [eAH 10§ }sanboy P29y SIom S9)BNPRIS 9JBOIILI0 O, ABM SUWIOS SNdV 1871 s3ul3ss Jo A19LIeA 91} IO]
ut pajorduul oq pinom SUISIN JO SISUOHIIORI] Aqrxayy sepraoad 1 os ‘pourerurewt
‘oedwy [gosL] e paoueApy paredaid 91eon1iIes oy Jey) ST ISLISI(T - 9q J0uuEed dIysuone[aI 9ATIRIOR[[0D
S3X Korjod e YI[esl] AIUNoy) 20YSEA\ 91} WO UWINUOD Y ® BT[]} 9)RIIPUI JOU S0P I “TOAIMOF]
JUIWUIBISSY [Jels joedury __wo,m_,m\m_mbggu::ogwxo«m AlBwiwng sme)s Josuodg #
2 UONBPUIUIW0IY Arewnig g 1o ¥ag

"4'8 "ON W) epuady HOIJ

Ja0day] A)1ANOY IADR[SISIT €107




NV 85:6 €102/0T/€
LT 93ed

MO[[OJ O} pajuem
9 oseo UL Apuey] po[Ietrs
“0€:€ @ 61/¢€ o Surreoyy

we 67:6 ® £7/1
uo ppo]. "I Aq paredaxd

§9JON] [ROSL] popImqng

cl/

uo ndur pue p,o91 ‘ppo,
"I 03 PSpIeMIO] ST1/T U0 Z6
s uo syjusurwo) paisenbey

ON Joedwif [eosIy e

ay Joj uorsiaoid oY} 2q pPnom 18aAed 9[qissod
AJuo sy, ‘podoai oty 03 osuodser ur AJus [BOO[
o1 Jo 1red oy uo uonoe Aue axmbai 0 ieadde

11 S90P Iou pauresl oq sprodar oy Jey) axnbax
01 readde jou seop 3] “syzodeI o) 9A1e991 ATdwrs
0] uet Joylo yresy orqnd [eooj uo Amp Aue
asodun 03 readde j0u seop peyrmuqns se [1q ST,

‘syuayed
o) Y suorldo JuetIyeaL) O} PUE UOTIPUOD

9T} SSNOSIP ISNUI ASY], "9OUIPISAI § JOYIOU )
PU qiI1q 9y} §10q JO SUOUIIPSLIN 1) JO S199LJO0
UI[eaH [8907] oY} PUE I90TJO YI[BSL] 01LlS
a1} 01 peprodel aq s s)nsax eAnisod Auy
"UOIRUIWEXS 91} SUNONpPUod Ul Aowurxo asynd

"STOOTJO Y[y
[e00] PUE 91€3S Y30q JO UOIIBOIIOU

VN rmo:om ® | osn ses| e ysnwt £y, -oseOSIp 1B TeNueSu0d pue fuonss(qo ermered uonLim I0J
VN -90UBIIPIO @ | yeonio 10y jueyur oy SUIIEXS 03 YHIq & spuspe | uondeoxs ue Surpiaoid ‘osesstp resy
Awo oym 1opraoxd exeoyyreor Aue soxmbal [[1q SIYL, | [e)ULSU00 [BONLIO JO] PaISe) 3q SHUEYUT
jowmoy) Womsod e Burnnbo1 800 zZvy SUN SoSIATY
ON AJISS]. o (6T-0¥ ¥AQ) SOOTAIOS UBTINH
APBLL UMDY e PLISIA PeeH (62$-0¥ ¥A) "syueFuI Jo Yieay pue fiesy uo
MOT Ao e o1} 01 9SUBYD [ELIGIBUI OU ] [/Z PISIASL YL o1} 03 poye[aI SOTUBYD UTLLID SOYBIN Burpusd | eopIUIIO)) 9lRUSY 26 9S
"s)y3noy) Jrot uyof
pue Arre yse ‘parjdox
20f ‘SeryIBN ALe]
" WOJJ [TeWo P,O3IS0f e
. "(s10woad 1,Us90p Inq soeINTOI YOIYM)
.Hoaa_umw_wm o |  vau pue (suonoury oq seop worym) vasn
: U29M19q SOOULISJIP O} JO SUO ‘[0AS] [RUOLBU
-OOUBUIPIO e e e ‘st ey ‘[[om se apen3al pue uonowold
-UOLJISO e 1onpoId Arep yioq op pynom A9t 18y} SXI[SIp
Amse], e I $po03 sI A197eS pue YIesy I0J JUSTIIIONUD "S9IMmITISqNs
Uy e Iiot) susyiSusys ey SunpAue Uiy Amrep pue sjonpoid Anep Surwoaod Iokourones
AUoLg e ] "UOISSTIIo)) Axre(] 943 03 19J9p p[nom 9 | suoisiaoid 03 saueyd SNOLIRA SIYRIN ) I0JRUDS 08 9S
JuWugIssy Jjels 1orduy [BISIy/SISA[eUY/punoisydeq LIewrming sme)s Josuodg #
29 UOIEPUIW T 0IY . Arewnag g 10 4qg

"d'8 "ON W] epuady HOIA

10doy ANANDY 2ANE[SISIT €107




WV 856 €107/0T/€
87 a%eg

€107/1/€ emesomyy
Aor1S pue ppo], "I paLjiou
‘0€'€ @ €107/s/€ uo Sulresy

€107/Cl/C
uQ "90{ "I(] pue ‘A9oelS

‘PPOLL "I(] O} PAPIEMIO

*€1/¢ uo ndur a1om
Koy pue ¢1/7 UO SIUSUITIOD

papraoxd ppog, "I

6V 17 mooy
0€:€@) 17/7 vo uraedy

€102/Cl/C
Uo ST[IE SOYSEM O} PSPPE ‘[[Iq ST} JO 9DUSISIXS
o1} JO UIMI] Jed AQ PSYHOU SBA I8S] "I

“uone[sI3e] siyp asoddo 03 uoses1

PLUSIA UHEIR o) ou 9q 03 Jeadde prnom 2IsT)) ‘[OAS] JRUOIIBY oY}
10 OUON :JoEdU] [EOSLT o 78 9501} 03 Surure]) pue SUONIULJIP SZIPIEpue)s
VN:onog e 01 ST []1qQ 9 JO JUSIUT UTETH 3 LY} USALD
VN [90UBUIPI) o
AmQ -goneyrodsuel] Jo jusuneds(q
juswmIoy) [uonIsod e S 993 03 9saY} JO} SpIepue)s Suraren sor) .
ON :AJuse], e os[e 3] "AeAnoedsal o[psmeIR PUR ‘PIOUBAPE (105-0 Ag) "s9o1AI0S S9IIAISS UBWUINH
Sup[oRIL (UOIOY e | [INT ‘LINH O} POOUBADE [INH PUE ‘G)RIPOTLISIUT [eoIpewr Aoua3owe Jo siopraoid pue [pesy uo
MO Ao e | [INH ‘LINA JO SUONTUGSp oy3 saueyd [[1q SIYL | wepes 03 Sunerar suorsiaoid sosIAGY Furpuag | eepruIo)) 9reudg 001 dS
"€10T/C1/T U0 sa3ueyd o/m
SOJON [e0SL] PapImqnsay :
‘yieay siqnd [eo0] 30edun
Areosy 10/pue A[jeoneunneiSord jySiur jey
suonerngax ojed[nword o1 Yiesy Jo pieog a1l
JUIWUSISSY JFBIS 1oeduy [edsiy/sisA[euy/punoisyoeg AiewuIng snjels JTosuodg #
29 NOIBPUIW W 0INY Arewrig g 1o yag

"d'8 "ON W] Bpuady HOA(J

110doy A)ANOY 2ANE[SISIT €10T




NV 866 £102/0T/¢

6C 93ed

E10T/v1/T
O SJUSTITIO))

§.ppoy, I mdur
PPOL "X( 03 POpIEMIO]
‘$1/Z UO UOHBNRAT]
10] 15onboy] POATeoSY

:1oedwy [eosty

V/N :Aorjod

ON :90UBUIPIO)
papusmy

J1 3oddng :wonsog
PPoJ, - s9X :Amsa,
SunjoeL], [UONOY

"UISISAS o1} 95N 0} UIBY|

Ad3 se azi[in 03 suerdIsAyd 10y Sururen suruo

ue Jo Juowdo[oAap 103 mo[[e 0} papIiaoid aq
OS[& pfnoys Surpun,j UOIEpeISop 9oueuLIOfad
JNOYIIM SISSN [BUONIPPE JO Joquunu o31e|

2 91EPOWII000. UL II JBY} 0OS ANSIS2I eop
JIUONO9[2 FUIISIXS 9} FUISOY JSAIOS JUILMD
o) spei3dn 01 TOISIAIJ [I[EoH 21e1S BPBASN
a7} MO[[e p[nom ey spuny yo uoneridordde
e opnjout 01 papustre aq Pnoys [Iq a4,

“Suuren pue sepeiddn

W2ISAS AIBSSO9U J0J 9JBTUIISS 1S0D ONISI[BaX

& dofeAsp 01 UOISIAL(] (IBSH 9I81S BPERAON
U} YHAM SI0M P[NoYs Jyels g1 “A1uno)
s0yseA\ Surpnjoul s991J0 PIOJAI [BYA [BOO]

ul AJAIONPoId I0M FoMO] UT J[nsax AJoI [[Ia
w)sAs oy operddn 03 spung o uoneridoidde
NOYIIM SIS [RUONIPPE SUIPPY "MO[S AIoA
SOUIIIOWIOS ST ANSISaI (IBap OIUONI[S FUNSIX
QY1 1 ST [Iq ST} YHIM UIoouoo Arewrid oy,

*901JJO SPI0d9Y [BNA A1UNno))

S0YUSEA 9} UT MO[J 3Iom 1oedumt A[oA1ieSeu
PInod uonepeIgep soueuriojiod weIsAs

PUE SIOSN PIUTRNUN MON] "WSISAS o1} JO asn

1]} UT SIOST [BOTPATI MU 9} UIBI} 0} S30IN0SSI
op1a01d 1 Se0p JON °UI SO] 03 POSU sIosn
[EOTPaW MU JO JSOY B USYM TMOP MO[S 10U S90p
11 Je1) 0S popeiddn 9q 03 WIISAS 9} MO[[e P[nom
yerp uoneridordde [eosyy Aue opraoid o meadde
10U S90P [[1q SIY} “I2ASMOY "A1SIZAI Yyjesp
SIUOIO9[9 U SeY Apeai[e 9Je)s 9y, uouniedsp
[J[eay oY) 0} WY} JOAI[SP pUR SIUSTWIEIS 9597}
1097100 A[TestsAyd 01 aAey AjjuaLIng ey sowoy

"(ze8-0v 4ag)

[RI9UN] I0] MIOJJO PUE SWIII 9ABS A[[BO1ISI0N} ‘WRISAS ANSIFAI YIBSp OTUOLO9[9 Apreq
sty :Aorig pInoys 3y ‘Bapr poos B A[[ejuswepuny s STy ], JO JUOWIYSI[qRIS 0] SOPIAOI] Suipusg ydesor 1o3euag 911 9S
MW HUSISSY JJB)IS 3oeduy [BISIg/sISA[eUy/punoldyoeyg Lrewrwing sme)s 1osuodg #
29 UOIJBPUIWWOIIY Arewmrrg g 10 Yad

'd'8 "ON W] epusly HOIA

110d3y A)NANDY IABLSISIT €10T




WYV 866 £107/0T/¢
0€ 93eg

ruosaxd
T4 WA — A €71
@ - €107/¥1/€ uo SuLesy

97/z wo mduy ‘tad

¢ Ioye 7z/Z uo asuodsal
PORIIET0T/61/C

Uo A3 03 PapIemIo]
{61/ UO UOIBN[RAY

10] 35onbaY] paATeoay

sox :1oedwiy [eosIy
sax :Aorjod
UIBLIDU[) (9OURUIPIO)
asoddQ :womisog
aknouy ue(y 10 ¥II(|
UWIADY - SIX :AJTISOL

“S[9AQ] QUOZO PAJBAQ[S WO
399110 [esy 01 9[qudaosns OS[e oI SOA[RSTAY)
Surrexa 9asIMIoYIO0 Jo SusioIaxs o[doag
*S9SBOSIP SUN] JOYIO PUE BUIISE 512GI9IBXI PUR
‘sAemIre oY) JO UOHRUIIRJUI 9STED “UONOUN]
3un] 9seaIOSp UBO YOTYAM S[OAS] SUOZO PIJRAS[D
wog sjoeduwr yresy o3 oqudaosns ALrenonred
9Ie S9SBASIP Sun I9130 10 ‘qJO) ‘Burpse

s opdoad pue ‘wotmom jueuad ‘Af1opre

oy} ‘waIp[ryo se yons suonemdod sAnrsusg
“pIepue)s

9] YIIM JUSWUTEIIE JO N0 8q [[IM AIUNo)D
soysepy moleq 1o qdd g9 e 19S ST pIepueIS o}
J1 "ouel ST} UT 10§ PIEPUL)S B YIIM JUSLIR]R
Jo mo oq [[im A3uno)) Nrer) ‘erep Suriojruoud
Ire JuaIqure SurjsTXo JUQLMO U0 paseq

"qdd oL 01 09 Jo o3uex oty ur 95 9q 03 pIEpULIS
atp Joy pasodoid Arsnotaoid vdg +10Z

Sje] Ul pazifeuy 9q 01 paTnpayos ST SOVYN
QUOZO PISIASI PIUSYIFUSNS - "UOTRIOTFOA puR
[J[eaY UBUINY UO SUOZO JO S}09JJ9 YI[Bay oY) JO
9OUSPIAS JNUSIIS MIU U0 Paseq pIepuels suozo
9y Surs1aax o ssaooxd oy ur st gy (qdd)
vor|[iq tod sed ¢/, Jo piepue)s sw0zo SursIxa
ay) Sururene jou APUL.LIND ST AJUNOY) SB[

*3UT)$9] STOTSSIIIS WO
uondwoxe J[0TYoA MOU S} PUSIXS 0] PUE ‘SILak
0M] AI0A9 0] ‘TeoA A10A9 wIoL SUTISS) SUOISSIUID

910194 Jo Asuenbag oy; mo 0) o1e seSueyd

JYL "SSLUNOD JIB]D) PUB S0USEA UI poseIsidar
SO[OTYA I0JOT TWOLJ SUOISSTUIO J0SInoaxd auozo
UI S9SRaIOUL UI J[NsaX [[1M sagueyo pasodoad oy,
'SpIepuelS AJfend) 1y JUSIqUIY [BUOTIEN PIseq
-[J[BaY JO Juswureye 10y ue[d uoneyueweydury
91B]S 9[qra0IoJuS A[[eIope) pue pasoidde

‘(suors1aaz oy saoxdde

0 S[qe S Vdd J1) Vdd £q peaocidde
9Ie SUOISIASI 1) [UN J]S 9[qradIOJUd
A[[exopay oy3 pim oouendurod Jo

N0 9q [[IM BPRASN JO suoniod Auno)
Ae[D (pue) soysem oYL SIS
91qRI2I0JUL A[[RISPaJ PISIAQI AT} OJUT
parerodioour og 03 SOINSEAUI [OJIWOD
asory 10J pue ‘quomudimbe uoronmsuoo
SE onSs $90.MoS J0SsIMaeId sU0Zo JAY10
WO SUOISSIUS 29npal 0} padojessp
3q 0} SUOIIR[NFo1 PUB SAINSBIUI [OLUOD
[ewonrppe axnboi Aejy "AoueSy
Uo09]01g [PIUSWUONAUT 'S N

a1} 0] BPEASN JO Q18IS oY) yInomy
pentigns pue preog SuUTLISA0F [820]
oy} Aq pasoidde ‘s3urresy yyrm orqnd
9y} 01 paspou ‘paredord oq 03 sue[g

9ouBRUSUIRIA pue uoneuswodur]

9.8 JO suopod Ajmo)) (re[) pue)
90USBA\ Y] O} SUOISIAQI a1mbal [TA\

"onuoA9l AJITene) Iy S9oNpar ‘JIs
s Juerjdunos jou ‘sjoedu yyeey
asIaApe 10y [enuatod ‘siosmoord

9UO0ZO JO SUOISSIIIS SISBAIOU]

"Z1$ 01995 9yeonyIIIa0 Jouwrs

S3[qNOP Pue ‘S18aK { 0} uondusxe
S[9TUSA MAU SISBAIOUT “IBAK 19710
AI9A9 01 oo Fows 9[o1yeA seSuey)

"(LTr-0b 4A9) so[o1yaa
10JOW UIBLISD JO SUOTSSTIID 21}

HoeL], WOV Vdd 'S’ 941 JO juswale paxnbai e s1 weisoid Jo suornpadsur pasmbai jo Aouenbaxy UOSARISNY)
Yoy AIoug e 90URUAUIRW PUR NoNoadsur S[OIYoA 9)BIS O, o) SururoAod suorstA0Id SasIASY Surpuag pleuo( I0jeUSS Ly1 g8
JUWUBISSY Jyels 1oeduy [edsif/sisA[euy/punoidydeg Alewuing smye)s Josuodg #
29 UONBPUIW W 0ITY Lrewrig mg 1o yag

"H'8 "ON W] BpUadY HOI(

110day] ANADOY ABRISISIT €107




AV 866 £107/0T/¢
1€ 9%eg

*So[es S[9IY2A AMp-1y3 pue Ieo 103usssed mou
UT 95BI0UT OU U0 paseq aIom spoedun ainn,g
"000°V81$ SeM SIBAA JUQII JSOUL 391N} O} JOAO
PIAISSRL HDM U3 1B} PUNJ SAISSOI SSOOX9
93eIoAR 9], "TUNO0I9E [oNuod uennjjod ot

JO punJ 2AI9SAI SS99X0 OV} SJRUII[S OSR [[IM
Mag oyl -uonduoexs oy moyim o[oryeA Jod
7$ 9A19901 pinom Kous3e [onuoo uonnyjod ae
S OIYM IO0] BLISILID 9597 SUMeal ¢61°0¢ 2l
a1t ‘Aquno)) soysep Uy "werdoxd wonoadsur
UOISSTWS A} WOJJ P[O SIBIA { PUE ¢ SO[OTYoA
Fundwoxs Aq joedun [eosty eAneSaU © oARY (1M
AAF 9L 'T$ 2Ae0aI [IM (QHOM) 101ISIA
yIesH AUno)) 20yseA\ Y3 YOIUM JO 9)BO1JILIe0
71$ & ponsst 9q [[I4 U01309dsUl UOISSIUIS

ot Surssed o[oTyeA Yoeq 71§ 01 9§ WO 93]
9)eOLIISY 3T) SO5LAIOUT (€ PUB Teak 90 AI0AS
07 JeoA AI9AS WIOI] S[OIYSA JOJowI AInp-1ySy|

Io 1eo 1oSusssed e Jo suonooedsur juenbasqns Jo
Aouanboiy o1y 0onpai (7 S1834 ¢ 01 S18AK 7 WOL
J[OIYAA 10J0UX AINP-1YSI] Mot 10 180 JeFusssed
Mau & Jo uoroadsur UOISSIUIS [BHIUT a4} J0J
porrad uondumaxa ayy aseaiouy (] [ YA YL

(ZTLL 88 Y$) — eIULLIG SIMN,] UO
103034 pue (98€¥T$) — ST/VTAA “(98€PHTS)
— P1/E1 A — oNUaALI paonpay :joedwi] [eoST]

*JUNOOOB QAISSAI SS90XS 9Y) THOIY
Spuny SJBUItHI]e [[IM P)Sa] FUISq S[OIYOA MU
JO ISQUINT PSONpAI ST} OUTS SATOUSTE JIE [BO0]
o 01 popraod sjueid 9AI9SAT $S00X0 AN
9T} WO SPUNJ 21eUTUII[d OS[e [[IM )] "weidoxd
Bunsay suorsstme o1 wioy porrad uorydimoxa
9[oTYaA MU [eUOnIpPE 9y} ySnoayy parduroxe
a1omyeA Jad Tefiop ouo Aq setouafe [01nU00
uonnjod Jre £1uno)) (e[ pue) J0Ysep

1]} 0} SNUSASI INPAI [[IM UOLE[SISO[ oy T,

JUIWUSISSY JIe)S
29 UOIIEPUIWTIOINY

joedury [BosI/SIsA[euy/punoidyoeg

Alewiwng

sme)s

Jlosuodg
Lrewrag

#
g 10 yag

"d'8 "ON wey] epueldy HOH(

Ja0doy ANADOY AADE[SISIT €107




NV 856 €10T/0T/€
7€ 93eg

"9/ UO SJuoWo))
S UIA9Y] paiejuyg
"€10T/61/C U0 U1y
PUE TIAJT] 0] paplesmIoy
{61/T uo uonen[eAq

10 1sonbay] peATesay

ud 00:¢ @

61/ pepruqns ‘71/g uo
90f pue ‘USI[Iq ‘UIASY
0} popremio] :61/C
uITpeap ‘Z1/Z U0 9JON
[Bastg pelsenbai Ayunoy

sax noedwy [BoSL]
S3x :Aormod
U[e)IdOU[} (90UBUIPIO
3a0ddng :wongsod
(u1A9y]

I0 ue(y) SO X AJIsay,
YorL], UOLOY

43Iy Aot

(Ochers)- erutarg aamng (LTe'Ls) —
STALAA S(0YS‘Z9)— PI/€I A £(08) — €1/CT Ad

‘pareuturys

QJe §]S00 PUR USPINQ SATIRISIUITIPE JAISSIIXH
*J00JJ0 Ul urewa Ayenb. xe oaoxdwi 03
sures3oid wo pepuadxe aq Ajuno)) soysep pue
SIB[D UI S99F 9JBOITIeD FOWS WO JNSI YoIrym
Spuny 959y} 11} sjuewaanbal SYN Sunsixg

.mvi@ JUBIS JO SUOISUR]XS JB9A-U0
Jo suoneso[[e 303pnq I0J sjuswImnbal jeaordde
PUR MOTASI Sk [[9 SB ‘sjuewesmber Jurpiodes

Ayioyrenb soyeurtiI[o OS[e I "SIOUNNBXY

JO paeog oY) pue ‘90)}IWIIO)) 99ULBUL,] UILIJU]
‘S[OIYa A JOIOJA JO UOISIAL] 93 “UO1199J01d
[BIUSUIOIAU JO UOISTAL(] BPRAON] S} WO
Jo reaoidde ‘s[oIys A I0JOJA] THOIJ SUOISSIUIE
I0J 9oIuIuIo)) AJOSIAPY 9181§ O} AqQ MOTAST
“a3pnq pue [esodoid jueI3 & Jo Juswdoraasp
Surnnbar ssasoid swosueping AJiresssosuun
e SOJRUTW[o J] °sorouade Ire 0} spunjy

9501]} JO WONEBIO[E 190IIp B M weidoid jueid
B G3nomp) SIIouafe [00] 0} SPUNJ JAIOSII SSIOXS
JO uonNqLYSIp JUeLNO of) seoedal [[1q oYL,

wreidoxd

JueI3 JO UIPING IS0 FUBUITII[D ‘SAIOUTe
[200] 0} SpUNy JONU0Y) UONN[[0J Iy 2AISTY
$599XH AJA JO UONBIO[[E 109JIP SOPIAOI]

‘sepouage [onuod uonnod e [820]
0] SpUMNJ 9AI9SAI SS90X9 JO UOHEOO[[B

1001Ip M Ssao01d pue Jurpung
JuBIL) 9AI9STY $SE0XH AJN( seoejdey

-0% M) U029y 01U Honn[og
o) SunLIdA03 SUOISIAOId SOSTAYY

(8P

Surpueq

syred
PIae(T I07eUSS

8¥1 dS

‘suonyduroxe T84 { [BIIUI S} WO SNUIASI
18O[ TEUOLIPPE 0} Ped] [[1M STY], "PIemio]
Suraow seseyoind S[OIYSA MU IO pUBIIOD
dn-jued oyy pue uoissanel oY) 9ouIs seseyomd
9[OTYOA MU JO JUI[OAP S} JO 9SNLAq I9jeaId
9q 01 paredionue 916 SUONONPAI SNUIASI SINJ0]

U USISSY JjeIS
29 UOI)EPUIW IO

joeduy [eas1g/SISA[eUy/punoisyoeyg

Arewiuing

smejs

Josuodg
Arewiag

#
g 10 Jag

"d'§ "ON W] epusdy HOEd

110day] ANANOY AANBISISIT €10T




NV 85:6  £10T/0T/€
€€ 93ed

s
eSH 9U3 1994 10U
S90p {97/ UO JUSWILIOD

$.90¢ P91 ‘€10T/61/C
1o qog 0} PapIBMIO]
{61/C UO UOTIBN[RAY
10] 35onbay] PIATeOTY

oeduay eosIq
:Kotfod

190URUIPIO
‘uonIsod

:AynsaL

3S9J9)U] ON UONOY
Anond

-01 Jad) syred swoy poinjoey

(¢z
nueuwr

SururoA03 suorsIA0Id UIBLIoO SOSIASY

Surpuag

OpUSUEBIA
SHRJA] J0JBUSS

bS1 €S

"BIUTDIG 9NNy Ul Sjuesd

ordnynur 1eysturtupe pue [esodoid v dojessp

01 SUIA®T] JOU PUE ‘GT-{T A4 JUeI3 € I0)SIUIlIpe
pue [esodoud e jruqns 03 SulAey 30U ‘YI-€1 AL
resodoud juess e jrnqns pue dojaasp 01 Suraey
j0U 19010 eouerdmwo)) [eost,] IOINSIT P[ROH
pUB 01991 UOISIAI( JuswaZeury A1jen)

Iry 9U) WOk 3 NSaI SSuIAeS J0qe| ‘sjurIid
BUnSIXo JO SO[0AD JeOA-T)NUI B} JSAO PoINpal
3Je S)S09 UoneNSIUTUPE pue Suntodal uotp

pue ‘51500 Juowdorsasp esodoxd enrur ot se
A[[BIUSTIRIOUL JNO90 S}JOUI] [BIOURUL] "Pasnpax
a1e sosuadxa Joedun [eosy aanisod © sey

MAg oyl -eAnedsu se parrodal aie sasuadxs 0g
‘sysenboy worsus)xa pue ‘sjsanbai woreoo[[Lal
108pnq ‘syesodoad 03 pare[ar ATAI(T PUB

‘dHAN “eonTuo)) AIOSIAPY 9Y) 03 S[RIIQNS
Jo uoyeredsid pue ‘syuswrysijdwosoe JueId

J0 Funodar Aprearenb ‘spesodoud juess Furiedoxd
M pojeroosse asuadxe pue ewm [sunosiad
QTRUTUNS [[IM YA F YL *Joedm] [6IST]

JUSWHSISSY JJv)S
29 UONBPUITH U 0IY

1oeduay [Bas1/SisA[euy/punoisydeg

Arewuing

smelg

Josuodg
Arewag

#
g 10 Jad

"H'8 'ON Wy epuedy HOId

1odoy KAy 2ADESISOT €107




NV 856 €107/0T/€
y€ 98eq

€1/9¢/c

o qog pue WA
pafrewry — 9/ uo
[eAH 10 15anbayy p,ooy

oedwy (eOSLT e
Korjod e
1Q0URUIPIO) o
‘uonIsod e
Ajusa], e (95$-0v MAQD) "s991AD
WONOY e OTUOIIOSS UTBMOD JO SISIMIOBINUB souor
Aoy e Surureao3 suorsiaoid sjoeuy Surpusd unsnf Joyeuss €81 dS
IO[eYM
‘asnoypoom
‘worq1e3es
aoedwy jeosty e ‘IoJayoary]
otiog e ‘SUO[ “UOSIYIINY
P0URUIPIO) e ‘puowture |
‘uonIsog e (689 “UOSARISILD)
Agnsel e =6 J4ag) swnpoid 00o8qo] JO 95N pUE ~ ‘eayp20910D)
JA0JIUOJA] ‘UOTIOY o uorssessod oy 0} Sulye[aI S108 UILLIAD ‘oqsAe3e) ‘ApreH
Kuoug e SUINIWTIOD WO IOUTW € SIIqIYOIJ ‘IoAouIenas LL1 dS
JUAWUSBISSY JJEIS Joedu] [edSIj/SISA[euy/punoidydeqg Arewung smjels Jlosuodg #
29 UONBPUIUWLIOINY Arewinig g 1o yag

"H'8 "ON W] epusdy HOId

)0day AIANOY SANRISISOT €107




NV 866 €£10¢/07/€
G¢ o3egq

goedury eosSI] e
Kotfog e
190UBUIDIO o
;uonIsog e
:Amsa], e T9E'6EY
SULIONUON UOOY e "000°00L I9A0 suonemdod qim suonorpsLn( SYN Iopun pazrue3Io SoLnsIp STUa( :
QUoLd e | Ul pejeaId SIOLISIP YIReY SUIOA0S Z9€ 65 SUN [i[eay 03 3urge[ol suolsIA0Id SoSIASY Fuipusg SOSIOJA 10]BURS 1€ ds
. Bl "Surpuowie 9q [[IM pIo,] I0JRUAS
[[1a I9ST "I(J pue qog
S1/ m 10 qod paynou "ore1ado Jo seonorId PapPUSUIIOsaT YIIM
. 4 Ewox Nd woty) op1aoid USyl p[nom oym ALIOYINY (I[esy
0€:€®) 61/¢ U0 Surreoy [290] S} NI POISISISaI 9q 03 Wy oxnbax ospe
. PO “1o3Iew SIowLIey pepruiiad € je 10 swoy
wh\ m%o wstw.mS s/e MW § JO[[9S 93 Je o0 pue (Joursrm Jo suoyd ou)
@Emm. MM.« wm osmomwmvom . SOTeS J0OJIP 9q 0} 9ARY P[NOM A3Y) ‘UOTHPPE U]
¢ “Auoyny QesH © Aq pajoadsur Usaq j0U sARY
Koty 1o Surkes yuowale)s e Surpapour ‘Apredoxd
e (I vMonmmﬁon 0] 9ARY AU, .uoﬁnwmm ﬁmEoEWHEUE
saX :Korod e ureyss Ji1 Sumprured wog pajdwoxe pue
ON -JUBUIPIO) @ | yuroy oy mr paredoxd oq 01 QLY Aq pareuSisap
popuemly S& SPO0J YSLI MO MO][e P[noM [[Ie SHL
J1voddng wonisog e QuIoY
(osnjedepy ‘61 UOIBIN oy urp oredoid oxe Lo J1 syrumrod
‘YOUINDTAL YorS uo Surresay 18 Sunuasald oq [[IM PIo,] JoTRUDg Suiaey Wwog pooj JSLI mo] Jo sedsy
“I9ST) SX AJuSSl, e | jerp syuourpuswe pesodoid oy Jo 1toddns ur are | ‘ureed sydwoxa — saLpsnpuy 98e10)
BUPOELY, (UONOY e | op 'sKep MaJ ISB] AU1 I2AO [[1q SIY) UI PAAJOAU —(S€6-07 YAF) "SIUOUIYSI[qEISS piod
USIH :AOUd e | 2UOAIOAS YIIM SUOISSNOSID [RISASS PRY 9ABY O pooj 01 Sune[al suoIs1A0Id SaSTATY Surpued UoIRY JOJeUas 907 dS
JUWUSISSY JJels poedur] [BosIg/SISATEUY/punoisydeg . Alewming smels Iosuodg #
2 UONJEPUIWUIOINY : Krewrr g mg 1o dag

H'8 "ON Wi} epudly HOIA

1oday AIANOY 2ADEISIST €107




i

- DBOH Agenda Item No. 10.A. and }0.B.

= REMSA.

Lkl

| Regi-o.nal' Emergency Medical Services Authority

REMSA

OPERATIONS REPORTS
FOR

FEBRUARY 2013

450 Edison Way ® Reno, NV 89502-4117
775.858.5700 * fax 775.858.5726



Fiscal 2013

Ea| Avg. Travel Time

Jul. 2012 4 mins. 48 secs.
Aug. 5 mins. 59 secs. 4 mins. 56 secs.
Sept. 5 mins. 46 secs. 4 mins. 48 secs.
Oct. 5 mins. 34 secs. 4 mins. 40 secs.
Nov. 5 mins. 38 secs. 4 mins. 42 secs.
Dec. 5 mins. 56 secs. 4 mins. 58 secs.
Jan. 2013 5 mins. 48 secs. 4 mins 50 secs.
Feb. 5 mins. 50 secs. 4 mins. 51 secs.
Mar.

Apr.

May

June 2013

98% e e e e [Tt i e |y " )

97% /rﬂ
96% il —

95%.

94%.

——Priority 1

et Priority 2

AW

92% \/ &\
91% A AN
90% +— SN , : ' : .

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12




Care Flight

WGrosss
$69,730

e

.-f

$140,090
$95,505
$20,775
$81,919
$19,774
$40,326
$79,820

Aug. 17
Sept. 12
Oct. 3

Nov. 11
Dec. 3

Jan. 2013 6

Feb. 12
Mar.

REMSA Ground
Jul-12 3222
Aug 3305
Sept 3088
Oct 3234
Nov 3015
Dec. 3164
Jan. 2013 3376
Feb. 3086
Mar.

Apr.

May

June

" $3,256

$3,381,910
$3,190,456
$3,322,716
$3,094,421
$3,269,747
$3,477,783
$3,182,191

Allowed ground avg bill -

Adjusted Allowed Average Bill -

$1,028.00



Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority

CARE FLIGHT
OPERATIONS REPORT

FOR

FEBRUARY 2013

450 Edison Way ® Reno, NV 89502-4117
7'75.858.5700 ¢ fax 775.858.5726



CARE FLIGHT OPERATIONS REPORT
FEBRUARY 2013
WASHOE COUNTY

2

% In Town Transfer:
2 Ground ITTs were completed

% Outreach, Education, & Marketing:
> 1 Community Education & Public Event

02/01/13 Mt. Rose Patrol/incline Fire Helicopter Orientation

Flight Staff

¢+ Statistics
Washoe County Flights

# patients

Total Flights:
Total Patients

Expired on Scene
Refused Transport (AMA)

Scene Flights
Hospital Transports

Cardiac
Trauma
Medical
Puimonary
High Risk OB
Neuro
Pediatrics
Newborn

Full Arrest
Surgical

Total

CDCoOo0OOoOWOoOOoO =MD

12
12

1

-
N



Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority

REMSA

GROUND OPERATIONS REPORT
FOR

FEBRUARY 2013

450 Edison Way * Reno, NV 89502-4117
775.858.5700 * fax 775.858.5726



tétmm

MSA .

GROUND AMBULANCE OPERATIONS REPORT

February 2013
1. OVERALL STATISTICS:
Total Number Of System Responses 5024
Total Number Of Responses In Which
No Transport Resulted 1937
Total Number Of System Transports 3087

2. CALL CLASSIFICATION REPORT:

Cardiopulmonary Arrests 2%
Medical 48%
OB ' 1%
Psychiatric/ Behavioral , 4%
Transfers 19%
Trauma 23%

Trauma - MVA. - 5%

Trauma — Non MVA 18%
Unknown/Other 3%

Total Number of System Responses  100%

3. MEDICAL DIRECTOR'S REPORT:

The Clinical Director reviewed:

100% Full Arrest Ground Charts
100% Pediatric ALS and BLS Ground Charts
100% All Ground Intubations

Review of the following patient care records (PCR) for accurate and complete documentation and
appropriate use of protocol: '

* 100% of cardiopulmonary arrests '

» 100% of pediatric patients both ALS and BLS transport and non-transport patients

e 100% of advanced airways (outside cardiac arrests)

o ETCOR2 usein cardiac arrests and advanced airway

* 100% of Phase 6 Paramedic and EMT PCRs

» 100% Pain/Sedation Management

» Total of 367 PCRs




All follow-up deemed necessary resulting from Communication CQI was completed by Chris Barton,
EMD, Communications Education and CQI Coordinator

4. EDUCATION AND TRAINING REPORT:

A. Public Education

Advanced Cardiac Life Support

Date ‘ Course Location Students
1/25/2013 Storey County Fire Department | 5
2/1/2013 REMSA 12
2/4/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 4
2/7/2013 | VREMSA 11
2/10/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 2
2/27/2013 REMSA 16

Advanced Cardiac Life Support Recert

Date | Course Location Students
2/2/2013 John Mohler & Co 12
2/2/2013 David Larivee 6
2/5/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site : | 4
2/5/2013 Trent Waechter ' 1
2/5/2013 | Tahoe Forest Hospital - REMSA 15

i 2/9/ 2013 David Larivee 4
2/13/2013 Nampa Fire Department 1
2/15/2013 | Trent Waechter 2
V2 / 13/2013 | ‘ | EMS CES 911 Training Site 3
2/19/2013 | Riggs Ambulance 1
2/19/2013 | | REMSA 12
2/ 19/2013 | | Saint Mary's Regional Medical Center ' 7




2/25/2013 REMSA 7
2/28/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 1
Advanced Cardiac Life Support Skills
Date Course Location Students
2/1/2013 Kevin Green 1
2/8/2013 Saint Mary's Regional Medical Center 1
2/19/2013 REMSA 1
2/22/2013 REMSA 1
2/25/2013 REMSA 3
Advanced Cardiac Life Support Prep Course
Date Course Location Students
2/4/2013 REMSA 3
Bloodborne Pathogen
Date Course Location Students
2/11/2013 Career College of Northern Nevada 7
Basic Life Support Instructor
Date Course Location Students
1/15/2013 Barrick Cortez Dominican Republic - REMSA 6
1/17/2013 Humboldt General Hospital 8
Family & Friends CPR Awareness
Date Course Location Students
2/28/2013 Barrick Cortez Dominican Republic 15




Health Care Provider CPR

Milan Institute

Date Course Location Students
12/10/2012 Randi Hunewill 15
1/3/2013 Nye County EMS 9
1/12/2013 Nye County EMS 5
1/14/2013 Barrick Cortez Dominican Republic - REMSA 10
1/15/2013 Milan Institute 9
1/17/2013 West Hills Hospital 3
1/19/2013 REMSA 7
1/26/2013 Renown Vista Clinic - REMSA 7
1/27/2013 Jennifer Kraushaar 3
1/29/2013 Fritz Klingler 1

1/30/2013 Sierra Nevada Job Corps 1
1/31/2013 REMSA 9
2/2/2013 Ralph Renteria | 1
2/4/2013 Jennifer Kraushaar 2
2/5/2013 REMSA 11
2/5/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Si..te 7
2/5/2013 Jennifer Kraushaar 7
2/5/2013 Sierra Nevada Job Corps 6
2/5/2013 Majen 1
2/5/2013 Robert Stone 7
2/5/2013 Fritz Klingler 1
2/7/2013 REMSA 9
2/7/2013 CPR Plus 5
2/8/2013 2




2/27/2013

- 2/8/2013 West Hills Hospital 6
2/8/2013 Nevada Legislétive Counsel 8
2/9/2013 REMSA 4
2/11/2013 Robert Stone 6
$2/12/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 5
2/12/2013 CPR Plus 13
2/14/ 20‘13 NorCal EMS Educational Services 1
2/15/2013 Nevada Legislative Counsel 5
2/15/2013 Storey County Fire Department 4
2/16/2013 Mountain Family Medicine - REMSA 7
2/16/2013 Jennifer Kraushaar 12
2/18/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 3
2/18/2013 Randi Hunewill 1
2/20/2013 Nevada Depar@ent of Forestry 8
2/20/2013 CPR 1st Aid Training Site 1
2/21/2013 REMSA 10
2/22/2013 CPR Plus 8
2/23/2013 Colleen Duran 5
2/23/2013 Nevada Legislative Counsel 6
2/23/2013 Nevada Legislative Counsel 5
2/25/2013 Tyler Teese 2
2/25/2013 Nevada Legislative Counsel 14
2/26/2013 Milan Institute 15
2/26/2013 Jennifer Kraushaar 6
2/26/2013 REMSA 9
EMS CES 911 Training Site 7

-10-



2/27/2013 Nevada Air Guard 1
Health Care Provider, Employee
Date . Course Locatioﬁ Students.
2/1/2013 Aaron Barnes 1
2/7/2013 Josh Duffy 2
2/19/2013 REMSA 1
2/25/2013 REMSA 2
2/26/2013 REMSA 1
. Health Care Provider Recert
Date Course Location Students
1‘/ 17/ 2013 Humboldt General Hospital 10
1/17/2013 | Humboldt Gener,al Hospital | 7
1/31/2013 Tahoe Forest Hospital .1
2/2/2013 Riggs Ambulance 4
2/4/2013 REMSA 8
2/7/2013 - Tahoe Forest Hospital 1
2/12/2013 Nampa Fire Department 10
2/13/2013 Washoe County School District 2
2/13/ 2013 Tahoe Forest Hospital 1
2/13/2013 REMSA 11
2/13/ 2013 Humboldt General Hospital 2
2/14/2013 Eésten Plum-as.Healthcaré | 4
2/14/2013 FMS CES 911 Training Site 1
2/14/2013 REMSA | 8
'2‘/ 14/ 2613 Nampa Eire Department 9

-11-



| 2/15/2013 REMSA 9
2/16/2013 Mountain Family Medicine - REMSA 2
2/19/2013 REMSA 19
2/19/2013 Tahoe F‘orest Hospital 2
2/19/2013 - Tahoe Forest Hos.pi‘tal. 6
2/19/2013 REMSA 9
2/19/2013 Humboldt General Hospital 7
2/19/2013 Hurﬁboldt 'Generai Hosi)ital 5
2/20/2013 Nampa Fire Department 9
2/20/2013 REMSA 1
2/20/2013 REMSA 10
2/21/2013 Humboldt General Hospital 4
2/22/2013 Humboldt General Hospital 1
2/22/2013 Tahoe Forest Hospial 1
2/23/2013 REMSA 8
2/24/ 2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 1
2/26/2013 Regent Care Center Reno 4
2/27/2013 David Stepner 3
2/ 27/.2013 REMSA 10

Health Care Provider Skills
Daté COufsé Location Stﬁdents
2/1/2013 REMSA 1
2/2/2013 | REMSA 1
2/3/2013 Riggs Ambulance . 1
2/4/2013 . | REMSA 2

-12-



2/6/2013

Nevada Legislative Counsel

2/7/2013 Orvis School of Nursing
2/7/2013 REMSA 1
2/10/2013 Majen 1
2/14/2013 REMSA 4 |
2/19/2013 REMSA 1
2/20/2013 REMSA 1
2/21/2013 REMSA 6
2/23/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 1
2/25/2013 REMSA 2
2/25/2013 REMSA 1
2/26/2013 Riggs Ambulance 1
2/27/2013 REMSA 3
2/27/2013 Tahoe Pacific Hospital-SM 1
Heart Saver CPR/AED
bate Course Location Students
1/15/2013 Michael Salerno 1
2/2/2013 Washoe County S&ool District 5
2/2/2013 * REMSA 3
2/ 3 /2013 Nampa Fire Department 4
2/4/2013 Eriéa Krysztof 1
2/4/2013 Washoe County ;School District 3
2/4/2013 Humboldt General Hospital 5
2/5/2013 Airpoft Fire Department 6
2/ '5 /2013 UN‘R.Environmentall Health Services 12 |
,2/ 5/2013 - Washoe County School Dis;cfict | | 4
LR _ v :

-13-



Nevada Air Guard

2/6/2013
2 /6/ 2013 Washoe County School District 5 |
2/6/2013 ~ REMSA 7
2/6/2013 Airport Fire Department 3
2/7/2013 Nevada Air Guard 5
2/7/2013 Ronald Oliver 2
2/10/2013 Nevéda Air Guard 7
2/12/2013 Washoe County School District 5
2/12/2013 Washoe County School Distriét 1>1
2/13/2013 Erica Krysztof 2
2/13/2013 Washoe County School District 4
2/13/2013 Airport Fire Department 5
2/13/2013 Airport Fire Departm‘eﬁt 1
2/14/2013 Washoe County School District 2
2/19/2013 Washoe County School District 4
2/19/2013 Nye Céunty EMS 9
2/19/2013 Nye County EMS 5
2/20/2013 Nye County EMS 7
2/20/2013 Majen 1
2/20/2013 Erica Krysztof 7
2/20/2013 Nampa Fire Department 20
2/20/2013 Washoe County School District 7
2/21/2013 Washoe County School District 4
2/22/2013 Project Uplift 9
2/ 22/2013 Project Uplift | 3
2/23/2013 _ Nye County EMS 10-
2/23/ 2013 Ronald Oliver 5

-14-



2/16/2013

Silver Lake Volunteer Fire Department

$2/23/2013 Chuck Fox 1
2/26/2013 Elko BLM 4
2/26/2013 Washoe County School District 6
2/27/2013 Majen 1
2/27/2013 Washoe County School District 4
2/28/2013 Dustin Hopfe 8

Heart Saver CPR/First Aid
Date Course Location Students
1/28/2013 Nye County EMS 9
2/2/2013 Jennifer Kraushaar 1
2/2/2013 REMSA 5
2/5/2013 National Career Skills Institute 1
2/7/2013 Majen 2
2/7/2013 REMSA 3
2 /.8/ 2013 Sierra Nevada Job Corps 5
2/8/2013 Community Living Options 4
2/8/2013 Great Basin College 9
2/10/2013 "UNR Police Department 10
2/11/2013 * Airport Fire rDepartment 2
2/12/2013 | Majen 3
2/13/2013 Majen 7
2/14/2013 Airport Fire Department 6
2/14/2013 Airport Fire Department 5
2/15/2013 Airport Fire Department 1
5

-15-



2/22/2013

2/16/2013 REMSA 7
2/18/2013 Randi Hunewill 7
2/19/2013 Mark Bosco 6
2/20/2013 Majen 1
2/20/2013 Majen 1
2/20/2013 Susan Phillips 5
2/20/2013 Susan Phillips 4
2/21/2013 Lawrence Smith 2
2/21/2013 Eagle Valley 4
2/22/2013 Majen 9
2/22/2013 Humboldt General Hospital 5
2/26/2013 ~ Elko BLM 21
Heart Savef First Aid
Date Course Location Students
1/23/2013 Elko BLM 16
2/7/2013 REMSA 4
2/8/2013 Milan Institute 1
2/11/2013 Airport Fire Department 5
2/11/2013 Airport Fire Department 1
2/12/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 1
2/14/2013 Milan Institute 12
2/19/2013 Washoe County School District 2
2/19/2013 Mark Bosco 1
2/22/2013 Nevada Legislative Counsel 3
Nevada Legislative Counsel 7

-16-



2/25/2013 Nevada Legislative Counsel 6

2/25/2013 Nevada Legislative Counsel 7

2/27/2013 Milan Institute 15
Heart Saver Pediatric CPR/First Aid

Date Course Location Students
2/9/2013 REMSA 10
2/23/2013 REMSA 13
2/2/2013 Jennifer Kraushaar 5
2/6/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 1
2/24/2013 Jennifer Kraushaar 8

Pediatric Advanced Life Support.

Date Course Location Students
1/18/2013 REMSA 17
2/9/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 5
2/12/2013 REMSA 12

I;ediatric Advanced Life Support Recert

Date Course Location Students
2/3/2013 David Larivee 5
27 4/2013 Trent Waechter 3
2/9/2013 John Mohler & Co 7
2/10/2013 David Larivee 5

2/10/2013 Trent Waechter 1
2/13/2013 Easten Plumas Healthcare 2
. 2/14/2013 Nampa Fire Department 1

-17-



2/19/2013 EMS CES 911 Training Site 4
2/22/2013 REMSA 10
2/23/2013 Humboldt General Hospital 1
CE Courses
Date Course Location Students
2/282013 STEMI Care - REMSA 36
2/28/30123 STEMI Care - REMSA 18
Ongoing Courses
Date Course Description / Location Students
2/1/13 REMSA Education- Paramedic 15
8/14/12 REMSA Education - Paramedic 13
1/8/13 REMSA Education- EMT 24
Total Students This Report 1344
5. COMMUNITY RELATIONS:
Community Outreach:
Point of Impact
Date Description Attending
Child Safety Seat Checkpoint, at Save a Heart--Simple 7
Health Fair, Scheels, Sparks 32 cars and 49 seats 3 staff, 18
2/9/13 inspected. volunteers
Northern Nevada Fitting Station Project
Date Description Attending
2/26/13 * Renown Prepared Childbirth class 10 parents, 1 staff .,




Safe Kids Washoe County

Date Description Attending
Washoe County Child Death Review Board bi-monthly
2/1/13 meeting, Washoe County Social Services. 2 staff
Give Kids a Boost subcommittee planning meeting,
2/5/13 Sun Valley. 9 volunteers
Join Together Northern Nevada Coalition monthly
2/6/13 meeting, Reno. 1 student intern
Safe Kids Washoe County Board of Directors bi-monthly 8 volunteers, 1
2/6/13 meeting, REMSA. staff
Safe Kids USA Advisory Council monthly
2/6/13 teleconference. 1 staff
Telephone evaluation for the Nevada State Health
2/7/13 Division Maternal Child Health Programs. 1 staff
Scheels Save a Heart CPR Fair, Sparks. Safe Kids
2/9/13 information table. 5 volunteers
19 volunteers, 1
2/12/13 Safe Kids monthly Coalition meeting, Sparks. staff
2/13/13 Cribs for Kids Train the Trainer, REMSA. 3 students, 1 staff
7 student
participants, 4
volunteers, 1
student intern,
Esther Bennett Photojournalism Photovoice Project, final | 100 students and
2/14/13 presentation, Sun Valley. staff
. 8 volunteers, 1
Esther Bennett Safety Committee monthly meeting, Sun | student intern, 1
2/14/13 Valley. staff
Truckee Meadows Bicycle Alliance monthly meeting,
2/19/13 Reno. 1 volunteer
Cribs for Kids Train the Trainer at Salvation
Army/Heidi's Cottage, Family to Family/FRC,
2/19/13 Mesquite. Total of 5 in attendance. 5 attend 1 staff
Cribs for Kids SIDS? NOT SIDS? inservice presentation
2/21/13 for nurses at Renown, Reno. 5 students, 1 staff
- Give Kids a Boost subcommittee planning meeting, Sun 6 volunteers, 1
2/25/13 Valley. student intern
UNR College of Human a<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>